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FORM CAA 2
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]

BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
AHMEDABAD BENCH
CA(CAA)/13(AHM)2024

Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited

CIN: U72900GJ2011PLC131548

A Company incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 and now deemed to be
incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013
and having its registered office at 27t Floor,
GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56, Road - 5C,
Zone-5, GIFT City, Gandhinagar-382355
Gujarat, India.

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013;
And

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

And

In the matter of Infibeam Avenues Limited;

And

In the matter of Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited;
And

In the matter of Infibeam Projects Management Private
Limited;

And
In the matter of Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst
Infibeam Avenues Limited and Odigma Consultancy Solutions

Limited and Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited
and their respective shareholders and creditors;

... Resulting Company / Applicant Company
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NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF ODIGMA CONSULTANCY
SOLUTIONS LIMITED

To,
The Unsecured Creditors of Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited (‘Odigma’ or ‘Resulting
Company’):

Notice is hereby given that by an order dated April 29, 2024, in Application No. CA(CAA)/13(AHM)2024
(“Order”), the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (“NCLT”) has directed a
meeting to be held of the unsecured creditors of the Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited (‘Odigma’
or ‘Resulting Company’) for the purpose of considering, and, if thought fit, approving, with or without
modification(s), the arrangement embodied in the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Infibeam
Avenues Limited (“Infibeam”), Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited (“Odigma”) and Infibeam Projects
Management Private Limited (“IPMPL”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”)
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
other applicable provisions thereof and applicable rules thereunder.

In pursuance of the Order of the Hon’ble NCLT and as directed therein further, this notice is hereby given
that a meeting of the unsecured creditors of Odigma, will be held on Tuesday, 04t June 2024 at 02:00
PM (1400 hours) IST through Video Conference (“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) (“Meeting”)
in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Companies Act”) and General
Circulars No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020; No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020; No. 20/2020 dated May 05,
2020; No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020; No0.33/2020 dated September 28, 2020; No. 39/2020 dated
December 31, 2020; No. 10/2021 dated June 23 2021; No. 20/2021 dated December 08, 2021; No. 03/2022
dated May 05, 2022; No. 11/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (collectively referred to as the “MCA
Circulars”) and the unsecured creditors of the Company are requested to attend the Meeting. At the Meeting,
the following resolution will be considered and if thought fit, be passed, with or without modification(s):

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 - 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and any other rules, circulars and notifications issued thereunder (including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) as may be applicable issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Section 2(1B) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961, and subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association of Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited and subject to the approval
of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (“Hon’ble Tribunal”/“NCLT”) and subject to
such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other authorities or tribunals, as may be
necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by NCLT or by
any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such consents, approvals and permissions, which may be
agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall
be deemed to mean and include one or more Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any
person(s) which the Board may nominate to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this
resolution), the arrangement embodied in the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Infibeam Avenues
Limited and Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited and Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited and
their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) the draft of which was circulated along with this
Notice, as enclosed with this notice of the meeting, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to
the above resolution and effectively implement the arrangement embodied in the Scheme and to accept such
modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, at any time and for any reason whatsoever,
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which may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT or tribunals while sanctioning the arrangement embodied
in the Scheme or by any authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions
or doubts or difficulties that may arise or meaning or interpretation of the Scheme or implementation thereof
or in any matter whatsoever connected or incidental thereto, including passing of such accounting entries and
/or making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme,
as the Board may deem fit and proper without being required to seek any further approval of the unsecured
creditors to the end and intent that the unsecured creditors shall be deemed to have given their approval
thereto expressly by authority under the aforementioned and this resolution and the Board be and is hereby
further authorized to execute such further deeds, documents and writings that maybe considered necessary,
make necessary filings and carry out any or all activities for the purpose of giving effect to these resolutions
and implementation of the arrangement.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that since this Meeting is held, pursuant to the Order passed by the NCLT and in
compliance with the MCA Circulars, through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of the unsecured creditors has
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the unsecured creditors will
not be available for the present Meeting and hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed
to this Notice. However, in pursuance of Section 113 of the Companies Act, authorized representatives of
institutional/ corporate creditors may be appointed for the purpose of voting through remote e-voting, for
participation in the Meeting through VC/OAVM facility and e-voting during the Meeting provided that such
unsecured creditor sends a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its board or governing body
resolution/authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the Meeting through VC/OAVM on
its behalf, vote through e-voting during the Meeting and/or to vote through remote e-voting.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that each unsecured creditors can opt for only one mode of voting i.e., either E-
voting at the Meeting or through Remote e-voting. In case of unsecured creditors cast votes by Remote e-
voting, as aforesaid, the concerned unsecured creditors will nevertheless be entitled to attend the Meeting
and participate in the discussions in the Meeting but will not be entitled to vote again during the Meeting.
In case of unsecured creditors exercising their right to vote via both modes, i.e., casting of vote by
Remote E-voting and at the Meeting, then vote cast through Remote E-voting shall prevail over
voting by the said unsecured creditors at the Meeting and the vote cast at the Meeting shall be
treated as invalid. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by an unsecured creditor, the unsecured
creditor shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. The instructions for E-voting at the
Meeting and Remote E-voting are appended to the notice. In case of Remote E-voting, the votes
should be cast in the manner described in the instructions during the Remote E-voting Period.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE

a) incompliance with the provisions of (i) MCA Circulars and (ii) Sections 108 and 230 of the Companies
Act read with the rules framed thereunder, the Company has provided the facility of voting by remote
e-voting and e-voting at the Meeting so as to enable the unsecured creditors to consider and approve
the Scheme by way of the aforesaid resolution. Accordingly, voting by unsecured creditors of Company
to the Scheme shall be carried out only through remote e-voting and e-voting at the Meeting;

b) in compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and the Order passed by NCLT, (a) the aforesaid
Notice, (b) the Scheme, (c) the explanatory statement under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102
of the Companies Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and any other applicable provisions of Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, and (d) the enclosures as indicated in the Index (collectively referred to as “Particulars”),
are being sent through electronic mode to those unsecured creditors whose e-mail IDs are registered
with the Company. Accordingly, the aforesaid Particulars are being sent to all the unsecured
creditor whose names appear in the record of the Company on Sunday, March 31, 2024. The
voting rights of the unsecured creditors shall be in proportion to their outstanding balance as on
Sunday, March 31, 2024 (“Cut-Off Date”). The unsecured creditors, who will be present in the
Meeting through VC/OAVM facility and have not cast their vote on the resolutions through
remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through
E-voting system during the Meeting. A person who is not an unsecured creditor of the Company
as on the Cut-off Date, should treat the notice for information purpose only;
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<)

d)

e)

g)

h)

)

k)

the unsecured creditors may note that the aforesaid Particulars will be available on the Company’s
website www.odigma.com and on the website of Link Intime at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in.
The copy of the notice can be obtained by emailing the Company Secretary of the Company

at ir@odigma.ooo

copies of the aforesaid Particulars can be obtained free of charge, between 11.00 a.m. to 01.00
p-m. on all working days (except Saturday, Sunday and Public holidays), up to the date of Meeting, at
the registered office of the Applicant Company.

Company has extended the remote e-voting facility for its unsecured creditors to enable them
to cast their votes electronically. The instructions for remote e-voting and e-voting at the
Meeting are appended to the Notice. The unsecured creditors, opting to cast their votes by
remote e-voting and voting during the Meeting through VC/ OAVM read notes below
carefully. In case of remote e-voting, the votes should be cast in the manner described in the
instructions from Friday, May 31, 2024 at 9:00 a.m. IST (0900 hours) to Monday, June 03,
2024 at 05:00 p.m. IST (1700 hours);

NCLT has appointed Dr. Binod Kumar Sinha, Ex-Member of NCLT as Chairman of the said
meeting including any adjournment thereof.

One Independent Director of Company and the auditor (or his authorized representative who
is qualified to be an auditor) of Company shall be attending the Meeting through VC/0OAVM;

The Tribunal has further appointed Mr. Mayur Jugtawat, Practicing Advocate as the
scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting during the Meeting and remote e-voting process in a
fair and transparent manner;

the scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of e-voting at the Meeting, first download the votes
cast at the Meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and shall
make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, invalid
votes, if any, and whether the resolution has been carried or not, and submit his combined
report to the Chairman/any authorized person as appointed by the Chairman of the Meeting.
The scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the votes shall be final. The results of the votes
cast through remote e-voting and e-voting during the Meeting will be announced not later than two
working days from the conclusion of the meeting. The results, together with the scrutinizer’s report,
will be displayed on the website of Company i.e. www.odigma.com and on the website of Link Intime
India Private Limited at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in. The results of the Meeting will be
reported by the Chairman to the NCLT within three days from the conclusion of the meeting.;

the Scheme, if approved at the Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of NCLT;
and

a copy of the explanatory statement, under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the
Companies Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and any other applicable provisions of Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, the Scheme and the other enclosures as indicated in the Index are
enclosed.

The Scheme shall be considered approved if it is approved by requisite majority of unsecured
creditors in accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act.
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In accordance with the Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) read with MCA Circulars and clarification/guidance on
applicability of Secretarial Standards - 1 and 2 dated April 15, 2020, issued by the ICSI, the
proceedings of the Meeting shall be deemed to be conducted at the registered office of the
Company which shall be the deemed venue of the Meeting. Since the Meeting will be held through
VC/0OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this notice.

Dated this May 03, 2024
Place: Gandhinagar

Sd/-
Dr. Binod Kumar Sinha
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Registered Office:

27t% Floor, GIFT Two Building,
Block No. 56, Road - 5C, Zone - 5
GIFT City, Gandhinagar - 382355
in the state of Gujarat

(CIN: U72900GJ2011PLC131548)
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Notes:

1. Pursuant to the directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench vide its
order dated April 29, 2024, the Meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Company is being conducted
through video conferencing (‘VC’)/other audio-visual means (‘OAVM’) facility to transact the business
set out in the Notice convening this Meeting. The Meeting will be conducted in compliance with the
provisions of the Act, SS-2, and in compliance with the requirements prescribed by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs for holding general meetings through VC/OAVM and providing facility of e-voting vide
General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 22/2020 dated June
15, 2020,33/2020 dated September 28, 2020, 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020, 10/2021 dated June
23,2021,20/2021 dated December 8, 2021, 3/2022 dated May 5, 2022, 11/2022 dated December 28,
2022 and 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 (collectively the ‘MCA Circulars’). Accordingly, the
meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Company will be convened on Tuesday, June 04, 2024 at
02:00 p.m. (1400 hours) (IST), through VC/OAVM, for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit,
approving, the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Infibeam Avenues Limited, Odigma
Consultancy Solutions Limited and Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited and their respective
shareholders and creditors.

The deemed venue for the Meeting shall be the Registered Office of the Infibeam Avenues Limited.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sections 102, 230 to 232 of the Act read with other applicable
provisions of the Act, and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016, in respect of the business set out in the Notice of the Meeting is annexed hereto.

3. Asper the directions provided in the Order of the NCLT, and in compliance with the MCA Circulars, the
Notice of the Meeting and the accompanying documents mentioned in the Index are being sent only
through electronic mode via e-mail to those Unsecured Creditors whose e-mail addresses are registered
with the Company. Physical copy of this Notice along with accompanying documents will be sent to
those who request for the same.

4. The Unsecured Creditor may note that the aforesaid documents can also be accessed from the websites
and the documents is also available on the e-voting website of Link Intime India Private Limited ("Link
Intime") (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. https://instavote.linkintime.co.in.

5. Unsecured Creditors attending the Meeting through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act and as per the terms of the Order of the NCLT.
Further, the Order also directs that in case the required quorum for the Meeting is not present at the
commencement of the Meeting, then the Meeting shall be adjourned by 30 minutes and thereafter, the
persons present shall be deemed to constitute the quorum.

6. All the documents referred to in the accompanying explanatory statement, shall be available for
inspection through electronic mode during the proceedings of the Meeting. The Unsecured Creditors
seeking to inspect copies of the said documents may send an email at ir@odigma.ooo. Further, all the
documents referred to in the accompanying explanatory statement shall also be open for inspection by
the Unsecured Creditors at the registered office of the Company between 11.00 a.m. to 01.00 p.m. on all
working days (Except Saturday, Sunday and Public holiday) up to the date of the Meeting.

7. The Notice convening the Meeting will be published through advertisement in (i) Financial Express
(Ahmedabad Editions) in English language; and (ii) Financial Express (Ahmedabad edition) in Gujarati
language.

8. Only a person, whose name is recorded in the books of accounts of the Company as on the Cut-Off Date
(i-e., Sunday, March 31, 2024) shall be entitled to exercise his/her/ its voting rights on the resolution
proposed in the Notice and attend the Meeting. The voting rights of the Unsecured Creditors shall be in
proportion to their outstanding balance as on Sunday, March 31, 2024 (“Cut-Off Date”). A person
who is not an Unsecured Creditor as on the cut-off date should treat the Notice for information purpose
only.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The voting period for remote e-voting (prior to the Meeting) shall commence on and from Friday, May
31, 2024 at 9:00 a.m. IST (0900 hours) to Monday, June 03, 2024 at 05:00 p.m. IST (1700 hours). The
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by Link Intime thereafter. The Company is additionally
providing the facility of e-voting during the Meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, an Unsecured Creditor entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Unsecured
Creditor of the Company. Since this Meeting is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through
VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Unsecured Creditors has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the Unsecured Creditors will not be available for the Meeting and
hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and route map of the Meeting are not annexed to this Notice.
However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting.

Institutional/Corporate Unsecured Creditors (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NR], etc.) are required to
send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG Format) of its Board Resolution or Governing Body
Resolution/Authorization Letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Company by e-mail at ir@odigma.ooo at least forty
eight (48) hours before the Meeting.

Link Intime India Private Limited (e-voting agency) will provide the facility for voting by the unsecured
creditors through remote e-voting, for participation in the Meeting through VC/OAVM and e-voting
during the Meeting.

Unsecured Creditors can join the meeting in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the
Notice.

It is clarified that casting of votes by remote e-voting (prior to the Meeting) does not disentitle
Unsecured Creditors from attending the Meeting. However, after exercising right to vote through
remote e-voting prior to the Meeting, an Unsecured Creditor shall not be allowed to vote again at the
Meeting. In case the Unsecured Creditors cast their vote via both the modes i.e. remote e-voting prior to
the Meeting as well as during the Meeting, then voting done through remote e-voting before the Meeting
shall prevail once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Unsecured Creditor, whether partially or
otherwise. The Unsecured Creditor shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

General Information:

(i) Unsecured Creditors are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/Laptops connected
through broadband for better experience.

(ii) Unsecured Creditors are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS
download stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

(iii) Please note that Unsecured Creditors connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptops connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in
their network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

(iv) Unsecured Creditors who would like to express their views or ask questions during the Meeting
may register themselves as a speaker Unsecured Creditor by sending their request from their
registered email address mentioning their name, PAN, mobile number at ir@odigma.ooo. The
Speaker registration will be open during the period from Friday, May 31, 2024 at 9.00 a.m. IST
(0900 hours) to Monday, June 03, 2024 at 05:00 p.m. IST (1700 hours). Those Unsecured
Creditors who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views /ask questions during the Meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number
of speakers depending on the availability of time for the Meeting.
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(v) Unsecured Creditors are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management

will announce the name and serial number for speaking.

16. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS:

A.

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, in
relation to e-Voting Facility provided by Entities, and any other applicable provisions as
amended, the Company is pleased to offer the facility of voting through electronic means and the
businesses set out in the Notice above may be transacted through such electronic voting. The
facility of casting the votes by the Unsecured Creditors using an electronic voting system from a
place other than venue of the Meeting (‘remote e-voting’) is provided by Link Intime India Private
Limited.

The Unsecured Creditors who will be present in the Meeting through VC facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting.

The Unsecured Creditors who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the Meeting may
also attend / participant in the Meeting through VC but shall not be entitled to cast their vote
again.

The remote e-voting period commences at 9:00 a.m. IST (0900 hours) on Friday, May 31, 2024
ends on 05:00 p.m. IST (1700 hours) on Monday, June 03, 2024. The remote e-voting module
shall be disabled by Link Intime India Private Limited for e-voting thereafter. Unsecured
Creditors have the option to cast their vote on the resolution using the remote e-Voting facility
either during the period commencing from 9:00 a.m. IST (0900 hours) on Friday, May 31, 2024
to 05:00 p.m. IST (1700 hours) on Monday, June 03, 2024 or e-Voting during the Meeting. Once
the vote on a resolution is cast by the Unsecured Creditor, the Unsecured Creditor shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.

The voting rights of Unsecured Creditors shall be in proportion to their outstanding balances in
books of accounts as on the cut-off date, being Sunday, March 31, 2024.

17. Instructions for Remote E-voting and E-voting at the Meeting:

Section A: Remote e-Voting process

1.

2.

Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER'’ tab and register with your following details:

A.User ID:

Enter Event no. + Folio No. (Reference Number) provided to you on your registered email
address.

B.PAN:

Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Creditors who have not updated
their PAN with the Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.)

C.DOB/DOI:

Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with the Company - in
DD/MM/YYYY format)

D.Bank Account Number:

Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with the Company.

* Creditors who have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above.
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» Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at
least one special Character (@!#$&%*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least

one capital letter).

» Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).

Castyou

r vote electronically:

Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER'’ tab.

Enter your User ID, Password, and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on
‘Submit’.

After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’
icon.

E-voting page will appear.

Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option

‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View

Resolution’ file link).

After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else
to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.

Section B: Process of e-voting during Meeting

During the voting session Creditors may click the voting button which is appearing on the

right-

hand side of your VC meeting screen. Once the electronic voting is activated by the

scrutinizer during the meeting, Creditors can cast the vote as under:

1.
2.

3.

Note:

On the VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”

Enter your Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered
email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on 'Submit'.

After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the
option “Favour/ Against” for voting.

Castyour vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired.

After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have
decided to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to
confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on “Back” and
accordingly modify your vote.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or
change your vote subsequently.

Creditors, who will be present in the General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility

during the meeting. Creditors who have voted through Remote e- Voting prior to the
General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the General Meeting through
InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting.

18. Process and manner for attending the Meeting through InstaMeet for Creditors:

1.

Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameetlinkintime.co.in

>

A.

B.

>

Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details:

Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your Folio No. (Reference Number) provided
to you on your registered email address.

Certificate No.: Enter your Certificate No. provided to you on your registered email
address. (non- mandatory)

PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Creditors who have
not updated their PAN with the Company shall use the sequence number provided
to you, if applicable.)

Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number

Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with the

Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet, and your attendance is
marked for the meeting).
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19.In case Creditors have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to
instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.

20. Helpdesk:

Creditors facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by
sending a request at enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 - 4918 6000.

» Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

» For Creditors member, the details can be used only for voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

» During the voting period, members can login any number of time till they have voted
on the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

21.0ther Instructions:

(M

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Hon’ble NCLT has appointed Mr. Mayur Jugtawat, Practicing Advocate as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the remote e-voting process as well as the e-voting system on the date of the Meeting, in
a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the Meeting, first count the
votes cast during the Meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting and make,
within two working days of conclusion of the Meeting, a Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast
in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or Company Secretary or a person authorized by the
Chairman in writing, who shall countersign the same.

Based on the report received from the scrutinizer, the Company will place on the Company’s
website www.odigma.com and on the website of Link Intime http://instavote.linkintime.co.in

Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions forming part of the Meeting
Notice shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the Meeting i.e. Tuesday, June 04, 2024.

Page 10



FORM CAA 2
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]

BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
AHMEDABAD BENCH
CA(CAA)/13(AHM)2024

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013;
And

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

And

In the matter of Infibeam Avenues Limited;

And

In the matter of Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited;
And

In the matter of Infibeam Projects Management Private
Limited;

And

In the matter of Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst
Infibeam Avenues Limited and Odigma Consultancy Solutions
Limited and Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited
and their respective shareholders and creditors;

Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited

(CIN: U72900G]J2011PLC131548)

A Company incorporated under the provisions of

the Companies Act, 1956 and now deemed to be

incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013

and having its registered office at 27th Floor,

GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56, Road - 5C, ...Resulting Company / Applicant Company
Zone-5, GIFT City, Gandhinagar-382355

Gujarat, India.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230(3), 230 (1) AND (2) READ WITH SECTION 232(2)

AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES,
ARRANGEMENT AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016

1. Pursuant to the order dated April 29, 2024 passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Bench at Ahmedabad (“NCLT”), in CA(CAA)/13(AHM)2024 (“Order”), a meeting of the Unsecured
Creditors of Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited ( “Odigma” or “Resulting Company”) is being
convened through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Video Means (“OAVM”), on Tuesday,
June 04, 2024 at 02:00 p.m. IST (1400 hours), for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit,
approving with or without modification(s), the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst
Infibeam Avenues Limited (“Infibeam” or “Demerged Company” of “Transferor Company”),
Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited (“Odigma” or “Resulting Company”), and Infibeam
Projects Management Private Limited (“IPMPL” or “ Transferee Company”) and their respective
shareholders and creditors under Section 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as the “Act”) and other applicable
provisions of the Act, read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements And Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016 (“Scheme”). Infibeam, Odigma and IPMPL are together referred to as the “Companies”
or “Parties”, as the context may admit. A copy of the Scheme, which has been, inter alios, approved
by the Board of Directors of Odigma held on August 07, 2023 is enclosed as Annexure-1. Capitalized
terms used herein but not defined shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Scheme, unless
otherwise stated.

2. The Scheme, inter alia, provides for

(a) Demerger, transfer and vesting of Global Top Level Domain Undertaking (as defined in the
Scheme) of Infibeam with and into Odigma, with effect from Appointed Date i.e. April 01, 2023,
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and Section 66 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961;

(b) Transfer and vesting of Project Management Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) as a going
concern on a Slump Sale (as defined in the Scheme) basis, with effect from Appointed Date i.e.
01st April, 2023, by Infibeam to IPMPL under Sections 230 to 232 and Section 66 and other
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with Section 2(42C) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961; and

(c) Listing of equity shares of Resulting Company on the BSE Limited and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

(d) Various other matters consequently or integrally connected therewith, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the
Act and other applicable laws.

3. In terms of the Order, the quorum for the said meeting of unsecured creditors shall be 10 (Ten)
unsecured creditors attending the meeting through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under section 103 of the Act.

4. Further in terms of the Order, in case the quorum as noted above for this meeting is not present at
the meeting, then the meeting shall be adjourned by half an hour, and thereafter the person(s)
present and voting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum.

5. Furtherin terms of the said Order, NCLT, has appointed Dr. Binod Kumar Sinha, Ex-Member of NCLT
as the Chairman of the meeting of the unsecured creditors including for any adjournment or
adjournments thereof.

6. This statement is being furnished as required under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“Rules”).

7. Asstated earlier, NCLT by its Order has, inter alia, directed that a meeting of the unsecured creditors
of Odigma shall be convened through VC/OAVM, on Tuesday, June 04, 2024 at 02:00 p.m. IST (1400
hours) for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s),
the arrangement embodied in the Scheme (“Meeting”). Unsecured creditors would be entitled to
vote either through remote e-voting or e-voting at the Meeting.

Page 12



8.

10.

10.1.

The Scheme shall be considered approved if it is approved by requisite majority of unsecured
creditors in accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act.

If the entries in the records/registers of Odigma in relation to the number or value, as the case may
be, of the unsecured creditors are disputed, the Chairman of the Meeting shall determine the
number or value, as the case may be, for the purposes of the said Meeting.

Background:
Particulars of Infibeam Avenues Limited / Demerged Company / Infibeam

(a) Infibeam Avenues Limited or “Infibeam” or “Demerged Company” is a public listed company
incorporated on June 30, 2010 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. It is registered to
carry on the business of digital payments, E-commerce services, software business, e-
commerce technology platforms and provide a comprehensive suite of web services spanning
digital payment solutions, data centre infrastructure, software platforms etc.

(b) Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L64203GJ2010PLC061366

(c) Permanent Account Number (PAN): AACCI3501P

(d) Registered Office and e-mail address: 28t Floor, GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56, Road-5C,
Zone-5, GIFT City, Gandhinagar - 382 355, Gujarat, India
E-mail address: ir@ia.ooo

(e) The equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed on the BSE Limited and the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited.

(f) The main objects of the Infibeam as set out in its Memorandum of Association are as follows:

e Tocarryonin India or elsewhere the business to manufacture, produce, assemble, repair, install
maintain, convert, service, overhaul, test, buy, sell, exchange, modify, design, develop, export,
import, renovate, discover, research, improve, merchandise, mould, print, insulate, hire, let on
hire, broadcast relay, exhibit, inform and to act as wholesaler, retailers, agent, stockists,
distributors, show room owners, franchiser or otherwise to deal in all sorts of items, system,
plants, machines, instruments, apparatus, appliances, devices, articles or things of
communication of different models, capacities, characteristics, applications and uses in all its
branches such as radio communication, tele communications, space communication, satellite
communications, wireless communications, computer communications, telephonic and
telegraphic communications, wave communications, under water communications and such
other communication systems as may be discovered in future and to carry out all the foregoing
activities for components, parts, fittings, fixture, accessories, tools, devices and system,
connected thereto.

e To carry on in India or elsewhere in the World, with or without collaboration, the business as
software engineers, software developers, software programmers, networking engineers, web
designers, web development, application development, and integration, varied hardware and
software solutions, compushop, management of bulk data in all of its aspect and to design,
develop, apply, interpret, analyse, improve and buy, sell, import, export, hire, lease, license,
operate, assemble, repair, recondition, alter, convert, improve, upgrade, install, modify system
development and support software of all kinds for usage in all fields of applications in all fields
of technology, to provide ERP video conferencing, telecommunication software, satellite
communication software, radio communication software, wireless communication software,
corporate communication software, parallel communication software, collection, storing,
tabulations, analysis and interpretation of data of all kinds, real time applications, web
applications and to provide high-tech solutions, to give consultancy in respect thereof and to
develop, prepare, run, update, event, analyse, design, improve the various programmes and to
provide, lease, hire, transfer, buy, sell, import, export such programmes to various kind of users
either on BOOM or BOLT basis, and other services connected therewith.
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To carry on business of online multi-brand retail trading activity through web portal, online
advertising and ticketing for entertainment events, web services and data centre services
including and not limited to cloud services, storage and compute, hosting, domains, storage,
data analytics and other software services.

To carry on business of providing payments services, Internet Service Provider which includes
providing Electronic Main Service, Internet, Facsimile Services, Web Sites creation, Designing,
Selling, Leasing and marketing of Web Sites, produce promotion for in house as well for clients,
linking Web Server to World Wide Web (WWW) through Satellite, transferring, downloading or
unlinking of Software, Commercial Information, Voice and Data, Usage of Integral Service
Digital Network (ISDN), Asymmetric Digital Subscriber Line (ADSL), High Speed V-Sat Network,
Video Conferencing directly or through VSNL Satellite Network or any other network whether
within India and or elsewhere in the world and to manufacture all kinds of hardware, plant,
machinery, equipment, softwares, systems, used in the field of information technology and to
apply for authorization from the Reserve Bank of India under the Payment and Settlement
Systems (PSS) Act 2007 to set up a Bharat Bill Payment Operating Unit (BBPOU) under the
Bharat Bill Payment System (BBPS) in India as well as obtain necessary certification from the
Bharat Bill Payment Central Unit (BBPCU) with regards to our adherence to the BBPS standards
for processing bill payments so as to enable us to provide an integrated bill payment system that
offers interoperable and accessible bill payment services to billers, customers through our
network of agents, allows multiple payment modes, and provides instant confirmation of
payment. To work as an authorised operational unit, working in adherence to the standards set
by the (BBPCU) and do all such acts and deeds as specified and / or allowed by BBPCU including
on-boarding of billers and aggregators as per standards / rules, appointment of agents;
carrying out due diligence (as ‘per processes and rules set out for appointment of sub-agents);
ensure confidentiality and privacy standards are in place; carry out Infrastructure development,
application development, including APIs where required, in adherence to standards set by the
BBPS; Transaction handling - Safety and security of transactions, verification of biller
information, adherence to transaction flow standards / rules set by the BBPS; handling
customer grievances and disputes as per set procedures and standards for billers / agents / end-
customers; provide value-added services - provide MIS and Reporting and other services to the
billers / aggregators / agents etc. and all such acts and deeds as specified / allowed by RBI or
BBPCU from time to time and to undertake any business currently existing or introduced in
future by RBI/ NPCI/ Governing authority in respect of the online Payment System in India.

To apply for authorization from Reserve Bank of India and to undertake and do the business of
issuing Prepaid Payment Instruments including but not limited to Semi Open Prepaid Payment
Instruments, Semi-Closed System Payment Instruments, Open System Payment Instruments, e-
wallets, Co-Branded Wallets, and any other pre-paid payment instrument existing or introduced
in future in the industry as allowed by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time. To
undertake supplementary business relevant to online payment systems and any related pre-paid
instruments as per the circulars issued / amended by RBl/Governing authority from Time to
time.

To apply for authorization from Reserve Bank of India for Payments Bank under Section 22 of
the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and governed by the provisions of the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949; Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999; Payment
and Settlement Systems Act, 2007; Deposit Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation Act,
1961; other relevant Statutes and Directives, Prudential Regulations and other Guidelines/
Instructions issued by RBI and other regulators from time to time and then to apply for
scheduled bank status once it commences operations, and is found suitable as per Section 42 (6)
(a) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and to further undertake and do the business and
set up outlets such as branches, Automated Teller Machines (ATMs), Business Correspondents
(BCs), Acceptance of demand deposits, Issuance of ATM / Debit Cards, Payments and remittance
services, Internet Banking, Function as Business Correspondent (BC) of another bank etc. and
to undertake only certain restricted activities permitted to banks under the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949 as allowed by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time.
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e To apply for authorization from Reserve Bank of India (RBI) under the guidelines issued under
Section 18 read with Section 10(2) of the Payment and Settlement Systems Act, 2007 and other
applicable guidelines/ instructions issued by RBI and other regulators from time to time
including to adopt the technology-related recommendations and to further undertake the
business and to act as Payment Aggregator (“PA”) and to facilitate e-commerce sites and
merchants, to accept various payment instruments from the customers for completion of their
payment obligations, without the need for merchants and to create a separate payment
integration system of their own and further to facilitate the merchants to connect with acquirers
and to receive payments from customers, pool and transfer them on to the merchants after a
time period and also to undertake / carry on other supplemental / related / ancillary business
of Payment Aggregator.

e Toset-up and operate as a pan-India umbrella entity focusing on retail payment systems, to seek
authorization from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to operate under the PSS Act, 2007, to set-
up, manage and operate new payment system(s) in the retail space comprising of but not limited
to ATMs, White Label PoS; Aadhaar based payments and remittance services; newer payment
methods, standards and technologies; monitor related issues in the country and internationally;
take care of developmental objectives like enhancement of awareness about the payment
systems, to operate clearing and settlement systems for participating banks and non-banks;
identify and manage relevant risks such as settlement, credit, liquidity and operational and
preserve the integrity of the system(s); monitor retail payment system developments and related
issues in the country and internationally to avoid shocks, frauds and contagions that may
adversely affect the system(s) and / or the economy in general, to fulfil policy objectives and
operate on the principles of fairness, equity and competitive neutrality in determining
participation in the system; frame necessary rules and the related processes to ensure that the
system is safe, sound and that payments are exchanged efficiently, to carry on any other business
as suitable to further strengthen the retail payments ecosystem in the country and endeavor to
offer innovative payment systems to include hitherto excluded cross-sections of the society and
which enhance access, customer convenience and safety and make the same distinct yet
interoperable, to interact and be interoperable to the extent possible with the systems operated
by NPCI and to participate in Reserve Bank’s payment and settlement systems, including having
a current account with Reserve Bank, if required.”

(g) Duringthe last5 years, the object clause was altered vide Special Resolution passed at the Extra
Ordinary General Meeting of Infibeam held on March 09, 2021.

(h) There has been no change in the name of Infibeam in the last 5 years.
(i) There has been no change in the Registered Office of Infibeam in the last 5 years.

(j) The share capital of Infibeam as on March 31, 2024 was as under:

Particulars | INR
Authorized Share Capital
3,50,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each 3,50,00,00,000
Total 3,50,00,00,000
Issued Capital
2,78,20,02,130 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each 2,78,20,02,130
Total 2,78,20,02,130
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital
2,78,20,02,130 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each 2,78,20,02,130
Total 2,78,20,02,130

There is no change in the above capital structure subsequent to the aforesaid date.
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(k) Names of the promoters and directors along with their addresses as on date:

Details of Promoter and Promoter Group

Sr. Name of the Promoter and Address Category
No. Promoter Group
1 | Mr. Ajitbhai Champaklal Mehta | Amijyot, Parimal Society, Promoter
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.
2 | Ms.Jayshreeben Ajitbhai Mehta | Amijyot, Parimal Society, Promoter
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.
3 Mr. Vishal Ajitbhai Mehta Amijyot, Parimal Society, Promoter
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.
4 | Mr. Malav Ajitbhai Mehta Amijyot, Parimal Society, Promoter
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.
5 | Ms. Nirali Vishal Mehta Amijyot, Parimal Society, | Promoter Group
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.
6 Mr. Subhashchandra Rambhai | Ram House, Near Atlanta Tower, | Promoter Group
Amin Gulbai Tekra, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.
7 | Ms. Anoli Malav Mehta Amijyot, Parimal Society, | Promoter Group
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.
8 Ms. Achalaben S Amin Ram House, Near Atlanta Tower, | Promoter Group
Gulbai Tekra, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.
9 Ms. Mokshadaben Pravinbhai | 30, Hermitage Villa, Ambali, | Promoter Group
Sheth Dascroi,
Ahmedabad - 380001, Gujarat,
India.
10 | Ms. Pallavi Kumarpal Shah 8, Adesh Appt, Nr. Dharnidhar | Promoter Group
Temple, Paldi, Ahmedabad -
380007, Gujarat, India.
11 | Ms. Bhadrika Arvind Shah 14-A, Ashok Vatika, Ambli - Bopal | Promoter Group
Road, Bopal, Ahmedabad - 380058,
Gujarat, India.
12 | Ms. Shreya Nisarg Parikh A - 38, Shri Krishna Apartment, | Promoter Group
Bodakdev, Ta - Daskroi, Ahmedabad
- 380054, Gujarat, India.
13 | Infinium Motors Private Limited | 842  Near = YMCA,  Sarkhej- | Promoter Group
Gandhinagar highway, Ahmedabad
- 380 006, Gujarat, India
14 | Infinium Communications | 9t Floor Shitiratna, Off C G Road, Nr. | Promoter Group
Private Limited Panchavati Circle, Ahmedabad - 380
006, Gujarat, India.
15 | Infinium  Motors  (Gujarat) | Amijyot, Parimal Society, | Promoter Group
Private Limited Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India
16 | Ajit Mehta HUF Amijyot, Parimal Society, | Promoter Group
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India
17 | Vishal Mehta HUF Amijyot, Parimal Society, | Promoter Group
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India
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18 | Malav Mehta HUF Amijyot, Parimal Society, | Promoter Group
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India

19 | V.M. Associates Amijyot, Parimal Society, | Promoter Group
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India

20 | Advanced Energy Resources & | Plot No0.392, Palasuni Rasulgarh | Promoter Group

Management Private Limited Bhubaneswar -751010

21 | YORO Club LLP 9th Floor Shitiratna, Off C G Road, Nr. | Promoter Group
Panchavati Circle, Ahmedabad - 380
006, Gujarat, India.

22 | VIMA Enterprises LLP 9th Floor Shitiratna, Off C G Road, Nr. | Promoter Group
Panchavati Circle, Ahmedabad - 380
006, Gujarat, India.

Details of Directors

Name of the Designation DIN Address
Director
Mr. Ajit Champaklal Chairman Emeritus 01234707 | Amijyot, Parimal Society, Ellisbridge,
Mehta & Non-Executive Ahmedabad - 380006, Gujarat, India
Director

Mr. Vishal Ajitbhai Chairman & 03093563 | Amijyot, Parimal Society, Ellisbridge,

Mehta Managing Director Ahmedabad - 380006, Gujarat, India

Mr. Vishwas Ambalal | Joint Managing 00934823 | Sai Darshan Apartment, 1st Floor

Patel Director Chapel Lane, S.V. Road, Santacruz (W),
Mumbai - 400 054, Maharashtra, India

Mr. Keyoor Independent 00133588 | B 305, Silver Gardenia, Opp.

Madhusudan Bakshi Director Vishvanath Mahadev Temple, S G
Highway, Gota, Ahmedabad 382 481,
Gujarat, India

Mr. Roopkishan Independent 02800417 | Plot No.296/2, Sector-7/A,

Sohanlal Dave Director Gandhinagar - 382 007, Gujarat, India.

Ms. Vijaylaxmi Independent 07129801 | 405, Moin Apt, Muslim Society,

Tulsidas Sheth Director Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380 009,
Gujarat, India.

Mr. Piyushkumar Independent 00484132 | House Number 416, IIMA Campus,

Mithileshkumar Director Vastrapur, Ahmedabad - 380015,

Sinha Gujarat, India.

() Copy of unaudited standalone financial statements of Infibeam for nine months ended as on
December 31, 2023 and audited standalone financial statements of Infibeam for financial year
ended as on March 31, 2023 are enclosed as Annexure-2.

10.2. Particulars of Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited/ Resulting Company
(a) Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited or “Odigma” or “Resulting Company” is a public
limited company incorporated on February 28, 2011 under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956. It is engaged in the business of online digital marketing, consultancy in ecommerce
solutions and to provide e- commerce technologies for promotion and marketing of all
products and service using online digital technologies and interactive channels such as search
engine optimization, social media optimization, link exchange, pay per click (PPC), affiliate
marketing, banner advertising, rich media, social bookmarking, directory listings articles,

blogs, etc.
(b)
()
(d

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U72900GJ2011PLC131548
Permanent Account Number (PAN): AABC0O4323Q
Registered Office and e-mail address: 27t Floor, GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56, Road-5C,

Zone-5, GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar - 382 355, Gujarat, India.
E-mail address: vishal.mehta@ia.ooo0
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(e) The main objects of Odigma as set out in its Memorandum of Association are as follows:

“To carry online digital marketing, consultancy in e-commerce solutions, provide e-commerce
technologies for promotion and marketing of all products and service using online digital
technologies and interactive channels such as search engine optimization, social media
optimization, link exchange, pay per click (ppc), affiliate marketing, banner advertising, rich
media, social bookmarking, directly listings, articles, blogs.”

(f) There has been no change in the objects of Odigma in the last 5 years.

(g) The name of the company was changed from Odigma Consultancy Solutions Private Limited to
Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited pursuant to conversion of the company from private
limited to public limited with effect from July 05, 2023.

(h) The Registered Office of the Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited was changed from 211, 3rd
Floor, “Kasthuri”, Kasturi Nagar Service Road, Outer Ring Road, Bangalore-560043, Karnataka,
India to its present address with effect from March 11, 2022

(i) The Share Capital of Odigma as on March 31, 2024 was as follows:

Particulars INR
Authorized Share Capital
50,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 1/- each 50,00,000
Total 50,00,000
Issued Capital
43,90,400 Equity Shares of INR 1/- each 43,90,400
Total 43,90,400
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital
43,90,400 Equity Shares of INR 1/- each 43,90,400
Total 43,90,400

There is no change in the above capital structure subsequent to the aforesaid date.

The equity shares of Resulting Company are not listed on stock exchanges in India or on any other
stock exchange elsewhere.

(j) Names of the promoters and directors along with their addresses as on date:

Details of Promoters and Promoter Group

Sr. | Name of the Promoter Address Category
No. | and Promoter Group
1 Infibeam Avenues 28t Floor, GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56, Road- | Promoter
Limited 5C, Zone-5, GIFT City, Gandhinagar - 382 355,
Gujarat, India
Details of Directors
Name of the Designation DIN Address
Director
Mr. Vishal Non-Executive 03093563 | Amijyot, Parimal Society, Ellisbridge,
Ajitbhai Director Ahmedabad - 380006, Gujarat, India
Mehta
Mr. Mathew Managing 08781735 | No 2/1, Maria cottage K H B Road, 1st Cross,
Jose Director Behind Pushpanjali theatre, Sultanpalya, R T
Nagar, Bangalore, Karnataka - 560032
Mr. Laljibhai | Non-Executive | 00535626 | A/2/13, Panchratna Apartment, Nr, Sandesh
Vora Director Press Road, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad-380054,
Gujarat, India
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(k) Copy of unaudited standalone financial statements of Odigma for nine months ended as on
December 31, 2023 and audited standalone financial statements of Odigma for financial year
ended as on March 31, 2023 are enclosed as Annexure-3.

10.3. Particulars of Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited/ Transferee Company/IPMPL

(a) Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited or “Transferee Company” or “IPMPL” is a
private limited company incorporated on February 14, 2022 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. It is inter-alia is engaged in the business as inter alia, builders, town
planners, real estate developers, infrastructure developers, Engineers land developers,
property owners, Facility Management Service, Data Center Services including and not limited
to cloud services, cloud computing, IT infrastructure management, web services, storage and
compute, hosting, domains, storage, data analytics, contractors, sub-contractors, dealers etc.

(b) Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U70109GJ2022PTC129384

(c) Permanent Account Number (PAN): AAGCI5356]

(d) Registered Office and e-mail address: 28t Floor, GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56, Road-5C,
Zone-5, GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar - 382 355, Gujarat, India.

E-mail address: vishal. mehta@ia.oo0

(e) The main objects of the Transferee Company as set out in its Memorandum of Association are
as follows:

“To carry on the business as builders, Town Planners, real estate-developers, Infrastructure
developers, Engineers land developers, property owners, Facility Management Services, Data
Center Services including and not limited to cloud services, cloud computing, IT Infrastructure
management, web services, storage and compute, hosting, domains, storage, data analytics,
contractors, sub-contractors, dealers by advancing money to and enter into contracts and
arrangements of all kinds with builders, tenants, occupiers and others and to erect and construct
either independently or jointly in partnership, joint venture or on agency or sub contracts basis
with or on behalf of any individual firm, body corporate, association or society, Central or State
Government, Cantonment board or any local authority, service apartments, service plots, and own,
sell, acquire, process, develop, construct, demolish, enlarge, rebuild, renovate, decorate, repair,
maintain, let out, hire, lease, rent, pledge, mortgage, invest intermediaries, or otherwise deal in
construction of all descriptions like land, buildings, flats, shops, commercial, educational and non-
commercial complexes, houses and other immovable properties of any tenure and any interest
therein, hotels, cinema houses, auditoriums, gallery, club houses, roads, body buildings, airports,
towers, platforms, highways, tunnels, pipelines, hospitals, nursing homes, clinic, godowns, freehold
and leasehold ground and land, developing, property in general; any project for generation and/or
distribution of electricity or any other form of power; and any telecommunication services and to
carry on the business of and act as promoters, organizers, developers and agents of lands, estate,
property industrial estate, housing schemes, shopping / office complexes, township, warehouses,
farm-houses, holiday resorts and building for factories and to deal with purchase, sell, such
properties either as owner and/or agents to deal with the same in any manner whatsoever in India
or anywhere in the world and other services that are normally offered by data processing and
computer centers to industrial, Commercial, Business and other types of Customer, Electronic Data
Processing to Customers and others and to design, develop, alter, make, manufacture, produce,
process, assemble, contract for, buy, sell, export, import, trade, or lease, hire or otherwise deal in
computers, computer machinery, spare parts, electronic components, hardware, software, disks,
plotters, digitizers in India or elsewhere.”

(f) The Registered Office of the Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited was never changed till
date.
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(g) The share capital of the Transferee Company as on March 31, 2024 was as follows:

(h)

11.

Particulars | INR
Authorized Share Capital
10,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000
Issued Capital
10,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital
10,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000

There is no change in the above capital structure subsequent to the aforesaid date.

The equity shares of Transferee Company are not listed on stock exchanges in India or on any other

stock exchange elsewhere.

Details of Promoters and Promoter Group

Names of the promoters and directors along with their addresses as on date:

Sr. | Name of the Promoter Address Category
No. | and Promoter Group
1 Infibeam Avenues 28th Floor, GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56, | Promoter
Limited Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT City, Gandhinagar - 382
355, Gujarat, India
Details of Directors
Name of the Designation DIN Address
Director
Mr. Vishal Mehta | Director 03093563 | Amijyot, Parimal Society, Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006, Gujarat, India
Mr. Ajit Mehta Director 01234707 | Amijyot, Parimal Society, Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006, Gujarat, India

Copy of unaudited standalone financial statements of IPMPL for nine months ended as on
December 31, 2023 and audited standalone financial statements of IPMPL for financial year ended
as on March 31, 2023 are enclosed as Annexure-4.

Rationale and Benefits of the Scheme

The proposed restructuring pursuant to the Scheme is expected, inter alia, to result in following

benefits:

(M)

Company to result into:

a. Segregation of Demerged Company’s GTLD Undertaking into Resulting Company;

b. Future growth and expansion of the GTLD Undertaking would require differentiated strategy
aligned to its industry specific risks, market dynamics and growth trajectory;

c. Allow management of the Resulting Company to pursue independent growth strategies in

markets;

Demerger, transfer and vesting of GTLD Undertaking from the Demerged Company to Resulting

d. The proposed re-structuring would create enhanced value for the shareholders through
potential unlocking of value through listing of GTLD business as well as business of the

Resulting Company on the NSE and BSE;

e. Since both the businesses are having separate growth trajectories, the proposed re-
structuring would enable both the businesses to pursue their growth opportunities and offer
investment opportunities to potential investors;
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f. Enhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction and efficiencies of aforesaid companies
and thereby significantly contributing to future growth;

g. Provide scope of collaboration and expansion; and

h. Rationalization, standardization and simplification of business processes and systems of the
GTLD Undertaking on being demerged into Resulting Company;

i. The proposed re-structuring would provide opportunity to shareholders of Infibeam to
directly participate in GTLD Undertaking and Resulting Company’s business; and

j. The proposed re-structuring would enable investors to hold investments in the businesses
with different investment characteristics, which best suit their investment strategies and risk
profiles;

(ii) Transfer and vesting of the Project Management Undertaking of the Transferor Company as a
going concern to the Transferee Company, on Slump Sale basis to result into:

a. The Transferee Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferor Company. The
Project Management Undertaking comprises of, inter alia, the GIFT City Tower Two building
and related amenities which is strategically located in the GIFT City and incubates/houses
various startups, aids projects and other technology related entities, which can be categorized
as part of non-core business activities of the Transferor Company. With explosive potential
opportunities visible in GIFT City and consequent enhanced opportunities for growth and
development, the Project Management Undertaking of the Transferor Company would require
increased capital and focused operations for tapping the said opportunities. The value of such
non-core business activities is not getting reflected in the value of business of the Transferor
Company, should form part of an independent entity and a separate strategy should be formed
for unlocking the value of such non-core business activities of the Transferor Company. In
view of the same, it has become necessary to transfer the said business to the Transferee
Company;

b. The said transfer would entail smoother operations of the respective businesses under
independent management set up paving way for growth and development of each of the
business;

c. The Scheme will result in simplification of the group structure and management structure
leading to the better administration and more focused operational efforts, rationalization,
standardization and simplification of business processes;

d. Unlocking the value of the said business, which would enable optimal exploitation,
monetization and development of both the Companies;

e. The Scheme will enable entities to leverage their resources to align future cash flows; and

f.  The synergies that exist between the Transferor Company and Transferee Company in terms
of services and resources can be put to best advantage of all the stake holders.

12. Relationship between companies forming part of the Scheme:
(a) Demerged Company / Infibeam

Sr. No. Name of the Company Relation
1 Odigma Consultancy Solutions Infibeam Avenues Limited is the Holding Company
Limited of Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited.
2 Infibeam Projects Management Infibeam Avenues Limited is the Holding Company of
Private Limited Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited.

(b) Resulting Company / Odigma

Sr. No. Name of the Company Relation
1 Infibeam Avenues Limited Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited is Wholly
Owned Subsidiary of Infibeam Avenues Limited.
2 Infibeam Projects Management Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited and
Private Limited Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited are

Fellow Subsidiaries .
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13.

14.

(c) Transferee Company/ Infibeam Projects Management

Sr. No. Name of the Company Relation

1 Infibeam Avenues Limited Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited
is Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Infibeam
Avenues Limited.

3 Odigma  Consultancy  Solutions | Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited
Limited and Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited are

Fellow Subsidiaries.

Corporate Approvals:

The proposed Scheme was placed before the Audit Committee of the Demerged Company at its
meeting held on August 08, 2023. The Audit Committee of the Demerged Company took into account
Valuation Report dated August 07, 2023 issued by Den Valuation (OPC) Private Limited,
Independent Registered Valuer and Fairness Opinion dated August 07, 2023 issued by Kunvarji
Finstock Private Limited. The Audit Committee of the Demerged Company based on the aforesaid,
inter alia, recommended the Scheme to the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company.

The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company (after taking on record the recommendations of
the Audit Committee), Resulting Company and Transferee Company at their respective Board
Meeting held on August 08, 2023 and August 07, 2023 had approved the proposed Composite
Scheme of Arrangement, after taking on record the Valuation Report dated August 07, 2023 issued
by Den Valuation (OPC) Private Limited, Independent Registered Valuer and Fairness Opinion dated
August 07, 2023 issued by Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited. The same are annexed to this Notice
as Annexure-5 and Annexure-6 respectively.

Names of the directors who voted in favor of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and
who did not vote or participate in such resolution:

a) Demerged Company

. . . Vqted Voted Absent from
Name of the Directors Designation in . .
Against | the meeting
Favor
Mr. Ajit Champaklal Mehta Chairman Emeritus
&  Non-Executive Yes - -
Director
Mr. Vishal Ajitbhai Mehta Chairman &
. . Yes - -
Managing Director
Mr. Vishwas Ambalal Patel Joint Managing Yes i i
Director
Mr. Keyoor Madhusudan Bakshi Independent Yes i i
Director
Mr. Roopkishan Sohanlal Dave Independent Yes i i
Director
Ms. Vijaylaxmi Tulsidas Sheth Independent
. Yes - -
Director
Mr. Piyushkumar Mithileshkumar | Independent
. . Yes - -
Sinha Director
b) Resulting Company
Voted Voted Absent
Name of the Directors Designation in . from the
Against .
Favor meeting
Mr. Vishal Ajitbhai Mehta Chairman & Non-
. . Yes - -
Executive Director
Mr. Mathew Jose Managing Director Yes - -
Mr. Laljibhai Vora Non-Executive - -
. Yes
Director
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c) Transferee Company

Name of the Directors Designation Voted in Vot'ed Absent fr'o m
Favor Against | the meeting
Mr. Ajit Mehta Director Yes - -
Mr. Vishal Mehta Director Yes - -

Approvals and actions taken in relation to the Scheme

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

BSE was appointed as the Designated Stock Exchange by Infibeam for the purpose of co-ordinating
with the SEBI for obtaining approval of SEBI in accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Infibeam had by its two separate letters, both dated August 21, 2023, applied to both stock
exchanges for their no-objection to the Scheme enclosed. Thereafter, certain
information/details/queries were sought/raised by BSE/NSE and the same were submitted by
Infibeam.

Infibeam had filed its no complaints report with BSE and NSE, dated September 29, 2023, and dated
October 28, 2023, respectively. This report indicates that Infibeam received no complaints from the
equity shareholders with respect to the Scheme. A copy of the no complaints report submitted by
Infibeam, dated September 29, 2023, and dated October 28, 2023 to BSE and NSE, respectively is
enclosed as Annexure-7 and Annexure-8.

Infibeam received no-objection letter regarding the Scheme from BSE dated February 22, 2024,
conveying its no-objection for filing the Scheme with NCLT pursuant to the letter addressed by SEBI
to BSE. Infibeam also received no-objection letter regarding the Scheme from NSE dated February
23, 2024 conveying its no-objection for filing the Scheme with NCLT pursuant to the letter
addressed by SEBI to NSE. Copies of the no-objection/ no adverse observations letters, both dated
February 22, 2024 and February 23, 2024, received from BSE and NSE, respectively, are enclosed
as Annexure-9 and Annexure-10.

The Companies would obtain the respective necessary approvals/sanctions/no objection(s) from
the regulatory or other Governmental Authorities in respect of the Scheme in accordance with law,
if so required.

CA(CAA)/13(AHM)2024 along with annexures thereto (which includes the Scheme) was jointly e-
filed by Infibeam, Odigma and IPMPL, with the NCLT, on dated March 18, 2024. The hard copy
whereof was filed with the NCLT on dated March 19, 2024. Order dated April 29, 2024 passed by
the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (“NCLT”), in
CA(CAA)/13(AHM)2024.

Salient Features of the Scheme:

21.

1

1.1.

Certain clauses of the Scheme are extracted below:
PART A
DEFINITIONS, INTERPRETATION AND SHARE CAPITAL
Definitions:
“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time, and shall include any other
statutory re-enactment thereof, read with all surviving and applicable provisions of the Companies Act,

1956 and shall include all rules, regulations, circulars, notifications, guidelines made or issued in
relation thereto from time to time;
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1.2. “Applicable Law(s) or Law(s)” means any applicable national, foreign, provincial, local or other law
including applicable provisions of all (a) constitutions, decrees, treaties, statutes, laws (including the
common law), codes, notifications, rules, regulations, policies, guidelines, circulars, directions,
directives, ordinances or orders of any Government Authority, statutory authority, court, tribunal
having jurisdiction over the Parties; (b) approvals; and (c) orders, decisions, injunctions, judgments,
awards and decrees of or agreements with any Government Authority having jurisdiction over the
Parties as may be in force from time to time;

1.3.  “Appointed Date” means 1t April, 2023 or such other date as may be approved by the Tribunal or by
any other competent authority subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and agreed
to by the Board of all the Companies;

1.4. “Board of Directors” or “Board” in relation to each of the Demerged Company, Resulting Company
and the Transferee Company, as the case may be, means the board of directors of such company, and
shall include a committee of directors or any person authorized by the board of directors or such
committee of directors duly constituted and authorized for the purposes of matters pertaining to this
Scheme or any other matter relating thereto;

1.5. “Companies” or “Parties” shall mean the Demerged Company, Resulting Company and Transferee
Company, collectively, and term “Company” or “Party” shall mean each of them individually;

1.6. “Demerged Company” or “Transferor Company” or “Infibeam” shall mean Infibeam Avenues
Limited, a public limited company incorporated on 30 June, 2010 under the provisions of Companies
Act, 1956 bearing Corporate Identification Number L64203GJ2010PLC061366 and having its
registered office at 28th Floor, GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56, Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT CITY,
Gandhinagar - 382 355, Gujarat, India

1.7. “Demerged Undertaking” shall mean Global Top Level Domain Undertaking;

1.8.  “Effective Date” means the date on which the certified copy of the order of the NCLT under Sections
230to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 sanctioning
the Scheme is filed with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, at Ahmedabad;

1.9. “Encumbrances” means (i) any charge, lien (statutory or other), or mortgage, any easement,
encroachment, right of way, right of first refusal or other encumbrance or security interest securing any
obligation of any person; (ii) pre-emption right, option, right to acquire, right to set off or other third
party right or claim of any kind, including any restriction on use, voting, selling, assigning, pledging,
hypothecating, or creating a security interest in, place in trust (voting or otherwise), receipt of income
or exercise; or (iii) any equity, assignments hypothecation, title retention, restriction, power of sale or
other type of preferential arrangements; or (iv) any agreement to create any of the above; the term
“Encumber” shall be construed accordingly;

1.10. “Governmental Authority” shall mean any national, state, provincial, local or similar government,
governmental, statutory, regulatory or administrative authority, government department, agency,
commission, board, branch, tribunal or court or other entity authorized to make laws, rules, regulations,
standards, requirements, procedures or to pass directions or orders having the force of law, or any non-
governmental regulatory or administrative authority, body or other organization to the extent that the
rules, regulations and standards, requirements, procedures or orders of such authority, body or other
organization have the force of law, or any stock exchange of India;

1.11. “INR” or “Rs.” means the lawful currency of the Republic of India;
1.12. “Global Top Level Domain Undertaking” or “GTLD Undertaking” means all the businesses,
undertakings, activities, properties, investments and liabilities, of whatsoever nature and kind and

whosesoever situated, pertaining to Global Top Level Domain (“GTLD”) business, including the
following:
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(a) all immovable properties, if any, ie. land together with the buildings and structures standing
thereon (whether freehold, leasehold, leave and licensed, right of way, tenancies or otherwise)
currently being used for the purpose of and in relation to the GTLD business and all documents
(including panchnamas, declarations, receipts) of title, rights and easements in relation thereto and
all rights, covenants, continuing rights, title and interest in connection with the said immovable
properties;

(b) all assets, as are movable in nature pertaining to and in relation to the GTLD business, whether
present or future or contingent, tangible or intangible, in possession or reversion, corporeal or
incorporeal (including electrical fittings, furniture, fixtures, appliances, accessories, office
equipments, communication facilities, installations and inventory), actionable claims, current
assets, earnest monies and sundry debtors, financial assets, outstanding loans and advances,
recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, provisions, receivables, funds, cash and
bank balances and deposits including accrued interest thereto with Governmental Authority, banks,
customers and other persons, the benefits of any bank guarantees, performance guarantees and tax
related assets, including but not limited to goods and service tax input credits, value added/sales
tax/entry tax credits or set-offs, advance tax, tax deducted at source, tax refunds and minimum
alternate tax credit;

(c) all permits, licenses, permissions including municipal permissions, right of way, approvals,
clearances, consents, benefits, registrations, rights, entitlements, credits, certificates, awards,
sanctions, allotments, quotas, no objection certificates, exemptions, concessions, subsidies, liberties
and advantages including those relating to privileges, powers, facilities of every kind and description
of whatsoever nature and the benefits thereto pertaining to the GTLD business;

(d) all contracts, agreements, purchase orders/service orders, operation and maintenance contracts,
memoranda of understanding, memoranda of undertakings, memoranda of agreements,
memoranda of agreed points, minutes of meetings, bids, tenders, expression of interest, letter of
intent, hire and purchase arrangements, lease/licence agreements, tenancy rights,
agreements/panchnamas for right of way, equipment purchase agreements, agreement with
customers, purchase and other agreements with the supplier/manufacturer of goods/service
providers, other arrangements, undertakings, deeds, bonds, schemes, concession agreements,
insurance covers and claims, clearances and other instruments of whatsoever nature and
description, whether written, oral or otherwise and all rights, title, interests, claims and benefits
thereunder pertaining to the GTLD business;

(e) all applications, including hardware, software, licenses, source codes (including any copies thereof),
scripts, registrations, goodwill, licenses, trademarks, trade names, service marks, copyrights,
patents, patent rights, copyrights, domain names, designs, trade secrets, research and studies,
technical knowhow, confidential information or any other intellectual property rights (whether
owned, licensed or otherwise, and whether registered or unregistered) of any description and nature
whatsoever and right to use any other intellectual property (whether perpetual or not) of Infibeam
having used in the GTLD business;

(f) all rights to use and avail telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, internet, leased line connections and
installations, utilities, electricity and other services, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of assets or
properties or other interests held in trusts, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements of
all kind, privileges and all other rights, easements, liberties and advantages of whatsoever nature
and wheresoever situated belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession and in control of or
vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by Infibeam pertaining to or in connection with or
relating to Infibeam in respect of the GTLD business and all other interests of whatsoever nature
belonging to or in the ownership, power, possession or control of or vested in or granted in favour of
or held for the benefit of or enjoyed by Infibeam and pertaining to the GTLD business;

(g) all books, records, files, papers, engineering and process information, software licenses (whether
proprietary or otherwise), test reports, computer programmes, drawings, manuals, data, databases
including databases for procurement, commercial and management, catalogues, quotations, sales
and advertising materials, product registrations, dossiers, product master cards, lists of present and
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former customers and suppliers including service providers, other customer information, customer
credit information, customer/supplier pricing information, and all other books and records, whether
in physical or electronic form that pertain to the GTLD business;

(h) all debts, liabilities including contingent liabilities, duties, Taxes and obligations of Infibeam in
relation to and pertaining to the GTLD business;

(i) all taxes, tax deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, privilege, refund of any tax, duty, cess, tax
credits (including, without limitation, all amounts claimed as refund, whether or not so recorded in
the books of accounts, and credits in respect of income tax, such as carry forward tax losses and
unabsorbed depreciation), tax deducted at source, tax collected at source, foreign tax credit,
equalization levy, customs duty, central value added tax, value added tax, turnover tax, goods and
services tax, minimum alternate tax credit, central sales tax and excise duty pertaining to the GTLD
business, and all rights to any claim not preferred or made by the Transferor Company in respect of
(a) any refund of tax, duty, cess or other charge (including any erroneous or excess payment thereof
made and pertaining to the GTLD business) and any interest thereon, and (b) any set-off, carry
forward of unabsorbed losses, deferred revenue expenditure, deduction, exemption, rebate,
allowance, amortisation benefit, etc. under Applicable Law pertaining to the GTLD business;

(j) all employees of Infibeam employed/engaged in and relatable to the GTLD business as on the
Effective Date;

(k) all legal or other proceedings of whatsoever nature that pertain to the GTLD business; and

(1) any other asset/liability which is deemed to be pertaining to the GTLD Undertaking by the board of
directors of the Demerged Company.

Explanation:

In case of any question that may arise as to whether any particular asset or liability and/or employee pertains
or does not pertain to the GTLD business or whether it arises out of the activities or operations of the GTLD
business, the same shall be decided by mutual agreement between Board of Directors of the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company.

1.13. “NCLT” or “Tribunal” means the Ahmedabad Bench of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
which has jurisdiction in relation to Demerged Company, Resulting Company and Transferee Company;

1.14. “Project Management Undertaking” means all the businesses, undertakings, activities, properties,
investments and liabilities, of whatsoever nature and kind and wheresoever situated, pertaining to
Project Management business, including the following:

(a) all immovable properties, if any, ie. land together with the buildings and structures standing
thereon (whether freehold, leasehold, leave and licensed, right of way, tenancies or otherwise)
including the units of the GIFT Tower Two, basement car parking, common amenities/facilities etc.
currently being used for the purpose of and in relation to the Project Management business and all
documents (including panchnamas, declarations, receipts) of title, rights and easements in relation
thereto and all rights, covenants, continuing rights, title and interest in connection with the said
immovable properties;

(b) all assets, as are movable in nature pertaining to and in relation to the Project Management
business, whether present or future or contingent, tangible or intangible, in possession or reversion,
corporeal or incorporeal (including electrical fittings, furniture, fixtures, appliances, accessories,
office equipments, communication facilities, installations and inventory), actionable claims, current
assets, earnest monies and sundry debtors, financial assets, outstanding loans and advances,
recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, provisions, receivables, funds, cash and
bank balances and deposits including accrued interest thereto with Governmental Authority, banks,
customers and other persons, the benefits of any bank guarantees, performance guarantees and tax
related assets, including but not limited to goods and service tax input credits, value added/sales
tax/entry tax credits or set-offs, advance tax, tax deducted at source, tax refunds and minimum
alternate tax credit;
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(c) all permits, licenses, permissions including municipal permissions, right of way, approvals,
clearances, consents, benefits, registrations, rights, entitlements, credits, certificates, awards,
sanctions, allotments, quotas, no objection certificates, exemptions, concessions, subsidies, liberties
and advantages including those relating to privileges, powers, facilities of every kind and description
of whatsoever nature and the benefits thereto pertaining to the Project Management business;

(d) all contracts, agreements, purchase orders/service orders, operation and maintenance contracts,
memoranda of understanding, memoranda of undertakings, memoranda of agreements,
memoranda of agreed points, minutes of meetings, bids, tenders, expression of interest, letter of
intent, hire and purchase arrangements, lease/licence agreements, tenancy rights,
agreements/panchnamas for right of way, equipment purchase agreements, agreement with
customers, purchase and other agreements with the supplier/manufacturer of goods/service
providers, other arrangements, undertakings, deeds, bonds, schemes, concession agreements,
insurance covers and claims, clearances and other instruments of whatsoever nature and
description, whether written, oral or otherwise and all rights, title, interests, claims and benefits
thereunder pertaining to the Project Management business;

(e) all applications, including hardware, software, licenses, source codes (including any copies thereof),
scripts, registrations, goodwill, licenses, trademarks, trade names, service marks, copyrights,
patents, patent rights, copyrights, domain names, designs, trade secrets, research and studies,
technical knowhow, confidential information, or any other intellectual property rights (whether
owned, licensed or otherwise, and whether registered or unregistered), of any description and
nature whatsoever and right to use any other intellectual property (whether perpetual or not) of
Infibeam having used in the Project Management business;

(f) all rights to use and avail telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, internet, leased line connections and
installations, utilities, electricity and other services, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of assets or
properties or other interests held in trusts, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements of
all kind, privileges and all other rights, easements, liberties and advantages of whatsoever nature
and wheresoever situated belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession and in control of or
vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by Infibeam pertaining to or in connection with or
relating to Infibeam in respect of the Project Management business and all other interests of
whatsoever nature belonging to or in the ownership, power, possession or control of or vested in or
granted in favour of or held for the benefit of or enjoyed by Infibeam and pertaining to the Project
Management business;

(g) all books, records, files, papers, engineering and process information, software licenses (whether
proprietary or otherwise), test reports, computer programmes, drawings, manuals, data, databases
including databases for procurement, commercial and management, catalogues, quotations, sales
and advertising materials, product registrations, dossiers, product master cards, lists of present and
former customers and suppliers including service providers, other customer information, customer
credit information, customer/supplier pricing information, and all other books and records, whether
in physical or electronic form that pertain to the Project Management business;

(h) all debts, liabilities including contingent liabilities, duties, Taxes and obligations of Infibeam in
relation to and pertaining to the Project Management business;

(i) all taxes, tax deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, privilege, refund of any tax, duty, cess, tax
credits (including, without limitation, all amounts claimed as refund, whether or not so recorded in
the books of accounts, and credits in respect of income tax, such as carry forward tax losses and
unabsorbed depreciation), tax deducted at source, tax collected at source, foreign tax credit,
equalization levy, customs duty, central value added tax, value added tax, turnover tax, goods and
services tax, minimum alternate tax credit, central sales tax and excise duty pertaining to the Project
Management business, and all rights to any claim not preferred or made by the Transferor Company
in respect of (a) any refund of tax, duty, cess or other charge (including any erroneous or excess
payment thereof made and pertaining to the Project Management business) and any interest
thereon, and (b) any set-off, carry forward of unabsorbed losses, deferred revenue expenditure,
deduction, exemption, rebate, allowance, amortization benefit, etc. under Applicable Law pertaining
to the Project Management business;
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(j) all employees of Infibeam employed/engaged in and relatable to the Project Management business
as on the Effective Date

(k) all legal or other proceedings of whatsoever nature that pertain to the Project Management
business; and

(1) any other asset/liability which is deemed to be pertaining to the Project Management Undertaking
by Board of Directors of the Transferor Company

Explanation:

In case of any question that may arise as to whether any particular asset or liability and/or employee
pertains or does not pertain to the Project Management business or whether it arises out of the activities
or operations of the Project Management business, the same shall be decided by mutual agreement
between Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

1.15. “Record Date” means the date to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company and the
Demerged Company for the purpose of determining the shareholders of Infibeam, as the case may be, to
whom shares of the Resulting Company shall be allotted pursuant to demerger under this Scheme;

1.16. “Remaining Business” with respect to Infibeam means all business activities of Infibeam other than
the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking and Project Management Undertaking;

1.17. “Resulting Company” or “ODIGMA” means Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited, a public limited
company incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 bearing Corporate Identity Number
U72900G]2011PTC131548 having its registered office at 27th Floor, GIFT II Building, Block No. 56,
Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar - 382 355, Gujarat, India;

1.18. “RoC” means the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat;

1.19. “Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” means this Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst
the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the Transferee Company and their respective
shareholders and creditors, pursuant to Section 230 to 232 and Section 66 and other relevant provisions
of the Act, with such modifications as may be made from time to time, with the appropriate approvals
and sanctions of the NCLT and other relevant Government Authority, as may be required under the Act
and under all other Applicable Laws;

1.20. “SEBI” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India established under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;

1.21. “SEBI Listing Regulations” means the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and shall include any statutory modification, amendment and re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force or any act, regulations, rules, guidelines, etc., that may replace such
regulations;

1.22. “SEBI Scheme Circular” means Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated 20th
June, 2023, and includes any substitution, modification or reissuance thereof from time to time;

1.23. “Slump Sale” sale of an undertaking on a going concern basis, for a lump sum consideration without
values being assigned to the individual assets and liabilities, as defined under Section 2(42C) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961;

1.24. “Stock Exchanges” means the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and the BSE Limited
(BSE) collectively.

1.25. “Tax” or “Taxes” means any or all taxes (direct or indirect), surcharges, fees, levies, duties, tariffs,

imposts and other charges of any kind in each case in the nature of a tax, imposed by any Governmental
Authority (whether payable directly or by withholding), including taxes based upon or measured by
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income, windfall or other profits, gross receipts, property, sales, severance, branch profits, customs
duties, excise, CENVAT, tax deducted at source, tax collected at source, self-assessment tax, advance tax,
regular assessment taxes, service tax, goods and services tax, stamp duty, transfer tax, value-added tax,
minimum alternate tax, banking cash transaction tax, securities transaction tax, equalisation levy,
dividend distribution tax, buy-back tax, taxes withheld or paid in a foreign country, customs duty and
registration fees (together with any and all interest, penalties, additions to tax and additional amounts
imposed with respect thereto);

1.26. “Net Worth” shall mean the aggregate book value of assets reduced by the aggregate book value of
liabilities of Project Management Undertaking as on the Appointed Date, transferred pursuant to this
Scheme;

1.27. “Transferee Company” or “IPMPL” means Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited, a private
limited company incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 bearing Corporate Identity
Number U70109G]2022PTC129384 having its registered office at 28th Floor, GIFT Il Building, Block No.
56, Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar - 382 355, Gujarat, India;

PART B
DEMERGER OF GLOBAL TOP LEVEL DOMAIN UNDERTAKING OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING AND ITS
VESTING IN RESULTING COMPANY

4. TRANSFER OF ASSETS

4.1. Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Global Top Level Domain Undertaking (including all the assets, rights, claims, title, interest and
authorities including accretions and appurtenances of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking) shall,
subject to the provisions of this Clause in relation to the mode of transfer and vesting and pursuant to
Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act and without any
further act, instrument or deed, be demerged from the Demerged Company and be transferred to and
vested in and be deemed to have been demerged from Demerged Company and transferred to and vested
in the Resulting Company as a going concern so as to become as and from the Appointed Date, the assets,
rights, claims, title, interest and authorities of Resulting Company, subject to the provisions of this Scheme
in relation to Encumbrances in favour of banks and/or financial institutions.

4.2. In respect of such of the assets of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking as are movable in nature or
are otherwise capable of transfer by delivery or possession, or by endorsement and / or delivery, the same
shall be so transferred by Demerged Company, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, and shall
become the property of Resulting Company as an integral part of the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking with effect from the Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read
with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act without requiring any deed or instrument of
conveyance for transfer of the same, subject to the provisions of this Scheme in relation to Encumbrances
in favour of banks and/or financial institutions.

4.3. Inrespect of movables other than those dealt with in Clause 4.2 above including sundry debts, receivables,
bills, credits, loans and advances, if any, whether recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received,
bank balances, investments, earnest money and deposits with any Governmental Authority, quasi-
governmental authority, local or other authority or body or with any company or other person, the same
shall on and from the Appointed Date stand transferred to and vested in Resulting Company without any
notice or other intimation to the debtors.

4.4. The Resulting Company may without being obliged and if it so deems appropriate at its sole discretion,
give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to each person, debtor, or depositee, as the case
may be, that the said debt, loan, advance, balance or deposit stands transferred and vested in Resulting
Company.

4.5. In respect of such of the assets belonging to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking other than those

referred to in Clause 4.2 and 4.3 above, the same shall, as more particularly provided in Clause Error!
Reference source not found. above, without any further act, instrument or deed, be demerged from
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Demerged Company and transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to be demerged from Demerged
Company and transferred to and vested in Resulting Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme
and with effect from the Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with
Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act. For the purpose of giving effect to the vesting order
passed under Section 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act in respect
of the Scheme, Resulting Company shall be entitled to exercise all the rights and privileges and be liable
to pay all Taxes and charges and fulfil all its obligations, in relation to or applicable to all such immovable
properties, including mutation and/or substitution of the title to, or interest in the immovable properties
which shall be made and duly recorded by the Governmental Authority(ies) in favour of Resulting
Company pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the NCLT and upon the effectiveness of this Scheme
in accordance with the terms hereof without any further act or deed to be done or executed by Demerged
Company and/or Resulting Company. It is clarified that Resulting Company shall be entitled to engage in
such correspondence and make such representations, as may be necessary for the purposes of the
aforesaid mutation and/or substitution.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, from the Effective Date and until the owned properties,
leasehold properties and related rights thereto, license/right to use the immovable property, tenancy
rights, liberties and special status are transferred, vested, recorded, effected and/or perfected, in the
record of the Governmental Authority, in favour of Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall be
deemed to be authorized to carry on the business in the name and style of Demerged Company under the
relevant agreement, deed, lease and/or license, as the case may be, and Resulting Company shall keep a
record and/or account of such transactions.

4.6. All assets, rights, title, interest and investments of Demerged Company in relation to the Global Top Level
Domain Undertaking shall also, without any further act, instrument or deed stand transferred to and
vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in Resulting Company upon the coming
into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of Sections
230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

4.7. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, upon the effectiveness of this Scheme, Resulting
Company will be entitled to all the intellectual property rights of Demerged Company in relation to the
Global Top Level Domain Undertaking. Resulting Company may take such actions as may be necessary
and permissible to get the same transferred and/or registered in the name of Resulting Company.

4.8. Any asset acquired by Demerged Company after the Appointed Date but prior to the Effective Date
pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking shall upon the coming into effect of this Scheme
also without any further act, instrument or deed stand transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have
been transferred to or vested in Resulting Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme.

4.9. For the avoidance of doubt, upon this Scheme coming into effect from the Effective Date and with effect
from the Appointed Date, all the rights, title, interest and claims of Demerged Company in any
leasehold/licensed properties in relation to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking shall, pursuant to
Section 232(4) and other applicable provisions of the Act, be transferred to and vested in or be deemed
to have been transferred to and vested in Resulting Company automatically without requirement of any
further act or deed.

4.10. On and from the Effective Date, and thereafter, Resulting Company shall be entitled to operate the bank
accounts of Demerged Company, in relation to or in connection with the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking, and realize all monies and complete and enforce all pending contracts and transactions and
to accept stock returns, if any, and issue credit notes in relation to or in connection with the Global Top
Level Domain Undertaking of Demerged Company, in the name of Resulting Company in so far as may be
necessary until the transfer of rights and obligations of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking to
Resulting Company under this Scheme have been formally given effect to under such contracts and
transactions.

4.11. All the Taxes, if any, paid or payable by Demerged Company after the Appointed Date and specifically
pertaining to Global Top Level Domain Undertaking shall be treated as paid or payable by Resulting
Company and the Resulting Company shall be entitled to claim all the credit, refund or adjustment for the
same as may be applicable.
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4.12. Resulting Company shall be entitled to get credit/claim refund regarding any Tax paid and/or tax
deduction at source certificates, pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking.

4.13. If Demerged Company is entitled to any unutilized credits (including balances or advances), benefits
under the incentive schemes and policies including tax holiday or concessions relating to the Global Top
Level Domain Undertaking under any Tax laws or Applicable Laws, Resulting Company shall be entitled
as an integral part of the Scheme to claim such benefit or incentives or unutilized credits as the case may
be without any specific approval or permission.

4.14. Without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits including under Tax laws, to which
Demerged Company, in relation to or in connection with the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking, is
entitled to in terms of the Applicable Laws, including, but not limited to advances recoverable in cash or
kind or for value, and deposits with any Governmental Authority or any third party/entity, shall be
available to, and vest in, Resulting Company.

4.15. For avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the applicable provisions of the Scheme,
it is clarified that with effect from the Effective Date and till such time that the name of bank accounts of
Demerged Company, in relation to or in connection with the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking, has
been replaced with that of Resulting Company, Resulting Company shall be entitled to operate the bank
account of Demerged Company, in relation to or in connection with the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking, in the name of Demerged Company in so far as may be necessary. All cheques and other
negotiable instruments, payment orders received or presented for encashment, which is in the name of
Demerged Company, in relation to or in connection with the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking, after
the Effective Date shall be accepted by the bankers of Resulting Company and credited to the account of
Resulting Company, if presented by Resulting Company. Resulting Company shall be allowed to maintain
bank accounts in the name of Demerged Company for such time as may be determined to be necessary by
Resulting Company for presentation and deposition of cheques and pay orders that have been issued in
the name of Demerged Company, in relation to or in connection with the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking. It is hereby expressly clarified that any legal proceedings by or against Demerged Company,
in relation to or in connection with the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking, in relation to the cheques
and other negotiable instruments, payment orders received or presented for encashment, which is in the
name of Demerged Company shall be instituted, or as the case may be, continued by or against Resulting
Company after the coming into effect of this Scheme.

5. TRANSFER OF CONTRACTS, DEEDS, ETC.

5.1. Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever nature
in relation to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking, to which Demerged Company is a party or to the
benefit of which Demerged Company may be eligible, and which are subsisting or have effect immediately
before the Effective Date, shall continue in full force and effect against or in favour, as the case may be, of
Resulting Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of Demerged Company,
Resulting Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto.

5.2. Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the
Global Top Level Domain Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, Resulting Company may, at
any time after coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required
under any Applicable Law or otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (including deeds of
adherence), confirmations or other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to any contract
or arrangement to which Demerged Company is a party or any writings as may be necessary in order to
give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme. Resulting Company shall be deemed to be authorized
to execute any such writings on behalf of Demerged Company and to carry out or perform all such
formalities or compliances referred to above on part of Demerged Company.

5.3. For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, it is clarified that

upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all consents, permissions, licenses, certificates, clearances,
authorities, powers of attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of Demerged Company in relation
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to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking shall stand transferred to Resulting Company as if the same
were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of Resulting Company, and Resulting Company
shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder, and the rights and benefits
under the same shall be available to Resulting Company. Resulting Company shall make applications to
any Governmental Authority as may be necessary in this behalf.

5.4. Without prejudice to the aforesaid, it is clarified that if any assets (estate, claims, rights, title, interest in
or authorities relating to such assets) or any contract, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements
or other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking which
Demerged Company owns or to which Demerged Company is a party to, cannot be transferred to
Resulting Company for any reason whatsoever, Demerged Company shall hold such asset or contract,
deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements or other instruments of whatsoever nature in trust for
the benefit of Resulting Company, insofar as it is permissible so to do, till such time as the transfer is
effected.

6. TRANSFER OF LIABILITIES

6.1. Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date,
all debts, liabilities, loans raised and used, obligations incurred, duties of any kind, nature or
description (including contingent liabilities which arise out of the activities or operations of the Global
Top Level Domain Undertaking) of Demerged Company as on the Appointed Date and relatable to the
Global Top Level Domain Undertaking (“GTLD Transferred Liabilities”) shall, without any further
act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and be deemed to be transferred to Resulting
Company to the extent that they are outstanding as on the Effective Date and shall become the debts,
liabilities, loans, obligations and duties of Resulting Company which shall meet, discharge and satisfy
the same. The term GTLD Transferred Liabilities shall include:

L the liabilities which arise out of the activities or operations of the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking;

I the specific loans or borrowings raised, incurred and utilized solely for the activities or
operations of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking; and

11 in cases other than those referred to in Clause 6.11 or Clause 6.111 above, so much of the
amounts of liabilities as may be decided by the Board of Directors of Demerged Company and
Resulting Company which would be in compliance with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961.

6.2. Where any of the loans raised and used, debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of Demerged Company
as on the Appointed Date deemed to be transferred to Resulting Company have been discharged by
Demerged Company on or after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge
shall be deemed to have been for and on account of Resulting Company.

6.3. Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date,
all loans raised and used and all debts, liabilities, duties and obligations incurred by Demerged
Company for the operations of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking with effect from the
Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, subject to the terms of this Scheme, shall be deemed
to have been raised, used or incurred for and on behalf of Resulting Company and to the extent they
are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall also without any further act or deed be and stand
transferred to and be deemed to be transferred to Resulting Company and shall become the loans,
debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of Resulting Company.

6.4. In so far as the existing Encumbrances in respect of the GTLD Transferred Liabilities are concerned,
such Encumbrances shall, without any further act, instrument or deed be modified and shall be
extended to and shall operate only over the assets comprised in the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking which have been Encumbered in respect of the GTLD Transferred Liabilities as
transferred to Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme. Provided that if any of the assets
comprised in the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking which are being transferred to Resulting
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Company pursuant to this Scheme have not been Encumbered in respect of the GTLD Transferred
Liabilities, such assets shall remain unencumbered and the existing Encumbrances referred to above
shall not be extended to and shall not operate over such assets. The absence of any formal amendment
which may be required by a lender or trustee or third party shall not affect the operation of the above.

6.5. For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby clarified that in so far as the assets comprising the Remaining
Business are concerned, subject to Clause 6.4, the Encumbrances over such assets relating to the GTLD
Transferred Liabilities shall, as and from the Effective Date without any further act, instrument or
deed be released and discharged from the obligations and Encumbrances relating to the same. The
absence of any formal amendment which may be required by a lender or trustee or third party shall
not affect the operation of the above. Further, in so far as the assets comprised in the Global Top Level
Domain Undertaking are concerned, the Encumbrances over such assets relating to any loans,
borrowings or debentures or other debts or debt securities which are not transferred pursuant to this
Scheme (and which shall continue with Demerged Company), shall without any further act or deed be
released from such Encumbrances and shall no longer be available as security in relation to such
liabilities.

6.6. Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing Clauses and upon the effectiveness of the Scheme,
Demerged Company and Resulting Company shall execute any instrument(s) and/or document(s)
and/or do all the acts and deeds as may be required, including the filing of necessary particulars
and/or modification(s) of charge, with the RoC to give formal effect to the above provisions, if
required.

6.7. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, Resulting Company alone shall be liable to perform all
obligations in respect of the GTLD Transferred Liabilities, which have been transferred to it in terms
of this Scheme, and Demerged Company shall not have any obligations in respect of such GTLD
Transferred Liabilities. However, Demerged Company shall extend necessary cooperation in this
regard.

6.8. It is expressly provided that, save as mentioned in this Clause 6, no other term or condition of the
liabilities transferred to Resulting Company as part of the Scheme is modified by virtue of this Scheme
except to the extent that such amendment is required by necessary implication.

6.9. The provisions of this Clause shall be subject to the clauses contained in any instrument, deed or
writing or the terms of sanction or issue or any security document entered into between Demerged
Company and Resulting Company, if any.

LEGAL, TAXATION AND OTHER PROCEEDINGS

7.1. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all legal, taxation or other proceedings, of whatsoever
nature (including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal), by or against
Demerged Company and relating to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking, under any statute,
whether pending on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted any time thereafter, shall be
continued and enforced by or against ODIGMA after the Effective Date. Demerged Company shall in
no event be responsible or liable in relation to any such legal or other proceedings against Resulting
Company. Resulting Company shall be added as party to such proceedings and shall prosecute or
defend such proceedings in co-operation with Demerged Company.

7.2. If proceedings are taken against Demerged Company in respect of the matters referred to in Clause
7.1 above, it shall defend the same in accordance with the advice of Resulting Company and at the cost
of Resulting Company, and the latter shall reimburse and indemnify Demerged Company against all
liabilities and obligations incurred by Demerged Company in respect thereof.

7.3. Resulting Company undertakes to have all legal or other proceedings initiated by or against
Demerged Company referred to in Clause 7.1 above transferred to its name as soon as is reasonably
possible after the Effective Date and to have the same continued, prosecuted and enforced by or
against ODIGMA to the exclusion of Demerged Company. Each of the Companies shall make relevant
applications in that behalf.
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8. PERMITS

8.1. Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date,
permits relating to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking shall be transferred to and vested in
Resulting Company and the concerned licensor and grantors of such permits shall endorse where
necessary, and record Resulting Company on such permits so as to empower and facilitate the
approval and vesting of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking in Resulting Company and
continuation of operations pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking in Resulting
Company without any hindrance, and shall stand transferred to and vested in and shall be deemed to
be transferred to and vested in Resulting Company without any further act or deed and shall be
appropriately mutated by the Governmental Authorities concerned therewith in favour of Resulting
Company as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of Resulting Company
and Resulting Company shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder
and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to Resulting Company.

8.2.  The benefit of all permits pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking shall without any
other order to this effect, transfer and vest into and become available to Resulting Company pursuant
to the sanction of this Scheme.

9. EMPLOYEES

9.1.  Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date,
the Employees in relation to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking of Demerged Company shall
become the employees of Resulting Company with effect from the Effective Date, and, subject to the
provisions hereof, on terms and conditions not less favourable than those on which they are employed
by Demerged Company in the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking and without any interruption of,
or break in, service as a result of the transfer of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking. Resulting
Company agrees that for the purpose of payment of any compensation, gratuity and other terminal
benefits, the past services of the Employees of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking with
Demerged Company shall also be taken into account, and agrees and undertakes to pay the same as
and when payable.

9.2. Inso far as the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and pension and/or superannuation fund, trusts,
retirement fund or benefits and any other funds or benefits created by Demerged Company for the
employees related to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking, if any, (collectively referred to as the
“GTLD Employee Funds”), the GTLD Employee Funds and such of the investments made by the GTLD
Employee Funds which are referable to the employees related to the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking, being transferred to Resulting Company, in terms of the Scheme shall be transferred to
Resulting Company and shall be held for their benefit pursuant to this Scheme in the manner provided
hereinafter. The GTLD Employee Funds shall, subject to the necessary approvals and permissions and
at the discretion of Resulting Company, either be continued as separate funds of Resulting Company
for the benefit of the employees related to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking, or be transferred
to and merged with other similar funds of Resulting Company. In the event that Resulting Company
does not have its own funds in respect of any of the above, Resulting Company may, subject to
necessary approvals and permissions, continue to contribute to relevant funds of Demerged Company,
until such time that Resulting Company creates its own fund, at which time the GTLD Employee Funds
and the investments and contributions pertaining to the employees related to the Global Top Level
Domain Undertaking, shall be transferred to the funds created by Resulting Company. Subject to the
relevant law, rules and regulations applicable to the GTLD Employee Funds, the Board of Directors or
any committee thereof of Demerged Company and Resulting Company may decide to continue to make
the said contributions to the Funds of Demerged Company. It is clarified that the services of the
employees of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking, will be treated as having been continuous
and not interrupted for the purpose of the said fund or funds.

9.3.  Any question that may arise as to whether any employee belongs to or does not belong to the Global

Top Level Domain Undertaking shall be decided by the Board or Committee thereof of Demerged
Company and Resulting Company.
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10. CONSIDERATION

10.1. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and in consideration of the transfer and vesting of the Global
Top Level Domain Undertaking into Resulting Company pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme,
Resulting Company shall, without any further act or deed, issue and allot to each shareholder of
Demerged Company, whose name is recorded in the register of members and records of the depositories
as members of Demerged Company, on the Record Date in the following ratio:

“1 (One) fully paid-up equity share of the Resulting Company of the face value of INR 1
(Indian Rupee One) each shall be issued and allotted, at par as fully paid-up to the equity
shareholders of the Demerged Company for every 89 (Eighty-Nine) equity shares of INR 1
(Indian Rupee One) each held by the shareholders of the Demerged Company, as on the
Record Date.”

10.2. The equity shares to be issued and allotted as provided in Clause 10 above shall be subject to the
provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of Resulting Company and
shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of Resulting Company after the
Record Date including with respect to dividend, bonus entitlement, rights’ shares’ entitlement, voting
rights and other corporate benefits.

10.3. In case any shareholder’s shareholding in Demerged Company is such that such shareholder becomes
entitled to a fraction of an equity share of Resulting Company, if any, Resulting Company shall not issue
fractional shares to such shareholder but shall consolidate such fractions and issue and allot the
consolidated shares directly to a trustee nominated by the Board of Directors of Resulting Company in
that behalf, who shall sell such shares in the market at such price or prices within 90 days from the date
of allotment of equity shares, and on such sale, shall pay to Resulting Company, the net sale proceeds
(after deduction of applicable taxes and other expenses incurred), whereupon Resulting Company shall,
subject to withholding tax, if any, distribute such sale proceeds to the concerned shareholders of
Demerged Company in proportion to their respective fractional entitlements.

10.4. The equity shares to be issued pursuant to Clause 10 above shall be issued in dematerialized form only
by Resulting Company. The shareholders of Demerged Company shall be required to provide details as
required thereof by Resulting Company for such issuance of shares in dematerialized form. In the event
that a shareholder of Demerged Company holds equity shares of Demerged Company in physical form
or if any shareholder has not provided the requisite details relating to his/her/its account with a
depository participant or other confirmations as may be required or if the details furnished by any
shareholder do not permit electronic credit of the shares of Resulting Company, then Resulting Company
shall issue equity shares in demat form to a trustee nominated by the Board of Directors of Resulting
Company in that behalf, who shall hold such shares for and on behalf of such shareholder or
shareholders.

10.5. The equity shares to be issued by Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme, in respect of such of the
equity shares of Demerged Company which are held in abeyance under the applicable provisions of the
Act or otherwise shall, pending allotment or settlement of dispute by order of court or otherwise, also
be kept in abeyance by Resulting Company.

10.6. The equity shares issued pursuant to Clause 10, which Resulting Company is unable to allot due to
Applicable Laws (including, without limitation, the non-receipt of approvals of Governmental Authority
as required under Applicable Law) or any regulations or otherwise shall, pending allotment, be held in
abeyance by Resulting Company and shall be dealt with in the manner as may be permissible under the
Applicable Law and deemed fit by the Board of Directors of Resulting Company including to enable
allotment and sale of such equity shares to a trustee as mentioned in Clause 10.3 above and thereafter
make distributions of the net sales proceeds in lieu thereof (after deduction of taxes and expenses
incurred) to the eligible shareholders of Demerged Company, in proportion to their entitlements as per
the process specified in Clause 10.3 above. If the above cannot be effected for any reason, Resulting
Company shall ensure that this does not delay implementation of the Scheme; and shall, take all such
appropriate actions as may be necessary under Applicable Law. Resulting Company and/or the
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depository shall enter into such further documents and take such further actions as may be necessary
or appropriate in this regard and to enable actions contemplated therein.

10.7. In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of any
shareholders of Demerged Company, the Board of Directors of Demerged Company shall be empowered
prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate such transfers in Demerged Company as if
such changes in registered holders were operative as on the Record Date, in order to remove any
difficulties arising to the transferors of the shares in relation to the shares issued by Resulting Company.
The Board of Directors of Demerged Company shall be empowered to remove such difficulties that may
arise in the course of implementation of this Scheme and registration of new shareholders in Resulting
Company on account of difficulties faced in the transition period.

10.8. The issue and allotment of equity shares by Resulting Company to the members of Demerged Company
as provided in this Scheme is an integral part thereof and shall be deemed to have been carried out
under the orders passed by the Tribunal without requiring any further act or deed on the part of
Resulting Company as if the procedure laid down under the Act and such other Applicable Laws as may
be applicable were duly complied with. It is clarified that the approval of the Board, members and
creditors of Resulting Company to this Scheme shall be deemed to be their consent / approval for the
issue and allotment of equity shares.

10.9. In the event that the Demerged Company or Resulting Company alter their equity share capital,
including but not limited to, by way of share split / consolidation / further issue of shares in any manner
whatsoever during the pendency of the Scheme, the share entitlement ratio as per Clause 10 above, shall
be adjusted accordingly to take into account the effect of any such actions unless otherwise decided by
the Board of Directors of Demerged Company and Resulting Company. It is clarified that the approval
of the members and creditors of Demerged Company and Resulting Company to the Scheme shall be
deemed to be their consent / approval also to the adjusted share entitlement ratio as per this clause.

10.10. Resulting Company shall, if necessary and to the extent required, increase its authorized share capital
to facilitate issue of equity shares under the Scheme. It is clarified that the approval of the members of
Resulting Company to the Scheme shall be deemed to be their consent / approval also to the alteration
of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of Resulting Company as required under
Section 13, 14, 61, 64 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

11. REDUCTION AND CANCELLATION OF EXISTING EQUITY SHARES OF THE RESULTING COMPANY HELD
BY THE DEMERGED COMPANY

11.1. With effect from the Effective Date, the paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company to the extent
held by the Demerged Company, as on the Effective Date (“Resulting Company Cancelled Shares”)
shall without any further application, act, instrument or deed, stand cancelled, extinguished or
annulled.

11.2. The reduction and cancelled of Resulting Company Cancelled Shares shall be effected as an integral
part of this Scheme under Section 230 to 232 and Section 66 of the Act, without having to follow the
process under Section 66 of the Act separately.

11.3.  On effecting the reduction and cancellation of the Resulting Company Cancelled Shares as stated in
Clause 11.1 above, the share certificates in respect of the Resulting Company Cancelled Shares held by
their respective holders shall also be deemed to be cancelled.

11.4. Notwithstanding the reduction and cancellation of the Resulting Company Cancelled Shares, the
Resulting Company shall not be required to add ‘And Reduced’ as suffix to its name consequent upon
the reduction of capital under Clause 11.1 above.

11.5. The reduction and cancellation of the Resulting Company Cancelled Shares does not involve and

diminution of liability of in respect of any unpaid share capital or payment to any shareholder of any
paid-up share capital or payment in any other form.
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12. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF DEMERGED COMPANY AND CAPITAL REDUCTION

12.1. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, Demerged Company shall account for the transfer and
vesting of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking in its books of account as per the applicable
accounting principles prescribed under the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) or such other
accounting principles as may be applicable or prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rules issued thereunder.

12.2. The reduction, if any, in Capital Reserve account or Securities Premium account or any other account
of the Demerged Company pursuant to this Clause shall be effected as an integral part of the Scheme
and the order of NCLT sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be also the order under Section 52
read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for the purpose of
confirming the reduction. The reduction would not involve either a diminution of liability in respect
of unpaid share capital or payment of paid-up share capital.

12.3. The consent of the Board, the shareholders and the creditors of Demerged Company to this Scheme
shall be deemed to be the consent of its Board, shareholders and creditors for the purposes of effecting
the above reduction under the provisions of Section 52 read with Section 66 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and no further resolution under Section 52 read with Section
66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 would be required to be passed
separately.

12.4. Notwithstanding anything above, Demerged Company shall not be required to add “And Reduced” as
suffix to its name.

13 ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF RESULTING COMPANY

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, Resulting Company shall account for the transfer and vesting of
the GTLD Undertaking in its books of account as per the applicable accounting principles prescribed under the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) or such other accounting principles as may be applicable or prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

14 TREATMENT OF PART B OF THE SCHEME FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961

The provisions of Part B of this Scheme have been drawn up in compliance with the conditions relating to
“Demerger” as defined under Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. If, at later date, any of the terms or
provisions of this Part B are found or interpreted to be inconsistence with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961, including as a result of an amendment in Applicable Law or the enactment of a new
legislation or for any other reason whatsoever, the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
or a corresponding provision or any amended or newly enacted law, shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand
modified to the extent determined necessary to comply with provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. Such modification(s) will, however, not affect the other provisions of the Scheme.

15 CONDUCT OF BUSINESS BY DEMERGED COMPANY UNTIL THE EFFECTIVE DATE

15.1.  With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date, Demerged Company
shall carry on the business and activities of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking with reasonable
diligence, business prudence and shall not except in the ordinary course of business or without prior
written consent of Resulting Company, alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with
or dispose of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking or part thereof.

15.2.  With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

(1)  Demerged Company shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on the business and activities
pertaining to Global Top Level Domain Undertaking and shall hold and stand possessed of and
shall be deemed to hold and stand possessed of all its estates, assets, rights, title, interest,
authorities, contracts, investments and strategic decisions pertaining to the Global Top Level
Domain Undertaking for and on account of, and in trust for, Resulting Company;
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15.3.

(1)  All profits and income pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking accruing or
arising to Demerged Company, and losses and expenditure pertaining to the Global Top Level
Domain Undertaking arising or incurred by it (including Taxes, if any, accruing or paid in
relation to any profits or income) for the period commencing from the Appointed Date shall,
for all purposes, be treated as and be deemed to be the profits, income, losses or expenditure
(including Taxes), as the case may be, of Resulting Company;

(1lI) Any rights, powers, authorities or privileges pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking exercised by Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been exercised by
Demerged Company for and on behalf of, and in trust for and as an agent of Resulting Company.
Similarly, any of the obligations, duties and commitments pertaining to the Global Top Level
Domain Undertaking that have been undertaken or discharged by Demerged Company shall
be deemed to have been undertaken for and on behalf of and as an agent for Resulting
Company;

(1v)  All Taxes (including, without limitation, income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, excise duty, customs
duty, goods and service tax, service tax, VAT, etc.) pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking paid or payable by Demerged Company in respect of the operations and/or the
profits pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking of Demerged Company before
the Appointed Date, shall be on account of Demerged Company and, insofar as it relates to the
tax payment (including, without limitation, income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, excise duty,
customs duty, goods and service tax, service tax, VAT, etc.), whether by way of deduction at
source, advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by Demerged Company in respect of the profits or
activities or operation pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking of Demerged
Company with effect from the Appointed Date, the same shall be deemed to be the
corresponding item paid by Resulting Company and, shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with
accordingly;

(V)  Demerged Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of service of the employees
pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking or conclude settlements with unions
or employees, except in the ordinary course of business or consistent with past practice or
pursuant to any pre-existing obligation without the prior written consent of the Board of
Directors of Resulting Company; and

(VI)  Resulting Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to any
governmental authority, if required, under any law for such consents and approvals which
Resulting Company may require to carry on the business pertaining to the Global Top Level
Domain Undertaking of Demerged Company.

With effect from the date of approval of this Scheme by the respective Board of Directors of Demerged
Company and Resulting Company, Demerged Company shall notify Resulting Company in writing as
soon as reasonably practicable of any matter, circumstance, act or omission which is or may be a
breach of Clause 15.

PART C

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE PROJECT MANAGEMENT UNDERTAKING OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY

16

16.1

IN TRANSFEREE COMPANY
TRANSFER OF ASSETS

Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date,
the Project Management Undertaking (including all the assets, rights, claims, title, interest and
authorities including accretions and appurtenances of the Project Management Undertaking) shall,
subject to the provisions of this Clause in relation to the mode of transfer and vesting and pursuant to
Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act and without any
further act, instrument or deed, be transferred from the Transferor Company and be transferred to

Page 38



and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred from Transferor Company and transferred to
and vested in the Transferee Company as a going concern so as to become as and from the Appointed
Date, the assets, rights, claims, title, interest and authorities of Transferee Company, subject to the
provisions of this Scheme in relation to Encumbrances in favour of banks and/or financial institutions.

16.2 In respect of such of the assets of the Project Management Undertaking as are movable in nature or
are otherwise capable of transfer by delivery or possession, or by endorsement and / or delivery, the
same shall be so transferred by Transferor Company, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, and
shall become the property of Transferee Company as an integral part of the Project Management
Undertaking with effect from the Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232
read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act without requiring any deed or
instrument of conveyance for transfer of the same, subject to the provisions of this Scheme in relation
to Encumbrances in favour of banks and/or financial institutions.

16.3 In respect of movables other than those dealt with in Clause 16.2 above including sundry debts,
receivables, bills, credits, loans and advances, if any, whether recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received, bank balances, investments, earnest money and deposits with any Governmental
Authority, quasi- governmental authority, local or other authority or body or with any company or
other person, the same shall on and from the Appointed Date stand transferred to and vested in
Transferee Company without any notice or other intimation to the debtors.

164 The Transferee Company may without being obliged and if it so deems appropriate at its sole
discretion, give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to each person, debtor, or depositee,
as the case may be, that the said debt, loan, advance, balance or deposit stands transferred and vested
in Transferee Company.

16.5  In respect of such of the assets belonging to the Project Management Undertaking other than those
referred to in Clause 16.2 and 16.3 above, the same shall, as more particularly provided in Clause16.1
above, without any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred from Transferor Company and
transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to be transferred from Transferor Company and
transferred to and vested in Transferee Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with
effect from the Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66
and other applicable provisions of the Act. For the purpose of giving effect to the vesting order passed
under Section 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act in respect of
the Scheme, Transferee Company shall be entitled to exercise all the rights and privileges and be liable
to pay all Taxes and charges and fulfil all its obligations, in relation to or applicable to all such
immovable properties, including mutation and/or substitution of the title to, or interest in the
immovable properties which shall be made and duly recorded by the Governmental Authority(ies) in
favour of Transferee Company pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the NCLT and upon the
effectiveness of this Scheme in accordance with the terms hereof without any further act or deed to be
done or executed by Transferor Company and/or Transferee Company. It is clarified that Transferee
Company shall be entitled to engage in such correspondence and make such representations, as may
be necessary for the purposes of the aforesaid mutation and/or substitution.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, from the Effective Date and until the owned
properties, leasehold properties and related rights thereto, license/right to use the immovable
property, tenancy rights, liberties and special status are transferred, vested, recorded, effected and/or
perfected, in the record of the Governmental Authority, in favour of Transferee Company, Transferee
Company shall be deemed to be authorized to carry on the business in the name and style of Transferor
Company under the relevant agreement, deed, lease and/or license, as the case may be, and Transferee
Company shall keep a record and/or account of such transactions.

16.6  All assets, rights, title, interest and investments of Transferor Company in relation to the Project
Management Undertaking shall also, without any further act, instrument or deed stand transferred
to and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in Transferee Company upon
the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

Page 39



16.7  Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, upon the effectiveness of this Scheme, Transferee
Company will be entitled to all the intellectual property rights of Transferor Company in relation to
the Project Management Undertaking. Transferee Company may take such actions as may be
necessary and permissible to get the same transferred and/or registered in the name of Transferee
Company.

16.8 Any asset acquired by Transferor Company after the Appointed Date but prior to the Effective Date
pertaining to the Project Management Undertaking shall upon the coming into effect of this Scheme
also without any further act, instrument or deed stand transferred to and vested in or be deemed to
have been transferred to or vested in Transferee Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme.

16.9  Fortheavoidance of doubt, upon this Scheme coming into effect from the Effective Date and with effect
from the Appointed Date, all the rights, title, interest and claims of Transferor Company in any
leasehold/licensed properties in relation to the Project Management Undertaking shall, pursuant to
Section 232(4) and other applicable provisions of the Act, be transferred to and vested in or be deemed
to have been transferred to and vested in Transferee Company automatically without requirement of
any further act or deed.

16.10 On and from the Effective Date, and thereafter, Transferee Company shall be entitled to operate the
bank accounts of Transferor Company, in relation to or in connection with the Project Management
Undertaking, and realize all monies and complete and enforce all pending contracts and transactions
and to accept stock returns, if any, and issue credit notes in relation to or in connection with the
Project Management Undertaking of Transferor Company, in the name of Transferee Company in so
far as may be necessary until the transfer of rights and obligations of the Project Management
Undertaking to Transferee Company under this Scheme have been formally given effect to under such
contracts and transactions.

16.11 All the Taxes, if any, paid or payable by Transferor Company after the Appointed Date and specifically
pertaining to Project Management Undertaking shall be treated as paid or payable by Transferee
Company and Transferee Company shall be entitled to claim all the credit, refund or adjustment for
the same as may be applicable.

16.12 Transferee Company shall be entitled to get credit/claim refund regarding any Tax paid and/or tax
deduction at source certificates, pertaining to the Project Management Undertaking.

16.13 If Transferor Company is entitled to any unutilized credits (including balances or advances), benefits
under the incentive schemes and policies including tax holiday or concessions relating to Project
Management Undertaking under any Tax laws or Applicable Laws, Transferee Company shall be
entitled as an integral part of the Scheme to claim such benefit or incentives or unutilized credits as
the case may be without any specific approval or permission.

16.14 Without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits including under Tax laws, to which
Transferor Company, in relation to or in connection with the Project Management Undertaking, is
entitled to in terms of the Applicable Laws, including, but not limited to advances recoverable in cash
or kind or for value, and deposits with any Governmental Authority or any third party/entity, shall be
available to, and vest in, Transferee Company.

16.15 For avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the applicable provisions of the
Scheme, it is clarified that with effect from the Effective Date and till such time that the name of bank
accounts of Transferor Company, in relation to or in connection with the Project Management
Undertaking, has been replaced with that of Transferee Company, Transferee Company shall be
entitled to operate the bank account of Transferor Company, in relation to or in connection with the
Project Management Undertaking, in the name of Transferor Company in so far as may be necessary.
All cheques and other negotiable instruments, payment orders received or presented for encashment,
which is in the name of Transferor Company, in relation to or in connection with the Project
Management Undertaking, after the Effective Date shall be accepted by the bankers of Transferee
Company and credited to the account of Transferee Company, if presented by Transferee Company.
Transferee Company shall be allowed to maintain bank accounts in the name of Transferor Company
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for such time as may be determined to be necessary by Transferee Company for presentation and
deposition of cheques and pay orders that have been issued in the name of Transferor Company, in
relation to or in connection with the Project Management Undertaking. It is hereby expressly clarified
that any legal proceedings by or against Transferor Company, in relation to or in connection with the
Project Management Undertaking, in relation to the cheques and other negotiable instruments,
payment orders received or presented for encashment, which is in the name of Transferor Company
shall be instituted, or as the case may be, continued by or against Transferee Company after the
coming into effect of this Scheme.

17  TRANSFER OF CONTRACTS, DEEDS, ETC.

17.1 Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date,
all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever
nature in relation to the Project Management Undertaking, to which Transferor Company is a party
or to the benefit of which Transferor Company may be eligible, and which are subsisting or have effect
immediately before the Effective Date, shall continue in full force and effect against or in favour, as
the case may be, of Transferee Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of
Transferor Company, Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto.

17.2 Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of
the Project Management Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, Transferee Company may,
at any time after coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so
required under any Applicable Law or otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (including
deeds of adherence), confirmations or other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to
any contract or arrangement to which Transferor Company is a party or any writings as may be
necessary in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme. Transferee Company shall be
deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of Transferor Company and to carry
out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on part of Transferor Company.

17.3 For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, it is clarified that
upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all consents, permissions, licenses, certificates, clearances,
authorities, powers of attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of Transferor Company in
relation to the Project Management Undertaking shall stand transferred to Transferee Company as if
the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of Transferee Company, and
Transferee Company shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder, and
the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to Transferee Company. Transferee Company
shall make applications to any Governmental Authority as may be necessary in this behalf.

17.4 Without prejudice to the aforesaid, it is clarified that if any assets (estate, claims, rights, title, interest
in or authorities relating to such assets) or any contract, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes,
arrangements or other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the Project Management
Undertaking which Transferor Company owns or to which Transferor Company is a party to, cannot
be transferred to Transferee Company for any reason whatsoever, Transferor Company shall hold
such asset or contract, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements or other instruments of
whatsoever nature in trust for the benefit of Transferee Company, insofar as it is permissible so to do,
till such time as the transfer is effected.

18. TRANSFER OF LIABILITIES

18.1. Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
debts, liabilities, loans raised and used, obligations incurred, duties of any kind, nature or description
(including contingent liabilities which arise out of the activities or operations of the Project
Management Undertaking) of Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date and relatable to the
Project Management Undertaking (“Project Management Transferred Liabilities”) shall, without
any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and be deemed to be transferred to
Transferee Company to the extent that they are outstanding as on the Effective Date and shall become
the debts, liabilities, loans, obligations and duties of Transferee Company which shall meet, discharge
and satisfy the same. The term Project Management Transferred Liabilities shall include:
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L the liabilities which arise out of the activities or operations of the Project Management
Undertaking;

1L the specific loans or borrowings raised, incurred and utilized solely for the activities or
operations of the Project Management Undertaking; and

11 in cases other than those referred to in Clause 18.1lor Clause 18.111 above, so much of the
amounts of liabilities as may be decided by the Board of Directors of Transferor Company and
Transferee Company which would be in compliance with the provisions of Section 2(42C) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961.

18.2. Where any of the loans raised and used, debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of Transferor Company
as on the Appointed Date deemed to be transferred to Transferee Company have been discharged by
Transferor Company on or after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge
shall be deemed to have been for and on account of Transferee Company.

18.3.  Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date,
all loans raised and used and all debts, liabilities, duties and obligations incurred by Transferor
Company for the operations of the Project Management Undertaking with effect from the Appointed
Date and prior to the Effective Date, subject to the terms of this Scheme, shall be deemed to have been
raised, used or incurred for and on behalf of Transferee Company and to the extent they are
outstanding on the Effective Date, shall also without any further act or deed be and stand transferred
to and be deemed to be transferred to Transferee Company and shall become the loans, debts,
liabilities, duties and obligations of Transferee Company.

18.4.  In so far as the existing Encumbrances in respect of the Project Management Transferred Liabilities
are concerned, such Encumbrances shall, without any further act, instrument or deed be modified and
shall be extended to and shall operate only over the assets comprised in the Project Management
Undertaking which have been Encumbered in respect of the Transferred Liabilities as transferred to
Transferee Company pursuant to this Scheme. Provided that if any of the assets comprised in the
Project Management Undertaking which are being transferred to Transferee Company pursuant to
this Scheme have not been Encumbered in respect of the Project Management Transferred Liabilities,
such assets shall remain unencumbered and the existing Encumbrances referred to above shall not be
extended to and shall not operate over such assets. The absence of any formal amendment which may
be required by a lender or trustee or third party shall not affect the operation of the above.

18.5.  For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby clarified that in so far as the assets comprising the Remaining
Business are concerned, subject to Clause 18.4 the Encumbrances over such assets relating to the
Project Management Transferred Liabilities shall, as and from the Effective Date without any further
act, instrument or deed be released and discharged from the obligations and Encumbrances relating
to the same. The absence of any formal amendment which may be required by a lender or trustee or
third party shall not affect the operation of the above. Further, in so far as the assets comprised in the
Project Management Undertaking are concerned, the Encumbrances over such assets relating to any
loans, borrowings or debentures or other debts or debt securities which are not transferred pursuant
to this Scheme (and which shall continue with Transferor Company), shall without any further act or
deed be released from such Encumbrances and shall no longer be available as security in relation to
such liabilities.

18.6.  Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing Clauses and upon the effectiveness of the Scheme,
Transferor Company and Transferee Company shall execute any instrument(s) and/or document(s)
and/or do all the acts and deeds as may be required, including the filing of necessary particulars
and/or modification(s) of charge, with the RoC to give formal effect to the above provisions, if
required.

18.7.  Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, Transferee Company alone shall be liable to perform all
obligations in respect of the Project Management Transferred Liabilities, which have been transferred
to it in terms of this Scheme, and Transferor Company shall not have any obligations in respect of such
Transferred Liabilities. However, Transferor Company shall extend necessary cooperation in this
regard.
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18.8. It is expressly provided that, save as mentioned in this Clause 18, no other term or condition of the
liabilities transferred to Transferee Company as part of the Scheme is modified by virtue of this
Scheme except to the extent that such amendment is required by necessary implication.

18.9. The provisions of this Clause shall be subject to the clauses contained in any instrument, deed or
writing or terms of sanction or issue or any security document entered into between Transferor
Company and Transferee Company, if any.

19. LEGAL, TAXATION AND OTHER PROCEEDINGS

19.1.  Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all legal, taxation or other proceedings, of whatsoever
nature (including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal), by or against
Transferor Company and relating to the Project Management Undertaking, under any statute,
whether pending on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted any time thereafter, shall be
continued and enforced by or against Transferee Company after the Effective Date. Transferor
Company shall in no event be responsible or liable in relation to any such legal or other proceedings
against Transferee Company. Transferee Company shall be added as party to such proceedings and
shall prosecute or defend such proceedings in co-operation with Transferor Company.

19.2.  If proceedings are taken against Transferor Company in respect of the matters referred to in Clause
19.1 above, it shall defend the same in accordance with the advice of Transferee Company and at the
cost of Transferee Company, and the latter shall reimburse and indemnify Transferor Company
against all liabilities and obligations incurred by Transferor Company in respect thereof.

19.3. Transferee Company undertakes to have all legal or other proceedings initiated by or against
Transferor Company referred to in Clause 19.1 above transferred to its name as soon as is reasonably
possible after the Effective Date and to have the same continued, prosecuted and enforced by or
against Transferee Company to the exclusion of Transferor Company. Each of the Companies shall
make relevant applications in that behalf.

20. PERMITS

20.1. Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date,
permits relating to the Project Management Undertaking shall be transferred to and vested in
Transferee Company and the concerned licensor and grantors of such permits shall endorse where
necessary, and record Transferee Company on such permits so as to empower and facilitate the
approval and vesting of the Project Management Undertaking in Transferee Company and
continuation of operations pertaining to the Project Management Undertaking in Transferee
Company without any hindrance, and shall stand transferred to and vested in and shall be deemed to
be transferred to and vested in Transferee Company without any further act or deed and shall be
appropriately mutated by the Governmental Authorities concerned therewith in favour of Transferee
Company as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of Transferee
Company and Transferee Company shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties
thereunder and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to Transferee Company.

20.2. The benefit of all permits pertaining to the Project Management Undertaking shall without any other
order to this effect, transfer and vest into and become available to Transferee Company pursuant to
the sanction of this Scheme.

21. EMPLOYEES

21.1.  Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date,
the Employees in relation to the Project Management Undertaking of Transferor Company shall
become the employees of Transferee Company with effect from the Effective Date, and, subject to the
provisions hereof, on terms and conditions not less favourable than those on which they are employed
by Transferor Company in the Project Management Undertaking and without any interruption of, or
break in, service as a result of the transfer of the Project Management Undertaking. Transferee
Company agrees that for the purpose of payment of any compensation, gratuity and other terminal
benefits, the past services of the Employees of the Project Management Undertaking with Transferor
Company shall also be taken into account, and agrees and undertakes to pay the same as and when
payable.
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21.2. Inso far as the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and pension and/or superannuation fund, trusts,
retirement fund or benefits and any other funds or benefits created by Transferor Company for the
employees related to the Real Estate Business Undertaking, if any, (collectively referred to as the
“Project Management Employee Funds”), the Project Management Employee Funds and such of the
investments made by the Project Management Employee Funds which are referable to the employees
related to the Project Management Undertaking, being transferred to Transferee Company, in terms
of the Scheme shall be transferred to Transferee Company and shall be held for their benefit pursuant
to this Scheme in the manner provided hereinafter. The Project Management Employee Funds shall,
subject to the necessary approvals and permissions and at the discretion of Transferee Company,
either be continued as separate funds of Transferee Company for the benefit of the employees related
to the Project Management Undertaking, or be transferred to and merged with other similar funds of
Transferee Company. In the event that Transferee Company does not have its own funds in respect of
any of the above, Transferee Company may, subject to necessary approvals and permissions, continue
to contribute to relevant funds of Transferor Company, until such time that Transferee Company
creates its own fund, at which time the Project Management Employee Funds and the investments and
contributions pertaining to the employees related to the Project Management Undertaking, shall be
transferred to the funds created by Transferee Company. Subject to the relevant law, rules and
regulations applicable to the Project Management Employee Funds, the Board of Directors or any
committee thereof of Transferor Company and Transferee Company may decide to continue to make
the said contributions to the Funds of Transferor Company. It is clarified that the services of the
employees of the Project Management Undertaking, will be treated as having been continuous and
not interrupted for the purpose of the said fund or funds.

21.3. Any question that may arise as to whether any employee belongs to or does not belong to the Project
Management Undertaking shall be decided by the Board or Committee thereof of Transferor Company
and Transferee Company.

22. CONSIDERATION

22.1.  Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and in consideration of the transfer and vesting of the
Project Management Undertaking into Transferee Company pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme,
Transferee Company shall pay consideration equal to the Net Worth of the Project Management
Undertaking. The Transferee Company shall pay the consideration by way of issuance and allotment
to the Transferor Company, 55,78,114 (Fifty-Five Lakh Seventy-Eight Thousand One Hundred and
Fourteen) equity shares of face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupee Ten) each at share premium of INR 203
(Indian Rupees Two Hundred and Three only), as fully paid-up, without any further act or deed (“New
Equity Shares”).

22.2.  The New Equity Shares to be issued and allotted as provided in Clause 22 above shall be subject to the
provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of Transferee Company and
shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of Transferee Company
including with respect to dividend, bonus entitlement, rights’ shares’ entitlement, voting rights and
other corporate benefits.

22.3.  The New Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to Clause 22 above shall be issued in dematerialized
form only by Transferee Company, provided that the Transferor Company shall be required to have
an account with a depository participant and shall be required to provide details thereof and such
other confirmations as may be required to the Transferee Company.

22.4. The equity shares issued pursuant to Clause 22, which Transferee Company is unable to allot due to
Applicable Laws (including, without limitation, the non-receipt of approvals of Governmental
Authority as required under Applicable Law) or any regulations or otherwise shall, pending allotment,
be held in abeyance by Transferee Company and shall be dealt with in the manner as may be
permissible under the Applicable Law and deemed fit by the Board of Directors of Transferee
Company. If the above cannot be effected for any reason, Transferee Company shall ensure that this
does not delay implementation of the Scheme; and shall, take all such appropriate actions as may be
necessary under Applicable Law. Transferee Company and/or the depository shall enter into such
further documents and take such further actions as may be necessary or appropriate in this regard
and to enable actions contemplated therein.
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22.5. The issue and allotment of New Equity Shares by Transferee Company to the Transferor Company as
provided in this Scheme is an integral part thereof and shall be deemed to have been carried out under
the orders passed by the Tribunal without requiring any further act or deed on the part of Transferee
Company as if the procedure laid down under the Act and such other Applicable Laws as may be
applicable were duly complied with. It is clarified that the approval of the members and creditors of
Transferee Company to this Scheme shall be deemed to be their consent / approval for the issue and
allotment of New Equity Shares.

22.6. Inthe event that the Companies alter their equity share capital, including but not limited to, by way of
share split / consolidation / further issue of shares in any manner whatsoever during the pendency of
the Scheme, the number of equity shares as per Clause 22 above, shall be adjusted accordingly to take
into account the effect of any such actions unless otherwise decided by the Board of Directors of
Transferor Company and Transferee Company. It is clarified that the approval of the members of
Companies to the Scheme shall be deemed to be their consent / approval also to the adjusted number
of equity shares as per this clause.

22.7. Transferee Company shall, if necessary and to the extent required, increase its authorized share capital
to facilitate issue of shares under the Scheme. It is clarified that the approval of the Board and the
members of Transferee Company to the Scheme shall be deemed to be their consent / approval also
to the alteration of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of Transferee
Company as required under Section 13, 14, 61, 64 and other applicable provisions of the Act and no
further resolution under Section 52 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 would be required to be passed separately.

23. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY AND CAPITAL
REDUCTION

23.1. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, Transferor Company shall account for the transfer and
vesting of the Project Management Undertaking in its books of account as per the applicable
accounting principles prescribed under the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) or such other
accounting principles as may be applicable or prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rules issued thereunder.

23.2.  Thereduction, if any, in Capital Reserve account or Securities Premium account or any other account
of the Transferor Company pursuant to this Clause shall be effected as an integral part of the Scheme
and the order of NCLT sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be also the order under Section 52
read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for the purpose of
confirming the reduction. The reduction would not involve either a diminution of liability in respect
of unpaid share capital or payment of paid-up share capital.

23.3.  The consent of the Board, the shareholders and the creditors of Transferor Company to this Scheme
shall be deemed to be the consent of its Board, provisions of Section 52 read with Section 66 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and no further resolution under Section 52 read
with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 would be required to be
passed separately.

23.4. Notwithstanding anything above, Transferor Company shall not be required to add “And Reduced” as
suffix to its name.

24. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, Transferee Company shall account for the transfer and
vesting of Project Management Undertaking in its books of account as per the applicable accounting
principles prescribed under the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) or such other accounting
principles as may be applicable or prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued thereunder.
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25, TREATMENT OF PART C OF THE SCHEME FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961

25.1.  The provisions of Part C of this Scheme have been drawn up in compliance with the conditions relating
to “Slump Sale” as defined under Section 2(42C) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. If, at later date, any of
the terms or provisions of this Part are found or interpreted to be inconsistence with the provisions of
Section 2(42C) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, including as a result of an amendment in Applicable Law
or the enactment of a new legislation or for any other reason whatsoever, the provisions of Section
2(42C) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, or a corresponding provision or any amended or newly enacted
law, shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent determined necessary to comply
with provisions of Section 2(42C) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Such modification(s) will, however, not
affect the other provisions of the Scheme.

25.2.  Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Project Management
Undertaking of Transferor Company in its entirety shall, pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 read with
other relevant provisions of the Act and Section 2(42C) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and without any
further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing be transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to be
and stand transferred to and vested in Transferee Company as a ‘going concern’on a Slump Sale basis,
in accordance with Section 2(42C) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (as amended) for a lump sum
consideration as set out hereinafter, subject to the provisions of this Scheme.

26. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS BY TRANSFEROR COMPANY UNTIL THE EFFECTIVE DATE

26.1.  With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date, Transferor Company
shall carry on the business and activities of the Project Management Undertaking with reasonable
diligence, business prudence and shall not except in the ordinary course of business or without prior
written consent of Transferee Company, alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with
or dispose of the Project Management Undertaking or part thereof.

26.2. With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

[0)] Transferor Company shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on the business and
activities pertaining to Project Management Undertaking and shall hold and stand possessed
of and shall be deemed to hold and stand possessed of all its estates, assets, rights, title,
interest, authorities, contracts, investments and strategic decisions pertaining to the Project
Management Undertaking for and on account of, and in trust for, Transferee Company;

an All profits and income pertaining to the Project Management Undertaking accruing or
arising to Transferor Company, and losses and expenditure pertaining to the Project
Management Undertaking arising or incurred by it (including Taxes, if any, accruing or paid
in relation to any profits or income) for the period commencing from the Appointed Date
shall, for all purposes, be treated as and be deemed to be the profits, income, losses or
expenditure (including Taxes), as the case may be, of Transferee Company;

amn Any rights, powers, authorities or privileges pertaining to the Project Management
Undertaking exercised by Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been exercised by
Transferor Company for and on behalf of, and in trust for and as an agent of Transferee
Company. Similarly, any of the obligations, duties and commitments pertaining to the Project
Management Undertaking that have been undertaken or discharged by Transferor Company
shall be deemed to have been undertaken for and on behalf of and as an agent for Transferee
Company;

(1) All Taxes (including, without limitation, income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, excise duty,
customs duty, goods and service tax, service tax, VAT, etc.) pertaining to the Project
Management Undertaking paid or payable by Transferor Company in respect of the
operations and/or the profits pertaining to the Project Management Undertaking of
Transferor Company before the Appointed Date, shall be on account of Transferor Company
and, insofar as it relates to the tax payment (including, without limitation, income tax, wealth
tax, sales tax, excise duty, customs duty, goods and service tax, service tax, VAT, etc.), whether
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by way of deduction at source, advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by Transferor Company
in respect of the profits or activities or operation pertaining to the Project Management
Undertaking of Transferor Company with effect from the Appointed Date, the same shall be
deemed to be the corresponding item paid by Transferee Company and, shall, in all
proceedings, be dealt with accordingly;

) Transferor Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of service of the employees
pertaining to the Project Management Undertaking or conclude settlements with unions or
employees, except in the ordinary course of business or consistent with past practice or
pursuant to any pre-existing obligation without the prior written consent of the Board of
Directors of Transferee Company; and

Vi) Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to any
governmental authority, if required, under any law for such consents and approvals which
Transferee Company may require to carry on the business pertaining to the Project
Management Undertaking of Transferor Company.

26.3. With effect from the date of approval of this Scheme by the respective Board of Directors of Transferor
Company and Transferee Company, Transferor Company shall notify Transferee Company in writing
as soon as reasonably practicable of any matter, circumstance, act or omission which is or may be a
breach of Clause 26.

PART D
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO THE SCHEME
27. REMAINING BUSINESS OF INFIBEAM

27.1.  The Remaining Business and all the assets, liabilities and obligations pertaining thereto shall continue
to belong to and be vested in and be managed by Infibeam subject to the provisions of this Scheme in
relation to Encumbrances in favour of banks, lenders and/or financial institutions.

27.2.  Alllegal, taxation or other proceedings of whatsoever nature (including before any statutory or quasi-
judicial authority or tribunal) by or against Infibeam under any statute, whether pending on the
Appointed Date or which may be instituted at any time thereafter, and in each case relating to the
Remaining Business (including those relating to any property, right, power, liability, obligation or
duties of Infibeam in respect of the Remaining Business) shall be continued and enforced by or against
Infibeam.

27.3.  If proceedings are taken against Resulting Company or Transferee Company in respect of matters
referred to above relating to the Remaining Undertaking, it shall defend the same in accordance with
the advice of Infibeam and at the cost of Infibeam, and the latter shall reimburse and indemnify
Resulting Company or Transferee Company, against all liabilities and obligations incurred by
Resulting Company or Transferee Company in respect thereof.

27.4. Ifproceedings are taken against Infibeam in respect of matters referred to above relating to the Global
Top Level Domain Undertaking, it shall defend the same in accordance with the advice of Resulting
Company and at the cost of Resulting Company, and the latter shall reimburse and indemnify
Infibeam, against all liabilities and obligations incurred by Infibeam in respect thereof.

27.5. If proceedings are taken against Infibeam in respect of matters referred to above relating to the
Project Management Undertaking, it shall defend the same in accordance with the advice of
Transferee Company and at the cost of Transferee Company, and the latter shall reimburse and
indemnify Infibeam, against all liabilities and obligations incurred by Infibeam in respect thereof.

27.6.  Up to and including the Effective Date:

()  Infibeam shall carry on and shall be deemed to have been carrying on all business and activities
relating to the Remaining Business for and on its own behalf;
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28,

28.1.

28.2.

29,

29.1.

29.2.

(1)  all profits accruing to Infibeam or losses arising or incurred by it (including the effect of Taxes,
if any, thereon) relating to the Remaining Business shall, for all purposes, be treated as the
profits or losses, as the case may be, of Infibeam; and

(111)  all assets and properties acquired by Infibeam in relation to the Remaining Business on and
after the Appointed Date shall belong to and continue to remain vested in Infibeam.

INCREASE IN THE AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE RESULTING COMPANY

The authorised share capital of the Resulting Company shall be increased and enhanced to INR
3,12,00,000 (Indian Rupees Three Crore Twelve Lakh only), comprising of 3,12,00,000 (Three Crore
Twelve Lakh) equity shares of face value of INR 1 (Indian Rupee One) each, without any further act,
instrument or deed undertaken by the Transferee Company and on payment of any additional fees or
stamp duty in respect of such increase by the Transferee Company. The authorised share capital clause
at Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of Transferee Company shall stand modified and read
as follows:

“The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is INR 3,12,00,000 (Indian Rupees Three Crore
Twelve Lakh), divided into 3,12,00,000 (Three Crore Twelve Lakh) equity shares of face value
of INR 1 (Indian Rupee One only) each.”

On the approval of the Scheme by the Board and the members of each of the Parties pursuant to
Sections 230 to 232 and Section 66 and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules made
thereunder, it shall be deemed that the Board and the members of each of the Parties have also
accorded their consent under Sections 13, 61, 64 and / or any other applicable provisions of the Act
and rules made thereunder and the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association, as may be
applicable for effecting the aforesaid reclassification, amendment and increase in the authorised
share capital of the Transferee Company, and no further resolution or actions, including compliance
with any procedural requirements, shall be required to be undertaken by the Transferee Company
under Sections 13, 61, 64 and / or any other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made
thereunder and the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association. Upon this Scheme coming into
effect, the Transferee Company shall, if required, file all necessary documents / intimations as per the
provisions of Act and rules made thereunder with RoC or any other applicable Governmental
Authority in respect of the aforesaid reclassification, amendment and increase in the authorised share
capital of the Transferee Company, in the manner set out in this Clause 27 of the Scheme.

INCREASE IN THE AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

The authorised share capital of the Transferee Company shall be increased and enhanced to INR
1,15,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Crore and Fifteen Lakh only) comprising of 11,50,000 (Eleven Lakh
and Fifty Thousand) equity shares of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each, without any further act,
instrument or deed undertaken by the Transferee Company and on payment of any additional fees or
stamp duty in respect of such increase by the Transferee Company. The authorised share capital clause
at Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of Transferee Company shall stand modified and read
as follows:

“The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is INR 1,15,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Crore
and Fifteen Lakh), divided into 11,50,000 (Eleven Lakh and Fifty Thousand) equity shares of
face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupee Ten only) each.”

On the approval of the Scheme by the Board and the members of each of the Parties pursuant to
Sections 230 to 232 and Section 66 and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules made
thereunder, it shall be deemed that the Board and the members of each of the Parties have also
accorded their consent under Sections 13, 61, 64 and / or any other applicable provisions of the Act
and rules made thereunder and the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association, as may be
applicable for effecting the aforesaid reclassification, amendment and increase in the authorised
share capital of the Transferee Company, and no further resolution or actions, including compliance
with any procedural requirements, shall be required to be undertaken by the Transferee Company
under Sections 13, 61, 64 and / or any other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made
thereunder and the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association. Upon this Scheme coming into
effect, the Transferee Company shall, if required, file all necessary documents / intimations as per the
provisions of Act and rules made thereunder with RoC or any other applicable Governmental
Authority in respect of the aforesaid reclassification, amendment and increase in the authorised share
capital of the Transferee Company, in the manner set out in this Clause of the Scheme.
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30. APPLICATION TO THE TRIBUNAL

30.1. The Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the Transferee Company shall make all
applications / petitions under the Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act and
rules made thereunder, and as required under the Applicable Laws to the Tribunal for the sanction of
this Scheme and all matters ancillary or incidental thereto.

31. LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES

31.1.  Upon the Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date, the equity shares of the Resulting Company
shall be listed and admitted for trading on the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited by virtue of this Scheme and in accordance with the provisions of Applicable Laws (including
the SEBI Listing Regulations and SEBI Circular). The Resulting Company shall make all requisite
applications and shall otherwise comply with the provisions of the SEBI Circular, the SEBI Listing
Regulations and all other applicable provisions of the the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 and rules and regulations made thereunder, and take all steps to get its Equity Shares listed on
the Stock Exchanges and obtain the final listing and trading permissions.

31.2.  The equity shares issued and allotted by the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme shall remain
frozen in the depository system till listing / trading permission is given by the Stock Exchanges. There
shall be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Resulting Company between the Record Date
and the listing date which may affect the status of such permission. Further, the Resulting Company
will not issue / reissue any equity shares which are not covered under the Scheme.

31.3.  Any acquisition of shares, voting rights or control pursuant to the demerger of the Global Top Level
Domain Undertaking with the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme does not trigger any
obligation to make an open offer, in terms of Regulation 10(1)(d) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

32. SEQUENCING OF ACTIONS

32.1.  Upon the sanction of this Scheme and upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and
with effect from the Appointed Date, transfer of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking from the
Demerged Company into the Resulting Company in accordance with Part B of this Scheme and
transfer of the Project Management Undertaking on Slump Sale basis from the Transferor Company
into the Transferee Company in accordance with Part C of this Scheme shall be deemed to have
occurred / shall occur and become effective and operative.

32.2.  Upon the sanction of this Scheme and upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date, the
following shall be deemed to have occurred / shall occur and become effective and operative, only in
the sequence and in the order mentioned hereunder:

(a) increase in authorised share capital of the Resulting Company in accordance with Clause 27 of the
Scheme;

(b) increase in authorised share capital of the Transferee Company in accordance with Clause 29 of
the Scheme;

(c) issue and allotment of equity shares of the Resulting Company by the Resulting Company to the
shareholders of the Demerged Company whose names appear in the register of members of the
Demerged Company as on the Record Date in accordance with Clause 10 of this Scheme;

(d) issue and allotment of equity shares of the Transferee Company by the Transferee Company to the
Transferor Company in accordance with Clause 22 of this Scheme; and

(e) listing of the equity shares of the Resulting Company in accordance with Clause 31 of the Scheme.
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33. CONDITIONALITY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SCHEME
33.1.  This Scheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject to the following:

(a) Approval of the members:

(i) the requisite majorities in number and value of such classes of members as per provisions of
the Applicable Law(s) and as may be directed by the Tribunal or any other competent
authority, as may be applicable, approving the Scheme through e-voting or any other
permissible mode;

(ii) the Scheme being approved by the public shareholders of Demerged Company through e-
voting in terms of Part - I (A)(10)(a) of SEBI Circular and the scheme shall be acted upon
only if vote cast by the public shareholders in favour of the proposal are more than number
of votes cast by public shareholders against it; and in each case, the e-voting is in compliance
with the provisions of the Act, the SEBI Circular and the Listing Regulations.

(b) Obtaining observation letter or no-objection letter from the Stock Exchanges in respect of the
Scheme, pursuant to regulation 37 of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with SEBI Circular and
regulations 11 and 94 of the SEBI Listing Regulations;

(c) The requisite majorities in number and value of such classes of secured and unsecured creditors
as may be directed by the Tribunal or any other competent authority, as may be applicable,
approving the Scheme; and

(d) The Scheme being sanctioned by the Tribunal under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and
any other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder, and each of the Parties
having filed certified copies of the order of the Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme with RoC within
the statutory timelines.

33.2.  Each of the Parties shall file order of the Tribunal approving the Scheme with RoC within a period of
30 (thirty) days of receipt of such order. In case the Scheme does not become effective in terms of
Clause 33.1 above, within a period of 30 (thirty) days of receipt of the order of the Tribunal approving
the Scheme, each of the Parties shall file an intimation with RoC within 30 (thirty) days of the receipt
of the order of the Tribunal approving the Scheme.

You are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme to get fully acquainted with the provisions thereof.
The aforesaid are only some of the salient extracts thereof.

Accounting treatment

22. The accounting treatment as proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the accounting standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. The certificates issued by the respective statutory auditor of
Infibeam Odigma and IPMPL, are open for inspection as mentioned hereinbelow.

Effect of the Scheme on various parties

23. The effect of the proposed Scheme on the stakeholders of Infibeam would be as follows:

(a) Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Upon the Scheme being effective, the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of Infibeam

will be continue as Directors and/or KMP, as the case may be, in Infibeam and there is no impact on
their rights, roles and responsibilities. There is no impact on material interests of Directors and KMPs
of Infibeam.

(b) Shareholders (including promoter and non-promoter)

Under Part B of the Scheme, an arrangement is sought to be entered into between Infibeam and its
equity shareholders. Upon Part B of the Scheme becoming effective, the equity shareholders of Infibeam
(except the shares held by Infibeam in Odigma, which shall stand cancelled), shall become the equity
shareholders of Odigma in the manner as stipulated in Clause 10.1 of the Scheme.
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24.

Further, upon Part C of the Scheme, IPMPL shall pay the consideration by way of issuance and allotment
to its existing shareholder, ie. Infibeam, 55,78,114 (Fifty Five Lakh Seventy Eight Thousand One
Hundred and Fourteen) equity shares of face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupee Ten) each at share premium
of INR 203 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred and Three only), as fully paid-up, without any further act or
deed (“New Equity Shares”).

As on date, Infibeam has no preference shareholders and therefore, the effect of the Scheme on any such
preference shareholders does not arise.

(c) Creditors

The rights of the creditors of Infibeam shall not be affected by the Scheme. There will be no reduction
in their claims on account of the Scheme. The creditors will be paid in the ordinary course of business
and when their dues are payable. There is no likelihood that the creditors would be prejudiced in any
manner as a result of the Scheme being sanctioned.

(d) Depositors and Deposit trustee
As on date of Notice, Infibeam has not accepted any public deposits and therefore, the effect of the

Scheme on any public deposit holders or deposit trustee(s) does not arise.

(e) Debenture Holders and Debenture trustee
As on date of Notice, Infibeam has not issued any debentures and therefore, the effect of the Scheme on
any debenture holders or debenture trustee(s) or their material interests does not arise.

(f) Employees
Under the Scheme, no rights of the staff and employees, if any, of Infibeam are being affected.

The Employees in relation to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking of Infibeam shall become the
employees of Odigma on the same terms and conditions on which they were engaged by Infibeam,
with the benefit of continuity of service and without any break or interruption in service as more
particularly described in Scheme. Further, the services of the staff and employees (other than in
relation to Global Top Level Domain Undertaking), if any, of Infibeam, shall continue on the same
terms and conditions on which they were engaged by Infibeam, with the benefit of continuity of service
and without any break or interruption in service as more particularly described in Scheme.

The Employees in relation to the Project Management Undertaking of Infibeam shall become the
employees of IPMPL on the same terms and conditions on which they were engaged by Infibeam,
with the benefit of continuity of service and without any break or interruption in service as more
particularly described in Scheme.

Further, the services of the staff and employees (other than in relation to GTLD Undertaking and
Project Management Undertaking), if any, of Infibeam, shall continue on the same terms and
conditions on which they were engaged by Infibeam, with the benefit of continuity of service and
without any break or interruption in service as more particularly described in Scheme.

The effect of the proposed Scheme on the stakeholders of Odigma would be as follows:

(a) Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Upon the Scheme being effective, the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of Odigma will

be continue as Directors and/or KMP, as the case may be, in Odigma and there is no impact on their
rights, roles and responsibilities. There is no impact on material interests of Directors and KMPs of
Odigma.

(b) Shareholders (including promoter and non-promoter)

Under Part B of the Scheme, an arrangement is sought to be entered into between Odigma and its equity
shareholders. Upon Part B of the Scheme becoming effective, the equity shareholders of Infibeam (except
the shares held by Infibeam in Odigma, which shall stand cancelled), shall become the equity
shareholders of Odigma in the manner as stipulated in Clause 10.1 of the Scheme.

As on date, Odigma has no preference shareholders and therefore, the effect of the Scheme on any such
preference shareholders does not arise.
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25.

(c) Creditors

The rights of the creditors of Odigma shall not be affected by the Scheme. There will be no reduction in
their claims on account of the Scheme. The creditors will be paid in the ordinary course of business and
when their dues are payable. There is no likelihood that the creditors would be prejudiced in any manner
as a result of the Scheme being sanctioned.

(d) Depositor and Deposit trustee
As on date of Notice, Odigma has not accepted any public deposits and therefore, the effect of the Scheme

on any public deposit holders or deposit trustee(s) does not arise.

(e) Debenture Holders and Debenture trustee
As on date of Notice, Odigma has not issued any debentures and therefore, the effect of the Scheme on
any debenture holders or debenture trustee(s) or their material interests does not arise.

(f) Employees
Under the Scheme, no rights of the staff and employees, if any, of Odigma are being affected. The

Employees in relation to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking of Infibeam shall become the
employees of Odigma on the same terms and conditions on which they were engaged by Infibeam, with
the benefit of continuity of service and without any break or interruption in service as more particularly
described in Scheme. Further, the services of the staff and employee, if any, of Odigma, shall continue on
the same terms and conditions on which they were engaged by Odigma, as more particularly described
in Scheme.

The effect of the proposed Scheme on the stakeholders of IPMPL would be as follows:

(a) Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Upon the Scheme being effective, the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of IPMPL will

be continue as Directors and/or KMP, as the case may be, in IPMPL and there is no impact on their
rights, roles and responsibilities. There is no impact on material interests of Directors and KMPs of
IPMPL.

(b) Shareholders (including promoter and non-promoter)

Upon Part C of the Scheme, IPMPL shall pay the consideration by way of issuance and allotment to its
existing shareholder, i.e. Infibeam, 55,78,114 (Fifty Five Lakh Seventy Eight Thousand One Hundred and
Fourteen) equity shares of face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupee Ten) each at share premium of INR 203
(Indian Rupees Two Hundred and Three only), as fully paid-up, without any further act or deed (“New
Equity Shares”).

As on date, IPMPL has no preference shareholders and therefore, the effect of the Scheme on any such
preference shareholders does not arise.

(c) Creditors

The rights of the creditors of IPMPL shall not be affected by the Scheme. There will be no reduction in
their claims on account of the Scheme. The creditors will be paid in the ordinary course of business
and when their dues are payable. There is no likelihood that the creditors would be prejudiced in any
manner as a result of the Scheme being sanctioned.

(d) Depositors and Deposit trustee
As on date of Notice, IPMPL has not accept any public deposits and therefore, the effect of the Scheme

on any public deposit holders or deposit trustee(s) does not arise.

(e) Debenture Holders and Debenture trustee
As on date of Notice, IPMPL has not issued any debentures and therefore, the effect of the Scheme on
any debenture holders or debenture trustee(s) or their material interests does not arise.

(f) Employees
Under the Scheme, no rights of the staff and employees, if any, of IPMPL are being affected. The

Employees in relation to the Project Management Undertaking of Infibeam Company shall
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become the employees of IPMPL on the same terms and conditions on which they were engaged
by Infibeam as more particularly described in Scheme. Further, the services of the staff and employee,
if any, of IPMPL, shall continue on the same terms and conditions on which they were engaged by
IPMPL, as more particularly described in Scheme.

26. In compliance with the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the
Companies, in their respective meetings have adopted a report, inter alia, explaining the effect of the
Scheme on its shareholders and key managerial personnel amongst others. Copy of the Reports
adopted by the Board of Directors of Infibeam, Odigma and IPMPL are enclosed as Annexure-11,
Annexure-12 and Annexure-13, respectively.

Other matters

27. Amounts due to unsecured creditors as on December 31, 2023:
Demerged Company

Number Amount (INR)
575 44,65,51,404
Resulting Company
Number Amount (INR)
41 6,94,91,330

Transferee Company
Number Amount (INR)
5 1,95,41,31,078

28. Capital Structure pre and post Scheme

The Pre-Scheme capital structure of Demerged Company, Resulting Company, and Transferee
Company are detailed in clause 6 above.

The Post-Scheme capital structure is as follows:

Demerged Company

There will be no new issue of shares by the Demerged Company on account of the Scheme. Therefore,
the Post-Scheme capital structure of the Demerged Company will remain unchanged. The Demerged
Company has outstanding employee stock options under its existing stock option schemes, the
exercise of which may result in an increase in the issued and paid-up share capital of the Demerged
Company.

Resulting Company
The capital structure of Resulting Company after the issue of shares to the shareholders of the
Demerged Company will be as under:

Particulars INR
Authorized Share Capital
3,13,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each 3,13,00,000
Total 3,13,00,000
Issued capital
3,12,58,450 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each 3,12,58,469
Total 3,12,58,469
Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
3,12,58,450 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each 3,12,58,469
Total 3,12,58,469

The Resulting Company has outstanding employee stock options under its existing stock option
schemes, the exercise of which may result in an increase in the issued and paid-up share capital of
the Resulting Company.
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Transferee Company

The capital structure of Transferee Company after the issue of shares to the shareholders of the

Demerged Company will be as under:

Particulars INR
Authorized Share Capital
55,88,114 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,58,81,140
Total 5,58,81,140
Issued Capital
55,88,114 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,58,81,140
Total 5,58,81,140
Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
55,88,114 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,58,81,140
Total 5,58,81,140

Transferee Company

There will be no new issue of shares by Transferee Company on account of the Scheme. Therefore,
the Post-Scheme capital structure of the Transferee Company will remain unchanged.

Pre & Post Shareholding Pattern of Demerged Company:

Sr. No. Description Pre scheme shareholding Post scheme shareholding
pattern pattern
(As on March 31, 2024)
Number of % of Share Number of % of Share
Shares Held Capital Shares Held Capital
(A) PROMOTER
1 Indian
(a) | Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family 55,00,26,960 19.80 55,00,26,960 19.80
(b) | Central Government/ State - - - -
Government(s)
(c) | Financial Institutions/ Banks - - - -
(d) | (Any Other) - Bodies Corporate 21,31,27,500 7.66 21,31,27,500 7.66
Sub-Total A(1): 76,31,54,460 27.43 76,31,54,460 27.43
2 Foreign
(a) | Individuals (NRI/ Foreign - - - -
Individuals)
(b) | Government - - - -
(c) | Institutions - - - -
(d) | Foreign Portfolio Investor - - -
(e) | (Any Other) - Bodies Corporate - - - -
Sub-Total A(2) : - - - -
Total A=A(1)+A(2) 76,31,54,460 27.43 76,31,54,460 27.43
(B) PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
B1 Institutions
(@) Mutual Funds / UTI 21,97,494 0.08 21,97,494 0.08
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(b) NBFCs registered with RBI 1,40,001 0.01 1,40,001 0.01
(© Venture Capital Funds - - - -
(d) Alternate Investment Funds - - - -
(e) Foreign Venture Capital Investors - - - -
£i] Foreign Portfolio Investors Category I 20,36,48,509 7.32 20,36,48,509 7.32
(g) Foreign Portfolio Investors Category 51,70,342 0.19 51,70,342 0.19
11
(h) Financial Institutions / Banks - - - -
)] Insurance Companies - - - -
0]} Any other - - - -
Sub-Total B(1) : 21,11,56,346 7.59 21,11,56,346 7.59
B2 Central/State Govt(s)/ President of - - - -
India
Sub-Total B(2): - - - -
B3 Non-Institutions
(a) Directors and their relatives 41,13,56,342 14.79 41,13,56,342 14.79
(excluding independent directors and
nominee directors)
(b) Key Managerial Personnel 24,41,360 0.09 24,41,360 0.09
(9] Resident Individuals holding nominal 53,13,73,944 19.10 53,13,73,944 19.10
share capital up to Rs. 2 lakhs
(d) Resident Individuals holding nominal 48,89,88,381 17.58 48,89,88,381 17.58
share capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakhs
(e) Non Resident Indians (NRIs) 4,68,88,098 1.69 4,68,88,098 1.69
63)] Bodies Corporate 12,54,56,317 4.51 12,54,56,317 4.51
(g) Any Other
-Clearing Member 18,905 0.00 18,905 0.00
- Trust 54,55,918 0.20 54,55,918 0.20
- LLP 11,06,46,942 3.98 11,06,46,942 3.98
- Hindu Undivided Family 7,27,53,475 2.62 7,27,53,475 2.62
Sub-Total B(3): 1,79,53,79,682 64.54 1,79,53,79,682 64.54
Total B=B(1)+B(2)+ B(3): 2,00,65,36,028 72.13 | 2,00,65,36,028 72.13
c Non Promoter - Non Public
1. | Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & - - - -
ADRs
2. | Employee Benefit Trust (under SEBI 1,23,11,642 0.44 1,23,11,642 0.44
(SBEB) Reg,, 2014)
Sub-Total C: 1,23,11,642 0.44 1,23,11,642 0.44
Total (A+B+C): 2,78,20,02,130 100.00 2,78,20,02,130 100.00
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Pre & Post Shareholding Pattern of Resulting Company:

Sr. No. Description Pre scheme shareholding Post scheme shareholding
pattern pattern
(As on March 31, 2024)
Number of Shares | % of Share Number of % of Share
Held Capital Shares Held Capital
(A) | PROMOTER
1 Indian
(a) | Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family - - 61,80,081 19.77
(b) | Central Government/ State - - - -
Government(s)
(c) | Financial Institutions/ Banks - - - -
(d) | (Any Other) - Bodies Corporate 43,90,400* 100.00* 23,94,692 7.66
Sub-Total A(1): 43,90,400 100.00 85,74,773 27.43
2 Foreign
(a) | Individuals (NRI/ Foreign - - - -
Individuals)
(b) | Government - - - -
(c) | Institutions - - - -
(d) | Foreign Portfolio Investor - - - -
(e) | (Any Other) - Bodies Corporate - - - -
Sub-Total A(2) : - - - -
Total A=A(1)+A(2) 43,90,400 100.00 85,74,769 27.43
(B) PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
B1 Institutions
(a) Mutual Funds / UTI - - 24,691 0.08
(b) NBFCs registered with RBI - - 1,574 0.01
(c) Venture Capital Funds - - - -
(d) Alternate Investment Funds - - - -
(e) Foreign Venture Capital Investors - -
(H Foreign Portfolio Investors Category | - - 22,88,186 7.32
(8) Foreign Portfolio Investors Category - - 58,094 0.19
11
(h) Financial Institutions / Banks - - - -
)] Insurance Companies - - - -
§)] Any other - -
Sub-Total B(1) : - - 23,72,545 7.59
B2 Central/State Govt(s)/ President of - - - -
India
Sub-Total B(2): - - - -
B3 Non-Institutions
(a) Directors and their relatives - - 2,338 0.01
(excluding independent directors and
nominee directors)
(b) Key Managerial Personnel - - - -
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(c) Resident Individuals holding nominal - - 59,70,492 19.10
share capital up to Rs. 2 lakhs
(d) Resident Individuals holding nominal - - 1,01,41,335 32.44
share capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakhs
(e) Non Resident Indians (NRIs) - - 5,26,833 1.69
(H Bodies Corporate - - 14,09,622 4.51
(g) Any Other
- Clearing Member - - 213 0.00
- Trust - - 1,99,637 0.64
- LLP - - 12,43,225 3.98
- Hindu Undivided Family - - 8,17,456 2.62
Sub-Total B(3): - - 2,03,11,151 64.98
Total B=B(1)+B(2)+ B(3): - - 2,26,83,696 72.57
C Non Promoter - Non Public
1. | Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & - - - -
ADRs
2. | Employee Benefit Trust (under SEBI - - - -
(SBEB) Reg,, 2014)
Sub-Total C: - - - -
Total (A+B+C): 43,90,400 100.00 3,12,58,469 100.00
* Including Nominee Shareholders
Pre & Post Shareholding Pattern of Transferee Company:
Sr. No. Description Pre scheme shareholding Post scheme shareholding
pattern pattern
(As on March 31, 2023)
Number of Shares | % of Share Number of % of Share
Held Capital Shares Held Capital
(A) PROMOTER
1 Indian
(a) | Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family - - -
(b) | Central Government/ State - - - -
Government(s)
(c) | Financial Institutions/ Banks - - - -
(d) | (Any Other) - Bodies Corporate 10,000 100.00 55,88,114 100.00
(including nominees)
Sub-Total A(1): 10,000 100.00 55,88,114 100.00
2 Foreign
(a) | Individuals (NRI/ Foreign - - - -
Individuals)
(b) | Government - - - -
(c) | Institutions - - - -
(d) | Foreign Portfolio Investor - - - -
(e) | (Any Other) - Bodies Corporate - - - -
Sub-Total A(2) : - - - -
Total A=A(1)+A(2) 10,000 100.00 55,88,114 100.00
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(B) PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
B1 Institutions
(a) | Mutual Funds / UTI - - - -
(b) | Venture Capital Funds - - - -
(c) | Alternate Investment Funds - - - -
(d) | Foreign Venture Capital Investors - - - -
(e) | Foreign Portfolio Investors - - - -
(f) | Financial Institutions / Banks - - - -
(g) | Insurance Companies - - - -
(h) | Provident Funds/ Pension Funds - - - -
(1) | Any other - Foreign Bank - - - -
Sub-Total B(1) : - - - -
B2 Central/State Govt(s)/ President of - - - -
India
Sub-Total B(2): - - - -
B3 Non-Institutions
(a) | Individual  shareholders holding - - - -
shares upto nominal value of Rs. 2
Lakhs
(b) | Individual shareholders holding - - - -
shares in excess of nominal value of
Rs. 2 Lakhs
(c) | NBFCs registered with RBI - - - -
(d) | Employee Trusts - - - -
(e) | Overseas Depositories(holding DRs) - - - -
(f) | Any Other
-Bodies Corporate - - - -
-Non Resident Indians - - - -
-Clearing Member - - - -
- Trust - - - -
- Hindu Undivided Family - - - -
Sub-Total B(3): - - - -
Total B=B(1)+B(2)+ B(3): - - - -
C Non Promoter - Non Public
1. | Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & - - - -
ADRs
2. | Employee Benefit Trust (under SEBI - - - -

(SBEB) Reg, 2014)

Sub-Total C:

Total (A+B+C):

10,000

100.00

55,88,114

100.00

29.

The copy of the Scheme has been filed by Infibeam, Odigma and IPMPL before the concerned
Registrar of Companies in Form No GNL-1 on April 30, 2024.
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30. Investigation or proceedings, if any, pending against the Company under the Companies Act,

31.

32,

2013

No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending in relation to the Odigma, under
Section 210 to 229 of Chapter XIV of the Companies Act, 2013 or under the corresponding provisions
of the Act of 1956. No proceedings are pending under the Companies Act, 2013 or under the
corresponding provisions of the Act of 1956 against Odigma. Further, to the knowledge of Odigma,
investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending in relation to the Infibeam and IPMPL
under Section 210 to 229 of Chapter XIV of the Companies Act, 2013 or under the corresponding
provisions of the Act of 1956. Also, to the knowledge of Odigma, no proceedings are pending under the
Companies Act, 2013 or under the corresponding provisions of the Act of 1956 against Infibeam and
I[PMPL.

No winding proceedings have been filed or are pending against Odigma under the Act or the
corresponding provisions of the Act of 1956. Further, to the knowledge of Odigma, no winding up
proceedings have been filed or are pending against Infibeam and IPMPL under the Act or the
corresponding provisions of the Act of 1956.

There is no debt restructuring being undertaken pursuant to this Scheme.

The name and address of the promoters of Infibeam including their shareholding in the Companies as
on dated March 31, 2024 are as under:

Sr. [Name and Address of Infibeam Odigma IPMPL

No. [Promoters No. of No. of

% of
Shares of | holding

INR 1/-

Shares of
INR1/-

% of
holding

No. of
Shares
of INR

% of
holding

each each 10/-

each

1. Mr. Ajitbhai | 12,04,59,12 4.34 - - -

Champaklal Mehta 0

Amijyot, Parimal
Society, Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.

2. Ms. Jayshreeben | 12,04,59,12
Ajitbhai Mehta 0

4.34 - - -

Amijyot, Parimal
Society,  Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.

3. Mr. Vishal Ajitbhai |23,98,37,60
Mehta 0

8.63 1000* 0.00 1*

Amijyot, Parimal
Society,  Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.

4. Mr. Malav Ajitbhai - - - - -
Mehta

Amijyot, Parimal
Society, Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.




Ms. Nirali  Vishal
Mehta

Amijyot, Parimal
Society,  Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.

6,02,36,800

2.17

Mr. Subhashchandra
Rambhai Amin

Ram House, Near
Atlanta Tower, Gulbai
Tekra, Ahmedabad -
380006, Gujarat,
India.

82,35,160

0.30

Ms. Anoli Malav Mehta

Amijyot, Parimal
Society,  Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India.

Ms. Achalaben S Amin

Ram House, Near
Atlanta Tower, Gulbai
Tekra, Ahmedabad -
380006, Gujarat,
India.

7,05,800

0.03

Ms. Mokshadaben
Pravinbhai Sheth

30, Hermitage Villa,
Ambali, Dascroi,
Ahmedabad - 380001,
Gujarat, India.

10.

Ms. Pallavi Kumarpal
Shah

8, Adesh Appt, Nr.
Dharnidhar Temple,
Paldi, Ahmedabad -
380007, Gujarat,
India.

93,360

0.00

11.

Ms. Bhadrika Arvind
Shah

14-A, Ashok Vatika,
Ambli - Bopal Road,
Bopal, Ahmedabad -
380058, Gujarat,
India.

12.

Ms. Shreya Nisarg
Parikh

A - 38, Shri Krishna
Apartment, Bodakdev,
Ta - Daskroi,
Ahmedabad - 380054,
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Gujarat, India.

13.

Infinium Motors
Private Limited

842 Near YMCA,
Sarkhej-Gandhinagar
highway, Ahmedabad
- 380 006, Gujarat,
India

21,31,27,50
0

7.66

14.

Infinium
Communications
Private Limited

9th  Floor Shitiratna,
Off C G Road, Nr.
Panchavati Circle,
Ahmedabad - 380 006,
Gujarat, India.

15.

Infinium Motors
(Gujarat) Private
Limited

Amijyot, Parimal
Society,  Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India

16.

Ajit Mehta HUF

Amijyot, Parimal
Society,  Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India

17.

Vishal Mehta HUF

Amijyot, Parimal
Society,  Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India

18.

Malav Mehta HUF

Amijyot, Parimal
Society,  Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India

19.

V.M. Associates

Amijyot, Parimal
Society,  Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380006,
Gujarat, India

20.

Advanced Energy
Resources &
Management Private
Limited

Plot No0.392, Palasuni
Rasulgarh
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Bhubaneswar -
751010

21.

YORO Club LLP

9th  Floor Shitiratna,
Off C G Road, Nr.
Panchavati Circle,
Ahmedabad - 380 006,
Gujarat, India

22.

VIMA Enterprises LLP

9th  Floor Shitiratna,
Off C G Road, Nr.
Panchavati Circle,
Ahmedabad - 380 006,
Gujarat, India.

*In the capacity of Nominee

33. The name and address of the promoters of Odigma including their shareholding in the Companies as
on March 31, 2024 are as under:

28t Floor, GIFT Two
Building, Block No. 56,
Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT

City, Gandhinagar -
382 355, Gujarat,
India

Sr. | Name and Address of Infibeam Odigma IPMPL
No. Promoter No. of % of No. of % of No. of % of
Shares of holding | Sharesof | holding Shares holding
INR1/- INR1/- of INR10/-
each each each
1. | Infibeam Avenues - -1 43,89,350| 100.00 9,999 100.00
Limited

34. The name and address of the promoters of IPMPL including their shareholding in the Companies as
on December 31, 2023 are as under:

28t Floor, GIFT Two
Building, Block No. 56,
Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT

City, Gandhinagar -
382 355, Gujarat,
India

Sr. | Name and Address of Infibeam Odigma IPMPL
No. Promoter No. of Shares| % of No. of No. of |% ofholding | No.of
ofINR1/- | holding | Shares of |Shares of Shares of
each INR1/- | INR1/- INR1/-
each each each
1. | Infibeam Avenues - - 43,89,350 100.00 9,999 100.00
Limited
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35. The details of the shareholding of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of Infibeam
in the Companies as on March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Sr | Name ofthe Position Equity Shares held in
No | Director and Infibeam Odigma IPMPL
KMP No. of Shares of No. of No. of
INR1/- Shares of Shares of
each INR1/- INR 10/-
each each

1 |Mr. Ajit | Chairman Emeritus & Non- 12,04,59,120 -
Champaklal Executive Director
Mehta

2 | Mr. Vishal Chairman & Managing 23,98,37,600 1,000* 1*
Ajitbhai Mehta Director

3 |Mr. Vishwas | Joint Managing Director 30,63,82,648 - -
Ambalal Patel

4 |Mr. Keyoor Independent Director - - -
Madhusudan
Bakshi

5 |Mr. Roopkishan Independent Director 2,000 - -
Sohanlal Dave

6 |Ms. Vijaylaxmi Independent Director - - -
Tulsidas Sheth

7 | Mr. Piyushkumar Independent Director - - -
Mithileshkumar
Sinha

8 | Mr. Sunil Bhagat Chief Financial Officer 12,40,000 - -

9 |Mr. Shyamal Sr. Vice President and 12,01,360 - -
Trivedi Company Secretary

*In the capacity of Nominee

36. The details of the shareholding of the Directors of Odigma in the Companies as on March 31, 2024
are as follows:

Sr | Name ofthe Position Equity Shares held in
No | Director and Infibeam Odigma IPMPL
KMP No. of Shares No. of No. of
of INR1/- Shares of Shares of
each INR1/- INR 10/-
each each
1 |Mr. Vishal Mehta Chairman & Non-Executive 23,98,37,600 1,000* 1*
Director
2 |Mr. Mathew Jose Managing Director - 10* -
3 Mr. Lalji Vora Non-Executive Director - - -

*In the capacity of Nominee
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37. The details of the shareholding of the Directors of IPMPL in the Companies as on March 31, 2024 are

as follows:
Sr | Name ofthe Director Position Equity Shares held in
No | and KMP Infibeam Odigma IPMPL
No. of Shares No. of No. of
of INR1/- Shares of Shares of
each INR1/- INR10/-
each each
1 | Mr. Vishal Mehta Director 23,98,37,600 1,000* 1*
2. | Mr. Ajit Mehta Director 12,04,59,120 - -

*In the capacity of Nominee

38. In the event that the Scheme is withdrawn in accordance with its terms, the Scheme shall stand
revoked, cancelled and be of no effect and null and void.

39. Inspection

The following documents will be available for inspection by the unsecured creditors of Odigma at its
registered office at 27t Floor, GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56, Road - 5C, Zone - 5, GIFT City,
Gandhinagar - 382355, Gujarat, India, between 11:00 am to 01:00 pm on all days (except Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays) up to the date of the meeting:

I
ii.

iii.

Vi.

vii.
viii.

Xi.

Xil.
Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Copy of Composite Scheme of Arrangement;

Certified Copy of the order passed by the NCLT in CA(CAA)/13(AHM)2024, dated 29 April
2024 inter alia, directing to convene the meeting(s);

Copy of CA(CAA)/13(AHM)2024 along with annexures filed by Infibeam, Odigma and IPMPL
before NCLT;

Copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of Companies;

Copy of audited financial statements of all Companies for the financial year ended March 31,
2023, 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021;

Copy of unaudited financial results of all Companies for nine months ended December 31,
2023;

Copy of the Register of Directors’ and KMPs’ shareholding of each of the Companies;

Copy of Valuation report on recommendation of share exchange ratio dated August 07, 2023
issued by Den Valuation (OPC) Private Limited, Independent Registered Valuer;

Copy of Fairness Opinion dated August 07, 2023 issued by Kunvarji Finstock Pvt. Ltd.;

Copy of summary of Valuation Report;

Copy of the report of the Committee of Independent Directors of Infibeam dated August 08,
2023;

Copy of the report of the Audit Committee of Infibeam dated August 08, 2023;

Copy of the extracts of the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of Infibeam dated
August 08, 2023 and Odigma and IPMPL dated August 07,2023;

Observation letter to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement received by Infibeam Avenues
Limited from the BSE Limited dated February 22, 2024 and the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited dated February 23, 2024;

Complaints report submitted by Infibeam Avenues Limited to BSE Limited dated September
29,2023 and National Stock Exchange of India Limited dated October 28, 2023;

Copy of the Statutory Auditors’ Certificates, dated August 07, 2023 issued by Shah & Taparia
for Infibeam Avenues Limited, dated August 07,2023 issued by G.S Mathur and Co. for Odigma
Consultancy Solutions Limited and dated August 07, 2023 issued by Rajpara Associates for
Infibeam Projects Management Private Limited, to the effect that the accounting treatment, if
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any, proposed in the Scheme of compromise or arrangement is in conformity with the
applicable Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013;

xvii. Copy of the certificate issued by M/s. Shah & Taparia, Chartered Accountants, certifying
number of equity shareholders of Infibeam as on 31st December, 2023;

xviii.  Copy of the certificate issued by M/s. Patel & Mehta, Chartered Accountants, certifying the
number and amount due to the secured creditors of Infibeam as on 31st December, 2023;

XiX. Copy of the certificate issued by M/s. Patel & Mehta, Chartered Accountants, certifying the
number and amount due to the unsecured creditors of Infibeam as on 31st December, 2023;

XX. Copy of the certificate issued by M/s. G.S. Mathur & Co, Chartered Accountants, certifying
number of equity shareholders of Odigma as on 31st December, 2023;

XXi. Copy of the certificate issued by M/s. G.S. Mathur & Co Chartered Accountants, certifying that
there are no secured creditors of Odigma as on 31st December, 2023;

xxii. Copy of the certificate issued by M/s. G.S. Mathur & Co, Chartered Accountants, certifying the
number and amount due to the unsecured creditors of Odigma as on 31st December, 2023;

xxiii.  Copy of the certificate issued by M/s. Rajpara Associates, Chartered Accountants, certifying
number of equity shareholders of IPMPL as on 31st December, 2023;

xxiv.  Copy of the certificate issued by M/s. Rajpara Associates Chartered Accountants, certifying
that there are no secured creditors of [IPMPL as on 31st December, 2023;

XXV. Copy of the certificate issued by M/s. Rajpara Associates, Chartered Accountants, certifying
the number and amount due to the unsecured creditors of IPMPL as on 315t December, 2023;

xxvi.  Copy of the Reports adopted by the Board of Directors of the respective Companies pursuant
to the provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Act;

xxvii.  Copies of Form GNL-1 filed by Infibeam, Odigma and IPMPL with the concerned Registrar of
Companies, along with the challan dated 30 April 2024, evidencing filing of the Scheme; and

xxviii. All other documents referred to or mentioned in the Statement to this Notice.

The Unsecured Creditors shall be entitled to obtain the extracts from or for making or obtaining the
copies of the documents listed in item numbers (1), (ii), (vi), (vii), (ix), (x), (xiv), (xvi), (xvii), (xxii) and
(xxiii) above.

40. This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Section 230, 232 and 102 of the Act
read with Rule 6 of the Rules. Hard copies of the Particulars as defined in this Notice can be obtained
free of charge within 1 (one) day on a requisition being so made for the same by the unsecured
creditors of Infibeam at the registered office of Odigma.

41. After the Scheme is approved by the equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors
of all the companies involved in the Scheme, it will be subject to the approval / sanction by NCLT.

Dated this May 03, 2024
Place: Gandhinagar
Sd/-
Dr. Binod Kumar Sinha
Chairman appointed for the Meeting
Registered office:
27t Floor, GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56,
Road - 5C, Zone - 5, GIFT City,
Gandhinagar - 382355, Gujarat.
(CIN: U72900GJ2011PLC131548)
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Annexure-1

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

UNDER SECTIONS 230 TD 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

AMONGST

INFIBEAM AVENUES LIMITED

AN

ODIGMA CONSULTANCY SOLUTIONS LIMITED

AND

INFIBEAM PROJECTS MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDMNTORS
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PREAMBLE

This Composite Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme™), imter alia, provides for;

(i) demerger of Global Top Level Domain Undertaking (as defined Fereinafer) of

Demerged Company {as defined femingfier) with and into the Resulting
Company (as defined hereinafter), with effect from the Appointed Date (as
defined hereinafier), pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and
Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as
well as Section 2(194.4) of the Income Tax Act, 1961; and

(i) transfer of the Project Management Undertaking (as defined herernafier) as a

going concern on a Slump Sale (o defined ferednafer) basis, with effect from
the Appointed Date (o defined bereinafier), by the Transferor Company (as
defined herefnafier) 1o the Transferee Company (as defieed kererrafier) under
Sections 230 w 232 and Section &6 and other provisions of the Companics
Act, 2013 and in accordance with Section 2(42C) of the Income Tax Act,
1961.

This Scheme also provides for various ather matters consequent and incidental
thereto.

Infibeam Avenues Limited or “Infibeam™ or “Demerged Company™ or
“Transferor Company™ 15 a public limited company incorporated on 30 June,
2M0 vnder the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 bearing Corporate
ldentificanon Number Le4203GI2010PLCO61 366 and having its registered office
at 28th Floor, GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56, Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT CITY,
Gandhinagar = 382 355, Gujarat, India, to carry on business of inter alia, digital

M,_‘;;’:.L_—paymenu. E-commerce services, software business, e-commerce technology

platforms and provide a comprehensive suite of web services spanning digital
payment solutions, data centre infrastructure, software platforms etc, The equity

'% shares of the Demerged Company are listed on the BSE Limited (“BSE™) and

Marional S1ock Exchange of India Limited (“TNSE™),

s s Page | of 70

Page 67



Infibeam will continue to pursue their interests in and carry on the Remaining
Business (a5 defimad hereinaffer).

(b} Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited or “ODIGMA"™ of “Resulting
Company™ is a public limited company incorporated on 28" February, 201 1 under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 bearing Corporate Identity Number
U72900GI20NTPTCIA1548 and having us registered office at 27 Floor, GIFT
Two Building, Block No. 56, Road-5C, Zone-3, GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar - 382
333, Gujarat, India, 1o carry on business of iwver affag, online digital marketing,
consultancy in e-commerce solutions and o provide e- commeerce technologies for
promotion and marketing of all products and service using online digital
fechnologees and imeractive channels such as search engine optirmization, social
media optimization, link exchange, pay per click (PPC), affiliate marketing, banner
advertising, rich media, social bookmarking, directory listings, articles, blogs, etc.
The Resuliing Company s 2 wholly owned subsidiary ("WOS™) of Infibeam.

(¢} Infibeam Projects Management Provate Limited or “IPMPL"” or “Transferee
Company™ is a private limited company incorporated on 14™ February, 2022 under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 bearing Corporate Identity Number
UT0109GI2022PTC129384 having its registered office at 287 Floor, GIFT Two
Building, Block No. 56, Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar ~ 382 355,
Gujarat, India, to carry on business as dueer alta, buitlders, town planners, real estate

rg‘; _ developers, infrastructure developers, Engineers land developers, property owners,

&é!/! Faciliry Managmmhl Service, Data Center Services including and not limited o

cloud services, cloud computing, IT infrastnecture management, web services,

-f"-."_ *"ﬁﬁ}x storage and compute, hosting. domains, storage, data analytics, contractors, sub-

i contractors, dealers ete. The Transferee Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Infibeam.

fiawr <7 RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME

:..:_,» ] ‘\\;;‘.I The proposed restructuring pursuant to the Scheme 1s expecied, fmter alia, o result

| ¥ in following benefits:

:E““¢ W Demerger, transfer and vesting of GTLD Undertaking from the Demerged
ﬁ&:r R Company to Resulting Company to result mto:

Page 2 of 70

Page 68



a, Segregaton of Infibeam's GTLD Undertaking into Besulting Company;

b. Future growth and expansion of the GTLD Undenaking would require
differentiated strategy aligned to s industry specific risks, market dynamics
and growth trajectory;

oo Allow management of the Resulting Company 10 pursue independent
growth strategies in markets;

d. The proposed re-structuring would create enhanced value for the
shareholders through potential unlocking of value through hsting of GTLD
business as well as business of the Resulting Company on the NSE and BSE;

e, Since both the businesses are having separate growth trajectories, the
proposed re-structunng would enable both the businesses (o pursue thelr
growth opportunities and offer investment opportunities o potential
IMVEstors,

f. Emhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction and efficiencies of
aforesaid companies and thereby significantly contributing to future growth;

g. Provide scope of collaboration and expansion; and

T e h. Batonalization, standardization and simphfication of business processes

e fiﬁ.-“' A and systems of the GTLD Undertaking on being demerged into Resulting
P _'_' Company;

J ﬁf i. The proposed re-structuring would provide opportunity to sharcholders of

Infibeam o directly participate in GTLD Undemaking and BEesulung
Company’s business; and

J. The proposed re-structuning would enable investors o hald mvestments in
the businesses with different investment charactensocs, which best suit their

Woe o £ investment sirateghes and risk profiles;

(iiy Transfer and vesting of the Project Management Undertaking of the Transferor

i ;/“'F:)( ) Company as a going conoern to the Transferee Company, on Slump Sale basis
'f{ 1 10 result into

- )y

"-:?:\.,ﬁ A 1. The Transferee Company s a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferor

Company. The Project Management Undenaking comprises of, /nter alia,
the GIFT Ciy Tower Two buillding and relaed amenities which is
strategically lecated i the GIFT City and incubates/houses various stam
ups, aids projects and other technology related entities, which can be
categorized as part of non-core business acovities of the Transferor
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Company. With explosive potental opportumities visible m GIFT City and
consequent enhanced opportunities for growth and development, the
Project Management Undertaking of the Transferor Company would
require incréased capital and focused operations for tapping the said
opportunites. The value of such non-core business activities is not getting
reflected in the value of business of the Transferor Company, should form
part of an independent entity and a separate strategy should be formed for
unlocking the value of such non-core business activities of the Transferor
Company. In view of the same, it has become necessary to transfer the said
business o the Transferee Company:

. The said transfer would entall smoother operations of the respective

businesses under independent management set up paving way for growth
and development of cach of the business;

. The Scheme will result m simplification of the group structure and

management structure leading 1o the better admimstration and more
focused  operational  efforts,  rationalization, sandardizagion  and
simplification of business processes;

. Unlocking the value of the said business, which would enable optimal

cxploitation, monetization and development of both the Companies;

. The Scheme will enable entities 1o leverage their resources to align future

cash fows: and

. The synergies that exist between the Transferor Company and Transferee

Company in terms of services and resources can be put to best advantage of
all the stake holders.

PARTS OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme is divided into the following pans:

Part A deals with defimtions, interpretation and share capital of Demerged
Company, Resulung Company and Transferee Company, It includes defininons
which are common and applicable to all chapters of the Scheme. Specific
definitions relevant 1o a Part have been provided in the respective Part themselves;

T
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Fart B deals with transfer and vesting of the Global Top Level Domain
Underiaking from the Demerged Company inte the Resulting Company,
consideration thereof and other consequential and incidental matters thereto,

Pari C deals with wansfer and vesting of the Project Management Undenaking by
the Transferor Company and its vestng in the Transferee Company as a going
concern on a Slump 5ale basis, consideration thereof and other consequential and
ncidental matters thereto; and

Part I} deals with general terms and conditions that would be applicable to the
Scheme,

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS
SCHEME

The Scheme set out heeein in its present form or with any medificason(s) approved
or imposed or directed by the Tribunal or made as per Scheme, shall come in legal

operation from the Appointed Date, but shall be operative from the Effective Date.
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L1,

1.2

PART A

DEFINITIONS, INTERPRETATION AND SHARE CAPITAL

DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant o the meaning or context thereof, the following
expressions shall have the following meaning;:

"Act”™ means the Companies Act, 2003 as amended from time o time, and shall
include any other statutory re-enactment thereof, read with all surviving and
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and shall include all rules,
regulations, circulars, notifications, guidelines made or issued in relation thereto

from time to time;

“Applicable Law{s) or Law{s)" means any applicable national, foreign, provincial,
local or other law including applicable provisions of all {a) constitutions, decrees,
treaties, statutes, laws {including the common law), codes, nodificanons, miles,
regulations, policies, guidelines, circulars, directions, directives, ordinances or
orders of any Government Authonty, statutory authority, courn, mbunal having
jurisdiction over the Parties; (b) approvals; and (c) orders, decisions, injunctions,
judgments, awards and decrees of or agreements with any Government Authority
having jurisdiction owver the Parties as may be in force from time o tnme,

“Appointed Date™ means 17 April, 2023 or such other date as may be approved
by the Tribunal or by any ather competent authonty subject to applicable

X provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and agreed to by the Board of all the

COmpanies,

“Hoard of Dir " or “Board™ in relation to each of the Demerged Company,
Besulting Company and the Transferee Company, as the case may be, means the
board of directors of such company, and shall include a commuttee of directors or
any person authorzed by the board of directors or such commuttes of directors duly
constituted and authorized for the purposes of martters pertaining to this Scheme or
any other matter relating thereto;
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1.6,

L.

1.5

1.9

HCompanies™ or “Parties” shall mean the Demerged Company, Besulting
Company and Transferee Company, collectively, and rerm “Company” or “Pary”
shall mean each of them indrvidually;

“Demerged Company” or “Transferor Company’ or “Infibeam” shall mean
Infibeam Avenues Limited, a public imited company meorporated on 307 June,
2000 under che provisions of Companies Act, 1936 beanng Corporate
Identification Number La4203GI2010PLO061366 and having its registered office
at 28th Floor, GIFT Two Building, Block No. 56, Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT CITY,
Gandhinagar - 382 355, Gujarat, India;

"Demerged Undertaking” shall mean Global Top Level Domain Undertaking,

“Effective Date” means the date on which the centified copy of the arder of the
MNCLT under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the
Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, at Ahmedabad;

“Encumbrances” means (1) any charge, lien (statutory or other), or mortgage, any
easemnent, encroachment, right of way, nght of first refusal or other encumbrance
or secunty interest secunng any obligation of any person; (i) pre-empoion right,
option, right 1o acquire, right 10 20 off or other third panty right or claim of any
kind, including any restriction on use, voring. selling, assigning, pledging,
hypothecatng, or creanng a securnty interest in, place in trust (votng or otherwise),

. peceipt of income or exercise; or (iii) any equity, assignments hypothecation, title
: refention, restriction, power of sale or other type of preferential armangements; or
/ (iw} any agreement to create any of the above; the term “Encumber” shall be

constried accordingly;

“Grovernmental Authority’ shall mean any natonal, state, provincial, local or
similar government, governmental, statwtory. regulatory or  administrative
authority, government department, agency. commission, board, branch, tribunal
or court or other entity authorized o make laws, rules, regulations, standards,
requirements, procedures or to pass directions or orders having the force of law, or
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1.12.

(a)

ih)

any non-governmental regulatory or administrative authonity, body or other
arganization to the extent that the rules, regulations and standards, requirements,
procedures or orders of such authority, body or other organization have the force
of law, or any stock exchange of India;

‘INR" or “Rs.” means the lawful currency of the Republic of India;

“Gilobal Top Level Domain Undertaking” or “GTLD Undertaking” means all the

businesses, undertakings, activities, properiies, investments and labilities, of
whatsoever nature and kind and wheresoever situated, pertaining to Global Top
Level Domain {*GTLD”) business, including the following:

all immaovable properties, ifany, i.e. land together with the buildings and structures
standing thereon (whether frechold, leasehold, leave and licensed, right of way,
tenancies or otherwise) currently being used for the purpose of and in relanion to
the GTLD business and all documents (including panchnamas, declaratons,
receiprs) of title, nghts and easements in relation thereto and all nghes, covenants,
continuing rights, title and interest in connection with the said immovable
properties;

all assets, as are movable in nature pertaiming to and in relagon to the GTLD
business, whether present or fumre or contingent, fangible or intangible, n
possession or reversion, corporeal or incorporeal (including electrical fittings,
furniture, fixtures, appliances, accessomnes, office equipments, coOMMURICAonN
facilities, installations and inventory), actionable claims, current assets, eamest
monies and sundry debtors, financial assets, outstanding loans and advances,
recoverable in cash or in kind or for value o be received, provisions, receivables,

funds, cash and bank balances and deposits including accrued interest thereto with
| Governmental Authonty, banks, customers and other persons, the benefits of any

bank guarantees, performance guarantess and tax related assets, including but not
limited to goods and service tax input credits, value added/sales rax/entry tax
credits or ser-offs, advance tax, 1ax deducred at source, tax refunds and minimum
aliermate tax credit;

all permits, licenses, permissions including municipal permissions, right of way,
approvals, clearances, consents, benefits, regstrations, nghts, entidements, credits,
Page Bof 70
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(d)

(e)

certificates, awards, sanctons, allotments, quotas, no objection certificanes,
exemplions, concessions, subsidies, liberties and advantages including those
relating 1o privileges, powers, facilities of every kind and description of whatsoever
nature and the benefits thereto pertaining to the GTLD business;

all contracts, agreements, purchase ordersSservice orders, operaton  and
mainienance  coniracts, memoranda  of  understanding, memoranda  of
undertakings, memoranda of agreements, memaoranda of agreed points, minutes of
meenngs, bids, tenders, expression of interest, letter of intent, hire and purchase
arrangements, leases licence agreements, tenancy rights, agreements/ panchnamas
for right of way, equipment purchase agreements. agreement with customers,
purchase and other agreements with the supplier/ manufaciurer of goods/service
providers, other arrangements, undertakings, deeds, bonds, schemes, concession
agreements, insurance covers and claims, clearances and other instruments of
whatzpever namre and description, whether written, oral or otherwise and all
rights, title, imterests, claims and benefits thereunder pertaining to the GTLD
business;

all applicanions, mcluding hardware, software, boenses, source codes (including
any copies thereof), scrpts, registranoens, geodwill, licenses, trademarks, rade
names, service marks, copyrights, patents, patent rights, copyrights, domain
names, designs, trade secrets, research and studies, technical knowhow,
confidential information or any other intellectual property nghis (whether owned,
licensed or otherwise, and whether registered or unregistered) of any deseniption
and mamre whatsoever and right to use any other intellectual propeny {whether
perpetual or not) of Infibeam having used in the GTLIY business;

all rights to use and avail telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, internet, leased line
connections and mstallatons, utlies, electnoty and other services, reserves,
provisions, funds, benefits of assets or properties or other interests held in trusts,
registrations, CoONMTacts, engagements, armangemenis of all kind, privileges and all
other nghts, easements, libertics and advantages of whatsoever nature and
wheresoever situated belonmng to or in the ownership, power o possession and n
control of or vested in or granted in Bvour of or enjoved by Infibeam pertaining w
ar in connection with or relatng to Infibeam in respect of the GTLD business and
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(h)

)

all other interests of whatsoever nature belonging to or in the ownership, power,
possession or control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held for the benefin
of or enjoyed by Infibeam and pentaining o the GTLD business;

all books, records, files, papers, engineering and process information, software
licenses (whether proprictary or otherwise), test reports, compuier programmes,
drawings, manuals, data, daabases ncluding dambases for procurement,
commercial and management, cataloguees, qumations, sales and advertising
materials, product registrations, dossiers, product master cards, lists of present and
former customers and suppliers including service providers, other customer
information, customer credit information, customer/ supplier pricing information,
and all other books and records, whether m physical or electromc form that pertain
to the GTLD business;

all debes, liabilities including contingent Habilities, duties, Taxes and obliganons of
Infibeam in relation to and pertaining to the GTLID business;

all taxes, tax deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, privilege, refund of any
tax, duty, cess, tax credits (including, without mitanon, all amounts claimed as
refund, whether or not 30 recorded in the Books of acoounts, and credits in respect
of income (ax, such as carry forward tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation), tax
deducted ar source, tax collected at source, foreign tax credie, equalization levy,
customs duty, central value added tax, valuee added 1ax, mrnover tax, geods and
services tax, minimum alternate tax credit, central sales tax and excise duty
pertaining to the GTLD business, and all rghts to any claim not preferred or made
by the Transferor Company in respect of (a) any refund of tax, dury, cess or other
charge (including any erroneous or excess payment thereof made and pefaining to
the GTLID business) and any interest thereon, and (b) any set-off, carry forward of
unabsorbed losses, deferred revenue expenditure, deduction, exemption, rebate,
allowance, amortisation bepefit, etc. under Applicable Law pertaining o the
GTLD business;

all emplovees of Infibeam employed/engaged in and relatable to the GTLD
business as on the Effective Drate;
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(k}  all legal or other proceedings of whatsoever namure that pemain o the GTLD
business; and

(1 any other asser/liability which i deemed 10 be pertaining w the GTLD
Undertaking by the board of directors of the Demerged Company.

Explanation:

In case of any guestion that may arise as (o whether any particular asset or liability and for

employee pertains or does not pertain to the GTLD business or whether it arises out of the

activities or operations of the GTLD business, the same shall be decided by muwual
agreement between Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company.

1113, “NCLT" or “Tribomal"” means the Ahmedabad Bench of the Hon"bie Mational

Company Law Tnbunal, which has junisdiction in relation to Demerged Company,
Resulting Company and Transferee Company,

1.14. “Project Management Undertaking” means all the businesses, underakings,

activities, properties, investments and liabilines, of whatsoever nature and kind and
wheresoever stiuated, pertaming to Project Management business, including the
following,

all immovable properties, if any, 1.e, land topether with the buildings and structures
standing thereon (whether frechold, leaschold, leave and licensed, night of way,
tenancies or otherwise) including the units of the GIFT Tower Two, basement car

| parking, common amenities! facilites etc. cumrently being used for the purpose of

and in relation w the Project Management business and all documents Dincluding
panchnamas, declarations, recerpts) of title, rights and easements in relation thereto
and all rights, covenants, continuing rights, title and interest in conpection with the
said immovable properties;

all assets, as are movable in nature pertaining o and in relation to the Project
Management business, whether present or future or contingent, tangible or
intangible, in possession of reversion, corporeal or incorporeal (including electrical
fitings, furmniture, fixtures, apphances.  accessories,  office  equipments,

communication facilities, installations and mventory), actionable claims, current
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(c)

(d)

assels, earnest monies and sundry debtors, financial assets, outstanding loans and
advances, recoverable in cash or in kind or for value 1o be received, provisions,
receivables, funds, cash and bank balances and deposits including accrued interest
thereto with Governmental Authonty, banks, customers and other persons, the
benefits of any bank guarantees, performance guarantees and tax related assets,
including but not imited o goods and service tax mput credits, value added/sales

tax/eniry tax credits or set-offs, advance rax, tax deducted ar source, tax refunds
and minimum aliternate tax credit;

all permits, licenses, permissions including municipal permissions, nght of way,
approvals, clearances, consents, benefits, regisirations, nghts, enntdements, credits,
certificares, awards, sanctions, allomments, quotas, no objection certificates,
exempiions, concessions. subsidies, liberties and advantages including those
relating (o privileges, powers, facilities of every kind and descnption of whatsoever
nature and the benefits thereto pertaining o the Project Management business;

all contracts, agreements, purchase orders/service orders, operabon and
maintenance  contracts, memoranda of understanding, memoranda  of
undertakings, memoranda of agreements, memoranda of agreed poines, minutes of
meenngs, bids, wenders, expression of interest, leter of intent, hire and purchase
arrangements, lease/licence agreements, tenancy rights, agreements/ panchnamas
for right of way, equipment purchase agreements, agreement with customers,
purchasze and other agreements with the supplier/manufacturer of goods/service
providers, other arrangements, undertakings, deeds, bonds, schemes, concession
agreements, insurance covers and claims, clearances and other instruments of
whatsoever natuere and description, whether written, oral or otherwise and all
rights, title, interests, claims and benefits thereunder peraining o the Project
Management business,

all applications, incuding hardware, sofiware, licenses, source codes (including
any copies thereof), scripis, registratons, goodwill, lcenses, trademarks, trade
names, service marks, copyrights, patents, patent rights, copyrights, domain
names, designs, trade secrets, research and  studies, technical knowhow,
confidential information, or any other intellectual property rights (whcther owned,
licensed or otherwise, and whether registered or unregistered), of any description
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and nature whatsoever and nght o use any other intellectual property (whether
perpetual or not) of Infibeam having used m the Project Management busimess;

all rights 1o use and avail telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, mternet, leased hine
connections and imstailateons, utilities, electricity and other services, reserves,
provisions, funds, benefits of assets or properties or other interests held in truses,
registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements of all kind, privileges and all
other rights, easements, liberties and advantages of whatsoever nature and
wheresoever situwated belongng 1o or 10 the ownership, power of possession and in
control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by Infibeam pertaining to
or in connection with ar relating o Infibeam in respect of the Project Management
business and all other imerests of whatseever nature belonging to or in the
ownership, power, possession or control of or vested inoor granted in favour of or
held for the benefit of or enjoved by Infibeam and pertaining o the Project
Management business;

all books, records, files, papers, engineering and process information, software
licenses (whether proprietary or otherwise), (50 TEpOrTs, COMPUIET Programmes,
drawings, manuals, data, databases including databases for procurement,
commercial and management, catalogues, quotations, sale: and advertising
materials, product registrations, dossiers, product master cards, lists of present and
former customers and suppliers including service providers, other customer
imformation, customer credit information, customer/supplier pricing information,
and all other books and records, whether in physical or electronsc form that pertain
1o the Project Management business;

:_. all debis, habilines including contingent labilities, duties, Taxes and obligations of
' Infibeam in relation to and pertaining 1o the Project Management business;

all taxes, 1ax deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, privilege, refund of any
fax, dury, cess, tax credins (incloding, without limitation, all amounts claimed as
refund, whether or not so recorded in the books of accounts, and credits in respect
of income tax, such as carry forward tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation), 1ax
deducted at source, tax collected at source, foreign tax credit, equalization bevy,
customs duty, central value added ax, value added tax, mmover tax, goods and

services tax, mimmum altermate tax credit, central sales tax and excise duty
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pertaining to the Project Management business, and all rights to any claim not
preferred or made by the Transferor Company in respect of (a) any refund of @ax,
duty, cess or other charge (including any emroneous or excess payment thereof
made and pertaining to the Project Management business) and any interest thereon,
and (b} any set-off, carry forward of unabsorbed losses, deferred revenue
expendrture, deduction, exemption, rebate, allowance, amorisation benefit, .
under Applicable Law pertaining 1o the Project Management business;

{7y all employees of Infibeam employed/engaged in and relatable to the Project
Management business as on the Effective Date

(ky  all legal or other proceedings of whatsoever nature that pertain to the Project
Management business; and

1] any other asset/habiliy which 5 deemed to be pertuning 1o the Propect
Management Undemaking by Board of Directors of the Transferor Company

Explanation;

In case of any question that may arse as to whether any particular asset or hability andfor

employee pertains or does not pertain to the Project Management business or whether it

e anses out of the activities or operations of the Project Management busingss, the same

Mhﬂ]] be decided by mutual agreement berween Board of Directors of the Transferor

2o~ Kompany and the Transferee Company.

“Record Date™ means the date to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the
Resulting Company and the Demerged Company for the purpose of determining
the shareholders of Infibeam, as the case may be, 1o whom shares of the Resulting
Company shall be allotted pursuant to demerger under this Schemse;

1.16. “Remaining Business" with respect 1o Infibeam means all business activities of

i,

Infibeam other than the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking and Project
Management Undertaking,

“Resulting Company” or "ODIGMA" means Odigma Consultancy Solutions

Limited, a public limited company incorporated under the provisions of
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Companies Act, 2013 bearing Corporate Identiry Mumber
UT2900GJ2011PTCI31548 having its registered office at 27 Floor, GIFT I
Building, Block No. 36, Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar — 382 355,
Crugarat, India;

1.18. *“RoC" means the Registrar of Companics, Gujarar;

1.19, “Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” means this Composite Scheme of
Amangement amongst the Demerged Company, the Resuling Company and the
Transteree Company and their respective sharcholders and creditors, pursuant to
Section 230 0 232 and Section 66 and other relevant provisions of the Act, with
such modifications as may be made from time w ime, with the appropriate
approvals and sanctions of the NCLT and other relevant Government Authority,
as may be required under the Act and under all other Applicable Laws;

—_  1.20. *5EBI" means the Securites and Exchange Board of India established under the
Secunties and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;

| h _;;'r."jrl-li. “SEBI Listing Regulations” means the SEB] (Listung Obligations and Disclosure
Reqguirements) Hepulations, 2015 and shall include any statwtory modification,
amendment and re-enactment thereof for the tme being in force or any act,

regulations, rules, guidelines, ¢ic., that may replace such regulations;

SSEZ-122. “SEBI Scheme Circalar” means Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-
SPACIRA2023793 daged N June, 2023, and includes any substitution,
'} T, midification or ressuance thereof from time o time;
:{_'.-/ V/ \
| | . F -
' {1 > .15:13- “Slump Sale” sale of an undenaking on a going concern basis, for a lump sum
ik consideration without values being assigned to the indmvidual assets and liabilities,

as defined under Section 2(42C) of the Income Tax Act, 1961;

I.24. “Stock Exchanges™ means the Nancnal Steck Exchange of India Limited (N3E)
and the BSE Limited (BSE) collectively;
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[.25, “Tax™ or “Taxes™ means any or all taxes (direct or indirect), surcharges, fees,

- 1

levies, duties, tanfls, imposts and other charges of any kind in each case in the
nature of a tax, imposed by any Governmental Authority (whether payable directly
or by withholding), including taxes based upon or measured by income, windfall
or other profis, gross receipls, property, sales, severance, branch profits, customs
duties, excise, CENVAT, tax deducved ar source, tax collected at source, seli-
assessment tax, advance ax, regular assessment taxes, service tax, goods and
services tax, stamp duty, mansfer tax, value-added tax, minimum alternate tax,
banking cash transaction tax, securities ransaction fax, equalisation levy, dividend
distribution tax, buy-back tax, taxes withheld or paid in a foregn country, customs
duty and registration fees {together with any and all interest, penalties, additions to
tax and addinenal amounes imposed with respect thereta);

“MNet Worth" shall mean the aggregate book value of assets reduced by the aggregate

book value of labilities of Project Management Undertaking as on the Appointed
Date, transferred pursuant to this Scheme;

“Transferee Company” or “IPMPL" means Infibeam Propects Management

FPrivate Limited, a private Imited company incorporated under the provisions of
Compamies  Act, 2013 bearing  Corporate  Idenmnty Number
U7010eGI2022PTC129384 having its registered office at 28" Floor, GIFT I
Building, Block No. 56, Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar - 382 355,

. Gugarat, India;

INTERPRETATION

Terms and expressions which are used in this Scheme but not define herein shall,
unless repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning thereof, have the same
meaning ascribed to them under the Act, the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other
Applicable Laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be, including any
statwtory modification or re-enactment thereof, from tme to time, In panicular,
wherever reference s made to the MCOLT in this Scheme, the reference would
include, if appropriate, reference to the NCLT or such other forum or authority, as
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may be vested with any of the powers of the NCLT under the Act and rules made
thereunder.

2.2, Inthis Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

a}

b}

)

d)

reference o “person(s)” shall include individuals, bodies corporate (wherever
incorporated), unincorporated associations and partnerships,

the headmgs, sub-headings, atles, sub-tles o clauses, sub-clauses amd
paragraphs are insened for ease of reference only and shall not form par of the
operative provisions of this Scheme and shall noe affect the construction or
interpretation of the Schemse;

reference o one gender includes all genders;

words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;

any reference in this Scheme 0 “upon this Scheme becomng effective” or
“coming into effect of this Scheme” or the “Scheme becoming effective” or
“Scheme becomes effective” or “effectiveness of this Scheme™ or hikewise shall
be construed 1o be a reference 1o the Effective Date;

words “include” and “including” are to be construed without limitation;

terms “hereol™, “herein”, “hereby”, “hereto” and derivative or similar words
shall refer to this entire Scheme or specified Clauses of this Scheme, as the case
may be;

a reference 1o “whting ™ o “written” includes prinung. typing, lithography and
other means of reproducing words in a visible form including e-mail;

reference 1o any agreement, contract, document Or Arrangement of (o any
provision thereof shall include references to any such agreement, contract,
document or arrangement as it may, after the date hereof, from ome to time, be
amended, supplemented or novated:
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KJ | Eavity harecapil

iy reference 1o the Becital or Clause shall be a reference to the Recital or Clause
of this Scheme: and

k} reference to any provision of law or legislation or regulation shall include: (1)
such provision as from time o ome amended, modified, re-enacted or
consolidated (whether before or after the date of this Scheme) to the extent such
amendment, modification, re-enactment or consolidation applies or is capable
of applying to the transaction entered into under this Scheme and (1o the extent
Liability there under may exist or can arise) shall include any past stamutory
provision {as amended, modified, re-enacted or consolidated from time to wme)
which the provision referred to has directly or indirectly replaced, (i} all
subordinate legislations (including circulars, notifications, clarifications or
supplement(s) to, or replacement or amendment of, that law or legislation or
regulation) made from time o ome under that provision (whether or not
amended, modified, re-enacted or consolidated from ume to ame) and any
retrospective amendment,

3 SHARE CAPITAL

3.1, The share capital of Demerged Company as on 31° March, 2023 was as under:

H\J} Share capital "i'__' ~ Amount (INR) |
| | Authorized share capital
Equiry share capital
3.50,00,00.000 (Three Hundred and Fifty 3,50,00,00,000
i Crove only) equity shares of TNR 1 each (Indian Rupees Three
f: ; ._'“} | Hundred and Fifty Crore only)
. | Total authorised share capital I 3,50,00,00,000 |
- , (Indian Rupees Three
Hundred and Fifty Crore |
only) |

Issued, subscribed and paid-ap share capital
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2,67.77,81,182 (Two Hundred Sixty Seven | 2,67.77.81,182
Crore Seventy Seven Lakh Eighty One | {Indian Rupees Two Hundred
Thousand One Hundred and Eighty Two only) | Sixty Seven Crore Seventy
equity shares of INR 1 ¢ach Seven Lakh Eighty One
Thousand One Hundred and |
I Eighty Two only)
Total issued, subscribed and paid-up share 2,67,77,81,182
: capital {Indian Rupees Two Hundred |
Sixty Seven Crore Seventy |
Seven Lakh Eighty One
Thowsand One Hundred and
Eighty Two only)

The Demerged Company have issued 55,93, 704 (Fifty Lakh Ninety Three
Thousand Seven Hundred and Four only) equity shares on 01% August, 2023. Post-
ssue, the share capital of Demerged Company as on (4% August, 2023 was as

under:

| Share capital Amount (INR) |
| Authorized share capital

| Equity share capital

| 3,50,00,00,000 (Three Hundred and Fifty 3,50,00,00,000

: Crore only) equity shares of INR | each

{Indian Rupees Three
Hundred and Fifty Crore only)

1

| Total anthorised share capital 3,50,00,00,000
| {Indian Rupees Three

I Hundred and Fifty Crore .
| only) |
| Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital - N B
| Equity share capital

! 2,68,33,74,885 (Two Hundred Sixty Eight 268,33, 74 886

| Crore Thinty Three Lakh Seventy Four
| Thousand Eight Hundred and Eighty Six only)
E equity shares of INE 1 each

(Indian Rupees Two Hundred
Sixty Eight Crore Thirty Three
Lakh Seventy Four Thousand |
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| Eight Hundred and Eighty Six

| only)

Total issued, subscribed and paid-up share 2,68,33,74 8B6
capital (Indian Rupees Two Hundred
Sixty Eight Crore Thirty
Three Lakh Seventy Foar
Thousand Eight Hundred and

Subsequent 1o the above date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued,
subscribed and pasd up share capital of Demerged Company all the date of
approval of the Scheme by the Board of the Demerged Company.

As on 4" Avgust, 2023, the Demerged Company has outstanding employee stock
oplions under its existing stock options schemes, the exercise of which shall result
in an increase in the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of Demerged
Company.

Az on M* August, 2023, 9.50,00,000 (Mine Crore Fifiv Lakh) warrants of the
Demerged  Company are outstanding. Post conversion of any of the aforesaid
warrants, the equity share capital of the Demerged Company will undergo a
change.

The share capatal of Resulting Company as on 31% March, 2023 was as under:

Share capital Amount (INR)
Authorized share capital
Egquity share capital
500,000 (Five Lakh) equiry shares of 50,000,000
IME 10 each | {Indian Rupees Fifty Lakh only)
 Total authorised share capital | == 50,00,000
. (Indian Rupees Fifty Lakh only)
Izswed, subscribed and paid-wp share
capital
_Equin.r share capital

Page 20 of 70

Page 86



Thousand and Forty) equity shares of |
INR 10 each

439,040 (Four Lakh Thiy Nine|

43,90, 400
(Indian Rupees Forty Three Lakh
Minety Thousand and Four

Hundred cnliy)

Total issued, subscribed and paid-up 43,90, 400
share capital (Indian Rupees Forty Three Lakh
Ninety Thowsand and Four

Hundred only)

The Resulting Company have sub-divided each equity share having face value of
INE 10 {Indian Rupees Ten) in 1o 10 (Ten) equity shares having face value of INR
I (Indian Rupees One) vide resolution passed at general meeting on (4% July, 2023,
Post sub-division, the share capital of Resulting Company as on (4™ August, 2023

was as under;

| Share capital Amount (INR) |
| Authorized share capital -

Equity share capital
| 50,00,000 (Fifty Lakh) equity shares n-f| 50,00, 000
| INE 1 each {Indian Rupees Fifty Lakh only)
Total anthorised share capital - 50,00,000

(Indian Rupees Fifty Lakh only)

Issped, subscribed and paid-up share
capital

Equity share capital
43 90400 (Forty Three Lakh MNincty
Thousand and Four Hundred) equity
shares of INR 1 each

43,90, 400
(Indian Rupees Forty Three Lakh
Minety Thousand and Four

Hundred only)

Total issued, subscribed and paid-up 43,90, 400
share capital (Indian Rupees Forty Three Lakh
Minety Thousand and Four

Hundred only)

J:F.:;'.:'.- i H F f___;-v_r_f(-\.
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Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorised, 1ssued,
subscribed and paid up share capital of Resulting Company tll the date of approval
of the Scheme by the Board of the Resulting Company.

33, The share capital of Transferee Company as on 31% March, 2023 and 04" August,

2023 was as under:
' Share capital ~ Amount (INR)
" Authorized share capiral
i Equity share capatal
10,000 (Ten Thousand) equity shares of 1, 00,000
| INE 10 each {Indian Rupeess One Lakh only)
Total authorised share capital | ©1,00,000
(Indian Rupees One Lakh only)
Izswed, subscribed and paid-up share
| capiad
| Equity share capital
10,000 (Ten Thousand) equity shares of 1,00,000
| INR. 10 each (Indian Rupees One Lakh only)
‘Total issued, subscribed and paid-up 1,00,000
i:huumpilﬂ (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) |

Subsequent to the above darte, there has been no change in the authorised, issued,
subscnbed and paid wp share capital of Transferee Company till the dare of
approval of the Scheme by the Board of Transferee Company.

<< This space has beent ftevtionally beft Mank s

o Yo o
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PART B2

DEMERGER OF GLOBAL TOP LEVEL DOMAIN UNDERTAKING OF
DEMERGED UNDERTAKING AND ITS VESTING IN RESULTING COMPANY

4. TRANSFER OF ASSETS

4.1,  Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking {including all the
assets, rights, claims, title, interest and awthorities including accretions and
appurtenances of the Global Top Level Domamn Undertaking) shall, subject 1o the
provisions of this Clause in relation to the mode of transfer and vesting and
pursuant w Sections 230 w 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable
provisions of the Act and without any further act, instrument or deed, be demerged
from the Demerged Company and be ransferred to and vested in and be deemed
1o have been demerged from Demerged Company and wransferred 1o and vested in
the Resulting Company as a going concern so as o become as and from the
Appointed Date, the assets, nghts, claims, tifle, interest and authonties of Besulang
Company, subject to the provisions of this Scheme in relation (o Encumbrances in

favour of banks and/or fnancial institutions,

4.2, lnrespect of such of the assets of the Global Top Level Domain Undemaking as are
movable in natore or are otherwise capable of transfer by delivery or possession, or
by endorsement and / or delivery, the same shall be 30 wansferred by Demerged
Company, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, and shall become the
propenty of Resulting Company as an integral part of the Global Top Level Domain

Undertaking with effect from the Appointed Date pursuant (o the provisions of
AT s Sections 230 w 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act
g v"/ 4 |, without requiring any deed or instrument of conveyance for transfer of the same,
subject to the provisions of this Scheme in relation (o Encumbrances in favour of

N e oy banks and/ or financial institutions.

—4.3.  In respect of movables other than those dealt with in Clause 4.2 above mcluding

# Vri o sundry debts, receivables, bills, credits, loans and advances, if any, whether
_: i pocoverable in ocash or in kind or for value w© be received, bank balances,
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4.4,

4.5.

investments, carmest money and deposits with any Governmental Authority, quasi-
governmental authority, local or other authority or bady or with any company or
other person, the same shall on and from the Appointed Dave stand transferred o
and vested in Besulting Company without any notice or other intimation to the
debiors,

The Resulting Company may without being obliged and if it so deems appropriate
an its sole discreton, give notioe in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to each
person, debtor, or depositee, as the caze mav be, that the said deby, loan, advance,
balance or deposit stands transferred and vested in Resulting Company.

In respect of such of the assets belonging to the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking other than those referred o in Clause 4.2 and 4.3 above, the same
shall, as more particularly provided in Clause 4.1 above, withowt any further act,
instrument or decd, be demerged from Demerged Company and transferred to and
vested i andSor be deemed o be demerged from Demerged Company and
rransferred 1o and vested in Resulting Company upon the coming into effect of this
Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act,
For the purpose of giving effect to the vesting order passed under Section 230 1o
232 read with Section &6 and other applicable provisions of the Act in respect of
the Scheme, Resulting Company shall be entithed o exercise all the nghts and
privileges and be liable 1o pay all Taxes and charges and fulfil all iis obligations, in
relation o or applicable o all such immovable properties, including mutation
and/or substitution of the otle to, or interest 1n the immovable properties which
shall be made and duly recorded by the Governmental Authority{ies) in favour of
Besulting Company pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the MCLT and upon
the effectiveness of this Scheme in accordance with the erms bereofl without any
further act or deed (o be done or executed by Demerged Company and/or
Resulting Company, Tt is clarified thar Resulting Company shall be entitled 1o
engage i such comespondence and make such representations, as may be
necessary for the purposes of the aforesand mutaton and/or substituton,
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4.5,

4.7.

4.8

4.9,

Motwithstanding any provision to the contrary, from the Effective Date and until
the owned properties, leasehold properties and related nghts thereto, license/ nght
1o use the immovable property, tenancy rights, hiberties and special status are
ransferred, vested, recorded, effected and/or perfected, in the record of the
Governmental  Authority, in favour of Resulting Company, the Resulting
Company shall be deemed (o be authorized 1o carry on the business in the name
and style of Demerged Company under the relevant agreement, deed, lease and/or
license, as the case may be, and Resulting Company shall keep a record andfor
account of such transactions.

All assets, nghts, nile, interest and invesiments of Demerged Company in relation
ter the Global Top Level Domain Undemaking shall also, withour any further act,
instrument or deed stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been
wansferred 1o and vesied in Resulting Company upon the commng into effect of this
Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, upon the effectiveness of this
Scheme, Resuling Company will be entitled to all the intellectual property rights
of Demerged Company in relation to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking,
Resulting Company may take such actions as may be necessary and permissible 1o
get the same ransferred and/or registered in the name of Resulting Company.

Any asset aoguired by Demerged Company after the Appointed Date but prior to
the Effective Date penaining 1o the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking shall
upon the coming into effect of this Scheme also without any further act, instrument
or deed stand transferred o and vested in or be deemed to have been ransferred io
or vested in Resulting Company upon the coming into effect of this Schems.

For the avoidance of doubt, upon this Scheme coming into effect from the Effective
Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, all the rights, tifle, interest and
claims of Demerged Company in any leaschold/ licensed properties in relanion to
the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking shall, pursuant io Section 232(4) and

le provisions of the Act, be ransferred to and vested in or be deemed

Tt N

-
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4.10.

4.11.

to have been transferred to and vested in Resuling Company automatically
withour requirement of any further act or deed,

On and from the Effective Dare, and thereafter, Resuling Company shall be
enitled o operate the bank accounts of Demerged Company, in relation to or in
connection with the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking, and realize all monies
and complete and enforce all pending contracts and transactions and o accept
stock returns, iF any, and issue credit notes in relation 0o or in connection with the
Global Top Level Domaimn Undertaking of Demerged Company, in the name of
Resuling Company in so far as may be necessary until the ransfer of rights and
obligations of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking to Resulting Company
under this Scheme have been formally mven effect to under such contracts and
[ransacians,

All the Taxes, if any, paid or payable by Demerged Company after the Appointed
Drate and specifically peraining 1o Global Top Level Domain Undertaking shall be
ircated as pard or payable by Resulting Company and the Eesuliing Company shall
be entitled to claim all the credit, refund or adjustment for the same as may be
applicable.

- Resulung Company shall be entitled to get credit/claim refund regarding any Tax

paid and/or tax deduction at source certificates, pertaining to the Global Top Level
Domain Undenaking.

. If Demerged Company 15 entitled to any unutilized credits (including balances or

advances), benefits wnder the incentive schemes and policies including rax holiday
or concessions relating o the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking under any

Tax laws or Applicable Laws, Resulting Company shall be entitled as an integral
part of the Scheme to claim such benefit or incentives or unutilized credits as the

case may be without any specific approval or permission.

Without prejuedice o the generality of the abowve, all benefits including under Tax
laws, to which Demerged Company, in relation toor in connection with the Global
Top Level Domain Underaking, 15 entitled o in terms of the Applicable Laws,
including, but not limited to advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value, and
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4.15.

deposits with any Governmental Authonty or any third party/entity, shall be
available 1o, and vest in, Resulting Company.

For avoudance of doubt and withowt prejudice o the penerality of the applicable
provisions of the Scheme, it is clarified that with effect from the Effective Date and
fill such time that the name of bank accounts of Demerged Company, in relation
o or in connection with the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking, has been
replaced with that of Resulting Company, Resulung Company shall be entitled 1o
operate the bank account of Demerged Company, in relation 10 of in COneCtion
with the Global Top Level Domain Underntaking, in the name of Demerged
Company in %0 far as may be necessary. All cheques and other negouable
instruments, payment orders received or presented for encashment, which is in the
name of Demerged Company, n relation to or in connection with the Global Top
Level Domawin Undemaking, after the Effective Date shall be accepied by the
bankers of Resulting Company and credited to the account of Resulting Company,
if presented by Resulting Company. Besulung Company shall be allowed to
maintain bank accounts m the name of Demerged Company for such time as may
be determined to be necessary by Resulung Company for presentation and
deposition of chegues and pay orders that have been issued in the name of

i Demerged Company, in felation to or in connection with the Global Top Level
= | Domain Undertaking. It is hereby expressiy clarified that any legal proceedings by

or against Demerged Company, in relation 1o or in connection with the Global Top
Level Domain Undertaking, in relation to the chegues and other negotiable
mstruments, payment orders received or presented for encashiment, which is in the
name of Demerged Company shall be insttuted, or as the case may be, continued
by or against Resulting Company afier the coming into effect of this 5cheme.

TRANSFER OF CONTRACTS, DEEDS, ETC.

Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Efective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements
and other mstruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the Global Top Level
Domain Undertaking, to which Demerged Company 1s a party ar to the benefit of
which Demerged Company may be eligible, and which are subsisting or have effect
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immediately before the Effective Date, shall continue in full force and effect agamse
or in favour, as the case may be, of Resulting Company and may be enforced as
fully and effecrually as if, instead of Demerged Company, Resulting Company had
been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto,

5.2, Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the
Fact thar vesting of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking occurs by virtue of
this Scheme itself, Resulting Company may, at any time after coming into effect of
this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any
Applicable Law or otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (including
deeds of adherence), confirmatons or other wntings or tnipartite arrangements
with any party 1o any contract or arrangement 10 which Demerged Company i a
party or any writings as may be necessary in order to give formal effect to the
provisions of this Scheme. Resulting Company shall be deemed to be authorized
o execute any such writings on behalf of Demerged Company and to carry out or
perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on part of Demerged
Company.

5.3, Forthe avoadance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing,
it is clarified that wpon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all consents,
! permassions, licenses, certificates, clearances, authorites, powers of attormey given
'I ' N .’_ by, issued 1o or executed in favour of Demerged Company in relation 1o the Global
W " Top Level Domain Undertaking shall stand transferred to Resulting Company as
if the same were originally given by, tssued 10 or executed in favour of Resulting
T Company, and Resulting Company shall be bound by the terms thereof, the
fard f-"_':::”:_x obligations and duties thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same shall
\z I'I'ibe available to Resultng Company. Resulong Company shall make applications

S0 o any Governmental Authority as may be necessary in this behalf.

=

54, Without prejudice to the aforesaid, it 15 clanfied that if any assets {estate, claims,
rights, title, interest in or authortes relating to such assets) or any contract, deeds,

;-_:-.f-‘/ by bonds, agreemenis, schemes, arrangements or other mstruments of whatsoever
H"*if\ /0 nature in relanon o the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking which Demerged
-"J';.'--_.- Company owns of o which Demerged Company 15 a pary to, cannot be

transferred o Resulang Company for any reason whatsoever, Demerged Company
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b1,

6.2,

shall hold such asset or contract, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements
or other instruments of whatsoever namre in trust for the benefit of Resulting
Company, insofar as it 15 permissible so o do, all such dme as the transfer s

effected.

TRANSFER OF LIABILITIES

Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Dace, all debes, labilites, loans raised and wsed, obligations incurred,
duties of any kind, natere or description {including contingent liabilities which anise
out of the activities or operatons of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking)
of Demerged Company as on the Appointed Date and relatable to the Global Top
Level Domain Undertaking (“GTLD Transferred Liabilities™) shall, without any
further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and be deemed o be
transferred to Resulting Company to the extent that they are oustanding as on the
Effective Date and shall become the debts, habilities, loans, obligations and duties
of Resulung Company whach shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same. The term
GTLD Transferred Liabilities shall include:

(I}  the habilies which anse out of the activities or operations of the Global
Top Level Domain Underaking;

(II}  the specific loans or borrowings rased, mcurred and vhlized solely for the
activities or operations of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking; and

(1) in cases ether than those referred 1o n Clavge 6. 1([) or Clause 6.1(11) abowve,
50 much of the amounts of liabilitics as may be decided by the Board of
Drirectors of Demerged Company and Resulting Company which would be
in compliance with the provisions of Section 2{19AA) of the Income-tax
Act, 1961,

Where any of the loans raised and used, debis, liabilities, duties and obligations of
Demerged Company as on the Appointed Date deemed o be transferred 1o
Hﬂult_];g_[__hmgaﬂy have been discharged by Demerged Company on or afier the
#_, nE 'II::"-IE‘-E'-.. P : -
I_.I_- i v/)'P..:-.I"' ; .-ra 'H.:_:-'- "
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A3,

4.

-
et

Aty oy

%l + Tax

Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge shall be deemed 1o
have been for and on account of Resulting Company.

Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, all loans raised and used and all debts, liabilites, dutes and
obligations incurred by Demerged Company for the operations of the Global Top
Level Domamn Undermaking with effect from the Appointed Date and prior to the
Effective Dare, subject 1o the terms of this Scheme, shall be deemed to have been
raised, used or incurred for and on behalf of Resulting Company and 1o the extent
they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall also without any further act or
deed be and stand ransferred o and be deemed o be wransferred o0 Besulting
Company and shall become the loans, debes, habilities, duties and obligations of
Resulting Company.

In 0 far as the exsting Encumbrances in respect of the GTLD Transferned
Liabilities are concerned, such Encumbrances shall, without any further act,
instrument o deed be modified and shall be extended to and shall cperate only
over the assers comprised in the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking which
have been Encumbered in respect of the GTLD Transferred Liabilities as
transferred to Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme. Provided that if any of
the assets comprised in the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking which are being
transferred to Resuling Company purspant o this Scheme have not been
Encumbered in respect of the GTLD Transferred Liabilities. such assets shall
remain unencumbered and the exisung Encumbrances referred 1o above shall no
be extended o and shall not operate over such assets, The absence of any formal
amendment which may be required by a lender or trustee or third party shall not

1 affect the operation of the above,

For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby clarified that in so far as the assets
comprising the Femaining Business are concerned, subject 1o Clause 8.4, the
Encumbrances over such assets relating (o the GTLD Transferred Liabilities shall,
as and from the Effective Date without any further act, instrument or deed be
released and discharged from the obligations and Encumbrances relating to the
same. The absence of any formal amendment which may be required by a lender
of trustee of thind party shall not affect the operation of the above, Further, in 50
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far as the assets comprised in the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking are
concemed, the Encumbrances over such assets relating io any loans, borrowings or
debentures or other debis or debt secunties which are not transferred pursuant 1o
this Scheme (and which shall contnue with Demerged Company), shall without
any further act or deed be released from such Encumbrances and shall no longer be
available as security in relation to such habilites.

Withouwt prejudice 1o the provisions of the foregoing Clauses and uwpon the
effectiveness of the Scheme, Demerged Company and Resulting Company shall
execute any instrument(s) and/or document{s) and/or do all the acts and deeds as
may be required, including the filing of necessary particulars andsor
modification(s) of charge, with the RoC to give firmal effect o the above
provisions, if required,

Upon the coming inte effect of this Scheme, Resulting Company alone shall be
liahle o p:rﬁ:lrm all obligations in respect of the GTLD Transferred Liabilines,
which have been transferred o if in terms of this Scheme, and Demerged Company
shall not have any obligations in respect of such GTLD Transferred Liabilines.
However, Demerged Company shall extend necessary cooperation in this regard.

[t is expressly provided that, save as mentioned in this Clause 6, no other term or
condition of the liabilities ransferred to Resulung Company as part of the Scheme
is modified by virntue of this Scheme except to the extent that such amendment is
required by necessary implication,

The provisions of this Clause shall be subject w the clauses contained in any
imstrument, deed or writing or the terms of sanction or §ssue or any Seourity
document entered into between Demerged Company and Resulting Company, if
any.

LEGAL, TAXATION AND OTHER PROCEEDINGS

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all legal, taxation or other proceedings,
of whatsoever nature (including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority of
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tmbunal), by or against Demerged Company and relating to the Global Top Level
Domain Undenaking, under any stature, whether pending on the Appointed Date
or which may be institnaied any time thereafier, shall be continued and enforced by
or agamnst ODIGMA after the Effective Date. Demerged Company shall in no
event be responsible or liable in relation o any such legal or other proceedings
agamnst Resulting Company. Resulting Company shall be added as panty to such
proceedings and shall prosecure or defend such proceedings in co-operation with
Demerged Company.

If proceedings are taken against Demerged Company in respect of the matters
referred o in Clause 7.1 above, it shall defend the same in accordance with the
advice of Resulting Company and at the cost of Resulting Company, and the later
shall reimburse and indemnify Demerged Company against all liabilities and
obligations mcurred by Demerged Company in respect thereof,

Resulting Company undertakes w0 have all legal or ather proceedings initiated by
or against Demerged Company referred o in Clause 7.1 above ransferred o s
name as 5000 as 15 reasonably possible after the Effective Date and ro have the same
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against ODIGMA o the exclusion of
Demerged Company. Each of the Companies shall make relevant applications in
that behalf.

PERMITS

Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, permits relating o the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking

y shall be transferred to and vested in Resulting Company and the concerned licensor
: and grantors of such permits shall endorse where necessary, and record Resulting

Company on such permits so as to empower and facilitate the approval and vesting
of the Global Top Level Domain Underaking in Eesulting Company and
continuation of operatons pertaiming to the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking in Resulting Company without any hindrance, and shall stand
transferred to and vested in and shall be deemed to be iransferred to and vested o
Resulting Company withowt any further act or deed and shall be appropriately

Page 32 of 70

Page 98



mutated by the Governmental Authontes concerned therewith in favour of
Resulung Company as if the same were orginally given by, issued to or executed
in favour of Resulting Company and Resulting Company shall be bound by the
terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder and the rights and benefits
under the same shall be available o Resulting Company.

The benefit of all permits pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking
shall without any other order to this effect, mansfer amd vest into and become
available to Besulting Company pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme.

EMPLOYEES

Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Darte, the Employees in relation to the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking of Demerged Company shall become the emplovees of Resulting
Company with effect from the Effective Date, and, subject to the provisions hereof,
on terms and conditions not less favourable than those on which they are employed
by Demerged Company in the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking and without
any interrupiion of, or break in, service as a result of the wansfer of the Global Top
Level Domaimn Undertaking. Resuliing Company agrees that for the purpose of
payment of any compensation, gratuity and other terminal benefits, the past
services of the Emplovees of the Global Top Level Domain Undenaking with
Demerged Company shall also be taken into account, and agrees and undenakes
o pay the same as and when pavable.

In so far as the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and pension and/or
superannuanon fund, ousts, retirement fund or benefits and any other funds or
benefits created by Demerged Company for the employees related to the Global
Top Level Domain Undertaking, of any, (collectively referred to as the *GTLD
Employee Funds™), the GTLD Emplovee Funds and suwch of the investments
made by the GTLD Employee Funds which are referable o the employees related
to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking, being transferred to Resulting
Company, in terms of the Scheme shall be transferred 0 Resulting Company and
shall be held for their benefit pursuant to this Scheme in the manner provided
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hereinafier, The GTLD Employee Funds shall, subject to the necessary approvals
and permussions and at the discretion of Resulting Company, either be continued
a3 separate funds of Resulting Company for the benefit of the employees related 1o
the Crlobal Top Level Domain Undertaking, or be transferred to and merged with
other simalar funds of Resulting Company. In the event that Resulting Company
does not have its own funds in respect of any of the above, Resulting Company
may, subpect o necessary approvals and permussions, continue o contribute 1o
relevant funds of Demerged Company, until such time that Resulting Company
creates its own fund, at which tme the GTLD Employee Funds and the
investments and contributions pertaining to the emplovees related to the Global
Top Level Domain Undertaking, shall be wansferred 1o the funds creaved by
Resulting Company. Subject to the relevant law, rules and regolations applicable
1o the GTLD Employee Funds, the Board of Directors or any committee thereof
of Demerged Company and Resulting Company may decide to continue to make
the said contributions to the Funds of Demerged Company. It is clanfied that the
services of the employees of the Global Top Level Domain Undernaking, will be
rreated as having been continuous and not interrupted for the purpose of the said
fund or funds.

Any question that may arise as 1o whether any emplovee belongs to or does not
belong o the Global Top Level Domain Undenaking shall be decided by the Board
ar Committee thereof of Demerged Company and Resulting Company.

CONSIDERATION

. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and in consideration of the transfer and

vesting of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking into Resulting Company
pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme, Resulting Company shall, without any

~u further act or deed, fssue and allot to each shareholder of Demerged Company,

whose pame 15 recorded in the register of members and records of the depositories
as members of Demerged Company, on the Record Date in the following ratio:
=1 (Cree) fally paid-up equity shave of the Resulting Corpany of the face value of
INKE I (Tudign Rupee One) each shall be fsued and alioned, ar par as fully patd.
wpr b0 She ety shareholders of the Deserged Company for every 89 (Ejgiuy Ning)
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egeity shares of INR | (Trdian Rupee One) cach held by the shareholders of the
Demerged Company, as on the Recovd Dare, ™

10.2. The equity shares to be issued and allotted as provided in Clause 10.1 above shall

10.3.

10.4.

be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of Resulting Company and shall rank parf-passu in all respects with the
then existing equity shares of Resulting Company after the Record Date including
with respect o dividend, bonus entitlement, rights’ shares' entitlement, voung
rights and other corporate benefits.

In case any shareholder's shareholding in Demerged Company is such that such
shareholder becomes entitled to a fraction of an equity share of Resulting
Company, if any, Resulting Company shall not issue fractional shares to such
shareholder but shall consolidate such fractions and issue and allot the consolidated
shares directly to a trustee nominated by the Board of Directors of Resulting
Company in that behalf, who shall sell such shares in the market at such price or
prices within 90 days from the date of allotment of equity shares, and on such sale,
shall pay to Resulting Company, the net sale proceeds (after deduction of
applicable taxes and other expenses incurred), whereupon Resulting Company
shall, subject 1o withholding tax, if any, distribute such sale proceeds to the
concerned shareholders of Demerged Company in proportion to their respective
fractional entitlements.

The equity shares to be issued pursuant to Clause 10.1 above thall be issued in
dematenalized form only by Resuling Company. The shareholders of Demerged
Company shall be required to provide details as required thereof by Resulting
Company for such issuance of shares in dermaterialized form. In the event thart a
sharcholder of Demerged Company haolds equity shares of Demerged Company in
physical form or if any shareholder has not provided the requisite details relating
1o his/her/its account with a depository participant or other confirmations as may
be required or if the details furnished by any shareholder do not permit electronic
credit of the shares of Resulting Company, then Resulting Company shall issue
equity shares in demat form 2 a gustee nominated by the Board of Directors of

=T

=
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Resulting Company in that behalf, who shall hold such shares for and on behalf of
such sharcholder or shareholders.

10.5. The equity shares 1o be issued by Resulting Company pursuant o this Scheme, in

respect of such of the equity shares of Demerged Company which are held in
abeyance under the applicable provisions of the Act or otherwise shall, pending
allotment or settlement of dispute by order of court or otherwise, also be kept in
abeyance by Resulting Company,

10.6. The equity shares Bsued purseant o Clause 10,1, which Resulting Company 15

unable to allot due to Applicable Laws {mcluding, without limitatien, the non
receipt of approvals of Governmental Authority as required under Applicable Law)
or any regulations or otherwise shall, pending allotment, be held in abeyance by
Besultung Company and shall be dealt wath in the manner as may be permissible
under the Applicable Law and deemed fit by the Board of Directors of Resulting
Company including to enable allotment and sale of such equity shares to a trustee
as mentioned in Clause 10.3 above and thereafier make distributions of the net sales
proceeds in liew thereof (afier deduction of taxes and expenses incurred) o the
eligible shareholders of Demerged Company, in propomion to their entitlements as
per the process specified in Clause 10,3 above, IF the above cannat be effected for
any reason, Resulting Company shall ensure that this does not delay
implementation of the Scheme; and shall, take all such appropriate actions as may
be necessary under Applicable Law. Resulting Company and/or the depository
shall enter mto such further documents and take such further actions as may be
Necessary ar appropriate in this regard and o enable actons contemplated therein.

h In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or
' outstanding, of any shareholders of Demerged Company, the Board of Directors

of Demerged Company shall be empowered prior to or even subsequent to the
Record Date, to effectuate such mansfers in Demerged Company as if such changes

in registered holders were operative as on the Record Date, in order 1o remove any
difficulties ansing to the transferors of the shares in relation o the shares issued by

2% Resulting Company. The Board of Directors of Demerged Company shall be
| empowered to remove such difficulties that may arse in the course of
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implementation of this Scheme and registration of new shareholders in Resulting
Company on account of difficulties faced 1n the transition period.

The 1ssue and allotment of equity shares by Resulting Company to the members of

Demerged Company as provided in this Scheme is an integral part thereof and shall
be deemed to have been carried out under the orders passed by the Tribunal without
requiring any further act or deed on the part of Resulting Company as if the
procedure laid down under the Act and such other Applicable Laws as may be
applicable were duly complied with. It is clarified that the approval of the Board,
members and creditors of Resulong Company to this Scheme shall be deemed o
be their consent / appraval for the 5sue and allotment of equity shares,

10.9, In the event that the Demerged Company or Resulting Company alter their equity

share capital, including but not limited to, by way of share split / consolidation /
further issue of shares in any manner whasoever during the pendency of the
Scheme, the share enttement ratio as per Clause 10.1 above, shall be adjusted
accordingly to take into account the effect of any such actions unless otherwise
decided by the Board of Directors of Demerged Company and Resulting Company.
It is clarified that the approval of the members and creditors of Demerged
Company and Resulting Company to the Scheme shall be deemed o be their
consent / approval also o the adjusted share enttiement rano as per this clause.

10.10. Resulting Company shall, if necessary and To the extent required, increase its

authorized share capital to facilitate issue of equity shares under the Scheme. It is
clarified that the approval of the members of Resulting Company tw the Scheme
shall be deemed 1o be their consent / approval also to the alteration of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of Resulting Company
as required under Section 13, 14, 61, 64 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

—_—
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1.

REDUCTION AND CANCELLATION OF EXISTING EQUITY SHARES
OF THE RESULTING COMPANY HELD BY THE DEMERGED
COMPANY

[1.1. With effect from the Effective Date, the paid-up share capital of the Eesulting

Company (o the extent held by the Demerged Company, as on the Effective Date
(“Resulting Company Cancelled Shares™) shall without any further application,
act, instrrument or deed, stand cancelled, extinguished or annulled.

11.2. The reduction and cancelled of Resulting Company Cancelled Shares shall be

1.3

11.4.

effected as an integral part of this Scheme under Section 230 10 232 and Section 66
of the Act, without having to follow the process under Section 86 of the Act

separately.

On effecting the reduction and cancellation of the Resulting Company Cancelled
Shares as stated in Clause 11.1 above, the share certificates in respect of the
Resulting Company Cancelled Shares held by their respective holders shall alzo be
deemed 1o be cancelled.

Notwithstanding the reduction and cancellation of the Resulting Company
Cancelled Shares, the Resulting Company shall not be required w add “And
Reduced' as suffix to its name consequent upon the reduction of capital under
Clause 11.1 above.

The reduction and canceflation of the Resulting Company Cancelled Shares does
not involve and diminuton of hability of in respect of any unpasd share capital or
payment o any sharcholder of any paid-up share capital or payment in any other
form,

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF DEMERGED
COMPANY AND CAPITAL REDUCTION

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, Demerged Company shall account for
the transfer and vesting of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking in its books
of account as per the applicable accounting principles prescribed under the Indian

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) or such other accounting principles as may be
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applicable or prescnbed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued
thereunder.

The reduction, if any, tn Capital Beserve account or Securities Premium account
or any other account of the Demerged Company pursuant to this Clause shall be
effected as an integral pan of the Scheme and the order of NCLT sancuioning the
Scheme shall be deemed to be also the order under Section 52 read with Section 66
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for the purpose of
confirming the reduction. The reducton would not involve either a diminution of
liability in respect of unpaid share capital or payment of paid-up share capital.

12.3, The consent of the Board, the shareholders and the creditors of Demerged Company

to this Scheme shall be deemed to be the consent of its Board, sharcholders and
creditors for the purposes of effecting the above reduction under the provisions of
Section 52 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and no further resolution under Section 52 read with Section 66 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 would be required 1o be
passed separaely.

124, Moiwithstanding anything above, Demerged Company shall not be required to add

13.

HaAnd Reduced™ as suffix io s name,

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF RESULTING
COMPANY

Upon the coming into effect of thas Scheme, Resulting Company shall account for
the ransfer and vesung of the GTLD Underaking in its books of account as per
the applicable acoounting principles prescnbed under the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) or such other accounting principles as may be applicable or
prescribed ander Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.
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14.

15.

15.1.

TREATMENT OF PART B OF THE SCHEME FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE
INCOME TAX ACT, 1961

The provisions of Part B of this Scheme have been drawn up in compliance with
the conditions relating to “Demerper” as defined under Section 2(19AA) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961, IF, at later dare, any of the terms or provisions of this Part
B are found or interpreted to be inconsistence with the provisions of Section
2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, including as a result of an amendment in
Applicable Law or the enactment of a new legislation or for any other reason
whatsoever, the provisions of Section 2{19AA) of the [ncome Tax Act, 1961, ora
corresponding provision or any amended or newly enacted law, shall prevail and
the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent determined necessary to comply with
provisions of Section 2(19AA4) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Such modificationds)
will, however, not affect the other provisions of the Scheme.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS BY DEMERGED COMPANY UNTIL THE
EFFECTIVE DATE

With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Dare,
Demerged Company shall carry on the business and activities of the Global Top
Level Domain Undertaking with reasonable diligence, business prudence and shall
niet except in the ordinary course of business or withouot prior written consent of
Resulting Company, alienate, charge, morngage, encumber or otherwise deal with
or dispose of the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking or part thereof,

15.2. With effect from the Appointed Date and up 1o and including the Effective Date;

(1} Demerged Company shall carry on and be deemed o have cammied on the
business and activities pertaining to CGilobal Top Level Domain Undertaking,
and shall hold and stand possessed of and shall be deemed 1o hold and stand
possessed of all its estates, assets, rights, title, interest, authorities, contracts,
investrnents and strategic  decisions pertaning W the Global Top Level
Domain Undertaking for and on account of, and in trust for, Resultng

Company,
T iy
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(11}

(v}

v}

All profits and income pertamming to the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking accruing or ansing 0 Demerged Company, and losses and
expenditure pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking arising
or ncwrred by it (including Taxes, if any, accruing or paid in relation w any
profits or income) for the period commencing from the Appointed Dhate shall,
for all purposes, be treated as and be deemed to be the profits, income, losscs
or expenditure (including Taxes), as the case may be, of Resulting Company;

Any rights, powers, authorites or privileges pertaining o the Global Top
Level Domain Undertaking exercised by Demerged Company shall be
deemed 10 have been exercised by Demerged Company for and on behalf of,
and in trust for and as an agent of Resulting Company. Similarly, any of the
obligations, duties and commitments pertaining to the Global Top Lewvel
Domamn Undertaking that have been undertaken or discharged by Demerged
Company shall be deemed to have been undertaken for and on behalf of and
as an agent for Besulong Company,

All Taxes (including, withowt limitation, income fax, wealth @x, sales ax,
excise duty, customs duty, goods and service tax, service tax, VAT, etc.)
pertaining to the Global Top Level Domain Undertakang paid or payable by
Demerged Company in respect of the operanons and/or the profits pemaining
to the Global Top Level Domain Undertaking of Demerged Company before
the Appotnted Date, shall be on account of Demerged Company and, insofar
as it relates to the tax payment {mcluding, without limitation, income tax,
wealth tax, sales tax, excise duty, customs duty, poods and service 1ax, service
tax, VAT, etc.), whether by way of deduction at source, advance tax or
otherwise howsoever, by Demerged Company in respect of the profits or
activities o operation pertaining o the Global Top Level Domain
Undertaking of Demeraed Company with effect from the Appointed Date,
the same shall be deemed 1o be the corresponding item paid by Resulung
Company and, shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly;

Demerged Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of service of the
emplovees pertaming o the Global Top Level Domain Undenaking or
conclude settlements with unions or employees, except in the ordinary course
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15.3.

of business or consistent with past pracice or pursuant (o any pre-exising
obligation without the prior written consent of the Board of Directors of
Eesulnng Company; and

{(¥I) Resulting Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to
apply to any governmental authority, if required, under any law for such
consents and approvals which Resulung Company may require 1o carry on
the business pertaining (o the Global Top Level Domam Undertaking of
Demerged Company.

With effect from the date of approval of this Scheme by the respective Board of
Dhirectors of Demerged Company and Resulting Company, Demerged Company
shall notify Resulting Company in writing as soon as reasonably practicable of any
mater, circumstance, act of omission which is or mav be a breach of Clause 15.

<= This space has been intentionally lgf blank=>>
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PART C

TRANSFER AND YESTING OF THE PROJECT MANAGEMENT

UNDERTAKING OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY IN TRANSFEREE COMPANY

16,

TRANSFER OF ASSETS

i6.1. Upon thiz Scheme coming intoe effect on the EMective Date and with effect from the

Appointed Date, the Project Management Undenaking (including all the assets,
nights, claims, title, interest and autharities including aceretions and appunenances
of the Project Management Undertaking) shall, subject to the provisions of this
Clause in relation to the mode of transfer and vesting and pursuant to Sections 230
to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act and without
any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred from the Transferor Company
and be transferred o and vested in and be deemed o have been transferred from
Transferor Company and transferred 10 and vested in the Transferee Company as
& E0ing concerm so as to become as and from the Appointed Date, the assets, nights,
claims, ttle, mterest and authontes of Transferee Company, subject o the
provisions of this Scheme in relation w0 Encumbrances in favour of banks and/for

finamcial insaoeiions.

16.2. In respect of such of the assers of the Project Management Undernaking as are

mowable in nature or are otheraise capable of transfer by delivery or possession, or
by endorsement and 7 or delivery, the same shall be so ransferred by Transferor
Company, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, and shall become the
property of Transferce Company as an integral part of the Project Management
Undertaking with effect from the Appointed Date pursvant to the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 read with Section &6 and other applicable provisions of the Act

[ owithout requiring any deed or instrument of conveyance for iransfer of the same,

subjpect o the provisions of this Scheme in relation o0 Encumbrances in favour of
banks and/or financial institutions.

:"-' "'--:-_'11’51.3- In respect of movables other than those dealt with in Clause 16.2 above including

Lick

x;{m..

sundry debes, receivables, bills, credits, loans and advances, if any, whether

recoverable nocash or in kind or for value to be recerved, bank balances,
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imvestments, camest money and deposits with any Governmental Authonty, guasi-
governmental authority, local or ather authority or body or with any company of
other person, the same shall on and from the Appointed Date stand transferred to
and vested in Transferee Company without any notice or other inimaton o the
debtors.

16.4. The Transferee Company may without being obliged and if it so deems appropriate

at its sole discretion, give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to cach
person, debtor, or depositee, as the case may be, that the said debe, loan, advance,
balance or deposit stands transferred and vested in Transferee Company,

16.5. In respect of such of the assets belonging to the Propect Management Undertaking

other than those refemred 1o in Clause 16.2 and 16,3 above, the same shall, as more
particularly provided in Clause18.1 above, withour any further act, instrument ar
deed, be wansferred from Transferor Company and ransferred o and vested in
and/or be deemed o be mansferred from Transferor Company and wansferred o
and vested in Transferce Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and
with cffect from the Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to
232 read with Section 66 and other applcable provisions of the Act. For the
purpose of giving effect 1o the vesting order passed under Section 230 1o 232 read
with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act in respect of the Scheme,
Transferee Company shall be enttled to exercise all the rights and privileges and
be liable to pay all Taxes and charges and fulfil all its obligations, in relation to or
applicable wo all such immovable properties, ncluding mutation andSor
substitution of the title wo, or interest in the immovable properties which shall be
made and duly recorded by the Governmental Awthority(ies) in favour of
Transferee Company pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the NCLT and
upon the effectiveness of this Scheme in accordance with the terms hereof withour
any further act or deed o be done or executed by Transferer Company andfor
Transferee Company, It is clanified thar Transferee Company shall be entitled to
engage n such comespondence and make such represemtations, as may be
necessary for the purposes of the aforesaid mutanon and/ or substiiunon,
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16.6.

16.7.

16.8.

Motwithstanding any provision o the contrary, from the Effective Date and until
the owned properties, leasehold properties and related rights thereto, license/right
to use the immovable property, tenancy nghts, libethes and special status are
ransferred, vested, recorded, effected and/or perfected, i the record of the
Governmental Authority, in favour of Transferee Company, Transferee Company
shall be deemned 1o be authonzed to carry on the business in the name and stvle of
Transferor Company under the relevant agreement, deed, lease and/or license, as
the case may be, and Transferee Company shall keep a record and foer account of
such transactions.

All assets, nghts, aele, interest and investments of Transferor Company in relation
e the Project Management Undertaking shall also, without any funther act,
instrument or deed stand transferred (o and vested in and be deemed 1o have been
mansferred 1o and vested in Transferee Company upon the coming into effect of
this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 86 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, upon the effectiveness of this
Scheme, Transferee Company will be entifled 1o all the intelleciual property nghts
of Transferor Company in relanon o the Propect Management Undentaking.
Transferee Company may take such actions as may be necessary and permissible
te get the same transferred and/or registered in the name of Transferée Company.

Any asset acquired by Transferor Company after the Appointed Date but prior to
the Effective Date pertaiming to the Project Management Undertaking shall upon
the coming into effect of this Scheme also without any fumher act, instrument or
deed stand transferred 1o and vested in or be deemed 1o have been transferred to or
vested in Transferce Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme.

16.%, For the avoidance of dould, upon this Scheme coming into effect from the Effective

Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, all the nghts, fifle, interest and
claims of Transferor Company in any leasehold /licensed properties in relabion 1o
the Project Management Undertaking shall, pursuant to Section 232(4) and other
applic OvISIONS uf_:h:.f.&n. be transferred o and vested in or be deemed to

1,
L
-
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have been ransferred 1o and vested in Transferee Company awtomatically withour
requirement of any further act or deed.

16,10, On and from the Effective Date, and thereafter, Transferee Company shall be

enttled o operate the bank accounts of Transferor Company, 10 relation to or in
connection with the Project Management Undertaking, and realize all monies and
complete and enforce all pending contracts and transactions and to accept stock
returns, if any, and issee credit notes in relation to or in connection with the Project
Management Undertaking of Transferor Company, in the name of Transferee
Company in 50 far as may be necessary until the transfer of nghts and obligations
of the Project Management Undenaking o Transferee Company under this
Scheme have been formally given effect to under such contracts and transactions.

1611, All the Taxes, if any, paid or payable by Transferor Company after the Appointed

Date and specifically pertaining to Project Management Undertaking shall be
treated as pasd or payvable by Transferee Company and Transferee Company shall
be enttled o claim all the credit, refund or adjustment for the same as may be
applicable,

[6.12. Transferee Company shall be entitled to get credit/ claim refund regarding any Tax

paid and/or tax deduction at zource certificates, pertaining o the Project
Management Undertaking.

16,13, IF Transferor Company is entitled o any unutilized credits (including balances or

advances), benefits under the imcentive schemes and policies including rax holiday
or concessions relating to Propect Management Undertaking under any Tax laws
or Applicable Laws, Transferee Company shall be entitled as an integral part of the
Scheme to claim such benefit or incentives or unutilized credits as the case may be
without any specific approval or permission.

16,14, Withow prejudice 1o the generality of the above, all benefits including under Tax

r——

il

laws, to which Transferor Company, in relation toor in connectson with the Project
Management Underaking, s entitled o in terms of the Applicable Laws,

e 8
including.'
-I 15 ..-\.. . 5 1

recoverable in cash or kind or for value, and
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16.15.

17.

171

deposits with any Governmental Authority or any third parry/entity, shall be
available to, and vest in, Transferee Company.

For avoidance of doubt and withour prejudice 1o the generality of the applicable
provasions of the Scheme, it is clarified that with effect from the Efective Date and
till such tme that the name of bank accounts of Transferor Company, in relation
o or in connection with the Project Management Undertaking, has been replaced
with that of Transferee Company, Transferee Company shall be entitled to operate
the bank account of Transferor Company, in relaton to or in connection with the
Project Management Undertaking, in the name of Transferor Company in so far as
may be necessary, All cheques and other negotiable instruments, paymient orders
received or presented for encashment, which is in the name of Transferor
Company, in relaton to or in connection with the Project Management
Underaking, after the Effective Date shall be accepted by the bankers of Transferee
Company and credited to the account of Transferee Company, if presented by
Transferee Company. Transferee Company shall be allowed to maintain bank
accounts in the name of Transferor Company for such time as may be determined
o be necessary by Transferee Company for presenfation and deposition of chegues
and pay orders that have been issped in the name of Transferor Company,
relation to or in connection with the Project Management Undertaking. [t 1s hereby
expressly clanfied thar any legal proceedings by or against Transferor Company, in
relation to or in connection with the Project Management Undertaking, in relation
o the cheques and other negotable instruments, payment orders received or
presented for encashment, which is in the name of Transferor Company shall be
instituted, or as the case may be, cononued by or against Transferee Company after
the coming into effect of this Scheme.

TRANSFER OF CONTRACTS, DEEDS, ETC.

Upaon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Date, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements
and other insrruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the Project Management
, b which Tmmiernr Company is a party or 10 the benefit of which
any mﬂ‘h:- tlm:blc and which are subsisting or have effect
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17.2

17.3.

immediately before the Effective Date, shall continue in full force and effect against
or in favour, as the case may be, of Transferee Company and may be enforced as
fully and effectually as if, instead of Transferor Company, Transferee Company
had been a party or beneficiary or oblipee thereto.

Without prejudice ta the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the
fact that vesting of the Project Management Undertaking occours by virtue of this
Scheme itself, Transferee Company may, at any time after coming into effect of
this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any
Applicable Law or otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (including
deeds of adherence), confirmanions or other writings of Tiparmile arrangements
with any party o any contract or arrangement to which Transferor Company is a
Party or any writings as may be necessary in arder to give formal effect to the
provisions of this Scheme. Transferee Company shall be deemed fo be authonzed
to execute any such writings on behalf of Transferor Company and o carry out or

perform all such formalities or compliances referred o above on part of Transferor
Company.

For the avoidance of doubt and withaut prejudice to the generality of the foregoing,
it is clarified that upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all consents,
permissions, licenses, certificates, clearances, authontes, powers of altorney given
by, issued to or executed in favour of Transferor Company in relation to the Project
Management Undertaking shall stand wransfersed to Transferee Company as if the
same were onginally given by, issued o or executed in favour of Transferee
Company, and Transferee Company shall be bound by the terms thereof, the
obliganons and duties thercunder, and the rights and benefits under the same shall
be available 1o Transferee Company. Transferee Company shall make applications

o toany Governmental Authoriry as may be necessary in this behalf.

. Without prejudice to the aforesaid, it is clarified that if any assets (estate, claims,

righits, atle, interest in or authontes relating to such assets) or any contract, deeds,
bends, agreements, schemes, arangements or other instruments of whatsoever
nature in relation o the Project Management Underaking which Transferor
Company owns or to which Transferor Company s a pany (o, cannot be
rransferred 10 Transferee Company for any reason whatsoever, Transferor
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18.

18.1.

Company shall hold such asset or contract, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes,
arrangements or other instruments of wharsoever nature in trust for the benefit of
Transferee Company, imsofar as it 15 permissible so to do, tll such time as the
mransfer is effected.

TRANSFER OF LIABILITIES

Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the
Appointed Dace, all debes, habilities, loans raised and wsed, obligations incurred,
durigs of any kind, nature or descriprion {including contingent liabilitics which arise
out of the activities or operations of the Project Management Undertaking) of
Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date and relatable to the Project
Management Underaking (“Project Management Transferred Liabilities”)
shall, withour any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred o and
be deemed o be transferred o Transferee Company o the extent that they are
outstanding as on the Effective Date and shall become the debis, abilities, loans,
obligatnons and dutes of Transferee Company which shall meet, discharge and
satisfy the same. The term Progect Management Tramsferned Liabilitics shall
include:

(1 the Labilibes which anse out of the activities or operancens of the Progect

Management Undernaking,

(I}  the specific loans or borrowings raised, incurred and walized solely for the
activities or operations of the Project Management Undenaking and

{(III}  in cases other than those referred to in Clause 18 1{Tor Clause 13.1{11)

abowe, so much of the amountz of labilines as may be decided by the Board
of Drirectors of Transferor Company and Transferee Company which would
be in compliance with the provisions of Section 2(42C) of the Income-tax
Act, 1961,

© Where any of the loans raised and used, debas, liabilities, dutes and obligatons of

Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date deemed to be transferred o
Transferee Company have been discharged by Transferor Company on or after the
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Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge shall be deemed to
have been for and on account of Transferee Company.

18.3. Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the

18.4.

18.5.

wAIELE
iy, T
:l’__,.-'"
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Appointed Date, all loans raised and vsed and all debes, liabilities, duties and
obligations incurred by Transferor Company for the operations of the Project
Management Undentaking with effect from the Appointed Date and prior to the
Effective Drare, subject 1o the terms of this Scheme, shall be deemed 1w have been
raised, used or incurred for and on behalf of Transferee Company and to the extent
they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall also without any further act or
deed be and stand ransferred to and be deemed o be transferred to Transferee
Company and shall become the loans, debas, liabilitnes, dutes and obligations of
Transferee Company.

In so far as the existing Encumbrances in respect of the Project Management
Transferred Liabidities are concerned, such Encumbrances shall, without any
further act, instrument or deed be modified and shall be extended 1o and shall
aperate only over the assets comprised in the Project Management Undertaking
which have been Encumbered in respect of the Transferred Liabilities as transferred
to Transferee Company pursuant to this Scheme. Provided that if any of the assets
comprised in the Project Management Undentaking which are being transferred o
Transferee Company pursuant o this Scheme have not beéen Encumbered i
respect of the Project Management Transfersed Liabilities, such assets shall remain
unencumbered and the existing Encumbrances referred to above shall not be
extended to and shall not operate over such assets. The absence of any formal
amendment which may be required by a lender or trustee or third party shall not
affect the operation of the above,

For the avoidance of doubt, it 5 hereby clarified that in s0 far as the assets
comprising the Remaining Business are concerned, subject 10 Clause 18.4 the
Encumbrances ower such assets relating 10 the Project Management Transferred
Liabilities shall, as and from the Effective Date without any further act, instrument
orf deed be released and discharged from the obligations and Encumbrances relating
to the same. The absence of any formal amendment which may be required by a
lender or trustee or third party shall not affect the operation of the above, Further,
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18.6.

18.7.

in so far as the assets comprised in the Project Management Underaking are
concemed, the Encumbrances over such assets relating to any loans, borrowings or
debentures or other debts or debt securities which are not transferred pursuant 1o
thiz Scheme (amd which shall continue with Transferor Company), shall withour
any further act or deed be released from such Encumbrances and shall no longer be
available as security in relation (o sech labilities.

Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing Clauses and upon the
effectiveness of the Scheme, Transferor Company and Transferee Company shall
cxecute any instrument{s) and/or document(s) and/or do all the acts and deeds as
may be required, including the fling of necessary pamiculars andSor
modification(s) of charge, with the RoC o give formal effect to the above
provisions, if required.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, Transferee Company alone shall be

liable w perform all obligations in respect of the Project Management Transferred
Liabilities, which have been transferred to it in terms of this Scheme, and

Transferor Company shall not have any obligations in respect of sech Transferred
Liabalities. However, Transferor Company shall extend necessary cooperation in
this regard.

. Ie s expressly provided that, save as mentoned in this Clause 18, no other term or

condition of the liabilities transferred to Transferee Company as part of the Scheme
is modified by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that such amendment is

required by necessary implication,

. The provisions of this Clause shall be subject 1o the clauses contained in any

instrument, deed or writing or terms of sanction or issue or any security document

entered into berween Transferor Company and Transferee Company, if any.

LEGAL, TAXATION AND OTHER PROCEEDINGS

. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all legal, raxation or other proceedings,

of whatsoever nature (including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authonity or
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19.2.

19.3,

tnbunal}, by or against Transferor Company and relating te the Project
Management Undemaking, under any statute, whether pending on the Appointed
Date or which may be instmuted any tme thereafter, shall be continued and
enforced by or against Transferee Company afier the Effective Date. Transferor
Company shall in no event be responsihle or able in relation to any such legal or
other proceedings against Transferee Company, Transferce Company shall be
added as party to such proceedings and shall prosecute or defend such proceedings
in co-operation with Transferar Company.

If proceedings are taken against Transferor Company in respect of the matters
referred to in Clauwse 19,1 abowe, it shall defend the same in accordance with the
advice of Transferee Company and at the cost of Transferee Company, and the
fatver shall reimburse and indemnify Transferor Company against all abalities and
obligations incurred by Transferor Company in respect thereol,

Transferee Company undertakes to have all legal or other proceedings initsated by
or against Transferor Company referred to in Clause 19,1 above wansferred to its
nam« as 500n as is reasonably possible after the Effectve Date and to have the same
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against Transferee Company o the
exclusion of Transferor Company. Each of the Companies shall make relevant
applicanons in that behalf.

PERMITS

. Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Efective Date and with effect from the

Appointed Date, permuts relaiing to the Project Management Undertaking shall be
ransferred o and vested in Transferee Company and the concerned licensor and
grantors of such permits shall endorse where necessary, and record Transferee
| Company on such permits 50 as to empower and facilitate the approval and vesting

of the Project Management Undertaking in Transferee Company and continuation

of operations penaining to the Project Management Undenaking in Transferee
, Il.'fumpim}' without any hindrance, and shall stand transferred to and vested 1nand

*'shall be deemed to be transferred to and vested in Transferce Company without

Jany mjime?pr deed and shall be appropriately mutated by the Governmental

'. 1
\B\
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Authorities concerned therewith in favour of Transferee Company as if the same
were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of Transferee Company
and Transferee Company shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and
duties thereunder and the rights and benefits under the same shall be avaidable w
Transferee Company.

20.2. The benefit of all permits pertaining to the Project Management Undertaking shall

21.

without any other order 1o this effect, transfer and vest into and become available
o Transferee Company pursuant 1o the sanction of this Scheme.

EMPLOYEES

. Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date and with effect from the

Appointed Dare, the Employees in relation o the Project Management
Undertaking of Transferor Company shall become the emplovees of Transferee
Company with effect from the Effective Dage, and, subject 1o the provisions hereof,
on terms and condinons not less favourable than those on which they are employed
by Transferor Company in the Project Management Undertaking and without any
interruption of, or break in, service as a result of the vansfer of the Progect
Management Undertaking, Transferee Company agrees that for the purpose of
payment of any compensation, gramity and other terminal benefits, the past
services of the Employess of the Project Management Undertaking with Transferor
Company shall also be taken into account, and agrees and ondertakes to pay the
same as and when pavable,

. In so far as the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and pension and/or

superannuation fund, trusts, retirement fund or benefits and any other funds or
benefits created by Transferor Company for the emplovees related to the Real
Estate Business Undertaking, if any, (collectively referred o as the “Project
Management Employee Funds™), the Project Management Employee Funds and

. such of the investments made by the Project Management Employee Funds which
[are referable o the emplovees related 1o the Prvect Management Undertaking,

being transferred o Transferee Company, in terms of the Scheme shall be

T -hg_tamfewed o Transferce Company and shall be held for their benefit pursuant w

I e

Page 53of T

Page 119



21.3.

o My
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this Scheme i the manner provided herenafter. The Propect Management
Emplovee Funds shall, subject to the necessary approvals and permissions and at
the discretion of Transferee Company, either be continued as separate funds of
Transferee Company for the benefit of the emplovees related o the Project
Management Undertaking, or be transferred to and merged with other similar
funds of Transferes Company. In the cvent that Transferee Company does not have
its own funds in respect of any of the above, Transferee Company may, subject 1o
necessary approvals and permissions, continue o contribute to relevant funds of
Transferor Company, until such tme that Transferee Company creates its own
fund, at which time the Project Management Employes Funds and the investments
and contributions pertaining o the employees related 1o the Project Management
Undertaking, shall be wansferred w the funds created by Transferee Company.
Subject to the relevant law, rules and regulations applicable to the Project
Management Emplovee Funds, the Board of Directors or any committee thereof
of Transferor Company and Transferee Company may decide to continue o make
the sard contmibutions to the Funds of Transferor Company. It i clarified that the
services of the employees of the Project Management Undertaking, will be treated
a3 having been continuous and not inerrupded for the purpose of the said fund or
funds.

Any question that may anse as to whether any emploves belongs to or does not
belong to the Project Management Undertaking shall be decided by the Board or
Committes thereof of Transferer Company and Transferee Company.

CONSIDERATION

. Upon the comung into effect of this Scheme and in consideration of the transfer and

vesting of the Project Management Undertaking inte Transferee Company
purswant to the provisions of this Scheme, Transferee Company shall pay
consideration equal to the Met Worth of the Project Management Undertaking.
The Transferce Company shall pay the consideration by way of issuance and
aliotment to the Transferor Company, 55, 78,114 (Fifty Five Lakh Seventy Eight
Thousand One Hundred and Fourteen) equity shares of face value of INR 10
{IJ}EI;I:.HLRupcr Ten) each at share premium of INE 203 {Indian Rupees Two

LY -
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222,

223

224

Hundred and Three only), as fully paid-up, without any further act or deed ("Mew
Equity Shares”).

The New Equity Shares to be issued and allotted as provided in Clause 22,1 above
shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of Assocation and Articles
of Association of Transferee Company and shall rank par-passe inall respects with
the then existing equity shares of Transferee Company including with respect o
dividend, bonus entitlement, nghts’ shares’ enttdement, voting nghts and other
corporate benefirs,

The Mew Equity Shares 1o be issued pursuant to Clavse 22,1 above shall be isswed
in dematerialized form only by Transferee Company, provided that the Transferor
Company shall be reguired 1o have an account with a depository partcipant and
shall be required to provide details thereof and such other confirmations as may be
required to the Transferee Company.

The equity shares 1ssued pursuant to Clause 22.1, which Transferee Company is
unable o allot due to Applicable Laws (including, without limitation, the non
receipt of approvals of Governmental Authority as required under Applicable Law)
or any regulatons or otherwise shall, pending allotment, be held in abeyance by
Transferee Company and shall be dealt with in the manner as may be permissible
under the Applicable Law and deemed fit by the Board of Directors of Transferee
Company. If the above cannot be effected for any reason, Transicree Company
shall ensure that this does not defay implementation of the Scheme; and shall, take
all such appropriate actions as may be necessary under Applicable Law, Transferee
Company and/or the depository shall enter mto such further documents and take
such further actions as may be necessary or appropriate in this regard and to enable
actions contemplated therein,

The issue and allorment of New Equity Shares by Transferee Company o the
Transferor Company as provided in this Scheme 15 an integral part thereof and shall
be deeméd to have been carmed out under the orders passed by the Tribunal without
requiring any further act or deed on the pant of Transferee Company as if the
procedure laid down under the Act and such other Applicabtle Laws as may be
applicable were duly complied with. [t is clarified that the approval of the members
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22.6.

22.7.

23.

23.1.

and creditors of Transferee Company 10 this Scheme shall be deemed o be theiwr
consent S approval for the issue and allotment of Mew Equity Shares.

In the event that the Companies alter their equaty share capital, including but not
limited to, by way of share split / conselidation / further issue of shares in any
manner whatsoever during the pendency of the Scheme, the number of equity
shares as per Clause 22,1 above, shall be adjosted accordingly to take into account
the effect of any such actions unless otherwise decided by the Board of Directors of
Transferor Company and Transferee Company. It is clanfied that the approval of
the members of Companies to the Scheme shall be deemed to be their consent /
approval also wo the adjusted number of eguaty shares as per thas clause.

Transferee Company shall, if necessary and o the extent required, increase its
authorized share capital to facthfate issue of shares under the Scheme. 1t s clanfied
that the approval of the Board and the members of Transferee Company o the
Scheme shall be deemed to be their consent / approval also to the alteration of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of Transferee Company
as required under Section 13, 14, 61, 64 and other applicable provisions of the Act
and no further resolution under Section 52 read with Section 66 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 would be required 1o be passed
separately.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF TRANSFEROR
COMPANY AND CAFITAL REDUCTION

Upon the coming mto effect of this Scheme, Transferor Company shall account for
the tramsfer and vesting of the Project Management Undemaking in its books of
account as per the applicable accounting principles prescribed under the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) or such other accounting principles as may be
applicable or prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules ssued
thereunder.
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23.2,

i

234

The reduction, if any, in Capital Reserve account or Securnities Premiwm acoount
or any other account of the Transferor Company pursuant to this Clause shall be
effected as an integral pan of the Scheme and the order of NCLT sanctioning the
Scheme shall be deemed to be also the order under Section 52 read with Sectiom &6
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for the purpose of
confirming the reduction. The reduction would not involve either a diminution of
hiability in respect of unpaid share capital or payment of paid-up share capital.

The consent of the Board, the sharcholders and the creditors of Transferor
Company to this Scheme shall be deemed o be the consent of its Board, bnthe
provisions of Section 52 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and no further resclunon under Section 52 read with Section
6 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2003 would be reguired
10 be passed separately,

Motwithstanding anything above, Transferor Company shall not be required to add
“And Reduced” as suffix to its name.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF TRANSFEREE
COMPANY

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, Transferee Company shall account for
the transfer and vesting of Project Management Undertaking in its books of account
as per the applicable sccounting principles prescribed under the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS}) or such other accounting principles as may be applicable or
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rubes issued thereunder,

TREATMENT OF PART C OF THE SCHEME FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE
INCOME TAX ACT, 1961

. 25.1. The provisions of Part C of this Scheme have been drawn up in compliance with the

conditbons relating to “Slump Sale” as defined under Section 2{42C) of the Income
Tax Ace, 1961, IF, at later date, any of the terms or provisions of this Part are found
of interpreted 1o be inconsistence with the provisions of Section 2(42C) of the

Income Tax Act, 1961, including as a result of an amendment in Applicable Law
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252,

6.

-

or the enactment of a new legislation or for any other reason whatsoever, the
provisions of Section 2(420) of the Income Tax Act, 191, or a cormesponding
provision or any améended or newly enacted [aw, shall prevail and the Scheme shall
stand modified o the extent determined necessary o comply with provisions of
Section 2(420) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Such modification{s) will, however,
not affect the other provisions of the Scheme.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Progect Management Undertaking of Transferor Company in its entirety shall,
pursuant (o Sections 230 1o 232 read with other relevant provisions of the Act and
Section 242C) of the Income Tax Act, 1991 and without any funber act,
mstrument, deed, matter or thing be transferred w and vested in and/or be deemed
t be and stand ansferred 1o and vested in Transferee Company as a 'going
concern” on 4 Slump Sale basis, in accordance with Section 2(420C) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (as amended) for a lump sum consideration as set oul heremnafer,
subject to the provisions of this Scheme,

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS BY TRANSFEROR COMPANY UNTIL THE
EFFECTIVE DATE

With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date,
Transferor Company shall carry on the business and activities of the Project
Management Undertaking with reasonable diligence, business prudence and shall
not except in the ordinary course of business or without prior written consent of
Transferee Company, alienate, charge, morigage, encumber or otherwise deal with
or dispose of the Project Management Undertakimg or part thereof,

& \/ EFE With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

i} Transferor Company shall carry on and be deemed to have camried on the
business and activities pertaining o Project Management Undertaking and
shall hold and stand possessed of and shall be deemed o hold and stand
possessed of all s estates, assets, nights, e, interest, authoritees, contracts,
investments and strategic decisions pertaining to the Project Management
Undertaking for and on account of, and in trust for, Transferee Company,

Page 58 of 70

Page 124



(Iny  All profits and income pertaining to the Project Management Undertaking

(110

(v}

accruing or ansing to Transferor Company, and losses and expenditure
pertaining o the Project Management Undenaking arising or incurred by it
(incleding Taxes. if any, accruing or paid in relation to any profics or income)
for the period commencing from the Appointed Date shall, for all purposes,
be treated as and be deemed to be the profits, income, losses or expenditure
(including Taxes), as the case may be, of Transferee Company,

Any rights, powers, authorities or privileges pertaining o the Project
Management Undenaking exercised by Transferor Company shall be
deemed to have been exercised by Transferor Company for and on behalf of,
and in trust for and as an agent of Transferee Company. Similarly, any of the
obligations, duties and commlments perftamng o the Project Management
Undertaking that have been uwnderiaken or discharged by Transferar
Company shall be deemed to have been undertaken for and on behalf of and
as an agent for Transferee Company,

All Taxes (including, without limitation, income tax, wealth tax, sales tax,
excise doty, customs duty, goods and service tax, servioe tax, VAT, etc)
pertaining to the Project Management Undertaking paid or payable by
Transferor Company m respect of the operations and/or the profits
pertaiming o the Project Management Undenaking of Transferor Company
before the Appointed Date, shall be on account of Transferor Company and,
insofar as it relates to the tax payment (including, withowt limitation, income
tax, wealth 1ax, sales tax, excise duty, customs duty, goods and service tax,
service tax, VAT, etc.), whether by way of deduction at spurce, advance tax
o1 ptherwise howsoever, by Transferor Company in respect of the profits or
activities or operation pertaining to the Project Management Underaking of
Transferor Company with effect from the Appointed Date, the same shall be
deemed to be the corresponding item pitid by Transferee Company and, shail,
in all procecdings, be dealt with accordingly;
Transferor Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of service of the
cmployees pertaining 1o the Project Management Undenaking or conclude
seitlements with umicns or emplovees, except in the ondinary course of
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26.3.

business or consistent with past practice or pursuant (o any pre-gxisting
obligation without the prior written consent of the Board of Directors of
Transferee Company; and

(V1) Transferee Company shall be entthed, pending the sanction of the Scheme,
to apply to any governmental authority, if required, under any law for such
consents and approvals which Transferee Company may require b carry on
the business pertaining (o the Project Management Undertaking of Transferor
Company.

With effect from the date of approval of thiz Scheme by the respective Board of
Directors of Transferor Company and Transferee Company, Transferor Company
shall notify Transferee Company in writing as soon as reasonably practicable of
any matter, circumstance, act or omission which s or may be a breach of Clause
26,

<< This space fas beewn inrentionaily leff blank>>
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PART D

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO THE SCHEME

27.

REMAINING BUSINESS OF INFIBEAM

27.1. The Remaining Business and all the assets, liabilities and obligations peraining

212,

273

thereto shall continue to belong to and be vested 1n and be managed by Infibeam
subject to the provisions of this Scheme in relation to Encumbrances in favour of
banks, lenders and/or financial institutions,

All legal, taxation or other proceedings of whatsoever nature (including before any
statutory or quasi-judicial authonty or tnbunal) by or against Infibeam wnder any
statute, whether pending on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted at any
time thereafter, and in each case relating to the Remaining Business (including
those relating to any property, rght, power, liability, obligatton or dobes of
[nfibeam in respect of the Remaining Business) shall be continued and enforced by
or against Infibeam,

If proceedings are aken agamnst Resulting Company or Transferee Company in
respect of matters referred 1o above relating to the Remaining Underaking, it shall
defend the same in accordance with the advice of Infibeam and at the cost of
Infibeam, and the laner shall reimburse and indemnify Resulung Company or
Transferee Company, against all liakilities and obligations incurred by Resulting
Company or Transferee Company in respect thereof,

. If proceedings are taken agamnst Infibeam mn respect of matters referred to above

relating 1o the Global Top Level Doman Undenaking, it shall defend the zame in
accowdance with the advice of Fesulting Company and at the cost of Resulting
Company, and the laer shall reimburse and indemnify Infibeam, agamnst all
liabilities and obligations incurred by Infibeam in respect thereof,

If proceedings are taken against Infibeam in respect of maners referred to above
relating 1o the Project Management Undertaking, it shall defend the same in

accordance with the advice of Transferee Company and at the cost of Transferee
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2T.6.

Company, and the lamer shall reimburse and indemnmnify Infibeam, againsc all
liabilities and obligations incurred by Infibeam in respect thereof.

Up w and including the Effective Darte:

(I} Infibeam shall carry on and shall be deemed to have been carrying on all
business and activities relating to the Remaining Business for and on its own
behalf;

(I}  all profits acoruing to Infibeam or losses ansing or incurred by it (including
the effect of Taxes, if any, thereon) relating 1o the Remaining Business shall,
for all purposes, be wreated as the profits or losses, as the case may be, of
Infibeam; and

(ITEy  all assets and properies acquired by Infibeam in relation o the Eemaining
Business on and after the Appointed Date shall belong to and continuee to
remain vested in Infibeam.

INCREASE IN THE AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
RESULTING COMPANY

. The authorised share capital of the Resulting Company shall be increased and

enhanced to INR 3,12,00,000 (Indian Rupees Three Crore Twelve Lakh only),
comprising of 3,12,00,000 (Three Crore Twelve Lakh) equity shares of face value
of TNR 1 {Indian Rupee One) each, without any further act, instmument or deed
undertaken by the Transferee Company and on payment of any additional fees or
stamp duty in respect of such increase by the Transferee Company. The authorised

. share capital clause at Clause ¥V of the Memorandum of Assocanon of Transferee
| Company shall stand modified and read as follows:

“The Awthorised Share Capital of the Company is INE 31200000 (Tndian
Rrpees Three Crore Twelve Labk), divided dnta 312,00 000 ¢ Theee Crore Twelve
Lakh) equivy shaves of e value of INR | (Tndign Rupee One gutly) each, ©

. O the approval of the Scheme by the Board and the members of each of the Parties

pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and Section 66 and other relevant provisions of the
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Act and rules made thereunder, it shall be deemed that the Board and the members
of each of the Parties have also accorded their consent under Sections 13, 61, 64
and / or any other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder and
the relevant provisions of the Artcles of Associanon, as may be applicable for
effecting the aforesaid reclassification, amendment and increase in the authorised
share capital of the Transferee Company, and no further resolution or actions,
including compliance with any procedural requirements, shall be required 1o be
undertaken by the Transferee Company under Sections 13, 61, 64 and / or any
other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder and the relevant
provisions of the Articles of Assocaton. Upon this Scheme coming into effect, the
Transferee Company shall, if required, file all necessary documents / infimations
as per the provisions of Act and rules made thereunder with RoC or any other
applicable Governmental Authority in respect of the aforesaid reclassification,
amendment and increase n the authorsed share capital of the Transferee
Company, in the manner set out in this Clause 28 of the Scheme.

29. INCREASE IN THE AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
TRANSFEREE COMFPANY

20.1. The authorised share capital of the Transferee Company shall be increased and
enhanced o INR 1,15,00,000 {Indian Fupees One Crore and Fifteen Lakh only)
comprsing of 11,50,000 (Eleven Lakh and Fifty Thousand) equity shares of INR
10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each, without any fumher act, instrument or deed
undertaken by the Transferee Company and on payment of any addittonal fees or
stamp duty in respect of such increase by the Transferee Company. The authorised
share capital clause at Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of Transferee
Company shall stand modified and read as follows:
_ “The Authorised Share Capital of the Company i INE 11500000 (Trdfan
W20 L Ruspees One Crore and Fiffeen Lakh), divided ingo 11,50,000 (Eleven Lakh and

- Fifry Theowsard) eqeiry shares of fve value of INE 10 (Todian Rupee Ten only)

F i -';'-.“i- . each. "
/e
-=:|;

W __ 292 Onthe approval of the Scheme by the Board and the members of each of the Parties
pursuant to Sectrons 230 to 232 and Section 66 and other relevant provisions of the
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0.1,

31,

Act and rules made thereunder, it shall be deemed that the Board and the members
of each of the Parties have also accorded their consent under Sections 13, 61, 64
and ¢ or any other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder and
the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association, az may be applicable for
effecting the aforesaid reclassification, amendment and increase in the auwthonsed
ghare capital of the Transferee Company, and no further resolution or actions,
including compliance with any procedural reguirememnis, shall be required 1o be
undertaken by the Transferee Company under Sections 13, 61, 64 and / or any
other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder and the relevant
provisions of the Articles of Association, Upon this Scheme coming into effect, the
Transferee Company shall, if required, file all necessary documents /7 intimatons
a5 per the provisions of Act and rules made thereunder with BoC or any other
applicable Governmental Authority in respect of the aforesaid reclassification,
amendment and increase in the authorised share capital of the Transleree
Company, in the manner set out in this Clause 28 of the Scheme,

APPLICATION TO THE TRIBUNAL

The Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the Transferee Company
shall make afl applications / pettions under the Sections 230 o 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder, and as required under
the Applicable Laws (o the Tribunal for the sanction of this Scheme and all matters
ancillary or incidental thereno,

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES

Upon the Scheme coming o effect on the Efectve Date, the equaty shares of the
Resulnng Company shall be listed and admined for rading on the BSE Limited
and the Natiopal Stock Exchange of India Limited by vintue of this Scheme and in
accordance with the provisions of Applicable Laws {including the SEBI Listing
Eegulations and SEBI Circular). The Resulting Company shall make all requisite
applicattons and shall otherwise comply wiath the provisions of the SEBI Circular,
the SEBI Listing Fegulations and all other applicable provisions of the the
Securnities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and rules and regulstions made
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3.2,

31.3.

32.

3.1

thereunder, and take all s1eps 1o get its Equity Shares listed on the S1ock Exchanges
and obtain the final listing and rading permissions,

The equity shares isswed and allotted by the Resulting Company pursuant to this
Schemee shall remain frozen in the depository system all Listing / trading permiassion
is given by the Stock Exchanges. There shall be no change in the shareholding
pamern of the Resuliing Company berween the Record Date and the listing date
which mav affect the status of such permission, Further, the Resulting Company
willl not issue S refssue any equity shares which are not covered under the Scheme.

Ay acquisition of shares, voting rights or control pursuant to the demerger of the
Crlobal Top Level Domain Undertaking with the Resulung Company pursgant o
this Scheme does not origgger any obligation to make an open offer, in terms of
Begulation 1{1Kd) of the Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Subsiannal
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

SEQUENCING OF ACTIONS

Upon the sanction of this Scheme and upon thizs Scheme coming into effect on the
Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Dhate, transfer of the Global Top
Level Domain Undertaking from the Demerged Company into the Resulting
Company in accordance with Farn B of this Scheme and wansfer of the Projea
Management Undertaking on Slump Sale basts from the Transferor Company into
the Transferee Company in accordance with Part C of this Scheme shall be deemed
to have occurred £ shall occur and become effective and operative.

_.-'I-'" : =k,
-" } Upon the sanction of this Scheme and upon this Scheme coming into effect on the
;.'-; | (| Effective Date, the following shall be deemed to have occurred / shall occur and
i« become effective and operative, only in the sequence and in the order mentioned

hercunder;
{a) increase in authorised share capital of the Resulting Company in accordance
with Clause 28 of the Scheme;

(b} increase in authorised share capital of the Transferee Company in accordance
with Clause 29 of the Scheme;
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A7

=,

o
-

(c) issue and allotment of equity shares of the Resulting Company by the Resulting
Company to the shareholders of the Demerged Company whose names appear
in the register of members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Dage
in accordance with Clause 10 of this Scheme;

(d) issue and allotment of equity shares of the Transferee Company by the
Transferee Company to the Transferor Company in accordance with Clause 22
of this Scheme; and

() listing of the equity shares of the Resulting Company in accordance with Clause
31 of the Scheme.

CONDITIONALITY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject 1o the following:

(a) Approval of the members:

{i} the requisite majorities in number and value of such classes of members as
per provisions of the Applicable Law{(s) and as may be directed by the Tribunal
or any other competent authonty, as may be applicable, approving the
Scheme through e-voting or any other permissible mode;

(ii) the Scheme being approved by the public sharcholders of Demerged
Company through e-voting in terms of Part = 1 (AN 100Wa) of SEBI Circular
and the scheme shall be acted upon only if vote cast by the publc
shareholders in favour of the proposal are more than number of voles cast
by public sharcholders against it; and

in each case, the e-woring is in compliance with the provisions of the Act,
the SEBI Circular and the Listing Regulations, if applicable.

(b} Obtaining observation letter or no-objection letter from the Stock Exchanges in
respect of the Scheme, pursuant to regulation 37 of the SEBI Listing Regulations
read with SEBI Circular and regulations 11 and 94 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations;
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M.1.

w351,

(c} The requisite majorities in number and value of such classes of seoured and
unsecured creditors as may be directed by the Tribunal or any other competent
authority, as may be applicable, approving the Scheme; and

{d} The Scheme being sanctioned by the Tribunal under Sections 230 to 232 nead
with Section 66 and any other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made
thereunder, and each of the Parties having filed certified copies of the crder of
the Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme with RoC within the statutory timelines.

Each of the Parties shall file order of the Tribunal approving the Scheme with RoC
within a period of 30 (thiny) days of recerpt of such order. In case the Scheme does
not become effective in terms of Clause 33.1 above, within a period of 30 (thirty)
days of receipt of the order of the Tribunal approving the Scheme, each of the
Parties shall file an intimation with RoC within 30 (thirty) days of the receipt of the
order of the Tribunal approving the Scheme.

MODIFICATIONS / AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the Transferee Company,
with approval of their respective Board (which shall include any committee
constituted by the Board of the respective Party) may consent, from time to time,
on behalf of all persons concerned, to any modifications / amendments or
additions / deletions to the Scheme which may otherwise be considered necessary,
desirable or appropriate by the said Board to resolve all doubrs or difficulties that

. may arise for carrying out this Scheme and to do and execute all acts, deeds,

matters and things necessary for bringing this Scheme into effect or agree o any
terms and / or conditions or limitations that the Tribunal or any other

* Governmental Authority may deem fit to approve of, to direct and 7 or impose.,

REMOVAL OF DIFFICULTIES

The Parties may, by mutueal consent and acting through their respective authorised
representatives, agree to take all such steps as may be necessary, desirable or proper
to resolveall doubts, difficulties or questions, that may arise in relation to the
meaning or interpretation of the respective sections of this Scheme or
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37.

arl.

implementation thereof or in any manner whatsoever connected therewith,
whether by reason of any directive or order of the Trbunal or amy other
Crovernmental Awthority or otherwise, howsoever arising out of, under or by virtue
of this Scheme in relation to the arrangement contemplated in this Scheme and./ or
any matters concemned or connected therewith and o do and execute all acts,
deeds, matters and things necessary for giving effect to this Scheme.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

. The wansfer of propertics and liabilities and the continuance of proceedings by or

against any of the Parties as set out in Part B and Part C above shall not affect any
transaction or proceedings already concluded by any of the Parties on and after the
date of fling of the Scheme with the Tribunal ll the Efective Date, to the end and
intent that the Resulting Company and Transferee Company, as the case may be,
accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by Infibeam in
respect thereto as done and executed on behalf of the Resulting Company and
Transferee Company, as the case may be.

SEVERABILITY

Each Section of this Scheme shall be given effect to as per the chronology in which
it has been provided for in Clause 32 of the Scheme. Each Part in each Section is
independent of each Section and is severable. The Scheme shall be effective upon
sanction of the Tribunal. However, failure of any one Part of one Section or one
Section for lack of necessary approval from the ﬂmehuldm £ creditors / statutory
regulatory authorities or for any other reason that the Board may deem fit, then
this shall not result in failing of the whole Scheme. It shall be open to the concerned
Board to consent to sever such part(s) or section(s) of the Scheme and implement

" the rest of the Scheme with such modification.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF AFPROVALS

. In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in the Clause 37

not being obtained and / or the Scheme not being sanctioned by the Trnbunal, this

Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect, save and except n
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respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is contemnplated hereunder or as o
any rights and / or liabilities which might have arisen or accrued pursuant thereto
and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out as is specifically
provided in the Scheme or as may otherwise arise in Applicable Law. In such case,
each Party shall bear and pay its respective costs, charges and expenses for and or
in connection with the Scheme.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

. All costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses, if any (save

as expressly otherwise agreed) arising out of or incurred in connection with and
implementing this Scheme and matters incidental thereto shall be bome by the
Parties inter-se, as may be decided by the Board.

REVOCATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF THIS SCHEME

. The Board of Infibeam, the Resulting Company and the Transferee Company shall

be entitled to revoke, cancel, withdraw and declare this Scheme to be of no effect

at any stage, but before the Effective Date, and where applicable re-file, at any

stage, in case,

{a) this Scheme is not approved by the Trbunal, or if any other consents,
approvals, permissions, resolutions, agreements, sanctions and conditions
required for giving effect to this Scheme are not received or delayed;

{b) any condition or modification imposed by the Tribunal is not applicable;

(c) the coming into effect of this Scheme in terms of the provisions hereof or filing
of the drawn-up order(s) with any Governmental Authority could have adverse
implication on  Infibeam, the Resulting Company and the Transferee
Company; or

(d) for any other reason whatsoever, and do all such acts, deeds and things as they
may deem necessary and desirable in connection therewith and incidental
thereto.
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40.2, Upon revocation, cancellation or withdrawal, this Scheme shall stand revoked,

41.

41.1.

cancelled or withdrawn and be no effect and in that event, no rights and liabilities
whatsoever shall accrue to or be mcurred inter se between, (1) Infibeam and
Resuiting Company and (1) Infibeam and the Transferee Company, as the case
may be, or their respective shareholders or creditors or employees or any other
person, save and excepd in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is
contemplated hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which has arisen
or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved or
worked out in accordance with the Applicable Law and in such case, each Party
shall bear its own cosis, unless otherwise mutually agreed.

MISCELLANEOUS

If amy part of this Scheme hersof 15 invalid, ruled illegal by any Tribunal of competent
Jurisdiction or unenforceable under present or future  Applicable Laws, then it 15 the
intention of the Pamies 1o the Scheme that such part shall be severable from the
remainder of the Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be affected thereby, unless the
deletion of such part shall cause this Scheme to become materially adverse to any
Party, in which case the Parties (o the Scheme shall amfempt to bring about a
modification in the Scheme, as will best preserve for such Parties the benefits and
obligations of the Scheme, including but not mited o such part.

<<This space is intentionally leff Wank>>
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Infilseam Svemees Limited
Notes to the financials statement for the period ended December 31, 2023

1. Corporate Information

infibeam Avenues Limited [“the Company’) was incorporated on June 30, 2010 under the Companies Act,
1956. The Company i primarily engaged in business of software development services, maintenance, web
development, payment gateway services, e-commerce and other ancillary services.

The Company Is @ public company domicided in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Lompanies Act applcable an India. The Company's shares are listed on the BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited in India. The registered office of the company is located at 28th Floor, GIFT Twa
Buiding, Block No, 56, Roed-5C, Zone-5, GIFT OTY, Gandhinagar, Taluka & District - Gandhinagar - 382 355,

The financial statements were suthorised for issue in accordance with a resalution of the directors on
Janyary 23 2024,

2, Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (referred 1o 35 “Ind A5”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards] Rules as amended from time 1o bme.

Basis of preparation

These standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost bass except for certain financial
instruments and defined benefit plans which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the and af each
reporting period. Mistorscal cost is generally based on the fair value of the cansideration given in exchange
for goods and services. Falr value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
iiabilty in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. All assets and
liabiities have been classfied as current and non-current as per the Campany’s normal cperating cyche.
Based on the nature of services rendered to custormers and time elapsed between degloyment of respurce:
Bl [hE reslisation in cash and cash egunalents of the consideration Tor such services rendered. the
Compary has considered an operating cyche of 12 months,

Thae statement of cash flows has been prepared undar indirect methed, whereby profit or loss is adpusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
FECEIDLS OF payments and dems of income of expénse associated with irvesteng or financing cash flows, Tha
cash fiows from operating. investing and financing actwities of the Company are segregated

The financial statements are presented in indian Rupee ['INR') which is alsc the Company's furctional
currgngy and alf values are rounded to the nearest milkons, excent when otherwisa indicated

3. Critical accounting estimates
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
puggements, which hove the most signdficant effect on the 3mounts recognised in the financial statements
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infibeam Avenues Limited
Motes to the financials statement for the piriod ended December 31, 2023

il

3.

3.3

34

Estimates and assurmnption

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing 3 material adjustment to the carrying amourits of
assets and liabilities within the mext financial vear, are described below. The Company based its
assumprions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statemenis were prepared Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes
O Cifcumsiances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
ESSUMpPLons when they ocour

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the obligation are determined Wsing actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its leng-term nature, 3 defined
benefit obligation & hghly sansitive ta changes in these assumptions. All assurmptions are rewiewed 8% gach
reperting date. The parameter most subject to change i3 the discount rate Discount rate has been
getermined by reference to marker yields on the BoveErnment bonds a3 a1 the halance cheet date. The
muortality rate is based on publicly available maortality tables, Those martality tables tend 1o change only at
miecvals in response to demographic changes. Future salary ingreases are based on expected future
inflatson rates for the country.

Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of equity-settied transactions with employees using a black schale
maddel to determing the fair value of the liability incwrred. Estimating far value for share-basad payment
ifansactions requires determination of the mast aporopriate valuation model, which 15 dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant, This estimate ako requires determination of the most appropriate inouts
te the valuation model incleding the expecied life of the share option, volatilty and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them, For equity-settled share-based payment transactians, the lability neads
1o be measured at the time of grant,

The Company has also approved the grant of Employee Stock Appreciation Rights {SARs) 1o the eligibia
employees of the Comparny, Each SAR shall confar the right to the efligible employee to recene appreciation
(cash setthed / equity settled) with respect to the underlying Equity Share on the entitied shares after it has
been expreised in accordance with terms of the Schemie

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profic
will be available against which the losses can be utilised, Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits togethe: with future tax planning strategies. )
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3.5, Intangible asset including intangible asset under developmant

intangisle development costs are capatalised as and when technical and commercial feasibliy of the azzet
5 demonstrated, future economic benefits are prebable. The costs which can be capitalized include the
salary ang ESOP cost of employees that are directly attributable to development of the asset for g
niended use. Research and maintenance costs are expenied as incurred. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their CAFrying amoyunts may not be
recoverable. Rafer Mote 46 for the estimated usefyl iife of Intangible assets. The carrying value of
Intangible assets has been disclosed in Note &

4.6. Property, plant and equipment
Refer Mote 4.5 for the estimated useful ife of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of
Frogerty, plant and equipment has been disclesed in Mote 5

3.7, Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upen transfer of cantrol of promised Services 10 CUStOmers in an amount that reflects
the consideraton whach the Company expects 1o recene in @xchange for thosa sarvices

A8, Immestments
Investment in subsidiaries and associates is carried at cast in the standalone financial statements

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The followsng are the significant attounting poscies applied by the company in preparing its financial
statements:

4.1. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheat based on current/non-current classification.

An asiet i treated a3 current when it s
* Expected to be realised or intended 1o be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,
* Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
* Expected to be realised within twelve manths after the reparting penod; or
*  Cash orcash eguivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or usad to settle a kability for af least
twebee months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as AOn-CUFren:

A liability 15 current when:
* Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,
* It held primarily for the purpose of trading;
* Itis due to be settled within twelve manths after the reparing period. or
* Thereis nouncendit:onal right 1o defer the settlement of the liability for at least &
the reporting perniod
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4.2,

Tre Company classifies zll other liabikties a5 non-current,

Deferred tax assets and labilities are classified a8 non-current assets snd Fiabulities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method prescribed under IND AS. The cast
of an acquisition is measured &5 the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquistion
date faar value,

Agguisitnan refated costs are expensad as incurred.

Al the acouisition date, the ilentifiable assets acquired and the labilities assumed are recognised at ther
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the labilities sssumed include contingent liabilties
representing present obigation and they are measured at their acquistion fair values rrespectve of the
fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets
and liablines acguired in 3 business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the zssets or ligbilities ralated to employes benefit arrangements are
recogn:sed and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabiities assumed for
appropnate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms. econormie
tiffurmstances and pertinent conditions as at the acouisition date. This includes the separation of
emoEdted derwvalives in host contracts by the acquires

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interess is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or less is recognised in profit or loss

Goodwill iz initially measured at cost, bemng the sxcess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and any previous interest held, over the net wentifiable assets acquired and kabilities assumead.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amaount of the cash
BEnerating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised i prafit or loss
An impasrment loss recognised for goadwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been afiocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit s
sisposed off, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation 5 incluged In the Carrying Jrmoom
operation when determining the gain or loss on dispesal. Goodwill deposed in these afegs
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a.d,

measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retaaned,

If the initial accounting for a business combination i incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combinatian ocours, the Company reports provissonal amounts for the items for which the ACCOURTING
s ncomalete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement perod,
or acatonal assets of liabilties are recognsed, to reflect new mfarmation obtaingd about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquistion date that, If known, would have sfected the amounts
recognized at that date These adjustments are calfed as measurement peniod adjustments. The
measuremant period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Foneign currencies
The company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company's functional currency
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency soot
rate al the date the transaction first qualifies for recogniteon

honetary assets and habilities denaminated in fareign currencies are translated at the functional Currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange diffarences arising on samiement or translation of
rmanetary iiems ang recogrised in statement of profit or koss

Non-monetary iterms that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated Using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initlal transactions. Non-monetary items measured at Tair value in
foresgn currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined The
Eain or logs arsing on translatson of non-monetary fems measured at fair value is treated m line with the
recogritson of the gain or loss an the change in falr value of the item [i.e.. translation differances on items
whodg fair value gain or loss is recognised in OC or statement of profit o loss are also recognised in 00 or
profit or loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement

Fair valug 15 the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a kability in an orderky
transaction between market particpants at the measurement date. The fair valus mEpsurEmant it based
on the presumption that the transaction e sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
# Inthe principal markat for the asset or liabifity
Cir

* Inthe absence of a principal markes, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabilizy,
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,

The fair value of an asseq or 2 liabidity is measured wsing the assumptions that market particigastes puic
use when pricing the asset or Hability, assuming that market participants act in their economghia E
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&5,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into sccount @ market participant’s ability 2o
generate sconomic benelits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by salling it 1o another markst
pariipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The company uses vakuation technigues that are Bppropriate in the circemstances and for which sufficsent
@ata are available to measure fair value, mamising the use of relevant cbssrvable inputs and minimising
the uze of unobservable inputs

All aszets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disciosed in the financial statements are
categarised wathin the far value hierarchy, as deseribed below, based on the krwest lovel ingut that 15
vgmiscant 1o the far value measurement as a whole
* Llevel 1 = Quoted (unadpusted) market prices in actnee markets for identical assels or labdities
*  Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measuremant is directly or indirectly obserabls.
*  Level 3 — Valuption technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant (o the Fair valus
measurement & unobservahle,
For assets and habalities that are recognised in the financal statements on a recurming basis, the COMpary
geermings whether transfers have oocurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categarization
(based on the lowest lavel input that i5 significant o the fair value measurerment as a whole) at the end of
#ach regorting perod
Far the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Comgpany has determingd classes of assets ang Rakilipes an
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabilsty and the lpvel of the falr value
higrarchy, a4 explained above,

This note summarses accounting policy for Fair value Other fair value related disclosures are gven in the
PESEYANT NOLoS

»  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

*  Uuantitatve desclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

* Financial instrumants (including those carried at amortised cost)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equpment s stated a1 cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impasrmgnt losses, IF any. Swech cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equiprment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. The cost of assets
acquired in @ busingss combination is thedr fair value at the date of acousition. When significant parts of
Froperty, plant ang eguipment are required 1o be replaced at intervals, the Company recogneses such pars
3z indrvidual assets with specific useful lves and depreciates them aceordingly. All repair and maintenance
CLOsts are recognised in statement of profit or loss a5 incurred

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fived assets that sre not ver ingtaled and ready for ther
intended use at the balance sheet date.

foltows
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*  Building - 60 years

*  Leasehold Improvements - 10 years

*  Plani and equipment - 5 ta 10 vears

*  Furniture & Fixtures - 10 years

*  ehicles - 8 years

* Computer & Peripherals - 3 to 6 years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
isposal or when no future economic benafits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or lods ansing
on de-recegnition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) s included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset s derecognised.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on mnitial recognition at costl The cost of intangible
as5€1% dcquired in @ business combenation is their fair value at the date of Ecquisition. Follgwang ininal
recogmlion, ntangitle assets are carned at cost less any accumulated amoritaton and secumulated
mpairment losses. Cost include scquisttion and other incidental cost related to acquinng the intangible
Bsset

Hesearch costs are expensed as incurred. Intangible development costs are capitalised as and when
technical and commercial feasibility of the asset is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable
The costs which can be capitalized include the salary and ESOP cost of employees that are directly
attricutable 1w development of the asset for its intended use.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessad as either finite or indefinite, Intangitsle assets with finite
Ives are amortised over the useful economic life ang assessed for imparment whenever thers g an
indicaz:on that the intangible asset may be impaired, The amortisation persod and the amortisation methaoxd
for an mtangibie asset with a finite useful ife are reviewed at least 3t the end of each reparting porod
Changes in the expected useful IHe or the expected pattern of consumgtion of future economic benefits
embodied i the asset are considered to modify the amertisatian period or method, as appropriate, ang
are 1reated a5 Changes in Jccounting estimates. The amortisation eupanEe on inlangible assets with finde
Ies 5 recognised in the statament of profis and loss.

Gains or losses ansing from de-recognition of an intangible asser are measured a5 the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Stmement of
Prafit snd Loss when the ssset is derecognised

Amortisation

Penod of Amortisation of Intangibles is calculated as follows:

»  Comguter software acguired on Amalgamation - § years

= Computer software acquired - 10 vears {we.f. April 01, 2020

* Tragemark acquired on Amalgarnation - 25 years [weaf April 31, 2020]
* [T Platform acquered on Amalgamatson - S years (wef April 01, 2020)
* Customer Relstionship acquired on Amalgamation - 25 vears (we f April D1, 20287
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4.7

* [nternally generated Computer Software - 5 years (w.e.f. Apnil 01, 2020)
Intangibde assets under development

Expendiure incurred on acquisition foomstruction of intangible assets which are not ready for their
intended use at balance sheet date are disclosed under Intangible assets under developmeant. Durng the
penod of development, the assat is tested for impairment anngally,

Leased

The Comgany assesses at cantract inceplion whether a contract Is, 6F contains, 3 lesse. That i, o the
contract conveys the right to control the vse of an identified asset for a period of time n exchange for
consideragan

Coenpaivy 25 3 lesses

The Company's leace asset classes comarise of lease for building and for vehiches. The Company assesses
whether a contract contans a lease, at inception of 3 contract. A contract Is, or contains, a lease  the
Contract conveys the right to controd the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consigsation To assess whether a contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified atset, the
Company assesses whether: (i) the contract invelves the use of n identified asset [i] the Company has
subslanually al of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and [in) the
Company has the nght to direct the use of the asser. The Company applies a single recogniton and
measuremant approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value J5sets Farthese
shorl-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease PaymMEnts as an operating expense on
8 straight-lne basis over the term of the lease. The Company recognises lease llabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assats as below.

i Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencament date of the lease [i.e., the date the
underlying asset i avallable for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
cepreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of loace kaulitses. The cost af
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilives recognised, inital direct costs ancurred, and legse
paymants made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. For lpase of
Buiding rght-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis gver the shorter of the lease term ang
the astmarad useful lives af the underiying assets [i e 30 and 60 vears) and for lease of vehicles Right ofs
use 35Zeli are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the gstimated
wselul lives of the underlying assets (Le, B years) If ownership of the leased asset transfers 1o the Campany
at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of 3 purchase option, depreciation i calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use as3ets are also subject to impairment

) Lease Uiabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease Labilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lpase term The lease payments include fixed payments
yincleding in substance fiked payments] less any lease incentives receivable, variable leage payrents that
depend on an index or 3 rate, and amounts expected to be pad under residual value guaran SEELE




Infibeam Avenues Limited
Motes to the financials statement for the period ended December 31, 2023

4.8

Lompany and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Compan,
EMEFCEING TN Option to termenate. Varatle lease payments that do not depend on an index or 3 rate are
recognised as expenses {unless they are incurred 1o groduce inventories) in the period in which the event
ar condtion that trigpers the paymeant ocours.

In calevlating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencemant date because the interest rate imglicit in the lease is not readily determenable. After
the cormmencement date, the amount of lease habilives i increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there i 8 modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments [e.g.. changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. The Company's lease fabilities are
included in other current angd nom-gurrent financial Habdlises.

{Ei})  Short-term leases and leases of ow-value assats

Thie Company applies the shart-term lease recognition exemption 1o its short-berm leases [ie , thooe leases
that have a lease term of 12 months o less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
eption| I8 also applies the lsase of low-value assets recognition exemption 1o loases that are considerad 1o
be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognued as
expeEnse on a Wilﬂhl'[‘lm baszs over the bease term, "Lease llability"” and 'Flght of Use™ assef have been
separately presentad in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash Mo

Company a5 @ lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Leases n which the
Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease

erms

Government Grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there ks a reasonable assurange that the grant
will o% recenved and the Company will comply with all attached conditians.

Government grants relating 10 expense item i$ recognised as income on a systematic basis over the period
tnat tne related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Government grants related 1o assets (i e. those whose primary condition is that an entity qualifuing for
them should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets), including non-monetary grants at
tair value, are presented in the balance sheet by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of
the asset, in which case the grant is recognised in profit or loss a8 3 reduction of depreciation expenge.
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4.9, Mon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-cutrant assets and Disposal Group are classified as heid for sale if their carrying amount i intended to
be recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing use The condition for classification
of reld for sale is met when the non-current asset or the Disposal Group s available for immadiaes sale ang
the same i highty probabie of being completed withn ene year from the date of classification a5 haid Fae
saie Non-current asse1s and Disposal Group held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amaun:
and fair value less cost to sell Mon-current assets and Disposal Group that ceases to be classified as hald
for sale shall be measured at the lower of carrying amount before the non-current asset and Disposal Group
was classified a5 held for sale adjusted for any depreciation/ amortization and its recoverabla amsGunt at
the date when the Disposal Group no longer meets the "Held for sale” criteria

A discontinued operation 5 3 component of the undertaking that has been disposed off or i< classified a0
held figr sals and

* represents a separate line of business or graphical area of operations and:
* % part of a sngie coordinated plan to dispose off such a line of business or area of sperations

The rasulis of dscontinued operations are presented separately in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss.

4.10. Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
Uhat their Carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impasrment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e the higher of the fair value less cost te sell and the valug-in-use) is determined on
anincindual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those
fram other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount i Jetermined for the cash generated wnit {CEu]
10 which the asset belongs.

W such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profis
and Loss 5 measuréd by the amount by which the carrying walue of the assets exceeds the estmatad
recoverable amount of the asset. An imparment loss is reversed in the statement of prafic and foss f there
fds Deen @ Change in the estimates used to determng the recoverable amount. The Carrying amount of
the asset s incréased to s sevised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not esceed (he
carrying amount that would have been determined [net of any accurmulated amartization or depfeciation)
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Goodwsl & tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying valuee may
o impared

imgairmant is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU ta which the
goudwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU i less than its CAITYING 3maunt, 30 IMpairment
o35 15 recognised Impairment lodses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future perisds
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairmant annually at the CGU level as
agoropriate, and when crcumstances indicate that the earrying value may be impaired.

4.11. Borrowing cost

Sorrowing costs dwectly attributabla to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
nacessarily takes 3 substantial period of time 1o get ready for its intended use or sale are capitatised as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they cocur,

4.1 Revenue Recognition

Rendering of services

fevenue s recognised upon transfer of cantrol of promised senvices to customers In an amount that
reflacts the considesation which the Company expecls Lo recabse in axchange far those services.

Reveriue from payment gateway services is recognised on settlement of transactions measured by valug of
Iansactions processad as per the rates and terms agreed between parties

Revenue from Wb Services is recognised upfront ar the poinkin time when the service is delivered 1o the
customer. In cases where implermentatson and / or Customisalion services rendered significantly modifies
o tustomises, these senace is recognised propartionally over the period.

Hegistry Services revenyes primardy arse from fixed fees charged to regatrars for the mital registration or
renewal of ooo domain names. Revenues fram the initial registragion or renewsl of domain names ars
oeferred and recognized rateably over the registratzon term, generally ane year and up to ten years. Fees
for renswals and advance extensions to the existing term are deferred untd the new incremental perno
commencas. These fees are then recognized rateably over the renewal term.

Hevenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with the customer and excludes
amounts collacted on behalf of customers. The Company presents revenue net of discouwnts and collection
charges Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers

Aeverue from subsidiaries is recogrised based on transaction price which is at arm’s langth.

Loatract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts Contract
assets are cssifad as unbifled revenus [only act of Inwaicing 15 pending] when there is uncanditional right
w0 recewe cash. and only passage of time s required, as per contractual tarrme

Excess billing over revenue {“contract hability™) 15 recognised when there is Gilling in @xcess of revenuves

N accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contract Brovision when the unavoidabis
Cosls of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits 10 be received

Comiracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and
The Company rewews modification Lo contract in conunstion with the original contracy, |
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transaction price could be allocated 1o a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing
cbligaton could undergo a change. In the event transaction grice i revised for existing ohigaton, a
cumulatve adustment & accounted for

The Company disaggregates revenus from contracts with customers by offering and geograchy.

The Company exercsses judgement in determining whether the performance cbligation s satisfied at a
BOING A time or over a period of time., The Company considars indicaters such as how CUSEBMar consumas
benefits as services are renderad or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceatie
rght to payment for performance 1o date as per contract.

Intgrest income

For 3l financipl ingtruments measured at amortised cost, interest income s recarded using the effective

nterast rate (EIR), The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the ¢stirmated future cash recespts over the
expecied life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where approgeiaste, to the gross Carrping
amount of the financial asset or to the amartised cost of 2 financial liabdity. When calculating the elfective
imeredt rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flaws by considering all the contractual terms of
the financal instrurment g exampe, prapayment, eiatenson, call and fsmilar cpligng] but does not
considér the expectad eradit bosses. Interest income s inchuded in other ncome in the statement of prafit
o horg

Rarital income

Rentzl income arising from operating leases is accounted for on 3 straight-ling basis over the lease terms
and 15 inclueded in other income in the statemant of profit or loss due to its nature,

Export Incentives
Export incentives are accounted on acerual basis bazed on services rendered

413 Hnarcial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives nise 1o a financial asset of ene antity and a financial Rabelity
or eguily instrument of another entity

8] Financial assets
{i] Initial recognition and measurement.
All finamoia! assets, except investment in subsidiaries and jint ventures, are racognised intially a1

fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through grafit or loss,
vanzaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
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{6} Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial sssets are classified in four categorion

*  Debt instruments at amortised cost

»  Debt instruments at fair valua through other comprehensive income [FYTOCH

*  Debt instruments at fair value through profit or Ioss (FyTPL)

»  Equily instruments measured at fair valpe through other comprehensive income [FVTOD)
*  Equity instruments measured at fair value through skaterment of profit and loss (FYTPL

Debt instruments at amortised cost:
A debt instrument i measured at amortised cost if Both the following conditions are mer
= the azsetis held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting
contractual cash fiows, and
Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest {SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding

Alter inital measurement, such financial assets are subsisguently measured 3t amaortised cost
using the effectve interest rate (EIR] method. Amortised cost s caleulated by taking into
account any discount o premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amertisation is included in ather income in the statement of orofit and loss. The
tosses anising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Ths category
generally applies to trade and other recewables

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive incame (FYTOCI)
A debt instrument s measured at fair value through other comprehensive income J both of the
following criteria are mer:
the objactive of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
fhiows and selling the financlal assets, and
= the asset's contractual cash flows represent 5901,

Deba instruments included within the FYTOC! category are measured initizdly a5 wall 35 a1 wacn
réporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognazed w the other comprehiEnsive
income (OC1), However, interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foregn exchango
gain or loss are recognased in the statement of profit and loss On derecognition of the asset,
curnuiatve gasn or loss previousiy recagrused in 001 s reclassified from the eguity to statement
of profit and loss. interest earned whilst haldeng FVTOC debt mstrument 1s reparted 83 :nteres:
inggema wsang the EIR method

Debz instruments at fair value through profit or lass (FYTPL)
FWTPL is & residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not mest
the criena for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC, is classified as at EVTPL

in addition, the Compamy may alect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise mapts
amortized cost or faw value through other comprabensive income criteria, as at fair value
whrough prafit or loss. Howswer, such election 3 allowed only if doing so reduces or ehminates
@ measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
Company has not dessgnated any debt instrument as at FYTEL
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Dbt nstruments incheded within the FUTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

*  Equity instruments:
All eguity imvestrments in scope of Ind-AS 109 ase measured at fair value. Equity Instruments
which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive mcome
subsequent changes mn the fair value. The Company makes such slection on an instrument-ky-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

if the Compary decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOO, then all fair value Changes
on Uhe nEtrument, excluging devidends, are recognired in the OC1 There is no recychng of the
amouns fram OC) to PEL, even on sale of investment, However, tha Company may transler the
cumalative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at o valus with all
Changes recognized in the statemant of profis and lass,

»  Inwestmant in subsidlaries and associstes:
It ment in subsidiares and assocates s carried a8t cost i the stangatone firanciad
Stalemanis

[fil) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset {or where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of simdar financial
Assets) is pnmariy derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when
v The rghts o receve cash flows from the asset have expired, or
* The Company has ransferred its rights to recasee cash faws from the ascet or has assumed
an ooligation to pay the recelved cash fiows in full without material delay to a third party
under @ pass-through' arrangement, and either {a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. but has
transferred contrgl of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows fram an asset or has entered
mitd & pass-thrpugh arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the nsks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the rsks
and rewards of the asset, nor transfierred control of the asset, the Company continues to recagnise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in that case, the
Company aiso recogneses an assocated liabdity, The transferred asset and the assacated Lability
e mgasured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has s
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Continuing mvolverment that takes the farm of 2 Buaranbee over the transferred asset 15 measured
at the lower of thir aniginal Carrying amaunt of the saset and the maximum amount of consideratan
that the Company could be required ta repay.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognires loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) madel for the
financial assets which are not fair valupd through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables
with no significant financing companent is measured at an amgunt equal 1o lifetime ECL For 31l
oiher financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount ggual to the 12-manth
ECL, unless there has been 2 sgnificant increase in credit risk from initial recognation in which case
those are measured at lifetime ECL The amount of expected credit losses [or reversal) that «
Fequired (o adpest the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that i reguired to be
recagnised o recognized as an impairment gain or loss in prodit or loss,

b) Financial Liabilities

[} Initial recognition and measurement
Financial habulities are classfiag, 3t imtial recognition. a8 financial lisbilities an fair value through
profit or loss, loans and barrowings. pavables, as agprophiate

All inancial iabilities are recognised initially at fair va've and, in the case of loans and barrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs

The Company’s financial liabilivies inchude trade and ather poyables, loans and borrowings

{i] Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial habiities gpends on their classification, as described below:

*  Financial lizbilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial habuliies at fair value through profit or less include Financial liabilities heid for traging
and financial habihties designated upon initial recogrition as at fawr value through profig or fosc
Financial lisbdities are classified as held for trading i they are incurred for the gurgose of
TEPUrCRAsINg in thi near tarm

Gains or fosses on kabilities held for trading are recogrased in the profit or loss

Financial liabilives designated upon infal recognition at fair value through profit or less are
designated as such at the matial date of recognition, and only f the criteria in Ind-A% 109 are
sutishied For liabilities dessgnated as FYTPL, fair vaiue gains/ losses attributable to changes in own
credit risks are recognized in OCL These gaing/ loss are not subsequently transferred to PRL
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative Eain or loss within eguity. AH o 3
in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Qi
not designated any financial liabilty as at fair value through profit and loss.
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Loans and Borrowings

Alter initsal recognition, interest-bearing borrownngs are subsequently measured 3t amortised
cost using the EIR method, Gains and losses are recopnised in profit or loss when the lishikties
are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process

Amartised cost is caleulated by taking inte account any discount or premivint on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amertisation is ingluded as finance costs
in the statemant of profit and loss,

Thus category generally applies to borrowings

(ifi} Derecognition of financial liabilities

A fimancial Fability is derecognised when the obligation under the lability i discharged or
cancelled or expres,

Whon an existmg financial liabitity 5 reptaced by another from the same lendar on substantiafy
differant terms, or the terms of an existing liability are Substantially modilied, such an exchange
o modification is treated as the derecognition of the eriginal liability and the recogaition of 3
mew liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recegnised in the statament of
profip and lass

¢] Dffsetting of financial Instruments

Financeal assets and finangial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported o the balance sheet
fihereis a currently enforceable legal right 10 offset the recognised amounts and there 1§ an intention
10 $ettle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the abilites simultanegushy

4,14, Cashand cash equivalent

Cash and cash egquivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shert-term deposits
Witk a0 oniginal maturity of three manths o less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

valug

For the purpose of the staternent of cash flaws, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shart-term
ceposits, a5 defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company’s cash management

215 Treasury sharas

The Company nas created an Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) for providing share-based pavment to s
emgpioyees The Company uses EBT as a vehicle for distributing shares to emplovees under the employes
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Cawn equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at eost and deducted from
equity. Mo gain of loss 15 recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Lempany’s own eguity Instrumants

.16, Taxes

Tax expense compnses of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current Income tax
fourrent income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount axpedtad to be recovered from or
paid 10 the taxation authonties. The tax rates and tax laws used 1o compute the amount are thoge that are
Eniacted of substantively enacted at the reperting date.

Current itcome tax relatng 1o stems recognised outside Statement of profit and loss s recogrised outside
Staternent of profit and loss [either in other comprehensive income or equity]. Current tax items aro
recopnised In correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive mcome or dirsetly in
eguity. Management peniodically evaluates positions taken 1n the tax returns with respect to situatsans o
which applcable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establshes provigsons where approgriate

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided wsing the liability method on temporary differences between the tox bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for firancial reporting purposes at the reporting date

Delerrad tax hakdities are racognised for all taxable temporary differences. except:

* When the deferred tax lability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an assat or iabdity in
atransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects reither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

v Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidigries and ‘nLarests
M jeint arrangaments, wihen the Uming of the reversal of the temparary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the faresseable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductibla temporary differences, the carry forwerd of unused
L credits and any unused tax iosses. Deferred tox assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabis
that taxab’e profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences. and the car
forware of unuged tax credits and ynused tax losses can be wiilsad, except:

* When the deferred tax asset refating 1o the deductible temporary difference anses fram the inmial
recognition of an asset or liabdity in a transaction that is not 3 business cambination and, at the ume
of 1he rransacton, affects naither the sccounting profit for taxable profi or loss:
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grobable that the temporary differences will reverse in the forese=able future and taxsble prefit witl
b= svailable against which the temporary differences esn be utilsed

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewad at each reporting date and reduced to the sxtent
that it 15 no longer probable that sufficient taxable predit will be avallable to allow aif or part of the defarred
tax @ssel b0 be utilsed. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are

recognised 1o the axtent that it has becorme probable that future taxable orofits will aliow the deferred tax
ALELY 1O D reconvergd

Deferred tax assets and kabdities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is reaksed or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date

Daferred tax relating o items recognised cutside Statement of profit and loss & recognised outside
statement of geofit and loss. Deferred tax iterms are recognised in correlation to the underlying transacton
aither in other comprehensive income ar directly In equity

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lighilitses are offset If 3 legally enforceable right suisis to sat off curren
13X assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
samE laaation authority.

4.17. Retirerment and other emplovee benefits

a] Short Term Employes Benefits
All emplevee benefits payable within twehe months of rendering the service are classified as short
erm empioyes benefits. The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expecied to be
said in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognisad during the year

B Post-Employment Benefits

() Defined benefit plan
Gratwity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such
gefined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit
Lredit Mathod as at the date of the Balance sheet reduced by the fair value of any plan assas
Ther discount rate wied for determinang the present value of the obligation under defined benafi
glan, are based on the market yields on Government socuritesas a1 the balanee shest dato

Re-measurements. comprising of actuanal gains and Possas, the effect of the asset ceiling,
exchuding amounts included m net interest an the net defined benefit llabifity and the return on
alan sssets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liabibiy), are
recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
#arnings through OCI in the period in which they ocour. Re-measuremants are not reclassified to
atatament of Profit and Loss in subsagquent penods,

Past service costs are recogrused in profit or Iss on the earlier of:
* Thedate of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
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* The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Met interest is calcutated by applving the discount rate 1o the net defined banefit liability or asset.
The Coempany recognises the following changes in the net delined benefit obligation as an
expense in the Statement of profit and loss:
v Service COSLS COMDISING current service COSES, pagl-sarvice costs, gains and losses on
curtdiments ord non-routne settizments; and
«  Metinlgrest expense of incorne

The Compary has not invested in any fund for meeting liability.

4.18. Share-based paymants

emplayees of the Company recews reémuneration m the form of share-based Dayfmients, whereby
employees render services a5 congederation for EQUILY instruments {equity-settled transacuons)

Equity-sattied transactions
The cost of equity-sertied transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made
LAINE an appropriate valuation model,

That cost i§ recognised, together with a corresponding increase in shave-based payment (SBP) reserves in
equiy, over the period in which the performance and/or servics conditians are fullilled in empleyas
senefis expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled ransactions at sach reporting date
untd! the vasting date reflects the extent to which the westing period has expired and the Company’s best
gstimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statemant of profit and los:
eapanse or credd for 3 period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognaad ag at the
beginnng and end of that period and is recognised in emplovae benafits expense. No expense is recognsed
for awards that do not uitimately vest becayuse non-masket performance andfor serace conditiong have
noL EEan met

The divtive effect of cutstanding options s reflected as additsonal share diluben in the computation of
Ciluteg earnings per share

Employves Stock Appreciation Rights [SAR)

The campany has formed ‘Inflbeam Employvee Welfare Trust' [IEW trusst) for implementation of the schermes
that are notfied or may be notified from time to time oy the Company under the plan, providing share
based payment o its employvees. IEW truss purchases Company's shares out of funds prowided by the
Comgany. Accordingly, the Company has approved the grant of Emoloyes Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs}
to the 2lgible emplovees of the Company. Each SaR shall canfer the rght to the eligible employes to
recene ppprecation (cash settled f equity sattled) wath respect to the underhang Equety Share an tha
entitlad shares after i has been exercrsed in acoordance with terms of the Scheme,

The Company follows the fair value method to account for its Employee Stock Appreciancn Right
walllg 47 sbproprate valuation modei. Compensation cost is measured by the excess, if any
price of the underlying stock over the exercise price a3 determined under the cotion plan
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s the closing price on the stock exchange where there is highest trading volume on the working day
immegiately preceding the date of grant. Compensation cost, If any, Is amortised aver the vesting period

4.15. Earnings per share

Bagc EPS amounts are cabculsted by divding the profit or loss for the year attributable to Bguity
sharehalders for the period by the weighted average number of eguity shares cutstanding during the year
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or foss attributable 1o equity shareholders for the
period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year pius the winghted
awerage number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential eguity
shares into equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had
tng equity shares been actually issued at fair value (L e, the average market value of the cutstanding pout
shares). Dilutive potental equity shares are deemed converted as of the begnning of the peniad, unless
issued o1 o later dote. Diutive potental equity shares are determined independently for sach perca
presented.

4.20. Segment reporting

Based on Management Appeoach” as defined in ingd AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chisf Dperating
Decizion Maker evaluates the Company's pesfarmance and allocates the resources based on an analysis ol
vanious perfermance indicators by busness segmaents. Unallocable ilems includes peneral corporate
income and expense iterns which are not allocated to any business segment.

Segrment policks:

The Company prepares its segment Informaton in conformity with the accounting polices adepted o
preganng and presenting the finzncial statements of the Company as a whole. Common allocable costs are
allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis.

4.1 Dividand distribution

The Company recognses a liabilty to make cash distributions to eguity hodders of the Company whan tha
guitrsution & authorised and the distribution is no longar at the digcretan of the Company s per the
Compartes Act, 2013, a dstnbution = authorised when it s approved by the sharehalders A L responding
artiiunt i recognsed directly in equity

§.22, Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructve) as a regult of
3 past event, it 1 probable that an cutflow of resources embodying econamic benefits will be reguires 1o
seitle the obligation and a relisble estimate can be made of the amount of the cbligaton. When the
Company expects some or all of 3 provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement i3 récognised as 2
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to 2 BEOVISON 1§
presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any remBursament.
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If the effect of the time value of money is matenal, provisions are discounted using a current gre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks speciic to the lisbity. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provis:on due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost

Contingencies

Prowision in respect of contingencies relating to claims, lingation, assessment, fines, penalties etc are
recognised when it is probable that a kability has been incurred and the amount can be estmated reliably,

Contingent fabdities and contingent assets:

& gontingent [kabality exists when there is a possible but not probable obbgation, or a present obliganon
that may, but probably will not, regquire an outflow of resources, or 3 present oblgation whose amourt
cannot e estimated ralwbly. Contingent lisbilities do not warrang provisions, but ore disciased uniess the
posubility of outfliow of resources is remate. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements Howewer, contingent assats are asseised eontinually and i it is virtually certain that
an inflew of economic benefits will arise, the azset and related inoome are recognised in the penod i wdhich
the change oocurs
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS | 203, Cendor Point Buiking, 100, Or, Babasaheb Ambediar Fiosd.
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T Ted - 022-4Z 116800 Fax | 0Z2 - 4022 0314

- E-mail : infodishahlaparia.com
-“""\__ vishl ug ai ; wara shahlaparia com

[INDEPEMDENT ALDITOR'S REPORT
Ta the Members of Inlibeam Avenues Limibed

Repsart on the Audit of the Standabene IND AS Financis] Sistemcnts

Opinign
Wlhtﬂﬂﬂhmw‘mmasmulmhnflnmHml—lﬂlﬂﬂl"lh:
Company”), which comprise the Bslance Sheet a5 ar March 31, 2023, the Stabement of Profi sad Less
{incheding Ciiher Comprehesdive Inceme), the Simtement of Cash Flows and the Siatement of Changes in Equicy
for the year ihem ended and 2 wammary af the sagnificant scoounting podicies and other explanatory mfomation
(heremadier refemed 1o 25 “the standalone TND AS financial stasissnla™)

In o opinion asd 53 the beat of our information sed according to the cxplanations grocs be us, the aforceas
wtandalone IMD A5 fnancial simesents give the informaton required by the Compassed Act, 2003 i*ihe Ao
im the mannet 30 fequired and pive o e nd fair view in conformily with the [ndun Accountng Susdards
prescribed emder sectiom 133 of the Act read with the Companses (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, o
amended. ("Ind AS”) and cilier accounting princpdes genenlly accepoed im India, of the staly of affues al the
Compary as at Mareh 31. 2023 and its peofit, el comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash fows
for ihe year ended on thal dase

Bads for Opipion

We conducied our ssdil of e sanidslens INTY AS finencial stslements m accordance wath the Slandasds on
Auditing specified undor section [43(08) of e Act (SAs). Our responsibilitics under these Samdards e
further described m the Anditor's Reponsshilities fof the Audit of the Stavdalone [ND AS Minancial Btabements
wection ol o sepor. We are mdependent of the Company in scsordance with the Code of Exhics issusd by the
|istitute of Chanered Accoumants of India (PCAL hﬂmﬁmhmrﬂulmummrﬂlﬂm 1k ey
aindiy of the siasdalome IND AS financial statoments wnder e provisions of the Ao and ihe Rudes mads
thereunder, and we bave (ulililed our other cthical respansibilizies i accoslasce winth these reguirements and the
ICAlYs Code ol Bibees. We beliove thai the ssddl ovidence we have obfained 15 suflscent and appeopriste (o
prevede & basis for our audit opesdon on the sandalone [NDF A fimancial salcments

By Awdit Maiters

Key sudit ratters are those matiors shat, in our prafessions] judgment, were of most significance i oar audit of
the suadalone IND AS financial sisterenis for the year ended March 31, 2023 These masiers were adidressed in
the eastext of our sudit of the siandaloae IND' AS fimancial statementi &3 8 whols, and i fmang our opinsse
therean, and we da not prevads & sepafale apinion on these maners. We have determined the matlcn describad
belorw to be tha key audit matien 8 be cominunicmed i our fepon

CBr | Key Audit Matter " Awditors Respemse S
Ne |

1| Gosdwill impairment -wrm

[ Included on the balance sheet is an intangiblé aiséts | Focusing oa Infibeam Avemuics Lid busangss we
[ balance of K 1883223 million as aa Manch 31, 2023 | undersiood, evaluated and validaiod masagessil s |
which relstes w0 posfaidl of Ra 1602408 nullion | key coowols over the impairmenl asacesment |
which smse mainty from pasi scquisition and olther | prsfess  The comguany Bad oelained 3 vallistion
wtaagible msets like Computer Software, IT Platform, | reporl from  cammal ndependent vabser O
Temdemark and Casiomer relationship of Ri. 2,708.05 | obscrviag the same, following madis proceduns.
millice are classified as ather Intangible Assts. were ndopied:

i“" o o e m_';“'”m""” oy | Evabaling the methodical snd mathematical |

| with usehel lives, the Company is required to review mq'd'irudtlumdiurmrmmuﬂm r——
these foe impairmess whenever cvents or changes im | 'Wsling. the sppropratences of the aswum
circamstasces indicaic that their cerrying amounts may | & the methodology used o prepase 'h:_'l'll'
mot be recoverable, and i leas assually, review | Slow fececasts. oy
M*&qﬂllur:hu!luihmwm leqﬂﬂlﬂ.ﬂﬁtﬂdnm#

o |

L_.-'\. ekl

Delhi Office ; 5274, Ramjas Road, Karol Baugh, New Dealhi - 110 005 - Tel: 011 - 2872 2222 1 33333 - E-muail | mhﬂ'ﬂm“ﬂ
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[ lives reasgmableness of business plans by companng

them to priar yeas"s aiuspli

| For the purposc of perfosmasg impansent asscesments, | _F the o .
all inangdble asscls incheding goodwill have been "’_I "I ’I“in o i L'“"'m* :‘H:"-'”"'"
sllocared 8o groups of cash penerating wnits (“COU™). : ;

The recoversbls smouat of the undertying OGUy is | Do inchuding sssemptions thal, wath
sepportod by vabes-in-use caleubstions which are based | hindsighl. Bave becn approprmate |
en [ware docounied cash flows  Management # discessing the poiestis] changes m key drivers as |
concladed than the iniz=gible msets including goodwall mmmrﬁfnm1iﬂm
| were not mgaized as of March 31, 2023 with managesent in coder o evaluase whether

The above mlmmmﬁr ﬁﬂmﬂlﬁwmmﬂﬂﬂm
poodwill having indefinite wseful life is comidered as | ferscasts ¥

significant sccounting judgement and estsmaie 10 the 'thﬁr-mrabulalm
stasdslone IND AS finsscial statements and a key sudit | * challenging  the robusmess of e ko
maier becawse the assumpsions on which the st are exsumnptioas used 1o Setermine the vabse n ase
based are highly judgmental and are affected by fuwre | including e allocanca of goodwill 1w the
market and economa: condilions which are inherenily | sdequate CGLS, cash flow forecasts. long-tenn
uncertaim, and because of the materiabity of the |  growth rases and the discount raes based on our
hakinees o the aendilons [N AS fnanced stvcmenis understanding of the commerdial prospedts ol |
& whale ﬂ#nﬂwﬂﬂﬂl&-ﬂhrmngﬁmmﬁl

Kindly refer Mot No. & to the smndalone IND AS publichy available ot where poasible,
fnancikl MeEnenLE.

Wi also comssdered the appregoaténgis of |
disclosures i the Masdfalong IND A% fmancisd |
| satcribcnls aad conelude that our sudil preceduses |

| did mot lead eo any sescevalions regardmg ihe |
poodwill impaEment ien [

| | 1 Lk | L} LS k. i e [} 4 il L 1L LB AR B P wldtlln !I Aeldl
Cosnpany™s Board of Disectors is responsible for the other information. Tho other infomation compriss
the informatzon included in the Anneal report, bul does not incheds By ptandalone IND AS fmancal sistesrenls
sl G PEPUTL LETEHI.

Diar sgunion on dee sandslone IND AS financial stabements does not cover the other infonmatom and we do pod
eapaess any form of assuraeco conchusion thereon

I conneciben with our sudil of the sandalone TND AS financial skalements, our feipsoadibilay i o pead the
other isformation and, in doing 30, comsider whether the othes informatea o materially intosdmiest wath the
siandalone [ND AS fimancial statcnsents of our kodradsdge obisined dursg the coene of our audil e eshezwise
sppaary o by malenally sristated

I based om the work we have performed, we conclude tha dhere |3 o materin] missisemnent of this other
informaion, we are fequired 1 repont that facr. W have nothisg w repor in this regard

] 1 3 fincengea| nE

P H ey pomit b iy [ger Ehe SEandato Ly Enipml
The Compasry's Deoard of Diarectors is responsible or the maticrs stated in section E345) of the Act wath reigeer
o the preparation of thess standaloss IND AS (mancial stabemerits sl give & troe and Bile veew of the fisancual
posithan, financial performance, solsl comprchensnve iscome, cash flows and changes m equity of the Company
in pocordsnee with the Ind AS and ether accountng principles gensrally acorpied in India. Tha respoasibibiny
sleo includes maintenance of adequate accounling recurds m socondsnce wilh the provssions of e A Ly
safopuanding the miscts of the Company &5d for prevesting asd descong froods and ofher imegulangel
sclectivn and spplicaton of appeopriste sccoumting policies; making judgmemis and estiomates thar ey
reasonable and pradent; and design, implementation and mainkenance of sdoguate inlemal finsnzial conisle i
were operating elfectively for ensuring the scosracy and compleicmens of the accounting fecends relevafl #h ihe

= e Trl il

Diefhi Orffice : 52774, Ramjas Road. Karol Baugh. Mow Dethi - 110 005 «Tel.: 011 - 2872 2222 / 33333 - E-mail : dedhi@shahlaparia.com
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preparstica e presenistion of the standalono INDY A5 financis] sttements that gnve a true and fair vicw and
e free freen maserinl misstalement, whether des 10 Fraud or emor.

In pecparing the siandabome TND AS finaacisl sstements, management is responsible R ssesusg e
Cempany's ability 1o continug as & gofeg concem, dincloaing, as applicable, macsi relsted 1o poaing concern
and using the going concern basis of sccmenting unless management cithar intends te liquidate the Company os
io cease aperations, o has no pealiatie aliereative bui o do so.

The Board of Direciors is respansible for sversesing the Company's financial reporing peotess.

Dumluum mﬂ-mﬂnmﬂﬂﬂ'ﬂmﬁ Ill'ld-lltl'rr'lﬂnu'ﬁfmlﬂﬂﬂiwhﬂ
o wisale mre free from material néssstessent, whether dee to fraud or orror. and o wees an audiles™s repofl thal
inclodes our opinicn. Reasonsble assurince is & high lavel of assurance bt |5 fet & guarantee thas am audit
conducted in scoardance with SAs will abways detect 8 material masstatement when it exists. Muastabements can
arig frem fraud of emror and are considered materiad {f, Edhviduslly or i the agpregate, they could reasonsbily
be experted o influence the econamic dotisions of csers ioen on the basis of thess standalons [ND AS
(mancis] sEsemenis.

As pan of an audit i scoordance with SAs, we exercue professions] judgment and mainiain professonal
skesticism theoughout the aedit. We abeer

#  Ideniify and aseeis the pisks of material mizstatement of the standalone IKTF AS lmancial setemess,
wisether dee to fraud arermor, design s perfom sudil procedures respoasive bo thase rskis, and oblain
andit cvidence that 18 suffeckent and spgwopriste so provide o bams for our oganion, The nek of no
detecting & material misvlatemnt repalting frons fraud is higher than for one resulting from armer, as
Fraud may invelve colbesion, forgery, imentional omassions, misecprescatancea, o the ovemds of
inbernad coniral

# (ihizin a= undersianding of mizmal fsanczal conteols relevant wo the ssdit in onder to design audi
procedures (hal are sppropriais i the ciroamstances. Under scction 1433K1) of the Act, we are alio
respoemible for expressing owr opamion on whether b Comgpany has sdequaie intermal finanimal
controls gyslem in place snd the operating effectiveness off sech comtrols.

= [Evalusie the approprialcncsa of sccountimg policies wsed and the messcosbloness ol Bozounnng

»  Cemelude on the appropriatencess of masagement's use of the going concem basis of sccounting asd.
based om the audit evidence obimined, whether 5 masenal uncerisinty cuists related 10 ovents af
condithesn that may casi significant doubd on the Campasy™s abiliy o contivoe 05 8 going concern. i
we conclude that a maserial unacenainmy cxisis, we e required io draw albention m our sdior’s feport
#o the reluied disclosures in the standaloas IND AS Gnaseisl palemesti on, (if such disclosures are
inadogquase, o modify ouf opistes. Owr conclusions are based on the audit sndénss obtamed up w the
daie of pur suditer's repori. However, futun ovenis or condilses may cae the Company bo oease bo
CONIEGE &8 3 EHRE COnEem.

. MmhmmwmmmﬂwqfﬁEMImﬂifmiﬂmm
inchoding the disclowmres, and whether the standalone [HND AS fnaseial slslements fepresem (he
underlying transactions and ¢venls in & masser that achieves fair presentation.

Maieriality s the magnitods of miktsbementi in e ssndilons IND AS financial statemants that,
mdividually or in aggregate, makes it probahle that the cooncene decisions of 2 resonably knowledgeable
umar of the iandalone IMD AS fGnencisl sisements may be mflocneed. W consider quanttatvg maicrialoy
and qualitatve facioes in (i) Planning the scopo of our audil work snd in svabsalisg the resulls of our work:
snd (@} o evaloste ihe offect of any identfbed misstvements in the siandalone ND AS finamcisl

e, FIDLL R

Deldhi OMice : 5274, Ramjas Road, Karol Baugh. Mew Delhi - 110 005, - Tel : 011 - 2872 2222 § 33333 - E-mail : dehif@shahlapana com
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‘W communicate wigh those charged with povernance reganding. amang other maneri. the planacd sope
and timing of the audit and significant awdin findings, incleding any sigaificem deficiencees in smemnal
comtral that we identify durng oo sudil

We also provide those charged with povernance with a staloment that we have complied with rehevant
cthical requiremsents regarding isdepondence, and 10 communicaic with them all slationships and ot
maiters thai may reasomably be thought to bear on our independence, snd where spplicable, relaied
safepusnds

From the matters communicased with those chasged with govemanes, we dalenming those maners thal werg
of meced sigmilicancy in the audit of the standalons IND AS financaal nstements of the cumest year and e
tsrcdore the Key sodit masiess, We descnbe these mamers in our audiber”s repont unbess low or repalation
procludes publse diclodere shom the mater or when, s extremely rane cirosmsiances, we determine thai a
meatter should mod ‘be commemdcaied in our repor because the adviiig consquendes of doing s woukl
rrasonably be expected o oubwergh the publsd interedt Benelizs o dach cofmun icaman.

Eepers gn Cribvey Legsl and Begulatory Regwirements

s regured by the Companies (Auditor's peport) Oroder, 020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central Gevemment
of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Ast, we give in the “Anmexwre A 3 statemest on the
mairers specified i paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Onder.

As requited by Secthen 143(3) aff dse Act, we repornt that:

a) 'We have sought and obiained all the information and explanations which 1w the be of our knowledge
and Bselinf wane necessary for the purposes of our sudic

bl In our apinion, propet books of seconnt wi required by low bave been kept by the Comypany s far o o
appeeairs from our examination of those books.

t] The Balmse Sheet. tha Statement of Profis asd Loss incleding Other Comprehensive [mcome, the
Sutement of Ciah Flow snd Statement of Changes in Equity deali vith by thas Eoport are in agrooment
with the relevant books of stcoant,

dl  In our opinion, the aforesaid sandaloss INDF AS financial satements camply with the Ind AS speaalisd
under Section |33 of the At

2] Oin the basia of the wrillen represeniations reecived freen the disectors as an March 31, 2023 mken on
record by the Board of Directors. meme of the direcions 18 disgqualificd s on March 31, POZ3 [2om Bsing
sppenmicd as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Aol

N With respect 1o the sdeguscy of the inlemal finsseial contrals over Meanciad reporting of the Company
wilh reference w these standalone IND AR financial ialements and the opsratng eflecivensis ol such
‘comtnali, refer 1o our separale Repaet i ~Ansexare B to this ropori

g) With respect to the other matiers to be incloded in the Audsor's Beport mn accendasce with B
rogaarements of section 197(16) of the A, & amended:
During the fimancial year te company has ool paid any remuncration o any of the direcion

h) With respect to the other matters o be incheded in the Auditor's Report in accondance with Bule 1 ol

the Comgpanies [Audig and Audilors) Rules, 3014, as smended in our opinton asd Ba the bes) ul'unl F

isformation asd secording 1o the explanations given 1o us: :
i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as a1 1 1st March, 2023 on i {indpgal
pawition in i peadslons IND AS feanciul amemens - Refer Note Mo 21 and MNale Mo ill-r. ihe
sundalong IND AS Anancial Ascmens.

WY
i

"
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il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts ecluding derivative coamens for whach there
ware any material forescaable loskes.

iii. There has been no delay o transforing snounts, riquired 10 be wanafamal. fo the Inveslor
Edwscation asad Progection Fumd by the company.

iv

{a} The mazagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belicf, as disclosed in Mot
Mo, 36 o ihe standalome [INDY AS finascia] slatemeenis, no funds Bave been advanced oo loaned or
inwesiad {eitker from borrowed famds or share premium or sy other seeroes or kimd of funds) by the
Company o or in any other persam ar entstics, inchading Foreign entities. (“Intermediaries™ ). with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or ofheraaer, thal the Iniomediary shall:

= direcily or indirecily lend or invest in other persoms or entities sdentified ® any manner
whaseever (Uikimusie Beneficianes™) by cr on bebalf of the Company or

» prowide amy guaranbes, seounty or e like to or on behalf of the Ulimais Boneficianos

{b] The managemest has represcnted, that, 1o the beu of it knowledge sod belief, a1 disclosed i Mot
P, 3 1o ¥he standalone NI AS financial salements, no funds have beem recived by the Company
from amy perscen or enlities, including locesgn enmtities (“Funding Parties™), with the undersianding.
whetker recesded in writing or otherwise, thal ihe Company shall;

= direcaly or isdirecily, lend or invest in other perssas or entities wentified in any manner
whatseerver [~URimato Beneficianics™) by or on bohalf of tho Funding Party or

+ provide sy guaraniee, seounicy of tee lilce from or on bebalf ol the Ulbmmate Bene e ienes; and

() Based on such sedil procedures as considared réasonable and approprale in the crcamsiances
nothing bas come |0 our notice that has cansed us 10 believe that the representations under subcluse
{ivy (b mnd (v} {b) contmin ey materis] mis-ststement

v. As stated im Mote 108 to0 the sandalong IND AS financial statements, the Board of Deroctors of the
Company have propocd fmal dividensd for e year which s sebyest 1o the spprovals af the member
an the ensuing Ansal General Meetng. The dividend declared i3 ih sccoadance wsth secton 123 of
e Act i the eabent i applied W declaratian of dividend

vi. Proviso io Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accouncip Rules, 20104 for mainmining Books of agowen
uaang swcounling soltware which bas a feature of recording audit rail (edit bog) facility & applicable
w ike Company witk elfect from Aprl 1, 2023, and sceoedingly, reporing under Rule 11{g) of
Companses {Audil and Auditors) Rules. 2004 i nol applicable for the financial year ended March 31,
024,

Fer Shah & Taparis
Charssrod

Farner

Memnbership Mumber: 106355
LIRS 23 D63 SSRONIZE4248
Diave: Moy T3, 2073
Place: Gundhinagar

Delhi Office : 52174, Ramjas Road. Karol Baugh, New Delhi - 110 005 « Tel : 011 - 2072 2222 / 33333« E-mail : dethifshahlapana com

Page 180



SHAH & TAPARIA (O

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 203, Canter Point Buiding, 100, Dr Babasaheb Ambedkar Road,

T Opp. Bharabmata Theater, Lalxaug, Parel, Mumbai - 400012
T Tod - 02242116800 Fax : 022 - 4022 0314

\\ E-mail * infof@ehahilaparia com
visi us al | www.shahlaparia.com

With reference by the Anncushe A refeered 1w in e Independent Auditors’ Report 10 the members of e
Comnpary om the standalone IND A% financia] sisiements for the year ended hasch 33, 2023, we repoat e
follerwing

i In respece of Progerry, plaat and squipment and Intasgible asscts;

a) (A The company bas maintamed reconds showing fell pariculass including queatitative detals and
siustion of Froperty, plani and equipmeni.
{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing ]l particulans of Intesgible pssets
Bi M Bas been euplined 10 ws thal the Company bas a mgular propram for physecal venlkation of
Propeity, plast and equipment on ss annual basis, which in our apinion s reasenabls havang negasd
the size of the compary and the napsre of s assels and mo matenal distropancies were nolced oa
uch venficaton.

£)  The tigle deads of immovable propertics (other than immavahle propertics whene the Company s the
letine and the lease ageeements are daly execuled in favoar of the leseod) disclosed in the sundaleae
INDF AS financial isatemenits sre beld i the name of the Company

dy  The Company has nod revalued i Propenty, Flam and Equipment (including Right-al-ase asscts) of
Intangible assets or both during the yea,

gf  Them ame no procendsngi Eilsed or peading against the Company for holding any bemami progeny
undier the Prokibition of Bemami Progery Transsctioss Act, [958 and rulbes made therounder.
ii.  [nmespect of invemonies.

The Cemnpany is a service company, peimarily rendering websie development and mainienancs servises
[Wich Services) asd payment patewsy services. Accordingly, it does mot hold sy physival mvenseeis
Thus, paragraph 3{H) af e Order is nol applicable to the Company.

it In respect of Investmenss, Leans snd Advances,
The Company has made smvesteenta 6, granied loans, secured or unsecured, io companses, limibed habdiny
panmerships or amy other parises during the year, = respect of which:
fal The contpany has pronvided loans and advasces in the nature of bans daring the vear. Saails whath

w given bslow
it
Farticalars tn":;:uw

A Aggregate amouni granied | provided dursg the yeas

Subsidiary companies (L1 T

Asgisles .
- Oibsers 629,06
B. Balasco outstanding a3 ot balesse sheet dave (m respeci of above cases

Subsideary companies 105 5%
- Assoiules -
«  Oehers

The Company has not provided any gesrantes or securily i sny other entiy dunng dse year
(b] The investments made snd e o end conditions of e gram of all the sbove-mmboned losns
during the year are, in cur opinion, not prejudicial s the imierest of the Company. —

(€] In the cxie of loze grven, the loans given are repayable on demand and as vech we are nol able o e,'f,'-."
{4} #s informed o e theee is no overdus ameunt for mrre than mincty days i fespecl of losss g f 1;

Il e

.__.-.._I.
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{¢) There m no loan given faling due during the year which bas boen renewed ar exended or fresh losas
given to setile the everducs of extsiing baans given fo the same pasty.

{ The keans and advances granied by the Company are repayabls on demand. The aggregatc amount of
such loans and sdvances io Promoters is Nil and io other relaled partied & defmed i clase (76} of
section 2 of the Companics Act, 2013 Rs. 140,07 million which s equal to 15.4% of the ial loans snd
advances granied.

iw. The Company has complied with the proviions of Soctions 185 and 186 of the Companics Aq, 2013 m
pespect af baans groated, invesiments made and guarantecs aad secesites peovided, as applicable

¥,  The Company has st sccepted amy deposit or amounts wisch are deemed to be deposits. Hence, repariing
wrder ehause 3w} of the Order is not applicable

vi.  Ta the best of our koowledgo and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the masdonance
af cowt records under Section 143(1) of the Companics Act, 2013, for g services of the Company
Aecordimgly, parspraph 3(vi) of the Onder 18 not applicabls:

viL  [m respect of siatulory dees:

a) Im our opinion, the Company bas gesscrally beem regular in deposting undisputed slatutory Juss,
incloding Geods and Serviees tax, Provedent Fund, Employess” Stme Insurance. Enconse Tax, duty al
Custom, and other matoral stasstory dues spplicable w it weth the appropniate authoritses. There were
n0 undispsted mmounts payable in respect of Goods aad Service ax, Prenddent Fund, Employees’ Siane
lsverance, [scome Tax, dory of Cussom, and other matonial statulory deés in arcam a3 a1 Marech 31,
202 fiee & peried of more than six months from the date they becama payabie

b To the best ol our knowlaige, secording o the mformation aed cxplanations given by the sanagement.
no stanlesy does refered 1o in &) sbove hanve not beeon paid on account of any dispate

vili, There were oo iranssetbons relsiing to previously unrecorded income that have been wurrendered o
dmicinded ad income during the year in the ax isessmenis under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (4 of 1%61)

it ) The Compary bas not defbolied i repaymsent of loans o ethor bormwings of in the paymenl of
wnteiest therenn 1o sy leader.

{b] The Company has not boen declaned a willid defaulior by any hask of Gnancisl wetiubon of
govemmeni or any governmeni aulhorty.
{c) There were no term boans rwised daning the yrar,

{d1 Om sn oveorll exsminstion of the financial stavements of e Company. feds moed on shan s
‘hasis have, prima fachs, not been used dering the year for long-tenm purposes by the Company

(e} Om am everslll examination of the fnecisl stsements of the Comgany. the Company has nol taken
ary Munds from any enlity of person oa seoount of of w meel the obligations of its subssdianes.

{f) The Comspany has mof reised sny loans during the vear on the pledge of securitios beld in e
sulbsisharics and hence reponting on cluse Yool of the Ovder i= not applcable

() The Comgpany has not raised monays by way of Btial public ofTer or funhes pubbe ailer (incloding
dtbl_ﬂ'l.ﬂltl-l during the year and hosce reporting under clawss Mala) of the (ader s nol

(bl Dunng the year, the Company bas mads proate placement of sharcs dehsg e year wnd the
requirements of section 42 of the Aci have been complied with. Fards raised have boen used for 1B
purpases for which the finds were mised.

KL {a) Mo fraud by the Company and mo material fraud on the Company haa been noliod of ropoed
during the wear.

(b Mo report under sub-sectien {1 2] of sechon 143 of te Companics Aot kas been fited In fomm ALDFT-
4 s prescrbed wnder rale Ilulfm{hﬂlﬁﬁm}hlm‘mi wiihs the Lenaral
Crorvernmeni, durisg the year and wpio the daie of Bis repord b

§ __-\.\,
H *
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I"'i'.-.f"&-*, :

— s e e

Delhi Office : 5274, Ramjas Road, Kangl Baugh, Mew Dathi - 110 005, Tel.. 011 - ?!?EE!‘E?J!ME-I‘HH delhiEshahiaparia com

Page 182



SHAH & TAPARIA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Kk

v,

i

Ll

13, Canter Point Buldng, 100, Dr Babasabeb Ambsdcar Foad,
T Opp. Bharatmata Theater, Lalbaug, Panel, Mumbsai - 400012
) Tol - 022-42116800 Fax - 022 - 4022 0314

e T E-mail  infogfahahiaparie.oom

ic) Based on the informatice provided by the company, there were no whisthe blower complusss
received by the Campesy during the year {and uplo the date of this report). Accondgly, clause
Muilic)of the Order is not applicable

mmam-mmdmmmmmnrumuu
ippheable

In our opinion, the Company Is in compliamce with Section 177 and 158 of the Companios Act, 2013 with
respect b applicable tranasctions wigh the related partics and the detxils af related party transactions bave
beem diseloged im the sfandalone THID AS finamcial saiements a5 required by the applicable accounimg
smandands.

{n} Bascd on informsiboa and explanations provided ba wi and our sudit procedares, in our apinion, the
Compesy has an adoqeate mternal sl gystem commensurats with the size and the pature of s
Ikingdd

{b} We have conssdered, the inicmal asdi reparts fof the year under mwdi, ssued 8o S Cospany
during the year sed till daie, in determining the natare, tisssg and exiest of cur padit procedures

In cer opinion, durisg the year the Comgany bas not entored imo any non-cih amsaclions with s
Direciors or persons connecbod with it digoeters mnd benoe provisions of sectos 152 of the Companics
Act, 2013 are not applicable bo the Cempany.

{ah In ezt episrion, the Company is mod required 10 be fegisseead under sectmom 45-1A of the Resorve
Dank of India Act, 1934, Hence, roporting under clause Hxvina), (k) and (<) of dhe Onder s ot
applicablc

(b In our opindca, there is po core Invenment company within the Growp (28 defined in the Core
Isvestment Companies (Reserve Bask) Directions, J006) ed socondingly roporting under clase
Mavipd) of e Order is not applicabla

The Company has not incwred cash bedses during the financial year covered by our oudii and ihe
immediaiely preceding financial vear.

Thewa kai been ae pesipnation of the staniory asdsan of the Comparny duning the year

Cn the hask of the financial ratios, agoing asd expecied dates of reafisation of francal amcls s payni
of financtal |igbilities, other informalion accompanying the feancial sislements and our knowledgs of the
Board af Direciors and Mansgensent plars and based on our xsminstion of the evidence supporting the
assumplions, pothing Bas coms: 1o our afiestion, whach causes us 1o believe tha any maserial wecertinty
exists as on the dale ol the audit repon indicating that Company is not capable of mectmg ws lisbilites
existing af the datg of balancs sheet as and when they fall due within a peried of one year o ihe balance
et daie We, however, siate that this & Aot B8 acsornce as fo the futers viahility of the Company. We
further sisie thai omr reporfing i based on e fbets up 10 the date of the awdil repan and we seither give
any guamnise Bos any assurance hal all Gakslibes felling due withim a period of ong year frons the Balance
st dme, will get descharged by the Company a4 ssd when they fall due.

wiuim:m.nmmm
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xx.  [nour opinion ssd socoeding 1o the infoemation and explanations given fo us. thare i o wnspent amaunt
undet sub-section {5 of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2003 pursmant to amy projeci.  Accondingly,
clauses Waxa) and 30 ib) of the Ornder ase 21 applacable

sxi.  The reporting umder clauss (xxi] & not appbeable in respect of audit of standalone [ND AS financial
statemwenis of the Company. Acconlimgly, e eamiment has becn incladed in respect of sid clusse under

this peport.

Faor Shed & Tapana
Chanered Accounisnis r——,
ICal tios Mo tmy : \-\
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We have mudibed the intemal Gnascial comtroli with refereace 1o sinadalone [NDF AS financal statements of
Infibeam Avenues Limiged {“the Company™) s of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit af the
standalome IND AS fleancal parements of the Company for the year endiod on thal dase,

mm:lﬁwtumﬁhfwﬂHﬂHﬂ;HMhm|Mu|MMDn
the inptermal contrel over fimancial reporting srilera crabliuhed by the Company considering the esseniial
componers of internall contred wtated in the Guidanes Mo on Audit of Internal Finaecial Controls Over
Finamcial Reporting issued by the Inatitule of Chanered Aecountants of India. These responsibilitios melads thy
design, implemeniation and maintenance of adequaie insemal finsacial conirols that wow eperating clfctnly
for cnsusieg B onderly and efficien conduct of ix business, mcludieg adherencs 1o the Company's pohicw, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and emory, the secareey sad coenplesensss of
the acoommting reconds. and the tinsly propasstion of relable f=ancial iaformation, as requacd eedor e
Compasaes Adt, 2013,

Amditor’s Eesponsihility
Char pesgpearesihilizy in 1 capecss an opinion on the Congpany”s intermal financial contmols evigr finangial reponing
with peference 1o these siandalone IMD A% fnancial statemenis based on ouf sudit We conducied oor sud in
secopdssee with the Guidance Moie on Asd#l of Iniermal Financual Controls Over Finsseial Reposumg (ihe
“Cuidance Mote™) and the Standards oo Audiing as specificd under secnoe 143 (10) of the Companies Act,
1013, wr the cament applicable 1 af audiy of inozmal foanscal conmols and, bolh seeed by ihe Insidric of
Chataied Accountssti of India. Thods Smadieds and the Gusdance Maote requare that we comply with ethical
requireenents and plan asd perform e aedit o oblain reasonable assurancs abow whether adequate mernal
fmancis] controls ever financial reporting with reforence w0 these standalions [MD AS finsscm| slatemenls was
catahlesbed mnd mainisined wnd i poch controds aperabed efectvvely 1 8l matesal Feape.
Orar audit mwolves performsg presoduncs by obisin sedit evidenee about the adequacy of the intemal fimancial
mwmmﬂmwﬂnknﬂa:mlhﬁnmiﬂﬂ AS MNnancial stabements and their
operating cffecivvencid. Our sudit of imemal finareial controls over financial reporimg inchuded oblaming an
understanding of imemal financial controls over financial roporting with refermes 1 tese itandzlone [N AS
financis] Slalemenis, asseasing te risk Gal o maserial weakness exists, and Wslsg and evabmnsg Uy design s
opessting effectiveness of internal control hased on the asseswed risk. The procedures selocted depend on the
suditor's judgement, including e asscaiment of the riaks of malesal misimlement of the flmancul sivlements
whether due ta fraud or amar.
W belivve that the aedil rvidence we hive oblassed 1 salficient and apgaoprisme 1o provade a bass for our auds
opinicn on e inlersal finascis] controls ever finsnemal reponing with reference 1o these sandalone IND AS
finargial slalemienis

AZ finsncial sipzments

A pompany's inlcmal fisancial controd over financial repoming with referemce i these standalone IND AS

finsseial Wsleinenls i & preces designed 1o provide reisonsble sssurance reganding the rehabadity of fmancis|

repociing and the preparation of financial siaioments (or exlemal purposes in accondance with gencrally

accepied accounting principles. A company ' micrnal fimansial control gver linancaal ceporeng with reference w

these standalone IND AS financial ststenwents mcludes those palicics and pragedarcs that:

{1} peviain % the mainkmascs of moends thae, in reasoaable demil, scowmiely and fasily reflect the imnsaction

and dispositions of the asscty of e company; ——
(2} provide reasonsble sssurance tha mnssciioas e recorded &x mecessary o perm preparation of finascial W
l.u.l.ﬂrulummﬂmﬁpﬂﬂlymﬁﬂmﬂmhlrﬂﬁmmﬁnﬂmﬂnmﬂﬂ_H, £
ﬁlmrnhm[undluulrumﬂmn-ﬂhw#hlmmﬁﬂwmmmmm“lm‘-

campasy, snd il
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(3} prenvide reasonable swwarance repanding preveation of tmely desection of unauthorized acquisition, wse, of
disposizion of the company’s axsets that could have a material effect on the financial sistemenis.

vinndaene IND AR (imancial ssacenoais

Because of the inherent limisions af imemal financial conirols over Gmancial poring with referesce 0 these
pandakene ND AS fiancial sistemvents, incloding the posasbility of coflusion of mmproper managemen
ovemnde of conwals, marzral missigemenis due 1o omor or faud may oocur asd pot be detocied. Also,
peujectsons ol any evalusiion of e intermal financial controls aver Mssncal repedteng with reference 1o these
imspdalene IND AS fmncisl sistements to futsre periods ae subject o the Fisk tai dee internal financal contral
cwver (lmancial reporting with reforence 1o thess sandalone TND AS financial statoments may bocome imadegquats
because of changes in conditions, of thet the degree of compliance with the poliics of precedures muy
delenorals

Lrpimion

|ummmcmuhummmmmim-1rml contrals over financal
reparting with reference o ese @taadalone IND AS financial statements and such internal Financial cotrols
over financial reposting with meference to thess sundalone [NTh AS financial satementi wene eperaling
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based o e iaternal control over financial reportimg critet eslablished by the
Company considering the essential components of imemal control staled in the Gualance MNole on Audi of
Imternal Financial Cosrots Over Financial Reporiing isswed by ihe Insfitute of Chanened Agcountists of Indma

Fog Shah & Taparis
Chamnered Accouniants
FCAL Fi sirafson Mo 1061

M aoianm Shah

Partnes

Memberibupn Number: 6555
UDEN: 2310635 5BGXIZEAIME
Diwie- May 25, 2023
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Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2023
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

ges in Equity

Statement of chan

for the year ended

#0000 190PEEl  LEISL

LLooN 1L on

MLBI0M Ll BIGN L N0N

LB EREOS'PE  BUiET
LLBION  RL 238N L4 88N

LE[SILFR] TN
DAY RRRCYS
O e o

©TeE M R ae sw aowejog

jwoad IUMERE
s Bupuersine
Al PAREHY (RIS RN unmde yarE
aajdusy

SRS

March 21, 2023

seak g Bupnp jeapdes

i ril i —

 IZOELE MW

Linbasayio ®

¥ T s T T T T——

S40usd popad Jojd o3 anp

-.l.__..w Kapnib us) 1..!._-.... 85T aunpeq paieasay  jendes aueyg Apnba ursaBueys LEOZ “LE W aw Sy

il

sead a1y Bupnp jendes

w T,

ZTOTLE narEwy

Saou s pajasd Jopd ey

LTOT "LE yadepy ae 5y

|exde) aueys Kynby v

Page 189



Hnanal Silements FY 1022-23

Infibeam Awenues Limitod

Statement of changes in Equity (Cont.) _
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Firincid Statemenis By 2003 23

Statement of cash flows

far the year ended March 21, 2023

o §2 in Million)
Year ended Year ended
o March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Adpistments to reconole Srofit before tax 1o ret cash fiows.

.. Depretiation and amortizanon expense 3 55320 586,46,

T B ey e | P — e

 Employer stock optian expense (net) L RIS BE21 727
~Pancecoms =00 19.21 18 Bf

R e TN e s wy T P L. 1. L

R McOmE — s 110 N -~ 1) F 1}

TP

s ExcESS llovance wrtten back .  ETUE Ty T
o UNedined foreign currengy loss / fgainjqner) B A
............ b - .17 v S —

Fair value gain on eguity instruments e ARG

T s e L

T

e LSy ND longRr Bquced e GRLE G T yem
Exdances wntten off : 000

. Mlovance for dowbtiddebts s %87
Baddebts wrienofl Tt 1698 0.00

Operating profit before working capital changes sy 148584
e PR L S B e

o ADCTRESE { (detiease) i) [ra0e and other paystles . T T Y
SCreTRIE N provisio

e P AL by ok

e LInCrEdsEldecrease in trade recamabies . - faan (6753
o (CrORGENdecreMCO Other ages. TR (359, @ LLE e
... NECchanges in working capital A ) sy S Y 6035

... Eash generated from operations —_— o e T 1546.20

... Direet tavos pael et of income tax refund) 160,40 (529 45)

B Cash flow from investing activities e R

Payment for acquistion of property, plant and equipment and intangitihe
asget (induding capital work-in-progress, intangile under development {230 55 {412 58]

- andcapkal ackances) ' i
e ROE A Moy gen o oubsiianiesinet) TR gy [7.08)
..... Repaymenc of Loans and advances by others net) e

b s T woresy __\z73en)

o Bahess dfmasaiing T B g g e

Proceeds from sale of munual fund £ 65453 34158
{1,552.41) {681.97)
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Infibeam Avenuos Limited
Finsngial Sraements Fr 207033

Statement of cash flows (Continued)

for the year ended March 31, 3023
S __ [P in Milion)
Year ended Year ended
T March 31,2023~ March 31, 2022
€. Cash flow from financing activities ) o
...... Divdend paid R S {1oash
_ Proceeds from sharg appheation money (E50F) T 099
....... Treasury Sharesandicorpus ; . fnroe 000
o Money Receved against shave warrants, RN 403 75 . oo
.. Interest paid . B _— Mgay . [2645)
.. Proceeds ! repayment of barmovangs {nef) e T Q.00 {198.31}
_. Met Cagh jused in] Financing Activities(€) 36908  (35629)
. Net incroase/idecrease) In cash & cash equivalents (A+BeC) 594,37 _{21.51)
. Cash & Cash equivalent a the begnning of the year . rs ) LE R 109935
Cahf Coshequivalentattheend oftheyear 167216 107784

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Tndirect Methed' a5 set aut in Indian Accouniting
Standard (IND AS) - 7 Staternent of Cash Fows” issued by the Irstinte of Charterad Arcourtants of Tndia,

—

__ Year ended Year endod
Particulars _March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
— INRin Million — INR in Million
.. Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: (Note7) I
E-Tlarh:‘l-‘ Mh Bﬁl‘k an—— .- LI TS
........... (3] Current secounts, RET BT S 1
women B Balance with bark i nodal accounts MR 78487
SNSRI i D o e i 021
Cash and cash equivalents 167216 1,077.84
The accompanyng nates ane an integral part of these standalane fnarca SLAlETES
Az par our report of evon date
For Shah & Taparia Fer and on behall 6f the Board of Directors af
Chartered Aocouritants Infibeam Avenues Limited
LCAL Firm tration Mo 109463W_— CIH: LES303G 201 0PLC061 366

-..-f"ﬁ . '."."-':?‘}i_

'ﬂ". e Ezp,iu-

Narottam Shah 5 o Vishal Mehza

Partner b | Managing Director

Membership Mo 106355 ), = DM 03093563 DIN: 01234707

Gandhinagar W, oy Gandhinsgar Gandbtmagar

Date May 25, 2023 N T Duite: May 25, 1023 Dot May 25, 2023
Sunil Bhagat Shyamal Trivedi
Chiel Firanoal Officer Cofmgamy Seoretang
Garufhinagar Gandhinagar
Date kiay 25, 2023 Date May 25, 2023
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Notes to

far the year ended March

1.

2023

Corporate Information

Infibearn  Awenues  Limited [the ©
incorparated an june 30, 2010 wnder the
kL1ﬂﬂucmmﬁmmihmagednhnlm
of softeane develogment |

WS

The Company is & public company domiclied in India
and is Incodparated under the prowissons of the
Companies Act applicable in India The
Wrunmmmaﬁewwmmm
Exchange of India Limited in Inia The registered
ufﬁcenm-mmpanrl:muduwmmﬂﬁrm
Buiding. Block No 56, Road-5C, Zone-5, GIFT CITY,
GMM.TMIDWH-W-!H
355

The financial statements werg autharised for ssus in
a:wda;ummarﬁnuimnfﬂmdrmmmhhy
25, 2023

Statement of compliance

These wandabone financal sialemenss have been
prepared in accordance wah the Indian Atounting
Handsrds (referred to as “Ind A57 a5 preseribed nder
section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 read with the
Companies {Indlan Accountng Standards) Rules as
amended from lirme 10 himes

Basiz of preparation

These siandalone  financial statoments have been
prepared on historical cost bass except for certain
linancial Instrumnents and defined benefis plans which
ang meeaiured at fair value or amortised cogt at the snd
of each reporting period. Historical cest is generally
hmdmﬂwfnmmlhmuuua:ﬁmmnh
axchange for goads and services Fair valye is the
price that would be recened b sell wn asset or paid
1o transfer 4 liabdity in an arderly transaction batwean
market partscipants at the measurement date All assets

mmmhmhmmﬂrEmpany
a% considered an operating oycle of 12 manths,

The stavement of cash Nows has bewn prepaned under
indirect mithod, Brofit or loss i adjusted for
the effecs of trarsactions of 3 nor-cash naturne,

LR B

i

Infibearm Avenues Limited
Firancial Statement B 3007 73

thﬁ Financials Statement

cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segrenated,

The financial stasemends are presented in Indian Rupes
[N which i also the Compary's functional currency
and all values are rounded to the nearsst melions,
except when otherwise indicated

Critical sccounting estimates

In the process of applying the Company's SEcounting
policies, mandgement has made the Tolleraing
judgements, which have the mest significant effect on
mmmmlnﬁwwmmﬂs:

Estimates and assumption

The key adsumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty a the repaning
date. that have a sigificant risk of causing a material
ddpstment to the carming amounts of assots and
hisbilities wathin the nest financial yoar, are desordied
below The Company based is assumptions and
ESLMAles on parameters avakible when tho finaneial
SLSents wene prepared. Existing oFeumstances and
assumplions about future developments, howemr
may change due o market CRANges o Crcumstan:es
arising that are beyond the contral of the Company
Such chamges ars reflécted in the assumptions when
Ehsty Egur

Defined benefit plans

Mnnstd:mﬂ!ﬁwdhﬂumﬁammd tha
m&uvm.nfnunhugmmmﬂm:mﬁmuumq
actuarial valuations. An actuarinl valuation rvolees
making various £ that may differ from
acual d in thoa fimure These wclude
the determination of the discount rate. future salary
mﬁmmmrmm:nmemm.ﬁ
irreabved in the valuabon and IS bong-term mlture, 2
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitse b chamges
in these assumptions Al BSSuUmpticrs are revioued b
each reporting date. The parameter maost subject e
change is the dscount rate, Discount rate has besen
determined by reference to market yelds on the
govermment bonds as at the balance sheet date The
modtality rate & based on publichy svalabde mortality
uﬂﬁ.ﬁmﬂmﬂmy:ﬁm:&rﬂ:ummu
Intendals in response ta demagraphic Fuiture
salary incroases are based on exgected future indlagian
rates for the gaintry

Further details about defined benefit oblbgalons aa
pfowided n Mote 25

any
delerrals or acoruals of past or future operating cash 3., Share-based payments

TECRDLS or payments and ems af incomes or
Anzntated walh investing of financing cash
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Notes to the

far the year ended March 31,

a5,

schale model to determine the fair value of the 37,
habslity incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based
PEyTENL FANSMTINS requines determination of the

most apprapriate vakiation model, which is dependent

on 1he berms and conditions. of the grant. This estimate

450 requires determination of the maost apprapriate
INputs to the valuation model including the expected 3.8,
life af the share option, volatility and davigend yield and
making assumptions about them For equay-setilied
share-based paymend transacticnd, the labilty needs
la be maasured a8 the time of grant.

Tm:mmaMAmmumymﬂEW
$1mwmnwmswmrmmem
employess of the Compary. Each 54R shall confer the

right 1o he elighlr employes o receve appreciaticn
{cash settled / equity settled) with respect o the 41,
uncerting Eguily Share on the entigled shares alter

& has been exercised i accordance with tevms of the
Schome.,

The assumptions and models used for exth
fur valye for share-based payment iransscions e
drsciosed in Mole 28

Taxes

Dieferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
crocts 1o the extent that it is probablie that taxable
prafit will be avallable agans: which the losses can
e wiilised.  Sigrificant MARIQEMan | 5
reruired 1o determine the amaunt of ge tax
assets that can b ied, based upan the likely
mmgamumlqmmrrumlmn-prmsmgﬂmr
with future tax planining Srategies

Intangible asset including intangitle asset under
development

Intangdle development costs are capitalised a5 and
when echncal and commsrcal Teasibility of the
asset is demonsirated, future economic benefis are
prodabile. The costs which can be capitalzed includs
thee saliry and ESOP cast ol that are directly
attributabile ro development of the asset for its ntended
T Hmﬁmnﬂmmum&mu
nowrred Intangible assets are tested Tor impairment
wREREVEr Events or changes in Cirtumstances indicate
that their carnyng amounts may not be recoverable
Reler Mote 4.6 the estirmated useful life of Intangible
assets. The carnying value of Intangible assets has been
disclodad In Note §,

Froperty, plant and equipment

Risfer Mote 4.5 far the estimated uselul Kfe of
plart and eguipmen The carrying valse of
plart and equipment has been disciozed i

4,

Infibeam Avenues Limited
FAnangial Spatements FY 2002.23

Financials Statement

Rewenus recagnition

Revenue i$ recognsed upon transfer of conerel of
promised services Lo Qustomers in an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects
‘o receive in exchange for those servioes.

Investments

Irvvestment in subsidiaries and associates ts carried at
CosLin the standalone financlal atements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Paolicles

The following are the significant Seouniing palioes
applied by the company in preparing s finarcial
stapements

Current versus non-current classification

The Compary presents assels and Babilties in
the Balsnce Sheet based on CLNTBrL RS -C LR Tang
classication,

AN assed is ireated a5 current when it is:

*  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
consumed in the narmal aperating cycke,

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading:

: Expecied 10 be realised within twebe manths
aftar the reporting periad; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from
mm@dwmmm:mwm a
beast e manthes sier thee repoting pericg

Al other assets are classified a5 nan-current

A hability i ourrent when

' [tisespected to be setted in the rioemal aperatng
oycle;

s I:umumm.riyfwﬂupurmﬁeﬁumng.

© R due o be serded within twebve mantks sfer
the reporting period; ar

*  There is na unconditional right to defer the
settiement of the lability for ot heast bwebse
mardhe alter the reporting periad

ﬂECmWwﬂuﬁusﬂnﬂmfliabﬂiuasﬂm
cufrent

Mﬁmmm:wmmare:mhdaﬁ 140
Curfent assets and kabilzies,
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Firancial Statereanes. Py 3033-73

Notes to th

for the year ended March

em[;inancials Statement

n,

4.1 Business combinations and goodwill

&mcmmmﬂmmmwmm
acquisiion method prescribed under IND AS, Tha cost
ufmacmhtmﬁmrﬂu&maggrmurm
considerabion transferred measuwed at agliLiticn
Gl fair walyp

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred

AL the acquisition date, the identifiable  asgers
acquired and the labiities assumed are recogniseg
ar their acquisition date fair valses Far this purpose,
the Eabilties assumed inchade contingent Eabisies

wmbmmmemwhmaruwdw
Cperation and the partion of the cash-generating ung
retaingd,

If the initial accounting for a business combinatian
i Incomplete by the end af the priod
in which the combinaton ooours the Compary
' amounis for the items for which

fepfstenting  present igaticn  and  they are Teports prosdsional

mwmuﬂﬂmuﬁwuuuﬁrmmwr the accounting i incomplete. Those provisional
ther fact that outfiow of resources ey Teli OGNt are adursied through goodwil dufing the
bermmnuprm.mmmfﬂmﬁum measurement peviod, or additional assets or labdilses
arﬂimhmsxmndhahﬂmmwmﬂ are recognised, to reflect new information cbtained

maasuifed at the bass indicated below:

Dcfmedmmlsdrlme-s.mﬂmunr
Labdigies related 1o
are recognised and measured In accondance with nd
AS 12 Income Tax and Ind A5 19 Emplesses Benefits

about facts and crcumstances that existed ar thit
acquisition date that, if krown, would have affected the
SMOUNEE recognueed at thar date These adjustments

Liticn
ey the acioui da:.
When the Comparty acquires abusiness, it assessesthe 3 Foreign currenc
ﬁlmmammhmhm Th:mwrwfimlalﬂmarrprﬁmrmf

classificabon and designation in accordance with

the contractual terms, poonomic ciftumstances and

Perinent conditions as ot the acquisition date This
embedded der

IFF, mﬁﬂn:lhemrﬂmmlmnq-
Transactions and balances

mcludes the separation of denvathes in Tmﬁmfmmareimmp fecordon
hest camtracts by the acquires. by the at they functional currency spot rate ar
If the | combination is achieved in s oy Ihed.nﬂhelm'runmﬁrﬂquaﬁfmﬁurreqn:rnmm
preacasly held MILErest IS re-measured at s Mumm-,-anmmmbmesdwunmﬁmrnr&gn
ﬁqlﬂlmdﬂ.ﬂ'fﬂ'ﬂ Lot nied anvy resulting gan o loss CUrTencies arg rarslated af the functionsd ¢

is fecognised in profit o Ioss. s-putﬂmuuqqungeuﬂurwﬁ\gd?aw.%w
Goodwdl i " 8 ot cost, 1 the Mfﬂ'&mﬁmr@mmmwumlatl:nﬂ

of the aggregate of the consideration transferred snd
AT privdcus interest held, over the net identifiable
denpets acquired and liab#tes assumsd.

A cash generating unit 1o which goodwsll has been
mmsmrmmmentm.vm

MONELAry KRS ane recognised " Statement of profi
oF laus,

Non-monetary Kems that are measured in ferens of
historical cost n 8 Toreign currency are [ranslated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the il

irsactions. Hon-monetary items mesdured & fair
'""1:;"’:-’ when th‘: 0 rd:jlm that ":ﬁ value in foreign currency are translated using the
E m“"p"". "dm‘ﬁmﬁm'm Bachange rates at the date when the fair value i
Generating el determuned. The gain or loss arising on translation of
'h‘emm[hﬁmmﬁrﬂmm”“ nan- #ems measured at far value is tregtod
ﬂﬁ:n.mﬁ’hﬁ.w”ﬂmﬁ e or.ooah the recogmition of the gain or koss en
- Lo the change in fair value of the item (e, translstion

nﬂl.l'_reﬂrryhu nmmarmhmmlhmw

wmhgmummﬁmmﬁ:w
loss an m:ms:ﬁwhmﬂhm
reversed in subsaguent periods, ¥

.'-.--
A

g

-~

TN
-:I_.'}'\l'l

4

= )

olerenies on ibems whose fair valie gan or lass o
Mﬂngaﬁedhﬂtlﬁﬂﬂemeuufpmmarhﬁmualm
Wdhﬂﬂwwaﬁtﬁrhs&.rﬁplﬂﬁﬁﬂ
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Financial Staterrents BY 2002.21
Notes to the Financials Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2033
4.4 Falr value measurement For the purpose of i vabue disclosures, thee Covmypany
mmmﬂmmumwmﬁmm
s walue is the prce that would be recenved 1 sail basis of the natwre, characteristics and risks of he
S0 d558 or paid to transfer a Rabilky o an orderly SO and the lovel of the Fair value higrarchy
ansaclon DEDEEn market pamicipants at the a5 explained
Mmedsbrement date The fair value measurement is ;
buried on the presumption that the transaction ta sell This note summarises accounting policy for G value
the aseet or transfer the kability takes place sehar Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
hﬂ1lmnrmpalmrhufnrﬂmmnrhhnty relevant notes.
o * Sgnificant acoounting judgements, estimates
and Esumptions
*  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the meas: :
achaneageous markes for the asset or liatslity Quanthasive hi'fm"”"l = ol far  alue

nlemﬂaﬁmﬂmdﬂwﬁmm !
be accessible by the Company * Fnancial insorumnents (nduding those carrid at

The fair vaue of liabilky ad ke
[ an amsel o 4 lia = TRasUT
=ing the assumptions that market pamicpants would 5. Property, plant and equipmant

1t when pricing the asset or habiley, assuming that Property, pisit and egupment is stated at cos)
Tmarket parlicipants act in their économic Best interest net of sccumulated deprecishon and acoumulated
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset lakes nppairment losses, f any. Such cost includes the coat
MO JCCOUNE 3 Market participant's ability to generate of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
sronomic benefies by using the asset in its highest and borrewing Costs for longeterm constructon projects
hmmwh%ﬂlnmwmwm Ihm_MMrhﬂlm:mNﬁurmn
that would use the ssset in its highess and best use. mcdmahnme_gmrﬂmmqaﬂwhnm

: 8 the date of acquisivon When signiicant parts of
IIr:mmmmmMMm mm.mmmpmmrmmm

approgriate in the crcumstances and for which replaced & intervals, 1he Company recognises such
sufficient daga are available o measure fair value, pans &5 individudl assets weh specific useld fhes
maximising the use of relevant cbservable inputs ang and depreciates theen accordingly Al repair and
mimnﬁrqﬂtmurmmbhmu. manlensnce Cosis are racaghised in ftatement of
Al azsets and haodeies for which fair value is measured profit or loss as incurved

ar tisclazed in the financial statements are categorised Capital wark-in-progress comgrises cost of fved a5sels
within the far value hiersrchy, as described below, that are nce yet iratalied and ready for their intended

rasedd on the Icnest level input that is significant tm the use at the balance sheet date
fair vl Freasurarnsnt wiialg
g by Lepreciation i caloulated on a written dewn value
M‘—ﬁmﬂhﬂﬂﬂmMme bariis over the estimated useful lves of the assets
SIve markers far anieal assets or liabdipes, Tellows:
Level I — Valuation techniques for which the * Building - 60 years
west level input that is significart to the fair
value measurement s directly or indirectly * Leasehold Improvernents - 10 years
obsereable * Plant and equipment - 5 10 10 years
Level 3 — Valuation techruques for which the A :
leﬂhvﬂhmm&ﬁqnmmhl# Furniture & Fictures - 10 yoars
value measurement ks unabservable * Wehides - 8 years
For assets and Rabilgies that are recognised in the * Computer & Peripherals - 310 6 years
financial statemens 0.3 FECurTing basis, the propeny, plant p—
deterenings whether transfers have oLurred beteaan wmﬁm initially M:M'm def;;:mw
Ie—mlsm:m::ermhymmqmgmmm upon disposal or when o Ritwe economic benefils
|ba=:ﬂdmmehuﬂhﬂlruu[mmssmﬂ'mmh are expected from s use o disposal Any nam or
fir uemwmmisavduhanwtm_ i
rultioverd Za 8 Tas\ o33 arising on de-recognation of the asset (caloulatod

A Bt g

[
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as the difference betwoen the net proceed
and the cannying amount of the asset] is inclided i
Hwﬁa:enmnfi‘mfﬁldmﬁsmnhauﬂ
deregogriged

Intanglble fssets

Infangible assets acquired separately are measured
an ngial recognition at cost The cost of intangibie

3005 afquired in @ business combinaton (s their
hirvm_r{&_:he date of acquisition, Fallowing initial

& 5

ELOF pamn of emplayees that are drectly attributable 1o
develipment of the asset for its mtended use,

The useful ves of intangible assets are assessed as
either finite or indefinte. Intangible assets with finite
Ives are amorbised awer the utelul ooonomic life
mimmﬁrimpaﬁmwumrlsm
indicaion that the iMangible asset may be Wripaired
Tl-umminhunp-uriudmmmmnwm
for an i auset with 2 findte wsefyl he are
rendewed at beast at the end of sach i=rind
Changes in the expected wseful life or the

patiern ol Corcumpiion of ulure econamic bemelis
embadied i the asset are considered 1o miadify the
Amartsation pevisd or method, as anrd
mutma:dmwgeshmﬂlrg eshimares. The
armantisation expense on intangdle assets with finge
Irves Is recognised in the statement of prof and lass

Gains or losses arising fram de-recognition of an
mtugﬂeamﬂmeaﬂndﬁmdﬂmem
thmmmmmm:mmmmum
Hmmmaﬂarumugﬁuﬂmﬂuﬁmmnfm
uMmemmudﬂmm.

Amartisation
Peried of Amartisation of Intangibles is caloulated a5
Feslkornss:

Computer software acquired on Amalgamation -
& years

Computer softwars scguired - 10 years [wef

Apnd 01, 2020] B

* Trademark acquired on Amalgamation -
e April 01, 2020 A

i

=

4.7,
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IT Matfarm acquired on Amalgamation - 5 years
e £ April 01, 2020

:mmmmmmtm
= 25 years pw e F April 01, 2020

Irtﬂnlﬁrpumamd::mmterm-we-hm
tw.el Apeil 01, 2020)

Intangible assets under development

Expenditure incured on acquisiton Aranstructon
ﬂhﬂnﬂhamﬂkﬁnmreﬂyhmr
Huﬂdﬂduseﬂhﬂmemummﬁﬂhﬂ
wnder [ntangible asséts ynder development, During
ﬂlepﬂndn{ﬁemﬁ:mum.:humummmr
FTRAIrMEnt annually,

Leases

The Compary assesses at contract inception whether a
COMradt is, or ConLaing, a lease That is, o the cortrac
anweys the right to control the wse of an dentifin
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Company as a lessen

Tmtunpamhmmduuwm of lpase
for building and for vehicles The Company assesses
m&wa:wm:wmamamwmm
& CONEract A conlract is, ar contaans, a lease ff the
COALFACT comveys the nght to contral the use of an
whentified asset for & :

consideration. To
the right to contrel the use of an idengilied EASUT, [
Emwymmﬁwurmm:mumnmhﬁ
the use of an identified
substantially all of the economic benefits from wse
Hﬂmmthmg:hmmdufﬂlmmm.l
the Company has the right to direct the use of the
mmcmwwgamrmn:m and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
shon-term leases and beases of lowwvalue assets For
mwm:mmwmrmuhtmmq
reognizes the lesse payments as an aperatng
EXPENSE ON A Siraight-line bagis over the term of the
mmCmmwnmﬁmmmmmmm
lease payments and right-of-use 55005 MepreREnCing
the night to use the underlying assecs as below

I} Right-af-use assets

The Company recognises rghofuse assels
the commencement date of the kease [ie, the
dammumm:gﬂmrshi;uemum
Right-of-use assets are maasured at eost, lese &y
mwwmlmw losses.
and for ary remeasuremen of lngse
labiiries. The cost of rght-ofuse assets inchasies
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the amount of lease labilites recognised, initial
dummmwrﬂmdmpmmumm
3 or before the commendcemant date less any
lease mcentives recened, For leass af’ builcing
r@ﬂ-ﬁ-mmm&wa&mdmanrﬁgh-
kre basis over the sharter of the lease term ang
the estimated wseful lves of the underlying assats
fie 30 and GO years) and for lease of vehicles
Rught £f- use assets are depreciated on a strasght-
hwhﬂtamﬂnﬂm@ﬂﬂlme:umnd
the estimated useful Ives of the underking
a55ets [Le. B years) If ownership of the leased
#55eL ransfers to the Comparny at the end of the
lease term or the cost reflects the eoercise of a
purchase option, depredation it caloulated uzing
ﬂwmulmﬂiﬂ'ecﬁhumwﬂwl-nf-
U 3SSelS arg Also subject w imparment

Leaze LiablNes

Al the commencement dae of the lease, the
Company 5 lease labdives measured at
the predent of lease payments to be made
aver thit [ease term, The lease payments include
fived payments (including i substance fowed
payments] kess ary lease incemtives receivabie,
vanable lease payments that depend o an inges
OF A rabe. and Smaunis exped od 1o be paid under
fesdual vakie guarantees. The lease payments
5o indude the exercise price of a purchase
option reasenably certain to be exercised by
the Company and prymenis of penalties for
Terminating the lease, If the lease torm reflects
the Cormpany exereiss e Gption to permingse,
ﬂrhmlmmﬁmmmmm
an indesx OF a rale are recognised a5 expenses
{unless they are incurred to produce ifmentninies)
i the period in which the event or condition tha:
triggers the payment ocours.

hchﬂmmg:h-rprﬁemvmmﬂeurmﬂm
metmawumiﬁh\:maibwmm;tm
at the lease commencement date because thi
nberest rato Wmplice in the lease is not readily
demnwunle.ﬂurihumwmmdate.m
Murmmmmwﬂwmm
the accretion of interest and reduced far the
lpase payments made. in addibon, the

amaunt of lease Kabilities s remeasured # therg
is @ modification, a change in the lsass term, a
change in the hease payments feg. changes
1o future payments resultng from a change in
&N sdek oF rae used to determine such ldase

Infibeam Avenues Limited
Finangial Statements Fy 2002:23
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current and non-gursent financial kabiites

fiiiy Short-term leases and leases of lawi-value
aAfders

The Compary applies the shomterm logse
Fecognition exemption to its shoreterm leaces,
e, thate leases that have a leass term aof 12
manihs or less from the commoncement dase
and do not contain a purchase option), It also
dpplies ths Iease of bwaalus sssets recedniion
exemption (o leases that are corsidered to he
low value. Lexie payments on shovi-tenm loases
mlumdhmmhumunqmgmmas
Expense on & siraight-ling basis ower the lpase

Leases for which the Company = a lessar &
classified 58 finance ar operating lease. Leases
In which the Company does not transies
substantially il the rsks and rewards incideneal i
ownership of an asset are dassified as operating
lease=. Rental income arising is accounted for o
i straight-line bagis over the lease terms

48 Government Grants

Government grants are recognised at thes Gir value
1*!;;“‘:11' Is & reasonable sssurance that the gran
will be received and the Company vl camply with Al
attathed conditians,

Governmaent grants refated 1o assets fi s these whese
Py condition 'uma:.lnuﬂiyquahﬂmg far tham
!rmddmr:m.mnumwmmltmlmg-
b assets) Mg mOn-manstaty qrants 2 Gur
waluse, are presented in the balange sheet by deducting
the: grant in arrhang at the Carrying amount of the
asset, inwhich case the grant is recognised in profit or
hsns:rm.ninnnfﬁepm:mm EApETIEE

} Hﬂmﬂmmmhrﬂhmmmuuﬂ

aperations

Man-current assets and Disposal Growg are classifie
a5 held for sale o thoir g amount & imended
o b recovered principally throtgh sale rather than
continuing use. The candition for cdassilicannin
fnr!-&:hmvhenﬂunmnﬂmmmr

Page 198



Notes to the Fin

for the year ended March 31, 2023

4.10,

the Disposal Group 6 avalable for immediate calby
anel the same & highly probable of being completed
within cne year from the date of dassification as hald
for sale Hﬂmmm:marﬁﬂﬁpmal&mphdd
Mmﬂwnmwﬂmm
ard fair valie less cost to sell, Non-currens 55605 Ancl
Disposal Group that eeases to be dassified as held for
ﬁhmhmmuﬂubmﬂmmm
before the Mar-Current biset and Disposal Group was
chmrmﬂumrummhmedmwww
drnerdization and its recoverable amourt at the date
wiegn the Dizposal Group no longer meets the “Held
for sale* critenia,

A digcontinued operalisn B a component of the
undertaking that has been dispased off or i elassified
and

¥ represents o separate ling of Busingss or
graphical sfea of operations and:
Elﬂiﬂﬂfimmmdﬂaﬂlﬂﬂw
nrlm.-duhnenrbmuwmaruuimm

The requlis of discontinued operations sre presented
separately in the Standalone Statement of Profe and
Loss,

Imnpairment of non-financial assets

Hanefinancial assets are svaluated for

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
thummmmnwrmhruwﬂﬂt
For the purpase of impairment testing, the recoverable
AMOUNE (.o the higher of the feir value less (ost 1o sell
and the value-inusse) i anm an indivadyal
dset basit unless the asser does Ml génerate cach
fows that are largely independent of those from
weher assets In such cases, the recoverable amourt s
determined for the cash generated unit (CGL) to which
fhe asset belongs

by the amouns by which
the camang walue of the sisets exceeds the estimated
redomerale amount of the aszer. An i Fass
Iswhhumﬂmn:ﬂmlfm
has been a change in the estimates used 10 determine
the recoverable armaunt, The carmying smaunt &f the

4.11,
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ciftumstances indicace that the carrying walue may be
irmpaered.

Jmmmtmwfmmmmmgm
m&ﬂmtﬂmcﬂummﬂwwﬂmu
reistés. When the recoverable amount of the CGU i

recognised. Impairment losses relating to poriathiell
Canned be reversed in future periods,

Imangible assets with anclefinite usefd lyes e
tested for imparment annually a1 the CGLI beved, a5
Sppropriate, and when Sroumrstanoes indcate tha e
Carrysng value may be impaired

Berrowing cest

Barrowing costs directly attributable ta the acquission,
mmmnwmmﬂanmnﬂmm;mmy
balmumrammwmnfmmqurﬁwﬁwi:s
Mumwmaewhmﬂmuﬂmnw
thimLumb&mqmmuremnm-n
the peried in which they ocow

4.12, Revenue Recognition

Rendaring of services

Hnmuhmmgqummtraumd:muﬂd

’ SEFVICES [0 Customers in an amount that
mmmmmmmmﬁn
o rece inexchange for those services

on seflement of rransactions measured by walse of
Transactiors processed a5 per the rales and terms
SFeEd BEbween patieg

Revenue from Web Services s recagnised upfront
amwmmummwmhmm 1]
the customer fn cases where mplementation and
Foof customisation sendces rendered signifacantly
rreadifigs OF cudlomises, thess servce i récagnises
proparonaly over the period

Registry Services remnues primarily arise fram fod
fees charged 1o registrars for the initial Fegistration
or renewal of 000 damaln names Resvenues from the
insial reghtration or renewal of darmain names are
deferred and recognized rateably over the regisiration

term are deferred until the new incremenzal v
commences. These fees are then recognized raccaisy
o thie rénewal term,

MHMWMMMMMW
Wlnamﬂﬂhwmam

—"—‘-h\u:ln amounls tolleorsd on behall of cussomers
o
T
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The Company presems eeverue net of decounts
and colection charges. Reverue also exchides taxes
callated from customens.

fevenue from subsidiaries 5 recognised based on
iransadion price which is at arm's length.

Camract assets are recognised when there is excess
of reverne sarned aver billings on condracts. Coniradt
asgets are classfied as unbilled revenue (only ao of
InvHENg i5 pending] when thare it unconditional right
10 receie cash, and only passage of Ume is required, as
e CONErachual terms

Expess billing over revenue Cooniracn Habilng?) is
fecognised when there ks billing in extess of revenues.

In accordance with bnd AS 37, the Comgpany

A ONETOUS COMract provision whon the unavoidabls
coms of meeting the chbligations wnder a contract
aurmed the econaimis benefits to be reosd,

Cantracts sne subjed to modificaton to account lor
changes in contract specification and

The Company reviess madification o confract In
cofjuncion with the original contract, basis which
1he transsction price could be allscated ko a new
pvformance obligation, or tramsaction pece af an
wisting obligation could undergo & change. [n the
SNt Iransaction prce is revised for existing oblgation,
& cumulative adjustmaent & accounted for

The Company dsaggregabes revenue fiom contracts
with eustomers by offering and geography

he Company exercses judgemant in determining
whether the perfermance obligation s satsfied at a
pEnd i Eime or over 3 penod of tme. The Company
considers indicatons Swch a6 how Cusiomer consumes
benefits a5 seraces are rendered ar wha controls the
iriiet 2% it w5 being created oF existence of enforceatile
nght to payment for performance to dae &3 por
COMFSCE.

Inkerest Incomie

Far all financesl imdtruments measured at amartsed
08t inlingst moome is recorded using the effacie
mpergst rate (EIR), The EiRt s the rare tha

diseounts the estimated fulure cash recelpts over the
cxpected Me of the finandal instrument o 3 sharer
nanod, where appropriaie. to the gross carrying
ameiant af the finsnclal asset of we the amortised cost
al o financial kabilgy, When caloulating the effecive
inperest rate, the Company estimates the sxpected
cash fows by corsidering ol the contractual terms
af the finandial instrument {far éxamgle, PrEpayTenL

Infibeam Avenuwes Limited
Franicisl Srapermends B 203-3E
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far the year ended March 31, 2023

consider the expeced credit loszes Intevest incomp i
irludesd in other ncorme in the statement of profil o
loss,

Rental income

Rertal income aming from operating beases o
accounted for on & straght-line badis ever the lease
terms and i3 inchuded n ciher income in the statement
of prof or loss due o a5 nature

Export Incentives

ExXpo incenties are acosunted on acorual basis based
o SerVcED rendened

4.13. Financial instruments - Initlal recognition and

subsequent measurement

A fimancial irstrument i any contract that gies rise to

& Bnancial asseq of one entity and a financsl Kabilty or

oty instrument of anather entity

&) Financial assets

fiy  Initial recognition and measurement,
Al Fnancid  asses, except  wvestmenl  in
subsidisnes and joanl ventures, are recognised
initially at fair wvalue plus, in the case of Bnancoal
assets nod recorded af [air vahss ehrsugh prafit or

logs, transaction costs that are attricutable o the
arquisition of the fnaencial assers,

i) Subsequent measurement

For purposes af MEASEFEmanN,
finangial assets are clagsified in fow categories

= Dt instrurmeends at amonised cost

= Debd instruments at fair value through
ather comprehensive incoma (RTOCD)

= Debt instruments at fair value through
profit or kass (FVTPLY

* EQuily ndiruments measuned ail fair valye

through other comprehenshe  income
[AYTOCT)

Equity instruments reasured a1 fair vakie
thrpugh statermnent of profit and leds (PUTRLY

* Dbt instruments at amortised cost

A debl mstrument is measured a1 amartsed cos)
if bath the follpwing condiions are met

. the asset is hedd within a business model
= whase objective 5 o hold asse1s far

-

TR Ta s owoliecting contraciual exth Rows.
smension, call and simdar options) but does nol o b A A

F'-i:'_. 1
=
4 1
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Contraciual tenms of the asiet give rise an
specified dates to cash fiaws that are
Fymenits of principal and infevest (SPFT) on
Mﬂiﬁlpﬂmrtmﬁ:q.
After initial measurement, such finarcial assnis
arg subtoquently measured at amonised Cost
using the effectve wterest rae (ERR) method
Amortised ¢ost s caloulated by takirg intg
0Count iy discount or prermium on acquisition
and fees 0 COS that are an integral part of the
EIH.MEIEMEWHM
Income in the statement of profit and lass. The
lesses arising from impairment ane recogrised
in the statemernt of profic and loss Thes category
generally applics to trade and olher recervanliss

Dbt Instruments at fair value throwgh ather
comprehendive income [FYTOCT)

A debt instrument s measured o far value
through ather comprehensive income i both of
the falloving criteria are meat

the chiectiee of the business model i
ahieved Goth by colleciing contractual
cash flows and sefling the financial assess,
arvd

the 3s5e’s contractual cash flows TEEESEnE
P

Debt instruments inchaded within the FYTOCH
£ategony are measured inlially as well as at sach
Feporing dave at fair valse, Fair value movamenis
are recognized in the other comprehersive
incomee  (OCH  However,  interest incr,
Empaifment lesses & reversals and fareign
exthange gain or kass are recogrised in the
stafement of profit ang loss On rigisn
of the asset, cumulative gain or less
%hmlﬁrmmmmwmw
to statément of profit and koss. Interest earned
miﬂhuhﬁngmmueummrsrepm:d
45 Inberest oo wsing the EIR method

Debtinstruments at falr value through profit
or logs (FUTPL)

FVTPL &5 a residual eategary for debt instruments.
Any deb instrument, which does net meer the
nteria for categedization as ot amartized coat or
#5 FYTOCL i classified a5 af FUTPL

rn#m:hmmrrwebnmﬂewmm
4 gebt instrurnent, which  othensise meets
amortized cost or fer value through other
COMFEREnsve i ome Criteria, Asn{;ur'.-um:_f

e

Ly

Infibeam Avenues Limlged
Fmﬁalmrflﬂ!:Ji
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through profic or loss. However, such eocion
i% allowsed only if doing S0 reduces or eliminatss
4 measurement or recognition mCgnaslEny
treferred 10 a8 ‘accountng mismatch) The
Company has not designated any dobt nstrument
a5 at FUTPL,

Debt instrsments ncuded within the  FVTPL
EMagory are measured ot fair value with all

changes recognised in the Sterment of profit
and oz

Equity Instruments:

All equity irvesiments in scope of Ing-AS 100G are
measured at fair value Eguity instruments vwhich
are held for trading ave classified 55 3t FYTPL For
 other equiy instruments, the Company may
make an irevocable ebection to present i cober
comprehensive income subiequent changes in
the air value. The Company makes such slecion
an @ instrument-beinstrument  basis, The
clagsification is made on initial recogninion ang
Irreseahle

It the Compary decides o :la:-.';ra- an aquity
ingrument as at IVTOCL then fair wahie
changes on the irstrument, extiuiding dnadends,
are recognited in the Ol There i no recycling
of the amounis fram OC] 16 BAL sven on sale of
vesment. However, the Company may iransfer
!h-uwmumgaaﬁnrhﬁmlﬁnmity

Equity instruments induded within the PyTRL
Laegary are measyred & fair value wah al
ﬂw‘ﬂ: recognized in the statement of profit
and

Investment in subsidisries and afzociafes:

Irvestmant  in subsdiaries  and assnclates
i carrled B cost in the standglons francial
Statembns,

Derecagnition of financial azsets

A Ninanclal et [or whare appiicable a part of
3 inl assed or par af 2 grouwg of similar
financial assets) s prirmaniy derscognited fia
remowved from the Compary's balance shesal)

ﬂurighﬂlumcaihﬂmrrum:m-
550t hanve ewpired, or

The Compary has trarsferred its rights
te receive cash flows from the asset or
=, has assumed an obligation 0o pay the
“:-'H" Tecived cash flows in full without material

]
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fi)

bl
i

transferred ror retained substantially a8 of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transfenmag
conirol of the asset, the Compary cantinues 1o
rerognise the rarsferred asset 10 the eatent of
the Company's continuing irvolvement. [n that
CaLe, tha alse AR agspcated
Eawliy. Thae tr. red asset and the associated
babikty are measured on 3 basis that reflects the
nghts and abligations that the Campany has
redained.

Continuing involvemint that Lakes the form of 3
fuaramies gver the transferred assel s mogsuned
at the lower of the ofiginal carrying amount af the
as5el and the maximum ameunt of consideration
that the Company could be required to repay

Impairment of financial aszets

Tha Cam fecoguzes loas allpvsances whing
the expected credit foss (ECL] model for rhe
ﬁmmwamﬁthmnﬁrﬂmﬁ.mdﬂﬂ'mgh
profit or foss. Loss allowance for (rade receivabies
wath no significant financing  companen: is
mexsLfed a1 an amount equal (o Kletime ECL
For all other financial assets, expectod credit
hnmarenmm-unmiqqﬂmm
11-rrrunmECLuﬂ:ssuurel-qshemnlpiﬂum
ingrease in credit risk from inial recoghitian in
which cate those are messured at Metime ECL.
ﬂhmnfmd:mﬁ[bms[wmrsﬂ]
that is reguired 1o adust the loss aliowanice at the
fepartang date o the smaunt that is requiced to
hrﬁmmﬂwmumlmm
Qain af loss in profit or lpsg.

Financial Liabitities

Initial recognition and measurement

Fim-m.il-imlinarediﬁiﬁed.:mi.i

]

Infibeam Avenues Limited
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Al Timancial Kabilities are recognised initially a1 fax
walue and, in the case of laars and barrowings andd
payables, net of Grectly attributabile transastion
Cos[L

The Compary's financial labiities inchade trads
and ather payables, bbans and berrawings.

Subsequent measurement of financial
llabilities

The measurement of financial babilzies depends
on their dassificaton, a5 desoribed bobow

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial Babilities at fair value through prafit or
loss include financal llabdities held for trading
and financal lebilites designated upan initisl
recognition as ar fair value h predit or
loss. Financial Eabiities are classified a5 held far
trading if they are incurred for the pirposes of
repunthasing in the nesr term

Gains or losses on labdities held for rading are
recognised in the profit or loss

Financial liabilties  desigrated upan  inkial
recognition a1 fair value through profit or o
are gesqnated a5 such 31 the indial date of
recognition, and only if the critena in Ind-AS 109
are satislied For kabilities designated as PUTR
fayr vailse gains! losses atiribngabls i changes
i CoAT) PR TiSKE Bfe recognlned in OCT Thess
< lass are nat subseguently translerred
mu. Hireewwr, the fiy may trarnsder
the cumulstive gan or loss within equity Al
oither changes n fair vl af such Babilgy are
recogrised in the statement of pralit ang lese
The Company has not designated any fnarcia
liabiicy as a1 fair value through profit and loss

Loans and Borrowings

Mlter  initial  recognition, inderest-boaring
bofrowings  are subsequently measured a1
srmorised cost using the EIR method, Gaing and
losses are recognised in profit or less when the
Labulities are derecogresed as wel a5 through the
EIR amortisation process

Amontised cost i caleulsted by takdng into
BC0OUNE any disCount or presmm on Aogusitan
and fees or OS5 hat ane an integral pant of e
EIR The EiR amortisation is isCluded as finance

recogration, a= financial labdities af fair \ﬁ TA o, COBES in the statement of profit snd loss
I grofit or loss, doans and w% — . .
hrough ; ﬁ%%%ﬁa%ﬂm

payables, a5 aporopriste.
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{ifi) Derecognition of financial llabilities

vinen an existing financial liabdity is replaged
anather from the same lender an
dﬁmmuﬂmmﬂmmnﬁml}r
are subistantislly modified, such % exchange or
modification i troated a5 the derecognition of
the original Habsdity and the FECOMition of 3 new
habdity The difference in the FESPECTive Carrying
Amounts is recognised in the SLalesmend af prafic
ard legs

€l Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial dsets and financiad labilites are ciffsiat
and 1he nat amaunt is reparted in the balance
sheet il there is a currenitly enforceable legal right
10 offset the recognised amounts and there is an
imention to setthe on a net basks, Lo realss tha
dgzets andf setthe the habilgips simuiltaneaushy,

4.14, Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent o the balance sheet COITIDise
Cmh at benks and on hand and shom-term dapasis
with an aniginal maturity of three months o less, which
mﬂ.ﬂammaniﬁgrﬂﬂ:mﬂﬁuldmhm

for ghing
employees. The Company treats EBT as it sxtensian
ard shares held by EBT are treated a5 reasury shares

Dmmwmmthnmmmmw
ijwmngnhmmmandﬁmmfrm
Bty Hugainﬂhss:tmnqnmdh;m&mhh
el tha purchase. sale, issue or cancellation of tha

416 Taxes

Current Income tay

CLHTENT NCome tax assers and lisbilites e mgaswred
af the amount expected 1o be recovered from o
Ped T the: taxation suthorities, The tar rates @0 fas
hﬁsmﬂmmﬁwemmummwlm
mwwmwuhrmim e

L
cutside Statemert of profit and loss s B rise
Qulside SMalemen; of profit and lass {either in ocher
comprenensive INCOMe or equity) Current tax eme
are n oureldion @ the wnderhing
Lréargactian either s ather oo NCoMme or
directly in equity. Management penodically swalns e
puﬁrhn:takenhﬂnunreﬁrmuiﬂim:m
Situations In which spplicadle tax requiations are
subject 19 interpretaton and estabhshes prosesions
where apprapriate.

Deferrad tax

Defu-f:dmh.prmduuumgmlahmmetmu--
temparary differences between the tax bates of assels
and labidities and their carrying amaunes for firangial
wwpmﬁmum:mung data,

Deferred tax Eabilities are recognised for o taxstle
lemparary differences, except:

* Wrmlmdl-imedmbauﬁyarﬂ:irmm:
mhuruagﬁ:imud'gmﬂmnnrmm:r-r
labiity in & transaction that is not a busginess
COMEMnation and.  the time of the transaction,
affeers npither the accounting profit noe taatie
profit or koss;

' v fespect of taxabilg temporany  ddferomes
associated with imestments in subsiciaries énd
InCerests in joint arrangements, when the temeng
ﬂmmu{dﬁmmpquﬂrmn:es
mnbe:nmruﬂadandisprmm:m
temporary differences will not reverse in phe
foreseeable fugure

Mmedmmmaremmraed for all deducobile
temporary differences, the carry forward of urused
Lax credits and any unused fax losoes Dederred ran
ARsEls ae recognised to the exient that it & probabile
that taxable profit will be awilabie agamst which
the dedudtible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax eredits and unused Eak logoes

Company's own equity instrumans can be uthised, except:
' When the deferred iy asser relating o rlw
Tax expense comprises of eurrent income tax and Seduciible temporary difference arises from

deferred ta. 25
™

s

[

:j(

w

1

AT
p\C-—

.:-’EI'—T*—-:;,;_..II'E inicial recognition of an asset or habdity in &

L% TTRNSBCHON 3t &5 NOt a busness coembination
.-'_'.'.l

& hl
i

=T
g |
i
.
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and, at the: time of the transaction, alfecs neither
the accounting profit nor tcable profit or loss;

4 In respect of deducible temporary dilferences
aspciated with vesments in subsidiaces
assaciales and inlerests n [Nt arrangements,
deferred tax sssets are recognised andy 1o the
extent that it is wmmmmww
differences wil revorse in the fareseesble future
MImnﬁnmmnﬂmuﬁmmw
the temporary diflerences can be utilised

Thee carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
<t each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
It 5 no langer probable that sufficient wowble prafic wil
b avaslabile 1o alfiow all or part of the deferred Lix asset
L b uilmad, diferred ta assets e
rosassessed at each reporting date and are
m:mmw:mtmmmmmmmm
faxabie profics wall allow the deferred tax asser i be
redenered

Ceferred tax adsors and labilgies are measured at tha
T rates that are expected to apply in the year when
thet assel is realised or the i5 settled, based
0 Lo rates {and tax kews) that have been enacted or
mhmmhwmﬂitlhemﬁngm

Opferred taw relabing o items recognised  oulside
ﬂa:mﬁmammumwme
smtemnrpmﬁ:whumfmqmlmm

acher ;n other comprehensive mcome of directly in
"chI'IHF
=.ﬂrmd1mm:wu¢h1ﬂmmmnm
i3 MMqumﬂwaﬂﬂTw:ﬂ
AS5CL5 AgMNGT current tax liabdites and the delermed
Laxes relate to the same Laxable entity and the same
taxation duthoriy

A7, Retirement and ather employee benefits

aj  Short Term Emipleves Banefits

Al employee benefits payable within iwelve
mionths of renderfing the service are dassifled as
snod term employee benefits. The undiscounted
Amount of shamt term  employes  benefits
expected 1o be pasd in exchange for the services
r:ndaedhymmmsurmmmrm:m
year,

b)

Infibeam Avenues Limited
Financial Staements Fy 2022.33

inancials Statement

Past-Emplayment Benefits
(1 Defined benefit plan

Gratuity beneft scheme s a defined
benefit plan. The present walue of the
obiigation wnder such defined bencti
plans is determined based on the actuarial
valuation using the Progeced Linit Creds
Method a5 at the dete of the Balance shoat
reduced by the fair valse of any plan assess
The discount rate used for datermininug
e pricent valme of the abligatan wunder
defined benefit plan, are based an the
market yields on Gowrnment Securities as
i the balance shiet data

Ré-frigasuraments, comprising of acisaral
gains and losses, the elfect of the s
ceding, excluding amounts inchutled in ner
hﬂwmmﬂunﬁdﬂwuﬂcﬂtmh
mwrmmmﬂanmummﬁng
amownts ncheded in et interest an the
mmmmmmﬂrmm
immediately in the Balance Sheet with 5
corfesponding debit or credit te retained
sarnings through OC] in the paricd in which
they ocour. Re-measurements are ot
reclassified to Statemment of Profit and Logs
in subtequent pericds

Fast senica costs arg recognized in profe
or lass an 1he earlier ol

The date of the plan amendment o
curtalment, and
s mmmm:mcm recodqnises
related restructuring costs
Hﬂiﬂmnnﬂmhwdhrlpﬂpng the
discount rate 1o the ned delined benefn

iy or asset, The C oy 1

the following changes in the net dofined
benefit cbligation s an expense in the
Statement of profit and loss

Service costs COMPIEinG  Cufrens
umhmﬂnmmm

' Hﬂlmmmmmm

The Company has riot nvested in any fund
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4.8, Share-based payrments Wnﬂmﬂmmmmmmmmj
. Gy preceding the date of grant. Compernsation cost, if arry,

WﬂmmTMMrmmh is amartised over the vesting period

FETIGer SETVICES a5 consideration for equityinstruments 4,99 Earnings per share

equity-seitled transactons) EﬁtMmmmmmn:dhydhi:ﬁrq the prafif

Equity-settled transactions oo bass Tow the year aftfibiitable te equity sharehaliors

The cost of squity-setted ons & o i rnrh::erln:lhyllﬂmihed Fmrage fumber of

byumiawvm:ﬂmdneﬂmthwhm ring Uve yeor

Diuted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the

profit or loss atributable o efquily shareholders for

the period by the wenghted awerage nuimiber of equity
SAsLanding durning the year plus the witighra

drrerage number of equity shares that would be issued

ising an appropriate valuatian model

payment [SE5P) reserves in
exjLety. aver the period in which the performance andy

equity shates putstanding

0% service conditians are fulfiled in benefits on conversion of al the diutie potentisl equity shases

expense. The curnulatve expense recogmsed far : .
mm!ramutmhrmmmmﬂ Intes equity shares Themmpuguumﬂyumﬁ

I vesting date rellects the extent to which the
pcfindh.uux_plfad&ﬁdlheﬁurnpimfsbestmruf
1henmhernfhmitl_tlrdu1.|mmsﬂﬂtnﬂ 3
ﬂﬁemmuwmmmemwm:
‘Wiﬂﬂ:dmpﬂ:hnhlhemmhwm
expense rucognised as at the beginning and end of mﬁﬁﬁmmpﬂmﬁﬁ SrioRs
ﬂm:wﬂnﬂhrwmmﬂqﬂm

fxapense, No expense is recognised for awards that do 4.20. Segment reporting

not ukimately vest because non-market perfarmancs
.M'mwuicqwmﬁmhntmthenm

hmﬁumﬂmﬂmuﬁmuﬂiﬂmhmﬂmdﬁ
mmmmmmlhmm of dilited

shares been actually issued a1 fair value fie the merage
nwmmnruumardmgequiymm Dilurive
WNWMHEMMHHHM
the beginning of the period, unless issued al 4 laves

and allocates the resaurces bassd on an aftabemis of

Barnings per tharg. mmﬁ rl:mm;h-,- business seqgmenis
Unallscable fems | 5 general Corporate g peyss

Emplayes Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR) and expense ibems which are nat allocated 1o any

The company has formed ‘Tnfibesm Emnpliyee Wellarg Barsiness segmend,

Trust [IEW trust) for implamentation of ihe schemes Segment policies:

that are notified or may be notified lrom time 13 tme
hﬁrﬂrtﬂrru::ymﬁﬁihemn.mﬁngﬂwe The
based payment to its employees. [EW trust purchases
Company's shares out of funds provided by the Erepaning
Comparry.  Accordingly, the Company has approved the Company as a whale. Common aliocatle
Mgﬂ%%%ﬁwwmﬁﬁ
to the eligible employess of § Company, Esch
!Pﬂfmhrmtﬂﬂulﬂlheeﬁgﬂm empleyes t recee 4.2, Wml"hum
.wmmqmmmmuqutyuﬂ}m

LS arg

the Scheme. mwrummmmhcmnr.mwmu
The Com the | At 2013, 3 distributicn is authonsed whan
Mg payﬁuﬂnus Logipedias Ih"" Wﬁﬁm It ts approved by the sharcholders. A corresponding

amount i recognised directly in equaty.

underlying stock aver the exercise pri e
detmvmined ungar i markit LR are recognised when the Company has »
e el o 'z '%"ﬂw'zrmnummnamﬂf
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A pial evenL it s probatie that an outfiow of rescurces 4,29, Standards issued but not yot effective

emibodying economic benefits will be tequired te setle
e obligabon and a relable estimate can be made
of the amount of the oblhgation. When the Company
xRS some o all of & provisan 1o be resmbursed,
ine reimbursement is recognised as a SEparain asser,
Lt only when the reimibursement i virtually cemain
The expense relating to 4 provision preserted in the
siaternent of prafit or loss net of any relmbursement

If the edfect of the tme walue of maney is matsrisl,
IS arg discoumnted using a current pe-tax rape
ihat reflects, when appropriste, the risks $pecilac to che
ability. When discounting is used, the Increase in the
prn-ﬁnmdulnmmwenﬂmrsmngmdaa

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets;

" eantingeni Bability exists when theerd B a possible
Imnqn*ublﬂ:ruﬂig.nun,ura-prmﬂnﬂigqm
iRat may, but probably will not. require an outBaw
of resources, ar & present obligation whose amount
cannot be estmated reliably Contingent Habdities
O Mt wasrant provisions, but are diclosed uriless
he possiblity of outllew of resowrces s remate
Cantingent assets are nelther recogniced nor disclosed
.nﬂmﬁmmﬂmms.km.mngmtm
are assessed continually and if it is wirtually certain that
an inflaw of economic benefits vl arise. th asset and
rula:ednrtmaruremmiﬂd:n the pariod in which
ihe change e¢ciars

iﬂmuffurmrmemﬂﬂmm]mtimcmwmﬁ
Ondian Accownting  Standards) Amerdment Rulis,
033 vade Neification dated 31 March 2003 Follcraing
amendments nd annual Impravements 1o Ind A5 ane
applicable froem 1 Apl 2023

Ind A5 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendiments require companies 1o disclose thee
material acopunting polickes rather than Ehaesr siginificint
Bccounting policies. Accounting palicy inifarmation,
together with oaher informatian, 15 material when i
L3N ressonably be expecied to influence deciusns of
primary users of general purpose finznclal statemenas

Ind AS B - Accounting Pollches, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errers

The amendments will help entities 1o distinguich
betwedn arcounting PolCies and alcounting estinmates
The definition of a change in accaunting estimates has
been replaced with a definiian of accourting estimares
Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
monetary amounts in finandal ststements that are
Subject Lo measurement urEanly”. Entities develap
dCCounting estimates il accounting pobices FECuATE
itesres in financial statements 10 be measured in @ Wl
that invehes measurement uncertainty

Ined AS 12 - Incorme Taxes

The amendments clarlfy how companies accouns
for duferred (W ON [FANSACHONS Such a8 feases A

decomimissioning drll?uam The  amendimens
narrowed the scope of the recognition XS
in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 [recognitan
Elhmﬁumwlﬁauuhw#ﬂhsm:rmi
that, on initial recognition, gi fise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences.

The Compamy does nof expect the abowe amendments

Fhvmmmmwsmlrmimpm ol its
wandaloneg financs stapements
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Notes to the Financials Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2023
Note & : Goodwill, other intangible assets and intangible assets under development {# in Millign)
Imtangible
Coamputer m Cuseamer
Pargiculars Gondwil Sofrware  Flatho Trademari Relationship anuets under Teital
Cost 7 .
AratMarch 31,2021 16112 111766 384,10 SAT £ 1.563.10 14406 19,906,901
i e i W o L) ST .- S it CRTaf o0, 111 2110 580
Debeosoin - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 1612418 15164 360.10 54740 1545100 655.56 204579
Addgors - i F et P T - 17434 96370
Dm-l ........ 1 rerrey AP TLE
Capitaksed = . - {78181} [7B1E3)
As ot March 31, 2023 16,924.18  1,547.42 560,16 597.80 1,563.10 48,06 20,6408
AR Ot March 3L, 2021 - 40273 AR 9278 512.70 . 1.353.07
Amartisation for the year : 157.25 B 81 2104 4377 p 5087
AsatMarch 31,3633 . 554,08 FreTT] 113.82 550,40 . 1,500,594
Amortianon fof the year | s 13381 3181 1104 377 = 23643
A ar March 31, 2021 F 978 wsda [TET] 60023 4 1,760.37
Nt Block S Y i
AsatMarch31, 2003~~~ 1612418 L2763 462 46234 waar a0 1
AsatMarch3t, 202 1613413 S0 8642 0.4 100664 63556 14,948.86
et book value ¥ a7 Million)
Az at As at
Poiliy March 31,2023 Masch 31, 2022
ool — i i bt A o ot
Geher eangbieasies : e RT0ROE 2z
nkacgjole asyecs under evelopmen e et " - _ .8
Intangible assets under development ageing:
Ageing for intangible assets under develapment as on March 31,2023: (¥ in Milion)
Amaount in intangible assets under development for a period of
Intangible assets under development Less tham 1 Mare than 3
Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years Total
FPro@dsinpeogress ez . i S A 4806
Progects Lemporarily suspended S e .. gt
Ageing for intangible assets under development a3 on March 31,2028 % in idilbon]
Amaount In intangible assets under development for a period of
Intangible assets under development Less than 1 More than 3
Year 1-2 Yaars 2:3 Yaars Yiars Tatal
DO N DIOOREE Sis 144.06 R AR M, .~ %
Projects temporaniy suspended : - : . :

*Additian to the intangitile assets under develapment o
milliad (March 31, 2022 ¥ 264 L8 millicn) and ® 1751 s 1
Intangible ascets under development 25 a: March % 3
of computer software Le [T framework

P oot and .-..ul.:rﬁr:;m Capitaksed aﬁ';ﬁn.mmgm ¢ 108 76
] 2022 3051 mallion | respectaehy
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far the year ended March 31, 2023

Goodwill arising on Amalgamation
Goosvwill inthudes geadell arising on amalgamation of Avenues {Indla} Presate Limibed
Goodvwill & tested Tor Impanment on annusl bisis and whenever there is an indication that the recoverabile amount is less

than its carrying amount. based on & number of factors induding business. plan, cperating results, future cash fows and
BLONQITEC Conditaons. The recoverablie amount &5 determined based an higher of value i use and fair vabue less cast to sall

The Company wses discounted cash flows method to determine the recoverable amount. These discounted cash Now
caltulations wse fepear projections that are based on finandal forecasts. Cash flow projectians take Nt account past
CHPENENCT A IeprEsend Mmanagemenss best estimate about future developments. Management determined budgeted
Gross margan bated on past performance and 5 sxpectations of market develcpment, The calculations performed Indicato
that there is nd impairment of Goodwill of the corpany

Mote 7 : Financial assets
T = Investments

Onvesment sted ateost . B el o
MAY  Investment in Equity Instruments A, o I T FiS i,
A, Iwestmantin Subsidlorkes (Wnquodedty =~ ___ N = .

EREERE LT

&l Fimtech Tae

Instant Global Paybech Private Limited

] TP L P e et i e TR D D i i s s r——

o LEVETS Ddarch 31, 2022 165,000 souaty shares of £ 1 each, fubypaidun e 12000
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for tha year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars

Az at

March 31, 2033 March 31, 2022

...;Z:m:._ ''' Infisite m"""@m:jj_: .................. .
26000 e 31, 2022 136,00 sy shares of £ W0mach by paidun
. i ,... ........ i

Infibeam n‘nm m'u.tz ue

'I.ilm:i:uh-h--:h !! ?ﬂ?i- hll::rq-unl-:hru ul'! Iﬂmfﬂj“

........ an
T

||||'\_
Ermeaa - [T T TYPEST TP

& Devestment in Axseciates {Queted)

r-.xlr31 March 2023 - 1 1{ﬁ.ﬂﬂhmt:|r=h:.mnﬂ 1 mach, hﬁ.ﬂﬂ.kﬂ! .

060

ﬁmlinmmm_ E: e h
&, nvestmant in Subsidiaries {Unquoted] I — Il
. . Tﬂhﬂﬂﬂl‘n Privateliniited —

ﬂ.:ldq'imr le mmu

B L LT TIPS s AU EE
e e LTI P B ] ."-. " e FrPE P L. =

(A]_ Investment in Eqmty:mmmlw:p'm-ﬂ

Thiam — T N i s [TPE=EY

Aveniues Payments India Privage Limlted

R [T

2514

.

e PATY M 31, 2022 34,701 ety shares of 2 10 sach, flly patd up o
........ Adafless) Far valug changes. 5

mmm

: zun;

267.065

@z

5 1579
56 =
13535 1579

. ao0ds 60000
[ ieri] 00 00
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fior the year ended March 31, 2023

[ in Millior}

Parthtidars o
March 31, 2023

As ot
Blarch 1, 3033

B} _ Ivestment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) HAPHF . S Tk

....... Investment in Equity Sharesof LICofIndla
. ERES2(March 31, 2022 M) squity shares of ¥ 10each, llypaaup . N e
evenn. . P let5]. Fair walue changes il I | 2445 :
A e e LB I L R i AL LT T A N AR T - ax Sl
i m“mw_ﬁlw_._ o PR A

s WEOUES Payments India Private Limited
erermreere BB O War'ch 20O mm.ﬂ?ﬂﬂ*‘ﬂ'%&!uﬂ. o R SO0

.. "*'""-*&E'f"'"!lﬂ_ AP T A —— 2

_mmw ............... e

mmw ....... . I S0y

e Wﬂi@mi g
__ Mariet Value of quoted imvestments. '

--wmwnﬂmwmﬂumuumw

Im:mﬂ at mvn;';w m;um T
A. Tvestment in units of mutual funds (Guoted) el :
e, YO Prodonnial Charmight Fund

13297 e 1, 0 i i = T

EL LT T TR TTPIa-Pr Sy v bt bt —ry i

o AOYeS2) Falr valug changes ' o

Tedal Current Investments 7506

T+ Loams

Particulars Azt
March 31, 2023

Current

. Loan to retated parsies® _ _ 55

n i + eI —_1m’

_Tatal I.Hrl 105.59

e — T -

*ﬂmubmrhmmmuﬂrmrmirmmmm
{Aefer note 26§

e gren inr he pufpots of Butingss operations
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Ferancisl Staterments Py 20233

Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

T- Deler fimandial astits

Particulars March 31, 2023

Unsecured, consideredgood e B

Securcydeposest - O v
Adarceroemglopees T O
Prepudemployeesberelt = e

Bk depouts maturing within 17 manths rom reperting dote fnhuding accrued mmeresty 8 Beks
Recetabie fiom subisidary cormpuey for reimbucsement of eoeres (ed refernote 28 ngE

JFrepaid badances 1.3

e e Bhamid - o e — ¢

Incerwst acerued on FI with original maturity of mor thian 3 meeehs but kess than 12 menghs.

578

Incerost on lasn recedable frofor note 261 i iiar AL gt i 134

S,

205140

TTTEE LT TR 2 P o, £ 2kl i e

* inChades Sepost given 1o the director of the Compary iefer note 26)

& Fland depesas ol T 777 67 millon {March 31, 2022 T 35595 rrilion) e under lien against creda lacties From banks.

¥ - Trade receivabies

(€ in tikion)

Particulars Agag

Az al

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2023

_ Unsecured, consiernd o o SN awms
e85 Mllowance for Bad Debes e T (I il NIT5EN 95 731
Total Trade receivables =~~~ SR e 536.34 435.58

10 Trade recenables, sne norrteress bearing and e qenerally on terms of 30 10 90 daygs
i} For amound dues and oeres and conditions, rekating to Relates Party Tr eler rokn 25
1) For paplananics on Company's credt ik management process, ;
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Firandial Stapermends &y h03-39

Notes to the Flnanl:lals Statement

for the year ended March 31

7 - Cazh snd cash equivalent

% in Mllion)

Az at
March 31, 2022

LB ACtounts
Balare waith bank in nodal agcoeinls

¥ - Bank balance ather than the above

...... i e
e o A2 s

i 034 o
A 1LET2A6 107784

(% im Milan)

Parcioulars

Deapursal s with aosginal maturdy of mone than thees momhs Bul bt than 13 moniths Feder

rickes below)
Earrmarked hlml:esrm'urﬂmmtdmd

srrmErnen

Bank balarsce other than the sbove

L1
March 31, 2023

A an
March 11, 2022

ke
0.53

bT%

043

17.5%

718

44 Facedd depesit of ¥ 6,58 millon (hanh 33, i'ﬂi! TE?EMHMHWUMH::HH{MH

7= Flnancial assets by category

(% i Milkan)

Particulars

Mlarch 31, 2023

e et il

Eaﬂl:ﬂmmwwmrbmhhmﬂ

Other financlal assess
Marchd. a2 ;
Brvasiments -

‘_'.'!'.'i'f’!!?'.:!.'?"'!‘ﬁ

Mualfund
T-I'.I-*l:!:l?li'n'qpil .

.......... . [T

lq-n'-:llHi!'n-Huﬂ wlhr bk balarcey

T i spmp 1|11.?g

28140 a0 24

T ST ]
o A9B1SE T s7ess

arrem TS TSk - " Beaiaail

187047 596.37 i

e S e M e e

For fnancil retramens s nulugcﬂumahfem:am ke, fefer ote 33
Far wahue deckosures for frrial Sncts and labiities and fsir valee Teerapty dockiunes hor IVessTenL, rgler NOE 33,
ol o, N S

Amartized Cost
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Infibearmn Asvenues Limited

Finsanciad Staterments By 33221
Notes to the Financials Statement
for the yoar ended Mareh 31, 2023
Mote 8: Other assets (2 i Milkan)
Az at Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Mon-current ¥ e — S e s
Unsecured, considered good SRUSES, || L
_.Copealadwances = =000 4 L 0s0 339
N F'gepa:.'lﬂ:pueme . W= E 41 8E 3
Tatal Non-current asset X 468 2 sAs0
Current — e Sy =
Unsecured, considered goed -
_Jdhaance to suppliers " 382 86 srar
_Lest Mivwance fordoubtfilladvances 00 fLeE Fé /]
. Balance with government suthorities - 1126 940
_ Recetvable for settlement of payment gatewary traniaction jrafer nate 37) 4787.02 504435
SARENCRE e TR - o7
.. Prepaid expenses — 260 _ 180
o Other currentasset i LR 035
Total current asset s 540152 5,581.15
Jotal e 544470 5.635.65
Mote 9: Inceme tax assets (net) (2 im Bdillaan)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
T gaid in advance (net of provsicn) [ relier nate 24} TG A1 A
Total 3 T96.81 97465
Pfg-'lmlnn {wmrnﬁﬂﬂrmug?hrn_ﬂ 34 1.55 2 ED
Total 1.55 260
Mote 10 Equity Share Capital
A My 3, S As 8t March 31, 2022
Particulars
< Mo, of shares Tin Hl'ﬂul_ Ma. of thared ¥ bn Millign
Bty thases.of 11 wach 150,000,060 REMOSO 2800000000 L0000
loswed and subscribad share capital - Al ek
Sy k1 ach e T QO Ot s bt 25763
Tehecrlad wiel fally poidep: o EETEE o
.FF!’.'!F Tﬂfﬂmf 1 H'!.‘ll LB TENVHD L6TT.TR 2ATE 310482 SBT3
Totl 2877.701,103 LETITE  LATI046L ZETEIN
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Financial Stabemerds, PY 2030-23

Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

101, Reconclliation of shares cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

Az at March 31, 2023 As &t March 51, pig2
Particulars T A R S
Mo. of shares it Ml lgery Ma. of thares F im BAillion

e the beginning of the year e L GSIGRINNES TR LERN  TII0SISH0 ]
Shares allsgied purrsosen to emercie of Employes Stock .
Dpsicn Plar i % D i sl bicid

Stuedon doqudition of sbsidiaey. i e UL L2
tww of foms shaves ety SR $ s 13316
I R O i __67L.TAK ST 257046 i

102, Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares

Tha Comrpany bt equity shares haing 2 par valus of B9 per shane. A3 equigy shares rank equally with fegard 16 dhidend and share in the
Company's redidual asseis in propormen of amourl paid ul The squity shares are entitked 1o regirke Shidend il declned from tme o time
Each holder of the equity shares & arsted 10 ahe vale per share

ﬂ'ﬂmwmwﬁﬁmﬁmmuﬂw:mdrdmmmrmmﬂcmrmrmmm
of af preferential amounts in praponsn to numbser of euity whares held Terms attached to Stock options grantod 10 Employses Bre
desonbed in note 1 regarding employes share based payments

10.3, Numbaer of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares In the company

As at March 31, 2023 A% at March 31, 2022
Masg af the Shareholder w8 o
o - Ho. of sharas harehalds Mo of shared P ek
ohol Alehes S . e AN IANE0 i
M Ao P L. L L RS . nssm 0 Am
VaasAbued T T 14

Mobe; A5 per records of the Company, incuding &5 registier of shareholders./ members and other dedlie atkons rcshved from e shorehelders
reagarifing bereficial interesn, the abowe shareholding repressnts boch legal and beneficial aanershios of shares

10.4 Number of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

Az &t March 371,
Mame of the Promoter - % Change during
Mo, of shares % of sharehalding year
SN AR I My A :
B el b rhncts_PASRETLR ; e
M5 pparveeben fybhai Meras . NI L = R o 450
- Mol Aot Wina ” A e t2e
St o e P, SRS N -
Ms Miral Vichal bishts . , GO2IEB00 i .
et 5 A . Li i e
- ¥l
L i
L}
Wy Ay
S I'-‘.'_" |_-_'_|. 3‘:"___‘_-'.'-'-"
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Notes to the Flnancla!s Statement

for the year ended Manch 31

Infibeam Avenues Limited
Fnpncisl Samements P 202525

Hame of the Pramsater

s, Anol balaw Mehts

lﬂ' hﬂmﬂ HW '.".‘."?.'.?........... R, B13s1e0 S ﬂ‘ -’ll'-| R _
e - . 8 .
N 7360 g e i
M5 Bhadiia Anvind Shah NN . e e
M ShropNisagPakn B4 T -
e Loy Privaty Luriosd e 431537500 R o
—— A3 ¢ March J1, 2022 % Change during
M &l abared ¥ of sharehalding LLLE LS

Promoters s

M A3t Crampailal Mehta I 13045930 4 1098
M Vishal Arbhai Mehta ; TmEITED L . 1905)
Ms fayshiesben At Metma iy S T T 1002y
Mr. Maln Ajzbhas Metia et (R .M T3RE0 - PR L iy
Prometergrowp ) 0T S v » e
Ms Neak Vishal Mebty i .. b0 W A00 T T
M5 Angd Malae Wielhta _ ... INTIGTY - frd ﬂ.ﬂl!
Mr Subhashchancra Rambnaidrmin RISI0 R T
”‘”""""'5-‘""“ e TOSAO0 . .
'-"‘E-""i“":-"!-’.l,"-"‘ R S M 5 R TR d
i — e Al MM oo o 2
MiSwepteargParkh T R i

e W R Ll [t

PR P e ey e

E ,_.,...,....-....E'.‘.!E.l.

- P— pos

= T T P i ekt L L

e L o s St b ey e & S T

oy

*mmmmummmmﬁwmuwmﬂmmwmwu H:In'ﬂ-lTiH'r

12 2021
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Firsancial Statermsnts BY 303303

Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2033

16.5. Shares reserved for issue under options

For mdesmanion felating ta irnfiteam Aversies Limied Employss Stock Opticn Plan, induding details of opticrn issued, exercised and lapsed
duiing tFa inarcial pear and opuons cutstanding o1 the end of the reportng pencd plaase reler 1o nobe 28

10.6 Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus shares during flve years prior to March 31, 2023,

Wear Mumbaer of Shares
2021-22 g SRR s Ly TR i onma
a1 EE5,506, 1)

Bl [ Previous year 1,3381,55.231 ) equisy shares of T 1 each have been aBlzoed a5 hully paid up bomwus shangs

10.7 Aggregate number of equity shares issued for a consideration other than cash during five years prior ta

March 31, 2023
Year Number of Shares
L A . o " o 1MAREM

Kl | Prisdous year 1008155, 237] equity shares of 7 1 sach hies been alioted a5 fully paid up berus shanes
NiE{ Preious year 6711, 100) equity shaees of 1 sach have been alloted a5 fully paid up on acquistion of subsidiany

10.8. Distribution mada and propased

Thre final devidend on shaes s reconded as a kabilty om the dlate of spprows by the shargholders. Inverin clividiendss are recorded i @ abibty
onithe dage of declanation by the Compamy's Beand Entoma L cormequences of diicencs on finsncial instraments dassibed a5 equity wil
b recogrited sccarding o whare the entiy afiginally recognized those past rangactions or events that gengrased desributable profits

Tear Lormpany declares and pays dividends in Ingien fupees Comganies are requited Lo pay £ distrivute diadend after deducting applcable
tumes. The remittance ol dividends suzide tndia s greereed by Imdian lew an foraign mechange e i abio suliect to withholding tax al
applisatde fabes

¥ i1 Million)
Partigulirs 31 March 2023 51 March 2022
Cash dividends an Equity Shares declared and paid: s CUIRRREIRRRERIEN, .
Finslchidend for yaar ended Warich 31, 001 oosrershe 000 i S : ...
Lsai Pasd 10 [EVF Trust grafier note 20) — . m.m
Netfosldddendpald sax
rerien e for year ended March 31, 2022; ¥ 0.05 Per share s : ... ]
Laik: Paicleo IEW Trunt rfer o ). t a el 0
Hax Intiories diidond poid - RS G0 6632
Brogmosd divilends on Byuky Ehares: B e i -
et SR dvickerd] Yor adech 31, 2023 T 0.05 Pav Share fidarch 31, 2002 W) L . NPATAI, .
focudegPapstie lEW sy b . S
The B of Direciors, in thsr mesttnsg helkd an May 25, 2073, ecomenended a final dridend of ¥ 005 per equity share for the francial yoar
aruded March I, 2023 This pagrment is subjedt 1o te approeal of ory AGR ol thae Company ared if approwed, veould risull in

i nel cash outfiow of spyrcmienately T 153 39 milion
Mote: Reler note 26 Sor divdend s 1o related pary ransactions
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Infibeam Avenses Limited
Frunclal Scacemenss PY 2022-23

Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Mote 11 : Other Equity £% in Million)

gz M thoendoftheyear p P i ez 1.9
Secaritlgspremivm —— I i i

_. e on eertisng of empioyes stock cpans
Less capitalmatian on e of bonus

LA s e e s Ty . = ~rrcsn, L SECT

Operergbalance B o . “jooos vre
s S i 100.00 100.00

e e I e i

Openingbatance AR s

Dpmegbuanee R @8a5) [96.05)
e 208 {Burchane) of treasuly shaces by the trust during the year L ik )

o ASd (ber adster) o § mﬂ:_;

_ Baliece miw e oltheyear T i g : (41381 1396.46)
Mloney receivied q-mu:iunu_r_ng_ J L i, re

.. RN 34 the dnad of oh Py
B Trusst Reserve (refer note 29)
Openireg ki

_I:Il'l:.liu-ﬁ garnings
Catring batance

_AdeoCilorthena ] s170 @z

Total S T T i S S T T Y YT
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Infilbeam Avenues Limibed
Financial Statements P 202223

Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

® Represents armaunt kews than ong mdlcn
Genaral reserve
General Aetens o crealed ot of the profies sanred by the Compaeny ity wary of Rrarfer from sorplus in the Stdpment of Profis a0 Loss a5

Als0 o dLcouns of Uprse of empiayee SIo0k OEUGnS. T COMpany Civ uie tha reterve lor payeners of dwvidend and Baue of fully pald-up
Bornd shates

Securitbes premiwm

Wiere the Company lssses shanes @ & plermium, whether for cash or othenwise, 3 sum oqual 1o the anount of the prgmium
recessd on those shares shal L iranafirned o “Securities Sromium”, The Compatry: may o by Eacwrigss shares 10 A% mesimnbec
ciit o the Securtsrs Promesn s The Company can use fis resenes o buys-nark of shanes

Employees Sreck Opriens Dutitanding

The share based option ouisLandis account & used 0 recognisa the grans date far value of cptions isusid ba eMplkiped under group's
amplayes ock opfion schemes ¥

Money recelved against share warranta

The Based of Derecioes in s mieeting held on Augus: 25, 2007 and thi Sharehaldiers in their meeting held on September 23, 3033 sonroved
bssue of 9 50.00,000 Fully Covertible Warrans on Prefenensal Boue busls 1o Vb Ventures LLP {0Uher than Promober & Promater Group) at

an gsue price of 177 (inchuding premium of £ 18/ sach] per warrant The said Warrants were aliotied on Ocickser 07, 2022 upon receipt
of ¥ 403 75 milicn (beeing 25% of thee tatal consideration ot uplront piyment

Retaingd earnings
Rirtarated Earrings ane profits that tha Compainy oy saraed Bl dale less didend or ather disgnission of transaction with shareholcers,

Mote 12 : Financial liabilities

1 - Trade payable [ in Millicn)
Farticu Ad L As ar
lary March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Currant PN iU T T L L et i e b = R HTT ! Ml T
o Tt putstanding dues of migrg graepnises and small entorprises e L SRR . Im
b Total cumyanding dues of crediors othe than micro ererprises and small enéerprives.  JeE 3988
Total TRET

ﬂiﬂmmﬂﬂimmmmmnwmhﬂmm'ﬁm
{5 Fer disclosune requined under Sextion 22 of thi Wi, Small and Medien Erterprise Development Az, 2006, refer note 15
(] For explanation n Campans's kabdty rivk management process, sefer rote 33
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Infibeam Avenues Limibed
Finangial Sostemens PY 202213

Nntes to the Financials Statement

for the year endad March 31, 2023

el For wraae payadie sgeing schedube, nefer nobe 40
12 - Other financial liabilities (% ir il

Farticulars A at Ag at
Mlarch 31, 200 Blarch 31, 70332

H'ﬂ'lﬂ.lﬂ'ﬂ'l

LTI

B3 Ty |

.. Logse habslty [reles note 31) L Rl Nt
Total current lease lakdlities R R _ ER F 19.45
- - m bl T

_Droevonforesperses P e 21109 2w
~...EEECHON for capital poods — e R T ye

.. Securiy duposes fram merchants A 178

_ Ungaia dhidends. P— DT, v N SR 043

e pe 009 1765
Tﬂ%m:h-mlﬂmhﬂu L 3 1 e

(¥ in Milfipn)

FYTPL FYOCT  amortised Cost

o et T e P , LAL:E 1

- o s B

) 306 41

505.63

BTPL FVOCT  Amortised Cose

Trate payable. i A, . L DT : 19275
e . o s T e 218
g e Loy R e THe !1;.5.

Total Finamcial liabilities . - ss0.13
For lingedial ingtruments risk masacsrsnt objecthaes an ol nefer Mote 33
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Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Infibam Avenues Limioed
Financial Saemends PY 2022-23

Fuat wahue alocksunes for linantial sssets and labd ties a0 G valus hieraechy desclopunes bor iNVesEmient, nefier note 33,

MNote 13: Provisions

2 n Mllion)

Particulars

Warch 31, 32023

Az at Ad b

ton - EOTaE

Provesion o ermployee bencfis frefer note 35) . ; L T
Frovision for gratusty i . 5584 0.1
Tatal Nen Carrent Provisions i b o ST L 5071
T e —— e i
Proveion for employge benelas irefer note 25) e ot A e
.. FTovtsion dor graguity RS il 1752 1752
Total Currant Previsions P s 17.52 1782
it i ——— EER L BES4
Note 14 Other Non-current / current liabilities (¥ in Milkan)
- - eaveh 31,2093 uuu-.nﬁ
Momcurrent T s e e B L1 iy i MO
E5OF Compen Saion Pinable : — . " 148 44 22166

.................... L 12266

i A s, RLLE S

L LLTET L

Fatess bilbng o revermie il s LT 17.85 L3R
ES0% Compenation Payable® I 74.33 7431
e - . ] 6.618.71
i e LALLEYS 6.B41.37

* Wigh nespsect 1o the acquisition of 100% shareholding of LVIK Technologies B
Gphons ane requined 10 B Baued ver a period of 5 years s an arangeenent in
of which i recognisesd s shoe

Mote 15 Revenue from operations

reitit Limited during the provigud year, the Employee siock
the nature of Contmgars Cormaderation, th present wilue

(% i Milliain)

Fartigulari

233

1T ETLEs 11,7480

Total

VIETI G 1167480

Riler note 39 D Al jar sadindd S gl A5 115 "Ruwenus Inam coniract with CLasminers”

e
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Finaniial Stalerments FY 2002.23

Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Mote 16 : Dther income

Particulars

Inberest income on _
P i

Formon evhange qunoss -

Exititd Prowisicen weitten back

Shart berm capital gain on sale of munasl funds

et L TEEEE YT P o T ol

[neicemes™

TETTIINEER G i oamm s e o ot -

s b et 1E L. ]
SOONORNY ... . gar2 AL
2 it A e

L g5 198

o rreseal T TR AL ...:.?:;!. & i
(LA R TTR WL A — [£1]
...... L W
: L =l

I o 17

*'WWMMHHDMWWUE!;M%HMHMW The leamng agreeed
i Langelabie, ard renewabile on a perodic hass Iy matual consent on mutually acoeed tee nchading escalation of lease renl Lease
neame fram nelated parcies decognised i the Staterment of Profit and Loss for the yesr amounts to ¥ 4 74 million (March 31, 2022 758

i Sreter mE NG

Mote 17 : Employee benefits expense

(¥ im Mdillon)

Farticulars

Less Costcapisised R

...... Y B01.90 G33.96
IR, Joane ___SmaT
L (1751} [I0.51)
BET A1 583 06

- ST - . .
..... " e OB 760 (264

T L LR e et

L JO L= s s ] e I"'.'.i:_.l. +l'..|:::_ _:._l::l:.:'gn.:p:.u;n- |:-:r\-'|,|:_|_|.|"|_i_|; Y - Ei*_

Less. Acjussed agans? Contingers Consideration an acquistien of subsidary {22 3 i

ESOP cost for the year

821 a7
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Frarasal Staterments FY J033-23

Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Mote 18 ; Finance costs

Farvculars

Jrierestespenas for

o . .

o L S

Jrisrest on lease paanent inefer note 31) R - e e TR . ]
b boiowangcoss ) 419
Tﬂl“ N - - —— - — - - s P TT T - 1“‘ “
MNote 19: Depreciation and Amortization expense (¥ in Million}
Particulburg 202223 BOE1-ER
Depreciaten on tangible assets refer note 5) . ST (1 © 1 nam
AMormizaeen on ikangitle assels refer notn §) et . (T 6 AN 25057
Depreciation on nghs of use ansets irefier note %) . 2 2273
Mote 20 : Other expenses {¥ = Million)
JFarticulars 202213 2021-22
Bank crarges R = -l i SR 238
Lometecaln frpendas e R T ) T0EY
SSRempeniesinetornoedr) 00 Pl IR |1l b T nra
Drecorasngless i —— S e -
Teririy serece charges =l — C, . | . bss
fetainership fees expenes Lt gt allin Vet el —— e . 2097
Office pperoies . I . irrn.... o 2819 L2038
et o0 s ions - snulory aucht fees reder note belov) i v T T vl 7 Loz
Rent _ — SRR, 1. | —.an
Faie and cxees R H B M2 A e T A%y 00000000 134a
Mweb hoshing and server suppon expanse s ol 1 433
e s il ort PEDT, L . 4.35
Bectriciy enpenies® it Y . M LE LUEE
Traveling Eepenies 2 — L. aar
vt charges, . Tl B e 147 an
Mowances fof bud detisewpenses Fer - I 1785 2687
Blancosmnencd e L . PR a7
BxdDeluswentenoff =~ ==~ 000000 I, .. . — . S o=
Mecelineousewpenses 00 " 182 234

TR IS

i

-b” 34, 2R ¥ 123 meilian]
" '-,.'
I\

g
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Infibeam Avenues Limived
Financisd Stalements FY 2022.23

Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year endoed March 31, 2023

Fayment to auditors

Particulars o pisrelr] -3
L uditfees B 1w 0
T W] PR R R A 50 450
. Cencaoncharges noe 102
ennn HOPERISE RN O QipTYSE i f0g nm
Fatal ST PRI T 1 P T T TR ST Y Y i £10 602
Note 21 : Contingent liabilitles {F iy illion)
Partigulars LET s ot
o March 31, 2028 March 31, 2033
3 Clsime againat Campany not acknawledged as debes i T
b Gusaransees grenn by bank or behalf of the Compuny A

i1¥ in Millian)

Fear eriled
Miarch 31, 1023

Particulars

Year erdad
March 31, 23

ExtrPaled amouni of conlracts semarsng 1o be executed on capEal e and m
Fvither o {rat of achvanca)

Note 23 : Foreign Exchange Derivatives and Exposures not hedged
A.  Foreign Exchange Derivathves: The Compary does nat have any foreign exchange deriatives
B. Exposurc Not Hodged

e —

032

Tear ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Nature of exposure Fareign ind

Foreign
LTIy i¥im BAillizn)

curTRngy

Local
1% b= Wllign)

. Ll et 1L

e

Frrrets, L o AED aaiAz J 18023 G300 1905
---------- BAN i S 16:42 :

......... e R ... 21474 158 1338 568
Briripd fevenue LS 125 153 54037 _-il:;
.......... e ot 1B Ll 37000 an 375000 758
rovitionforexpenses Lso 2,042 i BESD ﬂﬂ.-
Eradire for SO uf + S mne e e o N
. MG bt ..« 0386 B
L — use. R PR e 377,347 2860
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Finaraial Staceeneeas FY 202333

Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 24 : Income tax ¥ inn Millian]

Particulars ] 25233 -2
Tax pass in dedvance (met of proviuon) TesE e
Tatal THEET b rL 5]

Frmionforimmiclavencesey 0 BErR A IV ) 28
Tkl i - . 1.55 160

The mujar conponent al inonme fas gepersie Sor the years ended March 31, 2003 andl March 30, 70XF are {® im Wil

Particulars 2022-23 airy Cred
Seatgmont of Profit and Loss
Lurrent tax {inc tax on OCT) e 1 B - . . REAPEITNS
CL-TMF-' i B ae e e—— . -

Frevousyear i RIS L 247.84)
Deforred tax . . ——— T - _— MO

ermaiev e Lacx incomefiexpene] diring the year recogrised in profit o less ] 44366

TP T PR TP P T T Sy (s S L

Incomme tax expense eported in the statement of roficand oss —

Pk Wi She arvercmaent in the Incomse Tax A2L in respect of alewabidiny of Depreclation on Goodwill oy Feance Ao 3021 and Finance
Acl 2022, the Company 5 elgible Lo clikm depreciation on Gooawll upla Frsacsl Tear 201920 Conseguently. the Company has reeised
Ehe Eniis income 1ax provisions of earfier years and recogrized defered tax kabdity on dillenence in Las base on Goocsasill &l dilferes L
asiels on urubsorbed depreciaton unde s e, The Impact of remeasuremang of Deferred Tax on above i5 socounted in the year ended
Rbifch 31 3023 Arcorcingly, jireviced pear urTEnd e esperrses 308 noL tomparable

%ﬂmnmnhmwmmmmm“uuuhhmmmnm“d

Al Currenk Lax §E i haleor)

Particulars J02-XE pooryBr]

L

Accounting prafit before tax . siciicns SR AR - ... ]
Enactedlanrame ot ot sty imsssiorisors: SR 317w =1
Computed expacted ta sxpenss " el il HET

Adjastments

Soiasactilie KR, i —
Effect of non-deductable e 3062 508

e sl i — " as e —r s v by s T

28 76) (7430

Tax ewpermes for parber year o ARG Ve Y i SR 24784
Jax benefi on drought forward losses . . — 45 5 @2
Excoss of fax depeaciation over book depreciation i s 15 296563
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0] Deferred tax ¥ in Mdlion}
Pha c3 efteans of ugndcant semporany cifferenoes: that resulted in dederred incoene Lie Jssets and labities ane o5 iolows

it Baksnee Sheat Srandmaent of Profit amd Loss
Mlarch 31, 3833  Mlarch 31, 3032 March 31, 2023 Miarch 31, 2033

Deferred income fax assets

m——mermrearas T - P =rrrrron o ———

Benipert O Dgar Mmﬂmulnﬂ1wﬂ¢; 193510 o ~ ram ——— i‘lﬁ'ﬂ- T "5,1_
Priwsion for employe Denefits ” | 750 1551 i 300

L e e e = T—— T i s e . - it

PObpenses - e R .k iR ..._:;!E:.I!L
Migearge for Goddetns i SRR 2619 I &M
Lease hold progerty Ind AS 116 LR . Lo B L —— )

Unabsorblossod T e 157255 1,583 47 [LaleE ] 198347
..'.’l".!ﬂﬂ‘!m“.ﬂ.’.““ 1,7370.56 2,140,33 12T 2,051.78
taw lakllicies

et ETTT T | LA § bin a8 S o s s ® ST TRITT ] e, .

Exceds of smoetiration on Teed §4deti under

noome-tax Ly Ower amorticabion provided 4inY.a3 1.78% 57 JTES 2800
Aounty

e

Total deferred incomme ta Habifities _ Lai7.43 2,780.57 2788 238000

Ik Akl Rhma s

Deferred tax & . ; &80 853 32831
et delerred tax assets/|liabilities) {1085 84 [43.75)

_I'_'_'_rl"_l\.!f"-_' e S e [ TE ayiplgee ; 2 et
Deferrend Bam goetr Y TaTes 7 langa

[Deferred Las habiltios. g 281743 278057

{F in ko)
Recancillation of deferred tax assets / (labities). net Flarch 31, 2023  March 31, 2023
Bpening balance asof April {4525 05y

Tauncomeexpense) dungthe e ecogised mprefecrkons e s

Tiox rtomeNiexpensal during the year recognised in OC1 e 2 37

Slosing balance a3 at March 31 sLObe) e 20)

The Compary offcecs tax assets and Rabileies if and only if it Fas b legaly erdoroeable rghl 1o 562 off current (s 355E dnd CuPenE LA
|'Ibll-bl=1-mﬂwﬂﬂfﬁdmnMLanﬂnﬂ-rmﬂmwnrmmmmuﬂile.-ﬂb;lhcimwmnh:ﬁfg

in assesung the reakrabdty of defered income fax assets, ISR [ONGRIErs wiethir some pomion o 3 of the delered income
Ll AEEs vall ot ber realived, Tha uitimate realizalion of deferrnd oome Lax Jsets b dependen Lpon e gerwraton of e taalie
incoend dureg the pericds i v the lemporary diferences become deductble Management oonsiders tho schodudsg feversss of
fiafarned mrome far kabikieg, propecied fisune s -rm--_-_mr.n:phquummm mmwwm1hhﬂﬂ
heatoical Lanatle #nme and projecions for filure able mcome over the pedods o which the MG lix asseiy ane deducsbde,
ranaeme bebeves than the Company will realive the benefits of (hese deductible differgnoes. The amount o the deferrsd incame L
uﬁfmmm P, Could be reduced in the near term o estimates of futune tncable ncome during te carry foruard
perind arg regused

e
e
7o TAPA SR,

. & = o N R
s’ Y
f .:“. ' L )

I
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Note 25 : Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits

The Compasy ks contributions, detenmied a5 4 specified percentage of emplopes salares, in respect of qualibang smployees 1owards
providens fund and employes stale insurance, which & & defined comnibution plan. The Company has mo oBRGICGRS oPer 1R i maks
teé Specified contributions. The contribution i charged to the Statsrsnt of profit and loss 25 they accrue, The amcunt recognised s an
expansg insands contribubor 1o prosadens fund angd ather Sunds Tor the year are a5 follows

(% in Millan)

s at L

i March31, 2023 March 1, 2022
Podenfied Y e [ T T
Esic LA 8% ass
ok N O S LR S AL TRy Lo L

{a} Gratuity

The Company operates gratuty plan whensin sary employes is entitled to the benefi as per 2chemiz of the Company,
fior each completed year of sendce. The same i payable on retirement or termination whichover is earlier, The benedit
veits only afjer e years of canbinuous senann
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Tt prsipal assurmgitions. used in detsrmining atowe selined Berefit cbbgators iy 15 Compam's plans are shown Below

Particulars  Machin20 ek s 0ns
Desominm faee i e o e i 8 R R
JSuoure saliy norease ki N, RO (B0
A% @ A% o pounger
Altrition rate e eckLicing o s Fadunng o
EE— s e e i o3 : rones, OO Gldov agus 500 .t ohder ages
Inchian Agsured Lives  Indian Assuned Lives
MScrakry rate MAmwalimy 201 3 14) ey (2012-14)
....... i ———— — P N — e 1 T
TR rHA e i S . ;3
A UaNIAER SEridsaly grakais for significant Jesumphe [ 44 shown below
Gratulty i ir Millian]
(increase) F decreaze in defined benefit
Farticulars Sengithvity level )
Tiear ended Year ended
- March 31, 2023 Msreh 31, 3632
Aaratwity R - s T - IR simia
o SR, - kL. WA SRR, . . ... | .- AL — L
....... . 5% - 1% decreate . i Jaa L
Jfuture Salary increase D Woweem o LRl BLE
R B 0.9% - 1% JuCreise L R 3 1627
Wuhdeiwdd rites (WR) D%-\Nworease I, . - - N
05% - 195 decroass S e e Lo . L)
The follawrgn are the expected future bensfit paynents for the deined beneft plan | % in Million]
Partlculars u.n";:.ar'l% H&ﬂgﬁ
Y e U B e e — | R
it ool i, 3 SRR, ; pileE e s %3z A1z
Al one e bl ot modn than Flygars eas 3325
...... More than fvit yedrs. S g - S - © -

Risk Exposure ;
. Imwestement risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the asets, the valye of assets certified by tha inswer may not be
the fair vakie of instruments backing the liability. bn such cases, the present valee of thie a55e0s i independent of the
Tuture discount rave. This can result in wide Buctuations i the niet bability or the funded status if there are significar
ehanges in the discount rate during the iner-vakiation period

il Market Risk (Interest Rate)
Market risk 5 a collective term fior risks that are related o the changes and Muctuations of the financial markets.
The discownt rate reflects the e walee of money_An o fes in discount rate leads o decrease in Delined Benelit

ﬂtﬂ-;atunuhhr!plirﬂbeﬁeﬁ:slmmu epends on the pelds on the conporate'government
Bends and hence the valuation of labdity is -----.- "'-f'.*._'n'-“' Inmmﬁammuaﬁmdm

..;;':: LT I-_- F'I'l-':.
ol e
£y | s B
A
Py
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il Longevity Risk

The impact of lengevity risk wil depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or after Typically for
the Denafits paid on or before the retirement age, the longewty sk is oL very matérial,

e, Astuarial Risk
a. Salary Increase Assumption

Artiial Salary inereases that are higher than the asciemed salary escalation, will result in inerease 1a thir Oibligation
3l & rate tha i higher than expected

b, Attrition/Withdrawal Assumption

M actual withdrawval rates are higher than assumed withdraval rates, the benefits wil be paid earfier than expected
Simibay if the actual wahdrawal rates are lowes than assumed, the benefits wall he patie] later than expectad The
it 08 L wall depeendd on Shir demograpty of the company and the finanoals agsarnplionm

¥.  Regulatory Risk

Any Lnanges 10 the current Regulations by the Goserniment, will increase {in most cases) or Decrease the obligatien
which is ok anticipated. Sometimes, the increase & marry fold which will impact the financials quite significantly

MNote 26: Related Party disclosures,
As per the Indian Accounting Standard on “Related Farty Disclosures” (IND AS 24), the related partses of the Company are as
=t

Mame of Related Parties and Mature of Relationship:

Se.No. Belstionship Mamme of Company / person
¥

Infitesm Digaal Entertainment Private Limiced

..... Cuiigrma Condultancy Schutions Fregee Limited b it e

Infibeam Logistics Provaoe Leniced B

.................. AEENUES [N Prats Limied iy IS
........... - HILNT e Nipan Inemdional Levded A, .

— T ., Hwenues Word FTALC Vo ek LT AL
...... s eeteemene. 8tanE Global Paytech Private Limied — —
S . I . E—— Chrdpay Technologies Privase Lienibed =~~~ G

il i M Frtach e e AT e P e

36 Hum Bharas Digaal Payment Lieited (with effect from February 20, 2021)
L AP L A R e e, 1K TECOINOHOMRES Privifie Limited (with effen from March 01,2008 ;

R LR BT PEIN IO 0 e Infloeam Avenues Austraka FTY Limited {with elfect from Jure 06.2002)

EMMWMMHMMMWM

Infibaim Avenwes. Saudi Araksa For Information mmrm:umh.
effect from july 01, 2002

2. Pesociate Companes oo Mueruns Payments Indu Praate Levited [uese Aprd 29, 2071)
Wishkall Products and Secades Private Limined ik eifect I'rﬂﬂml";r
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Name of Company / pErson

. Hu_ﬂ“ L LA A e o,
Wihwias Amialal Pated

LR L s ass i ki

R ERi Roopushan Schantal Dave o W
i— .. Bt Madhusidan Bakshi NS

PR I LR B i S e Ftaerd Tudeiclars Shech s

........ Phyushiymarsinha
Chinf Financial Officer (CFO) Hirer Padiya jupio March 18 2022)

o T L e g s

i Wit il Patel .
e — . e

5 Comenevtne contrt{ paputiant muence 1100 Mesors Frale Uiited

= R enyes Emerprises Proate Limed .2

e o VpeVerturesup ) L

Relsted party transactions

Particulars Period Personnel  personmil can  Assoclabe Subsidiary Total

Iizue of equity shares on exerciting of ES0P
[Member af thares)

Ehiel Fnancial oificer (LFO) R 1 p TR TTEFSCRH -

Faedd " E

Comparysecwan®S) . .. 3Wers e T oM

¥/Mars22 i 3 A

Izfee of equity shares pursuant to Donus

iats uver of shares) IMariz . : : ;

) s M2 40980 B T S 7
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u.rmlr:urnmr-.ﬂu-rreﬂ . M3 : ML

3+m:.'33 ......... o

Vishin22 Prochucts and Services Private Umited  31Morra3 g
PRLTIR O l) B .
Disievestmant im OAC Systoms IndiaLbmed e
Avenues Infirute Private Lisited Bwerd
hasa e mm— -y 3.”"'&:;& ........
Dsieestment in Alﬂnm:n INC

Wi R rabonal Lamien . !Ii'ﬂll'ﬂ.’l A
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loansgiven g

Averas Infinite Private Limiled MR T
..... T

ﬂ%ﬂ*%ﬂﬂmm Private Limized
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. Al

ChielFeancOtieer NMarzy Vil e e
........ — 31"""'""??. il 2, . et/ ot = o A

DAL Symems India Livited  MiMarias

AR X s LR e R S e I
Irfiboam Progects Management Prace Limied  $U/Man23 e, 21 210
E il L o R
vk Technciogses Prvate Lrmted . BiMserm : L nm  nm

. M2 o T :
ChietFirancial Offcer o BMaT2D

Jrfboam Progects Management Priace Limted  WManiZy o i VETLO0 7250
.................. L S G TRl - TS I
Ddigma Consultancy Sohulicns Private Limeed  SiiMarr2s " = MRS INAES
fasiis Itmearla Rl Tl N A, S e e v ma——_
Repayment of business advance R o L 3 R
Anstant Global Padech Prace Limaed . MMar2z | - . 41000 41000
N - ST L. . N AL/t S g e f o AE1E0 A5Y50
DR Systewns Indhia Lirmive Bl 00000 R 23 -
- .‘1”\."-'?1 - — e a ey ] P T —— LT

iniboam Frojecls Management Pragce Limded . S/Mar® = - e METLSO 167250
N o IR B i A "
Degma Consubtancy Sohtions Private Limeed | 3U/Marf2y SRR | . © - 1 -
i A et T _ Midkandy I R L i L
Padvance receved towards services . . P e

Wﬂiﬁ&?éﬂlmrmtﬂm 3!.@"3!
i . 31Mari22
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For the year endded March 31, 2023

Particulars

Ky

Management

Period Personnel
#nding (KM} amel
relatives of

L

Campany where
Key Managerial
personnd ¢an  Associate
exercive control Companies
r
influsnce

Eeimburiement of cupenies from [ameunt

Infibeaen Digeal Eraeranment Privane Limited

Anfilsears Lagoias 24 Lid

e ey TR L Bt i i i

—rrrremn

DBC Systpms ks Lavsted

B T ST T PRSPPI

T E——

NMaern
372 -

L t
- R

L .
Fdarsid

iy - ]

P d e A e
Avenues Enterpeises Private Lmiteg __ Marizs )
. Mz . e o2
Mverass bt Provate Limited NMarzs a0 o
[YSPPP—— 5 PP .3.MIIH ........ Bk i - -'
Averusrs Workd FZUE MMy 7 om om
. L a2 Tael e i ' ey
_Bharing of expenses recelvable — S
Infbeaem Propects Managemars Pricate Lirited Syaers B T
S ez
Purchass of G5 Cards
Instant Glohal Paytech Private Limited sMars o o T T
R T E TRt o Tam am
Servicesghen ) & NG
Ocbgma Consultancy Sohiions Privace Limded _ 3UMarzs 3 )
3 ae22 L oEe T T T
It bl Pyt Prrgali Ly 3Marr2l N wn
...... B L e s BN My
DAC Systomns I Lot L T .. 008 0%
_— o LT b et & - e
I Motors Privase Liated MMarzz ) 1340 Y

Instart Gobal

e Fremelimied 00

AN :
TiMarz2

AT . P T
em  am

Page 234



Infibearm Avenues Limitod
Financial Satements Fr 2022-23

Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Poricd Personnel  persenmel can  Assoclate Subsidiasy

DRC SymemsIndisLimited _ MMarf2y R 1120 1z

; ManeRr e 24 214
I-I"-I'd.!-#-HIILEEMmLPr et Limicad 1'I.|"Il.-'m

...... RIS L et~ SR z e LRI ..15'1"__'5“:'
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Py 5 g : P e e ) i ot
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Far the year ended March 31, 2023

(2 in Million)

Particulary.

Degptal Enteraiment Private Liméed

FEPE IR FRA 01 S o s i e g

Imrl- of Comvartible ih.n Warrant
ybse Virtures 117

e LT P 1]

ES0F mrmd
= I]"'-:I \'.'I:IIi:-l..-".:l:_H:;:'_'.I'..ll]_._l’._|".}_;_,'l'n-u|l\.' braied

[ o

LomparySecretsry

¥t Fatel IEsecutive Direcion

Diropier sitng fees ©0 moh-esecsme  ang

Periad Personnel  personnel can  Asicclate Subsidisey
{HMP] and exerciis control Companles Companies
¥ slgnificant

IH:I-H

Siarizs
T /Mat /22

!'Iﬂlﬂm
ELLL

I Ll L

Ffnaniz3

AT

a2

Trsariis

. . N L
Closing balances
Tradereceivable N
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!1 b
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for the year ended March 31, 2023

(2 n Milloe)

Perigd Parzonnel
ending [(KMEP) amd
rilatives of

KMP

Privaty imited

e L T T Ty P — S L It
L e s ey

Imuﬂ;ﬂ!ﬁMIllmﬂﬂd’ 3 S i
Ik Technologes Praee Lo |

R i
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3iMariz3
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e 3T 14ETH
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Financial Staterments FY 7003-39

[ in Million)

Particulsrs ending

Parigad mhm

/ significant

Recelvables for Interest on loan

35 W]

Craditol hmg-ﬂiﬂ i ' Sl
“____E.H:I:l.i %ﬂ“".':'."f.‘-:' Lamited Fidara

VishnZZ Proguets ded Servces r'-rwnbl.-h-r-ed_ /e

i —— e Crrerrrem

seltbement of payment gateway
trangiactions

Instice Giobal Paytech Privste Umited _30/Mamr23

e T =11 i, 3.1-"‘.*-.’2:
Advance pald fer ssttlement of payment
Aty ransactions
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it (March 31, 2022 Rs bal). Ths
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Traralash erdefed inbowith relabed party ane made an [erms
Builiraies of the year-ered are unsecured and interest free and
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AEFREEIT i undlerta

melated party and (e market in which the felated party oparates

Cammitments with related parties
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Settigment coours in cash. Theee have been no guarantees provided o
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ken gach Erincial year through eamning the financisl pesison of the
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Finascial Staternenas Py M523
Notes to the Financials Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2023
Mote 27 : Earning per share (¥ in Milkon)
Partiesiaey 223 W2z
[Earing per share (Basic and Dibuted) g e L _ e
Jrali snrbutacic to ordirary equiy holders P, 14345 B985
Jodrombar of equty hares st thyendofgyeer 000 LETITHINGE 2676310402
Weighted average number of equity shares s Il ! e [N _
JorddgedBPS — i SRR et IS IR]  2E53.197.064
Noreeplwhmofeouiysheres. 0 1
s earnegpdrghee 0 e B5t D26
Diluted earnang pév share i - N |~ it 050 e 28
Weighted average number of squity thares AR iciiveee S _
Weighted average number of equity shures for basic 8PS S— ) ] E R Tk T
[Elect of duuon. Employes stockoptions : N g A L SR 3955 500
Mieighted iverage number of equity shares sdusted for the effedt of diuton ATERNGSENE | LERINEI0EE
Mote 28: Share based payments

Employes stock option (ESOF) scheme (2013-14):

The schesrse has been adopted by the: Board of Directors pursuant to resolution passed af &S meeting heid on February
17, 2012, read with Special Resolution passed by shareholder of the compary at the extra oroénary general mecting held
on March 30, 2013 The plan enules senior emplopegs to punchase shanes in th Coimpany at the Qlipulated eeercse price,
byt 10 comphanon with vestong conditions All sasicmed opticns shall be sectled in demat mode Az per the plan, holders
of vested ouons are entithed 10 purchase one equity share for every DRGGN B ar seercss prce of P 1 which i 93% (o QA%
beedicrey thit market price at the date of grant

Employee stock option [ESOP] scheme (2014-15)

The scheme has been adopted by the MﬂmmimmmmwnMMMWm

27 2004, reat wath Spetial Aesolution passed by shareholder of the company ot the exdra cedinary general missting held
on March 30, 2004, The plan entales sonige employess 1o purchase shares in the Compary a1 the stipulated eosrcise price,
sudfect 1o complisnce with vesting conditions. All exerciied options shall be settled in demat mode. As per the plan, hodders
af vestsd aptions are enbtled o purchase ane eqLTy share (of every aption at an exencise price of § 1 which s 93% 10 D&%
betow thie market prce a1 the date of gram.

Empleyee stack option (ESOP) scheme (2019-20)

Thn.ﬂ:hamhasMnﬂmmﬁh%ﬂ%r:mem&ﬁnMnhmhﬁmm 29, 2019,
road with Special Resolion passed by sharcholder of the company at the extra ordinary general meeting held on july 36,
2019 The plan enitles sgnior employess to purchase thares in the Compamy at the stipulated exercise price, subject to
comphlance with vesting condibons. Al exercsed options shall be santlsd in demat made As pér the plan, holders of vested
Oplions are entitled fo purchase one eguity share for every cotian 2t an exercise peice of 2 1 which s 93% 19 GE%W below the
iriarkoet price af tha date af grant
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Infibeam Avenues Limited

Firancial Srapsments Py 353323
Notes to the Financials Statement
for the year endod March 31, 2023
Scheme ESOP Schome 2013-14 o+ ESOP Schama 281520
Dameolgamt LAl 2023 Oiober 32022 Jaruary 02033 pgel1, 2022 Apen 12002 by 00,7022
e T WANG LD G000 M0N0 ASTAM  SeAm
Esercie pricoporegion 100 L R Ao 1.00 T2 PP . NI 1

Wit e s period  Westing paniod | Westng ponod Viestineg period peried

A chefiridl By II'::'Alihu:?'-m-|1I::r af deleed by a4 defined iy o5 defired by g il by

ey ikt the hosard i 1be  the bos in thie  the bosd A the  the boded inihe  The Bogrd in B e Besird o b
Vel racpe betters wmang  letiersasung  leSlersoourg  Welersisung  lelorsiosung lemiers msuing
theoptions o iheopliondto  theopbonsto (RS opliorsio theophOnS (o the aptions to

— —— STgeyees .OTployers  employess  employess, . Emplopees, | empliees
Ectrtiie pevind LAymars-Syears | yews-Syears | yesrs-Syears ) yeaes-Syears 1 yearseSyeas | years- Sysars

_Mathod of gerlerment _Demar moge Digrnge made IDprmag e Dernad moge Dermat mode  Demmat mods

= = Il i el IR ot - b by

The follawing table sets forth a summary of the activity of options:

. w2 209122
£50P Fian ESOP F50P EsOP EsoP
i Sthemie  Scheme  Scheme  Scheme  Scheme  Scheme
1314 1415 1820 1314 1415 1520
e ELEN  TICMSEO0  MAWET000 00X TLI00 | TOSHN40  §E30200
ATENO00 0000 RoEnadd Finoog S

.................. it it 300 GSIIEO00 TM9N600
Outizareing 8 e end ofthe yearPost-Bons * | 1814500 13360080 10407444 1361400 _TADMSE00 26387300

LAIARGD CNANAMED  JRA0TAML 0261400 TA0MGE00 | M387.300

* Iy view of Boreis $hures dsued by the Comgansy inithe ratoof 1 l.wmmmaﬂm“mh-tmuedw;ﬂm
e (e Barws and hence the pom B eflec b considensd lor oulstanding stock ogions s a4 March 31, 2022

Expense ariging from share- based payment transactions

Total expendes aneng from share- based payment transactans recognised in profit o loss as part of employee benefi
EnELE wene T fnlloess

[T i Million)

Particulars 2223 2011-12

b i ok SN — IR - .\, 7. i ALY
Total employee share based payment eupenie BE.21 a7

The far value dmmwwmntmmgfwmdmkmmwngmem mm.nmddmhg thes
feliowang inputs a2 the grant date which takes in o account the exsrcise price, the berm of the option, the shane price af the

grant oate, and the expeded price volatdity of the underkring share, the expecied dividend yedd and the risk free interest
rate fod the term of the aptien
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Frnargaal Staneeneras PY 203125

Notes to the Financials Statement

far the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars March 31 2023 March 31, 3022

Apwil 1, 0N, Deiphes 1. ety 01 i, Ry 0N, Dcigker 1, january 0,
Oiongancdms @ W o S - e T
Mhegiied aerage S pewe WERe  1Red  TAS W 7 T R 11 S | I A0
Extrose pnoe e 1.00 Yoo _owoe - 1od 100 1.00 m 'm

Epeciadvolwley auiew  a0tww DM | G960W | BASAW  GASNR  GGSIN

(PPPTE PRt b

serrEmIEY ERLITLS

T S e : - 036 02w oxm  ozom

BebdeewtorestraeW)  BSOW G4 730w 71w S0 sesw  smw 570w

T T A S Tl ke e s T

Bt et o sare 186 VA 8K (SE 4638 500 dase 3%

Weighted Feerage remaining 2 g
contractual ife (Years) -

Emplayee Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR)

Pursisant (o the resalution parssed by the Board of Directons of the Company, 8 its meeting held on July 13, 2017 and the
special resolution passed by the Members of the Company on August 11, 2017, the Infibeam Stock Appreciation Rights
Scherme 2017 (5AR Scheme 20077 was approwed in accordance with the provisions of SEB (SBEBY Regulations, having
face vakue of # 1,00 each. The Company has created “Infibeam Employess Wellare Fund” by way of a trust on September
5. 2007 which will be wvalved in the execution of Infibeam Stock Appreciston Rights Scheme 2017 [SAR) Barelays Wealth
Trustess [inda) Private Limited (Samlays) 200 appoinied a4 trutest of the same Fach SAR shal panler the right o the eligible
emplened Lo réCon Ppreddninn (Cash settied / equity settled) with respect 1o the underking Equity Share on the entiled
shares after it has been exercited in accordance with terms of the Scheme.

Movement of shares acquired by IEW Trust:

2 3 z d 2 ¥

Asat Price INR in As at Price INR in

Particulars March 31, 2023 Aillion per Share March 31, 3023 w

e | post-bomui]
Humber of shares outstandng ar the btgrning of the 17185 244 3541 11085264 2% 44

i, - samsi S

Eauity shives sorumred during the vwear N ILT .. SN |}

PP TS P A S L | S L N e

SAR Scheme 2017 SAR Scheme 2017
Rt As st March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022

© e e e r R £

Upsedwngtheyex — e Eous

............. —

Dustancing 2 the end of the year Pt Boms 12350 10,088 344

Fn_mr.ﬂ'ﬁ- i Phn e pd e o 1P A Pl 1
Exarcizabiie at the andd of the v Pog-Bams *

* Irv i of Borws shares ssued by the L':lmpa.nﬁﬁ l.l;e"rau.n y i
being entiled 1o bonws and hence the post borus effect k.08

nedling SAR a5 on the record date of Bonus ane
2 ing SAR a5 at March 31, 2022
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Infibgam Avenues Limited
Fianda Sialements FY 2022.23

Notes to the Financials Statement

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Maote 25; Consolldation of Trust
The compary has formed 'Infibeam Employes Wellare Trust’ [IEW trust) for implementation of the schemes thasare rotfied
or may e el fe] frcum b 10 Firu by thn I;'mgnl,l unger 1he plam, prosiding share based PEMEnt 19 LS errployees. [EW

trust purchases Cormpany's shares out of funds provided by the Company. The Comgany treats  TEW a5 its extenson and
serercdinghy shanes held by [EW are treatad a5 treasury shases

The Corsaldatsnn of the IEW tust Punowls stitements walh thai of the Compary does nol in any manner allasr the
independence of the rusiees whene the rghts and obigations are regulated by the trust deed
e Uity Instruments (Treasury shares) are deducted from equity
{i} The seurces and application of funds of the TEW Trust consolidated as at March 31, 2073 were as follows:
¥ i Miilligen)

bt e March 31,303 march31, 2082
Copusfnd i oo T
Hoowwg A 40309
Cormprc BabBuesaedprovsion 40,45 A0
Cosh & Back equivalents T B A SN 029
Honourentinvestments ——— s ALY ) b
Inrome e Eiets P S N A B Apii et oo 17
{ii] Impact on the Company's profit and loss post TEW Trust consolidation for the year March 31, 2023

(T ir bdillsgn)
Partioulaes i . e e w2
Ingome 2 e a1 2
Drederdonequey o 056
Miscelaneous meoeme ifi ot { oA,
L T T —
DN e aym 062
Tmpact on profit before tax , 0.7} 0.33

Particulars e o mma T anm
Caih and cash squivalents 15t April Lt S .
00 FOW 10O CROIIUNG MUV e N e N 222
Carth Roey from imvesring acthaties i jrreoey . [l
Cash fow fom eancing actmties ) 1696 090
Cathand choh equivalenas 3 March ERR i 0.00% L
“Represents smownt kess than ane milion

Other items adjusted owing to the Trust consalidation jng o

{a) Treasury shaves .. 5 TAR Y,

-

Upon consclidation, the mvestment in the Paren Company's & Shares mace by [EW Trust is debited to the
equity 35 treasury shares amounting to ¥ 413 Eipi:mn: March 37, _zfm-:prﬁ-mus year F 39646 million).
1 -. |I

i h

I'l:'-,l_.:'\ A
Ty Sy - i
N ey
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Francial Stalemanis FY 3022-23

Notes to the Financials Statement

far the year ended March 31, 2023

(k) Dividend Income

The dendend income of the Trust & debited to the Group's retained earning amounting 1o Nil 25 at March 31, 2023
(prevous year § 056 million) {shawn b dedudtion from deddend paed)

[c} Other Mon Current Financial Azsets and other Incame
Loan advanced tothe Trust is elminated on consclidation amounting to ¥ 42005 millon as at March 31, 2023 fprevious

wear T AN 08 rmallinn) farrmdrug & gaan el correst laand
(il Interest Expenses

Due to significant difference in the purchase price of the shares acoquired and presaing market price of the share, the
Group foresees inability of the 1EW Trust to sarvace is loan obligations. and Irterast papment Lemporirly. Accordingly
the Grouwp has reduced the mberest on loan Lo 2evo

Mote 20; Segment reporting

Based on the ‘management appeoach” a5 deltned in lnd AS-108 "Oiperating Segments” and esaluation by the Chief Operating
Decisaan BMaker, the Company operates in two busmess segments

111 Poyemaosnt Brcimnas jreluides Baamnnd Gatracey b minpss ydth 55 Mo e B isinees heaned arel| payrmeent infrastochure
inchaging CPGS towadds banics, and Credit & Lending related busness and

2) E-Commerce Platform Busingss nchudes Software Framework & Infrastruciure to enable E-Commerce for farge
erienpnses and refated services induding Somains & advertizng.

Segprment assets and liabilities:

Segment information is prepared in conformity wih the accounting policies adopied For preparing and presenting the
standalone fnancial stagerments of the Company a5 4 whole Segment ascets incude all operating assets usad by a segmens
and princpally consists of operating cash, rade recewvables, ciher assets and fived assets, not of allowantes and provisons
which are reported as direc offsets in the balance sheer Whils mast such assets can be directly atiribuged to indiicual
SEQMENIS, the Carmying amount of cermain assets wsed jointly by two segmanis & allocsed b the segments on a ressonabie
base. Segmend Haudities include all operating liabilites and consist prindipally of trade payatiles, other kabilities and accrued
liabities. Segment assets and llablitses do not inchude those relating to income Laxes

Segment Expense:

MEMENT Eperie compries the ecpense resulting from the opevating activities of a segment that |s directly actributabie
1 the: segeent ar that can be allorated on a reasonable bass 1o the segrment and oxpense relating 1o (ransactions with
other segments. Certain expendes bre not specifically allocable 1o indnadual segments. a5 the uriderlying services are used
imerchangeably The Company therefore believes that it s not practicable to prowde segmeant ditclosunes relating o sweh
eupenses, and accordingly such expenses are separately dsclosed as unallocated” and directly charged against 1otal income

Certam assers ared Kabilities which are common 1o bath the segments for which basis of allocation cannot be consEtently
igentified arg included under un-allocaile ssets and Kabiiies

Primary Segment;
(¥ in Million}

B 2 S e T r——rTTTEYT

B S T T

....... i
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Feruieaiiil SEstements PF 2333

Notes to the Financials Statement

Tor the year pnded March 31, 2023

(¥ in Millon)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

&) E-Comwnerce PatlormBysiness 1460 69
Segment result L At — R .

{a) Paytrers Musoes, . f14.50

Linallocated corporaie exporses jnet of uraliocsted income] — e

Operatingprete . . 173353

Interest expene : LA

Ireevast income . toamm

Profit before tax Yot R Lt g 1.815.02

Income tases B B . .08

Jreficaferean 000 ~ e AR e 135497

Other Information- - L A i

AL § i i i Basiamass e .

) Py hondnaan RS L T LI R0t oy PP e R
MECommence PatiormBuysiness et I == .. . 1T 80 .84
feUnabocals copeate assets 2y 2183 2%

fah Paemees Buness T 7i0a0e
1) E-Commerce: Plakarm Bersicess i e e RN 1. S a7
o imalocatle corpormniadRes ) 127 o a7 ed

TorsBabilmies i : Lt L — L R
Capital enpendiewrs . .
A2 Fayment Buviress. e LS. Jiaes

bl E-Commance Flaform Business e . 856 518.60
i unabcdaed e L S AT - e e e er— b
Depreciation & smortizatian e IR T

(2} Payrmerst Business X S T i N — 11 =L T
{B) E-Commerte Plitian Business o 3264 M7 28

Ic) Unatiocated L s _s5E1

Moncosh expenses other than depreciation & ameetization
4] Pagmene Business _ nw o
) E-Commarce Matiorm s TR T .. N T ™
Eundocaed B bt .

Geographical infermation:

Geographecal segments for the Company are secondary Segment rovenue is anabded based on the locaticn al
customers regardless of where the serwces ane
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Infilbearm Avenues Limited
Finangis Ssements FF 2022-23

Notes to the Financials Statement

far the year ended March 31, 2023

Geographical Markets Far management purpose, the Company operates in thres principal geographical areas of the workd,
in dndia, i LAE ahd other countes.
£ i dillign)

Revenua froen cperations and oiher aperatmg revenue Aoy 1741548 L . 133.1% 1747186
e - N e MOLHIE 1138980 174485 11055 1167480
Larmpang amount of segrment nan turnent assols * e AMUR0IT  2SAAT LPE1SS TR 3720620
.................................... AN 2AMSN03  BG5ES 0 13T J5MOGT

* The canrying &maunt of Non Current Assets which do not include Deferrod Tax Asset, Ineome Tax ASsets. Finaneisl Assels
are anahrued by the gecgraghacal area nowhich the Asoers are locaced

Mote 31: Lease
Company as Lessee

fhet Company's lease asset primarily constst of leases of buikiings offices having the various lease terms. Buring the year,
the Company has acquired vehices for s employees on long term lease bass. Accordingly, the Company has adopted IND
AL 16 Leases” 1o all kease contractsy

Follesring s rarndmg value of rinks of (e ASEa Fesammiad and th FRaRTEReAs tl-...-pﬂ!'-:-:ur.pq the ear gnded March 3,
A2 aend Mlawein 34 20052
(i Millon)

mﬂmgm wdmmwﬁn‘
Musrch §1, 2023 Mlarch 31, 2022 l-ludthtﬂu March 31, 20X
Opening Balance TRy i P . 6543 SEA1

Additions during the year . el Ao 00 a7
Deleson Suring the year e . FHRerTER T A 1 i . .
Dprecaton of Ko of ube ansels freler note 5 121 . 3506 27

SesingBalangg 00000 el 9.65 . 65,04 5843

Tha follewing ks the carrying value of lease llability and movement thereof during the year ended March 31, 2023
and March 31, 2022
[ in Millang

Leaze Lishility Vehicles Leazi Liablity Leasehold Building
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,

AL s SR ol i T 0

gieypent B B
France comtaceroed dwingtheyear T R
. Degors === - ) .
Payment ofleasa hatslises T R TS T
Clasing Batance - LTE
Currene matureies of Lease bt o %919
Wor-Currers Liase Liabibty [refor rane 1) e o R T
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Infibeam Avenues Limied

Fnancial Staements BY 2022.23

Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

The following are the amounts recognised in staterment of Profit & Loss {2 b allion )
Particulars March 31203 March, 30gs
Wwﬂwﬂuuﬂﬂ_ﬁ ............ e R e L T N |
v - S—— . —— EN E“
oo el L 35.50 2933

For leasehald buding , the Compary hud total cash out flows for leases of T 10, 20 million in ihe curvent yede [year ended March 31, 2027
£ 254 million) The endire smounl i in the nabure of fixod lease payments The Company had nan-cash scdibion 1o righ of uee assets of
20 96 millien [y segded Macch 312007 T 33 37 milee) and lease Rabiities of F 24 &) rrillinn in the curres yoar fyear ended March 31,
202 7 1Y 1E mlbon)on aocount of snuesten ol nght of s e

For Mehitles, the Company had total cash out ows for leases of ¥ 1,36 milion inthe curent year [pear encied Manch 37, 2022 Kil Thee endire
AR 3 e patie of o lagse peements. The Company B nerrcash sdditon to rghit of e ssets of ¥ 10,86 millior fyear erced
Mirch 38,2027 hil] arel ipase labidties of ¥ 10081 millian in the current year drear enced Barch 31, 2022 i) on acoount of Soqution of
night of e asEls

Thae weighted average incrismintnl Borrowing rate appled oo bease Hakifiies s 10655

The Company does ren fice a sgreficant bguicity risk with regand to its lease llabiicies as the current assets arp sulficient to meet the
oltliggarsionnrs relabedd o ledse Habilirins a5 and whan ey fall dus

Mote 32 ; Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities:
8. The Compdny is required 1o spend ¥ 13 66 million (Prevwois Year ¥ 1213 million) on CSR activities
b.  Amourt spent dusing the yesr on {2 in Million)

o cash paldincagn  TotH
M, Comanioon ¢ Aoguicion of ar Attt % - ey
[ EermrEsen tm frir o :
- March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
i Lorstrutiion af gt @) Privide  medical  remment o
Gaushals, hospital building, needed people and education also
o Nature of CSR activities undertaken ?DE' ﬂﬁ .E'ﬂﬁ,:ﬁmmﬂ L] Eatﬂr!a . Gfb-ur Gk plantVermi
the co ampost unitWaste managemsant
o g &y Prosude medical ireatrment to Systerm Hasptal Budding, Waper
necded people andegucation.  Laks catile shed, Office Blod,
el I s labour quarter .
d. Detalls of related party transaction Nil il

B Rt L B A - o
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Notes to the Financials Statement

for tha year ended March 31, 2023

Mote 33 : Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

Tha sgrilicars acusanting polioes, mooding tha oniend b teagnion, the bass of measurement and the bass on whigh mcame and
ERDETHES afe redngnised, in respect of sach olass of Snancal astet. financial Kabiiny and BguRy matrument are discloted in Nabe 2 o the

P il SLalimdants

Quantitative disclosures fair value mesiuroment hlerarchy for assets and llabites:

Infibearm Averues Limited
Financial Statemens PY 2027-23

As at 31 March 2023 (¥ i Millian)
___tarrying amount Faie value
Falr valan threugh Lnllw:; Lavaly. Leveld-
S — Amereied Othercom-  Profit ol eyl Saniicamt urcbser.  Total
prefensive and SLtive inputs wahle
Imcame (513 markets inguta
Fancldlamets b i e R B s o S —— .
oM curnert investment 4,001 36 TIETA AN Te SI007 | 35PN 5604 16 AR007
Corerfinesamens arsoe Frd Ira06 37506 i R
Lxher Non-turrers fmancul axset* L 3. ] - 36898 ' 458 58 >
i RS AR LA . 582560  TIETI 20179 674411  610.97 613314 = AN
Financil Mebilithes ek i o o e NI B ot - s o
5013 50,13 013 5013
50.13 . 8 11 50,13 - BAa3
A5 ag 31 March 2022 £¥ i Millian]
_ Carrying amownt. Fair value
Fair value through Level1- o 15,  Leveld. ;
' e Otharcom- oo Toul  pricein SOnMcant SR
income  ¥nd hass iy inputs I:HHE
Ta T R e R N
Mon turfent imvesimers I8 A7 ST L AA6684  ABGGR 443624 ARIIEE
Current imstmer s LS0RTS it T 2 . T
Dithar Mee-eursart francial asser® 205 55 : 20555 - 20EE - 3MLES
i 407602 a7 CAETII  AMUER 4840 = SOTEAN
Fimancial llabdlivies e o TR e T S
Cehey finaeoial Rabaltips.ran-nueren G2 T 63 T Lr | S22
5271 : -_5n ' 53T + 53T

T managemen asspgsed that cash and cash egu
other current financial sssets and cther curnent

short-term maturities of these instrements

* The management assessed that cannging value dppiaxinates to the Tar value

i ——
A B AR S
P s I

.-'Ip?- i W W ":'_l

III.*J__- :E:' L[e I-.- 1
| 1 | &3

Illr'_._.. t sl . '--_ [

A ==

W e 5
e TED ActT

walents, other bark balances, lnans, trade recevables, trade payabiles,
financial labslities apprommae thedr carryng amounts largsly due 1o the
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Infibeam Avenues Limited
Financisl Satements Fr 2022-23

Notes to the Financials Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Fakr value hierarchy
Lewel ¥ - Quated prices [unathusted] m actve markeis for identical aisets or labiliies

Level 2 = Inpuis cther than quoted prices inchueded vathin Level 1 matafemﬂ:rmu-mnrlummm
fle as prreed) or indirectly [| @ derived fram prices)

Level 3 - Inpuits far the assets or Nabiities that are not based on observatile market data [unobservable nputs).
Level 1- Valuation technique and significant observable inputs for assets and labilities

Imvestments represents iwestment in quoted equty ngtruments. The fair value of imestment is derived based on the
S i lotd rate a5 e S100k et g

Reconciliation of Level 1 fair values
Thd [aflicraing raMMammmmmWeﬂm'bmum tha cliosing balances for Level 1 fair valies,

¥ in Milion)
Paticulars Y 282323 F¥ 202132
_Opening Balance on Apeil 1, T L . 335.87
e change inluic whw jovealised) . s oo
Purchazes S Ol 1703 e ; A #1m
e E—— . ] R © 341 00
Clesing Balance on March 31, 810,97 anbs2

Lng Lerm borrowengs repretents kaan taken (oo bask The Fair witlusn of barrowing i derved based on market obsenable
Inderest rate.

Tmfmrm&mtmmmw:wuummmmmmmamm The valustion reguires
Mansqerient io maoe (EFLAIN asSumplions about the moded inputs, nduding fanecast cash Nows and discount rate. The
probabiliies of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management’s esTimate
of Tair value for thete unnuobed i ameanic

B. Financial risk managemaont

Thee: Company has exposure 1o the following risks arising from Snaricial instrumenits
Crechd s,

g Liguidhty sk Aind
Markar nsk

i.  Risk management framework

The Campany's board of drectors has overall respansibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
resk masiagentient framewark. The Company manages market risk thraugh a treasury operations, which evaluates
and exercmes independent contral aver the endire process of market risk management. The Finance team
recommends fisk management obectives and palices The activties of this operations irclude manapement af
€ash resources, bormoweng strategies, and ensunng comphiance with market nsk lemits and polices

The Comparny's risk management policies are establshed 1o identidy and anadyse the risks faced by the Compary,
L0 SE1 agpropriabe risk bmis and confrals and 1o moniter risks and adheronce 1o lemts Risk management polides
and systems ane feéviewed regulary 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's acthities The
Compary, through s training and management standards and procedures, AiTs to mantain 3 disciplined and
constructive contral emsranment in which all erployees understand thisr roles and abligaticns

The awdit commites cwersees B man compliance with the company's risk mansgement
polcies snd proceduces, and roviews the rmanagement, lramework in felation o the rsks
laced toy the Campary
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i

T,

Credin risk

Cras risk i 1he regk ﬁharmmmthm-nparwhmmrummmmamWHEﬂs
1o meet it conraliual oblqations, and arises principally from the Company's recevablis from customers. and
invesiments in debt securities, The carneng amount of following fNancist assets represents the masemum cnedit
AEDCIEATE

Financlal Instruments and Cash Doposits

The credit risk from balances/deposits with Banks, current investments and other Bnancial assets are managed in
accoedance with compary's policy Irmeestment of surplus funds are primarily made in Liguid/Shon Term Plan of
Mutual Funds and in Bank Deposits which carry a high external rating

Trade receivables
Trade recenables of the comparny are fypically unseoured Cridit risk i managed through credss approvals and
pericdic monitoring of the creditworihiness of customers to which comparry grants credit terms in the normal

oourse of business The allowance for impaitment of Trade receivables is created to the extent and a5 and when
requaned, based upon the expected collectabiity of atcounts receivables

That maximum expasure 1a credit nsk for rade recenables by geographic region was as follows:

¥ in Million)
Particulars AZ Bt March 31, 2003 As st Mlarch 31, 2022
. e e o A .
L i —— TN Ll
........................................................... 53634 4359

The abowe recewables which are past due but not impaired are assessed on mdnidual case t case basis and
relate 10 a numbes of indepandens third pany customers from whom there is no recent history of default, These
financial assets were not empaired a2 there had not been a sighificant change in credit quality and the amounts
were stll consuered recoverable Dased on the natue of the acomty of the cwstomer portioks 1 which thiy

belong and the type ol custamers. There ane no other classes of financial sssets that A0 past dud but not impaired
except lor Trade recenvabbes as at March 31, 3023 and March 31, 20332

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral
oiligations wathout infurring unacceptabie losses The Company's abjective is to, at o times Mmingain Sptirmum
leveds of Buidity b meset its cash and collateral requirements The Compary clossly monitors gs Rguidty position
Al Epys a robiust cash management sysem

The table below summarises the maturty profile of the Coenipary's financal babilties based on contracusl
undecounted paymands

[T i Millign)
Partitulars Less than 1 year  mewe than 1 year
Yoar oralod Mlarch 31, 2028 3 . [
Wnsedbesewgbotiowrgd o T i
Tagepeystles B e Jeas LDag
Deherbnantidbabeves @ e L) 0641 3013
—y e R T e L T L e ua———— ".H.“ m“
mmulﬂh:l,m ............................................ PP P L SPPp—.
'"‘1"”.'"""‘"!1 borowings iy e iadee — =
Tradepayables . 1918 57
Oy firamool habeites s 27
i 50640 .28
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(a) Market risk

Markes risk 5 1he risk that the Tair vakie of future cash Bows of 3 fnancal instrement will Thchuste because of
changes in marioet prices. Financial instruments affected by market rsk include loans and boerowings, deposits.

Fareign currency risk
Forneign cunrency nisk 5 the risk that the Tair value or e cash ows of an exposure wil luctuse Becsuse of
changes in forewgn exchange rates The Company transacts business in local currency and in foreign !

CurTency
primandy in USD, AED, SAR OMR. The Compary has Toreign currency trade payables and recerables and is,
thevefone, exposed (o foneign exchangs risk. The Compary does not use 3y SErvathe INSERTsens 15 hepdge its
rigics associated with foregn currency Thatuations
Forgbgn currendy sensitivity
The following tables damonglrate the sensaty I a reasanably possble change in LISD, AED, SAR and OMR rates
to the fireticnal currency af the Company, with all ather varlables hold constane, The Companys sxpasurs ia

fareign currenty changes for all paher cuenendies is not matenad The smpact on the Company's profi befare tax
i dst ba chaanges inthe far value of monstary assets and habiltes,

(¥ in hAlion)
. —Change in USD rate _ Bffect on profit before tax
March 31, 023 e e - B R 9
LA, TR LT e A ol ARANSES. . S 1980
March 31, 2022 R RPN . SACLEI R | 3
e} -
T il _Change in AEC rate _ Effect on profit before tax
Marchi¥t, 2023 =~ 5 . — % LTS
............... . : % S LRI . !
March M, 2032 i I . b S M. - -
% 10951
Change in SAR rate _ Effect on befors Lax
Marchdtoeay =~~~ e S p L 123
e e PRSPPI, <. . . 5 SRV T s LE]
March 31, 3032 i s el . DRI .. AR on
i 10.35)
£ L Change in OME rate _ Effect on profit before tax
March 31,2023 e A oo 5h -
................ - L e . S |
March 31, 2022 B F— R SR 213,
. . B (A

Interest rate risk

Irilesroat rage nsk is the risk that the L vadue of future cash loss of 3 fancial wrirumasnt wall Muctuale because
of changes in market incorest rates. The Company's sxposure 1o the risk of changes in market interess rates
1

hiline RrTaidy i b Comipansg sk dell aldigabons sl Nebung mberess rates

The: Compary manages its interest rate fisk by having a balanced pertiolio of fed plus variable rate borrowings

A B TApS
iy ek
IIJ-;l'.-_l i i
l'r: r . i |
5 o =l
TF?": P
SO0 A
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Note 34 : Capital management

For the purpose of the Companys capital management, capital mcludes issued equity capital and all pther equity reterves
attributable w0 the equaty halders of the Company: The primary abpeciive of the Company's capital management is (o ensune
that if mairsains an efficient capetal structisne in order 10 SUPPO s Business and maximiss sharsholder value

Ther Company manages its capital Srucure and makes agustments oo & i kght of changes in economic conditions or
fis business seguirements. To mairam of adjust the capital stucoare; the Comipany may adjust the dradend paymant 1o
shareholders, refirm cagital 19 Whareholders or isue Aew thares The Compaery mantors capital using a geanng ratio,
MEMMWWI#HHﬂmMMWMMHHHMMImmbtb‘u‘gbm;arﬂ
borrowings less cash and short-term deposits fincluding other bank balaree)

[ in Milion)
i arch 312035 cch 31 2021
ntenest:beaning lum and borrosngs absin o ~oRURIEE, T
Le3x cash anel cach squivalend (Hote T} e {1,673 16 {1,077 84
L I e SR I ——— 1 | — i
Equity share capital (Note 101 N NI TeTI TR . BTN
e oy e : AT JO9EIS  dApaaT
A Y sttt i35t s e g L 23304 7,526.00
Capital and net debt a2188 2644818
Saaring ratie SR W T O S W NN TCC T L -

Mote 35 : Dues to micro, small and medium suppliers

The Ministry of Micro. Small and Medium Emeiprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which
merommends mat the Moro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with £5 oustomers the
Engreprensurs Memorandim Number as allocated aiter fling of the Memarandum in accordance with the Micro, Smal
and Medium Enterpnses Development Act, 2004 {The MEMED At accordingly, thie dsclosure in respect of the amounts

o such ehterprises a5 at Masch 31, 2003 and March 31, 2022 has been made in the financial staemenits based on
ininermadion ricahed and avalable with the Company Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that
may be mmmmmemhmdehmrsmwﬂmhhm.mCurnpaqrhas.nummwd
any claim for intenest from any supplier a5 at the balance-sheet date

£2 in Million)

As at Asat
P March 31,2003 March 31, 2002

Ine prondpal amount e (he . sribes sk due 1P Ean P g Lrged 10 ey wupiet a4 al the
endd af acoounting yaar;

ot armcwsrs of nberest poid by the tupm i Devms of secyan Ili.l:l|htrJ:_.:'dHJ-l.:|.:|h::'-g.-.l.q.l.i|
1Mm;ﬂ:uwm:uhmﬂmnmmmqm - -
e e AN N NG A S A = e i —_

The amount of inarest dise andl payable for the period of delay in making payment Wwhich rs
bﬂnp:dnnmyudmmmmmﬂwwwm:mmmuwﬂmwﬂ

i L i

Thit senerets of Larther g due and Eelyetd weh o i dutcendng period, widl such oats
nhmlhwmmamnempﬂm:ummmhu‘.mmqr . H
dehilleraranir o5 & Sk pxprdRune L Seclin 28 of the MEMED St

o & Tan P,
i 4 )
N, L
.I )
w |
_
I
o,
— -I'\.-\'
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On basis of mformaton and records available vath the Company, the above disciosures are made in respect of amount duse
muwmmmwlunﬂmtdmmHMMMihmmm:eﬁmﬂnﬂimmmmmnﬂwmhm
indormation Lakes into account only those suppliers who have submitted their registration cetsls or has responded 1o the
inguiries made by the Company far this purpass.

Note 36 : Additional Regulatory Information

A There are no protecdings that have been intiated or pending against the Camparey for halding any benami property
undar the Frohditan of Benami Property Trarsacions Ao, 1988 (as amended from time ta time) (earker Benanmi
Pransactions (Profebibon] Act, 198E) and the rules made thenounder

B8 The Company has not been declared willul defaulier by any bank or financial irstibution or ather lerder

€ The Compary has compled with the number of layers prescribed under dause (B7] of section 2 of the Act read with
Comparses (Restriction o nsmber of Layers) Rules, 2017, and there are na companies beyond the specified Layers

O Leilisation of Borroweed funds and sharg promibum,

The Compary hae not advanced or koaned o irvested furids Grdher borrowed funds o share PEmium oF &y olhier
sources. of knd of funds) to any siher personish or ontitgies), induding foreign entiies Fintermedianes] with the
urrderatanding (whether reconded in writing or ciherwise] that the Intermediary shall

il drectly or indirecthy lend or west in mmrpemnrﬂﬂit;ﬁmmnﬂlnm;mannermmbymm
el of the comparey (TUlnmate BersficamesT) or

i priade sy guarantes, security of the like to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficianes

Thie Company has not recemved any fund from any perseis) or enbnyesl induding fargign entties [Funding
Pasty) wiith the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise] that the compary shall

09 directly of indirectly lend o invest in ather persons of enlilies identiliod in army manner whalsorer by of on
behalf of the Funding Party [Ulimate Beneficiasies) ar

fi}  previde any guaranies, secunty or the lie on Behall of the Uitimate Benehaianes

E Undisdosed Income The Company do not nave amy iransaction not reconded in the books. of sccounts that has bean
sirTendered of diclosed as ncoma gunng the year in he tas assessments under e Incomestax AL 1961 [0
A5 Bearch of survey or any other relevant provisions of the [ncome-ti At 1965) Further, thare was Mo} Ay
unrecedded income and no acditional assets were required 10 be recorded In the Boaks of Sooount duiring the year

F Details of Crypio Currency or Virtual Currency - The Company has neither traced nor imested in Cryprto Currency of
Virtual Curesncy during the finandial yea ended March 31, 2023 Furiher, the Company has also not received any
deprits or advances from any person for the purpose af trading or investing in Crypto Currency or Vinual Currency

G Details of Relationship with Struck off Companies (¥ in Millaon)
Maturn of transactions Bslamce  Relatlenship with the Struck off

.Tﬂﬂ'm”cmm mmmtlﬂ‘tm ?um-ndhp company, if any, to be discheand
I*Dﬂﬂ*ﬂhmr‘rm:‘ -I-'ﬂ:'il"ﬂm ) Tayailyy [T ER ) Hq.l-lllill
_nﬁg]fgtg_n_:qmmtjfr Private: Lrestig Piyvables ot Merchant

s e S emer—

H  Title deeds of Immovable Property net heid in name of the Company
The comparty does nat hold any immevable property not held in the names of the company
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MNote 37 : Nodal balance

The Company mairdans nadal sceourt wath ICIC] Bank and HOFC Barik. Th nodal accounts are opavated as per R guidelines
PELaineng 1o Semement of payment for electronic payment ransactions for payment gatevway business, The balance in the
nedal accounts represents maney collected from custormens on transacon undenaken and & used for sewing of dues 1o
Wi merchanis as per K6l gudehnes

Recelvable for settlement of transactions:

The balance in receivable for setilemant of trarsaction represents the amaun pending Lo be recesed from packing bank
account and payment gateey for successiul ordne transaction compieted by the customer of the merchant inds the nedal
Acounts. These amounts ance collecied in Nodal acoount will be utibred for paymenit to the meschants

Fayable for settlement of transactions:

ine Dalande in payatle lor seilomant ol ansSCLan réprisems the amouni pendng Lo be pald fo merchant far successful
online transaction completed by the customer of the merchant. The amadnt for the nodal accoumts sre transferred to the
marchant desighated bank account as per RBI guidefines, after deducting applicable charges

Note 38 The Company's iransactions with sisodated enterprises ane at arm's Benguh, Management believes that comgany’s
domestic transactions with assotlated entenprises post March 31, 2023 continue to be at arm's length and that the transier

pricing legelatian will not have any impact on the linancial statements panicularly on the amount of the tax expense for the
year and the amung of the proeviion for the taxation at the period end

Mote 39 : Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contract with customers™
aj Disaggregation of revenue

The table Below presents deaggregated revenue from contract with customers far the year onded March 31,
2023 and March 31, 2022 by offenngs

i}  Revenue by offerings (¥ i M lcan)
Far the ]'I-lrlll'ld-; Fer thi year ended
st comsrell March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
DigRal Payments ard Checkoul Web Serviors < ..! JJuatg
ElormeneScmesd Welb Seames e - LA=s H 145069
L. RO e P ot SR 11 17,872 86 T1LE74.B0

It comprises revenue fram provading complete, smple and secure anlne payment gatewsy and chieckout web
senaces, with a real-time Credit Card, Detit Card, Net Baniang, Digital and Mebile Wallet including UPT Paymers,
Recharge, Cash Card and Mobile Payment transactian validsion process and platlorms This enables eCommernce
welbsdes o sell products and sernces online, and actept payments in real irme

E-Commerce Relaved Web Services
These peimarily include a comprehersive suite of E-Commerce related wab services comgirising of domain

regisiry. iechnical anahysis and testing of seftwane web sorvices, digital advertising, and nfrastristture relsted
eryaley

Hb  Hefer note 30 for disaggregation of revenue by geogranticl segments

i) The Company befipees that ths s<agaregation bess depicts how the nature, smount, iming af it revenues
and cash flows e affecied by indussry, markes and ather econcoemic (aciors

b}  Transaction price allocated to remaining perfarmance abligation

The agyregate value of perfarmance obligations that ane completely or paially unsatisfied as of March 31, 2023
% * 50 million (March 31, 2022 is ¥ £2 73 milion) which s expected 1o be recognize as revenise within the nest
one year. Remaining perfosmance obigation estimates E

inehuding changes in the scope of cortracs, per .
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£l Changes in contract assets are a3 Tollows:

[# in Milian)

For the year ended Far the year ended
Partieul s March 11, 2023

March 3%, B2

Bafance at the beginning of the e —- 1108

Srvnine rared “"""".i""‘"T“‘"“' RED

¥ in tillion)

Particulars For the yaar ended

Balaroe ar the beginmeng of |he year _HH_

Ravenue ron ograted Lt was cchuded in th Scess Bllbg dier revenue

0 the begervung of the yea S—

|mﬁ=ﬂ!|ﬂﬂ'ﬂ-€fqd‘w’fq1hﬂ.mm mrﬁqgn_ﬂd
s s dufeg thee we J

Note 40 ; Ageing Schedule
A Trade Recelvables Ageing Schedule
As at March 39, 2023

For the year ended

Outitanding for the falewing periods

- frem date of the invaloe

i 6 Manihs:  fa z-3
Manths 1 Fear Fiary Wears

Undigpiined Trade Recovables, considensd good !-!F!-!;ii 513 046 035

Unddguied  Trade  Recooablos  wisch  Fuse

Undispuried Trade Recenvables, oredit impaired 28 _1-1..5.4' :l.1:|I i a_*_'.z:'_

21 T

Disputed Trace Recehables, congidered qood - . -
Crsputedt Trade Anconables, whach hawe wgrilfiat
MCTRaSE I Ches, rigk: i e TP R L L
SEepoted Trde Pstabablen. covak imaaliedl e e VUL S, i

el PRI - S, " [ 63 S L1 ..
Lesa Allowance for doubshul irade receabies - I =
Total
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As at March 31, 2022

Famiciiary

Undinpuind Tracs Aecenables, condidered good

Undegwnesd  Trade

Recenables,  which

Desponed Trade Recervables, which b sagrificant

irereate incredic risk

Tatal

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2023

AT ™
74 a7 433 335 wse

Guitstanding for thie fellowing periods
__fram date of the i

<B
Manths

& Mionths - O 23X _H-m:tlhm
Yoars

1 Vear Yoars _u 2 Years

Total

LT B e perrm——
ok 014

o714

Nafr

WU RISl

L

(¥ im Million]

Dutitanding for the follewing pericds
from dace of che invaice

& Momthi - 1-2 -3

1 Year Yoars Years

More than
3Vears

Total

T
T ... 157 - I %

E
A i,
ol "L P
i e e T
i - r
fif o "
= |
Jf o ¢ ol
- + 4 |
| 1 =

P r— TR i
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Note 41 Analytical Ratios

Az o

Al on
Ratiay Mumerator Demaminatar March Fharch "r:n“ Ressen lar Varlance
3,203 W, 2022
Cusrrent Ratio E"':”’:'" Curent Liatsities 141 115 13% Trleru-mnmrm thange
Debn Bqulty oo ,Dovowings  TodEnuky e SRS = pep— .
Dbt Serice Cowerage Interest +
Ratio _ DA pindeal e S M
Irrgreprmient i v of Prsase
Eeturn on Eguity Ratle  £811 :Lﬂ lﬂ:".‘.:::-". £ 2 ER LI Wi N apenating gifiendy fesuling
o hegher epstrating proft
CJ H?hng:
mﬁ““"m ]”: “::_i’“ s E::”"‘ 157 628 1% There & no Signiicant crange
Cunrer, Liskepe)
et Profit Ratis Met Profit Tastal Ingorme k 594 23W Therenno sgrficant crange,
Trade récoivables Iyt frgme Avsragee Trady 578 2815 ™ lnpr cerawre iyvviea of Betier
tnoverratle  Dpetions  Recewables N L arade eecehties managemer,
Trade payables twraever  Comracting  Awerage Trade i A I eermiEnk in veew of Bl
mto " . Ewwses - Py B 9 working caphal management.
Improvement in vy of introade
Autiarn o capital EBIT E“:,':’m"““l s, | B 3mm 868 in cparatng eicency resuling
: SO | o NP 72 - S oo Tgner aparatingproft
ILI'IHIH}'IM rltl_l:l H.-'-. Wi A b HA  MA
Inipme
Due 1o Income gerserated from
Roturn on lmvestmeng  JUOO feeage 4RSS ODIR 349TR sale of guoted swestment in
iestments KT
Note 42 : Previous year fiqures have bean regrouped or recast wherever necessany 10 present them mone appropriately

with thorse of 1he current yoar

As per our Fepert of even date
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o i "L ; 1-'-'.:
?3 ;-: o
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Annexure-3

Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited
Ealance shoet 35 at December 31, 2023
Farseuiain T hotes Baat deat. |
e December 31, 1073 Mgk 31, Iﬂ
. - R Lata Wiy
LARRITS
L Her-gurreng amety.
Properly, plard brd ceugerses! b g L4 SET1
18 ks RS ¥ FELYS o 8
brearglle sartn Under feriooe T
A arradl iEL
el i LMs00 .
Curferre 1an Risels 17200 | 1 b
CRmas A0 -CURTETE SUAFTR I
Iraormy tan suety |re] L LIE Tl Ik TH
Tl il Falstofag iVl S LA SN
1 Ciavesl HEHE
Vgl sk *
Bl Tride recewables 31318 o
oy Cand gad cash egusutery T 1,395.35
ST moy
o] Db fransal sty s 149 56
A iR L 1 WET] 19 i 41
Total Corent sisels o i AN |
Tatal smaia TAR 6 EFILEL
:um
gty share capetal ? 43| a3
Dnber ety B EmeM (]
Totad sauiny i Sl
Lkl TeES.
| Figerpampst labiem.
Frire e, id bLET | FEY -]
Doelrraed i Bkt [ror] L 3
Tois non-cuererd babiliies 115 kL LoD
L, Carranl Bakslitind
Feanreal ket "
[0 Trase puyables
) Botil nilsisdeng deors O AT SUMEDOGES 300 = ]
gl T
] Tonsl gvisiaraderg despt ol crediton obher Ban seein 13008
LGS RED Brel BN ERET AL i
[e] Crouy drpreliol ol wpi (L ] FEE ]
Prowwsond W EY Sk
e g abalinies i1 Al L ]
Towtall curmend lndlibey AT M
Total epsty ind Rabiiten YL e
| sy of wgrifacanl Boroustmg ookl 1
| TR scroemparyng restes §ie an eoigal [om of thes Srangial daspmeai
i wnct e Sebhadl of 1he biakid of Sacinas ol
D Cimriaaltarely Sodatagiit LT ed
[ T FE T LT ' |
i
Hiolr ormy == ooV
R b i -
[uecior Circice
Ce QETRISAD s (NP HSA0E
Pre Ganghmagdc PEGE Candhidida
Ouoe g BAFRE. . Oube by ERBGE .|
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Gdigma Consuliamcy Solutlons Umited
Sraternent of profit snd leas for the peried ended December 31, 2023

Cait of servicat LENE 2N AT
I plapee hesefil Engeris 1 LR 428
Firugece cotti 1 ol an
Deprolamion il J0HE LY Enpare 15 41.7% 1L
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Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited
Statement of changes In Equity for the period ended Decembser 31, 2023

A. Equity share capital
Balance INR in ﬂ
> Note 7
at Manch 31, 2002 1240
Issuse of Equity Share capital 21.50
at March 31, 2003 43,50
Issise of Equity Share capital 5
at Decembesr 31, 2023 43.50
B, Other squity
Antributable to the squity holders ==
Particulars Reserves and Su Totsl equity
Retained SBCUrities
earnings premium
Mote B Mote 8 Mote B
96.20 2,600.10 2,696.30 |
1061 - 104 61
234 E .54
. 382771 3,827.71
203.1% 5,427.81 6,630,596
w2y - 3027
Caher compreheniive sntame far fhe yaar -
O issue of shares - -
at Decombaer 31, 2023 13343 542781 6,661.24

Rietsined sarnings
Retained eamings comprised of prof year's undistributed aamings Mles Baned along with current year prafit.

Seourities premium reserve

Whatir ther Company Bsues shares at a premium, whether for cash or oibenwise, a sum egual to the appregabe amoust of the
premium recsived an those dhanes thall be transhermed 10 “Securilied Premivm”, The Company may Bsue fully paid-up bonus
shares 1o 5 mermbers out of ke Securithes Premium and the Comnparsy can wee s severoe for buy-Back al shares

The accompanying notes are an stegral part of these financial staements

For and on behall of the bosrd of directors of
Odigma Condultancy Sokitians Limited
CINUT 200G 200 IPTCLI154E

Liiay A=

#* Vishal Mehta
Direztor Boreciar
DIN. 03093563 4N, 00535536
Place: Gandhinagar Face: Gandhirggar

Darte : January 18, 10248 Dake ; Mreaary 18,2004
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Odigma Consultancy Solutions Lmited
Statement of cash flows for the pericd ended December 31, 2023
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Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements for the period ended December 31, 2023

I.  Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies

4. Company overview
Odigma Consultanty Salutions Limited {'the Company’) was mcorporated on February 28, 2011 under the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is primarily engaged in business of IT Enable Services, Digital
Achegrtisement Services, and other andillary services

b, Basis of preparation of financial statements
These financia statements are prepared sn accordance with Indion Accounting Standards (ind AS)
witger 1he fsioncal cost convention on the accrual basks except for certain financia instrurments which
are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 [Act’) (to the extent notified)
The Ind A% are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Auke 3 of the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standardsh Rutes, 2015 and Compames (Inthan Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules.
2016

The Lompany has adopted all the Ing AS standards and the adoption was carried oul in accordanca
with ‘nd A5 101 - First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carned aut frem
Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in Ingia a5 preseribed under Sac 133 of the Act, read with
Aule T of thi Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014 {IGAAR], which was the previous GAAR

The hinangial staterments have been prepared on a historcal cost basis, except for the fellowing
* Certamn financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
{mancial instrumenis)

Arcounting palicies have been consistently applied extept where a newdy lssued accounting standard 15
iritially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard regueres a change in thie accounting policy
hithertg in yse

€. Critical secounting estimates

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements which hawe the mast significant effect on the amounts recagnized in the financial statements;

1. Estimates and assurnption
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing 3 material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
lipknbties within the next fimancial yead, are described below.

The Comgany based its assumptions and estimates on parameters avallable when the financial statements
were prepdred. Exsting circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due Lo markgt chanpe: or circumstances arising that are beyand the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflacied in the msumptions when they ocour
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Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited
Motes (o the Financial Statements for the period ended December 31, 2023

1. Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present walue of the obligatbon are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial waluation imwohlves making various assumptons that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These incluede the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mertadity rates. Due (o the complexities involved in the valvation and its long-term nature, a defined benafit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. All assumgtions are reveewead at each reporting
date The paramater most subject to change i the decoent rate. Discount rate has been determined by
reference 1o markel yelds on the gevernment bonds a5 at the balance sheet date The mortalidy rate s based
of publ ol avielpie moraldy tables Those mortalily e tend Lo Change only a0 INLEraEs in FEsponge 1o
demagraphic changes. Futufe salary increases are based on expected future inflahion rates for the country

3. Taxes

Dieferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be avalable against whech the losses can be whilized. Ssgnificant management judgement s requirad to
determine the amount of deferred tax asaets that can be recognined, bated upon the tikely mng and the
It ot future taxakibe profits together with future wax plinning sirategies

4. Property, plant and equipment
Aefer Mote 14 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment, The carrying value of Property,
plant ard eguiprnent has been dregiosed in Moge 2

5. Intangible asset including intangible asset under development

intangible develcgment costs are capltalised as and when technical and commerceal feasibility of the assat
demormtrated, fuluwre economic benefits are protrable, Research and maintenance costs are sapensed a5
ingurred. Inpangitle assers are wested for impairment wheneaer events ar changes i croumslances incicate
that ther carmaing amounts may net be recoverable, Refer Note 1.5 for the estimated wieful bfe of Intangibie
asgals The carmying value ol Intangible assets has been disciosed on Note 3

G, Aevenss recognition
Resenus o fecognired upon transfer of control of promised senaces O CUSTOMent in an amount that reflecs
Thi congderation which the Comgany expects to receve i exchange for those services

d. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The folipwing are the sgnificant accounting policws applied by the comgany n prepanng s financal
statemants

11 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and [iabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification

An assel 5 reated as current when i
&  Expecied 1o be realized of intended to ke sold or consumed [n the normal operating cycle;

»  Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
. Expected to be realized within twelve manths after the reporting penod; of
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Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended December 31, 2023

1.2

#  Lashor cash eguivalent uniess restricted from baing exchanged or used to settle a liability Tor at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

Al other assets are classified as non-current

A hability is current when

# 115 expected (o e setiled in the normal operating oycle;

#  Itis held premarity for the purpose of trading,

¢ ITisdul to be setthed within bwebve months after the regorting period; or

& Theresno unconditional right to defer the settbement of the liability for at least twetve months after
the reporting period

Ima Company clasihes all other Balebities as non-current.

Deferred tax asse1s and babdities are classfied as non-current assers and abilites.
The operating cycle is the time batween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equnvalents, The Cormpany has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies
The company’s financial statements are presented in INR, whsch s also tha compamy™s functional currency

Transactions and balances
Tramsachions m foreign currencies are instially recorded by the Company at the functional CUrTEnGy SpOL rate
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition

Manerary assets and liabdities denominated in forgign currencies are translated at the functiona currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settiement or ranslation of
maoneary ibemd ane recognized in statement of profitc or loss

Mon-rmgnedary ibems that are measured in terms of historical cost e a foreign currency are translatag wsing
the exschange rates at the dates of the initial transactons. Mon-monetary tems measured at faer value o
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair valee it determined. Tha
Bain or koss ansing on ranslaticn of non-monetany items measered at fair valug is reated in ing with the
recagnition of the gain or koss on the change in lair value of the tem (1.2, transiation diffgrences on iterms
whase fzer value gain or loss is recognibed m OC1 or statement of profit or loss are also recograzed in 001 or
profit or loss, respectvety)

1.3 Fgir value measurement

Faer walue 15 the price that would be recened 10 sall an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an orderly
[rargaction between market particapants &1 the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
I presturmption that the transaction to sell the asget or transfer the Eabibty takes place aither

¥ In the principal market for the asset or liability
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Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended December 31, 2023

14

(8]}
» in the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market far the asset or liability

The prinopal of the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

Thee Tair value of an asset or 3 hability s measured using the assumplions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or abdlity, assuming that market participants act i their econbmec best infarost

A fair vadue measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a marke; participant’s ability to generate
economec benefits by using the asset in s highest and best wse or by selling it 1o another market participant
that would use the asset in its haghest and best use

The company uses valuathon techioguees that are approcnate i the circemstances and for which sullicient
data are available 1o measure Tair vhlue, maomizing the wse of relevant observable mputs and mmimizing
the use of unobservable nputs.

A0 assets and liabilimies for whuch fae walue s messured or disclosed in the financial stalements ane
categonzad within the fair value hierarchy, as descritsed below, basaed on the lowest level input that =
sipaificant 1o the fair valye maasurement as a whole:

# Level 1 - Cuoted (unadjusted) market prces w actve markets fer wdentical assets or liabdines

* Level d — Yaluation technigues Tor which the lowest level input that is significant to the Tair waluo
metasurement is directly or indirectly olbservable

+ Level 3 — Yaluation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the Tair value
measuremaent is unobservable

Far assets and habilities that are recognazed in the financeal statements on a recurring basis, the company
deresmiigs whether fransfers have ocourred between levels in the higrarchy by re-pssessing categornizatson
[Bages on the lowest level emput that is sgnificant to the fair valug measurement as a whole) at the end of
gach reporting perad

For th purpose of fair value disciosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilties on the
basis of the nature, charactenstics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy,
5 e pl e Abowe

This nate summaries accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
FEIEWANT melEs

& Significant accounting pedgerments, estimares and asumphions
#  Quantitative duclosures of fakr value measurement higrarchy
= Finangis instrements (including those carried at amartized cost)

Property, plant and equipment
The Company has elected to contenee with the carmying value for all of its property, plant and eguigment’s
asseis as recogmzed in s previous GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transtion dace, (e, 1 Ageil 2015
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Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements for the period ended December 31, 2023

Froperty, plant and equipment 15 stated at cost, net of sccumulated depreciation and accumulated
impanrment Iosses, if any, Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plam and equipment and
borrgwing costs for long-term construction projects f the recognition criteria are met. When sgnificant parts
of Property, plant and egquipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognizes such
parts a5 indwidual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. All repair and
maintenance Costs ane fecognized in statement of profit or loss 83 incurred

Capital work-n-progress comprises cost of fived assets that are not et installed and ready for their intended
st at the balance sheat datp

Depreciation s calcwlated on @ written down value basis ower Lhe estimated wseful lives of the assors as
Tl

#  Plant and equigment - 15 years

®  Furniture & Fatures - 10 years

o Compuler, server & network - 3 to B vears

= ‘ahicles - 8 Years

An item of property, plant and eqgupment and any significant part instially recognized is derecogrized upon
chiposal or when ng future economic benefits are expecied lvam its use or disposal, Any gamn or J0ss arsseng
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between. the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized

1.5 Intangible assets
Intangitte assats acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangibie assots
Actret o N @ business comixnation is thew far value at the date of soquistion. Following inibial recogniticn,
rlafgbld A550Es are carnied ot cost less any accumulated amodtisbison and accumaidated immaimmeant losses
Cost include acquisition and other moidental cost related (o acquining the inangible asset

Reseanch Costs ane expensed as incurred. Intangible developrment costs arg capitalised as and when technical
and commarceal leasibdity of the asset 5 demansirated, future econome benafits are probable. The costs
wiich can be cagitalized include the salary and ES0P cost of employvess that are derectly attributabile (o
irapicprment of the asset for its iIntended wse

T weetul lives of intangble assets are assessed a5 enher finite or indefinite. Infangible assets with finae
fyes are amortised over the uselul economic life and assessed for impasrment whenever there i an
insCatin that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amartisation petiod and the amorisation method
for an miangible aset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period
Changes 1 thie exgected wseful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefins
ermDgdid o hg &E5EL are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, a5 approgriate, and are
brgated a8 changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
5 recoprised in the staterment of profit and loss.

Gairs or losses ansing from de-recognition of an intangitde asset are measured as the difference between
tie med gspddaal procgeds and the carmang amounk of the asset and are recognised in the S1atement al Pralit
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Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements for the period ended December 31, 2022

and Loss when the asset s derecognired

Amaortisation

Penod of Amortisation of Intangibles is caloulated as follows:
v Computer Seftware - 10 Years

1.5 Leases

Cormpany as a lesses

Alease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Leases in which a significant
porteon of the rsks and rewards of ownershap are not transferred 10 the Company as lessee are ctassified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives recesved from the lessor) are
chasged to staterment of profit and loss on a straight-line bagsis over the period of the lease unlgss the
payments ore structured to increase in ling with expected general Inflation 1o compensate for the lessor's
expected inflationary cost increases. Indtial direct costs incurred specifically for an operating lease are
deferred and charged to the statement of profit and lass over the lease term

L7 impaisment of non-financial assats

kon-linancial assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in clrcumstances indicate
that their carnpng amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recovesabile
armgunt [1 e the higher of the Tair value less cost to sell and the valug-in-u5a) 15 determaned on an indivigeal
a55Et bass unbess the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
A5SE0S En such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generated unit [CGUT 1o which the
asget Belangs

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profi and
Loss e mirasured by the amount by which the carnyeng value of the a55éts exceads the estimated recoverabile
ampunt of the asset. An imparment Ioss & reversed in the staterment of profit and loss IF there has Boen a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is
ncreased 10 ts revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount
thad would have been decermingd (net of any accumulated amortization or degreciation) had no impairment
088 Dedn recognized for the asset in pRor years

1.8 Borrowing oost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construchion or production of an asset that
necessarily 1akes a substantil period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitaloed s part
of the cost of the asset. Al ather borrowing costs are expensed i the pericd in which they ooou

1.9 Revimue Recognition
Hendering of services
Revenue is recognized upon transles of controf of promesed services 1o customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration which the Company expects to recetve in exchange for thase services
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Odigma Consultancy Solutions Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements for the period ended December 31, 2023

Revenue from Services i recognized upfront at the poent o time when the service is defivered to the
Customer. In cases whene continuous services are rendered, thess service is recognized proportionally over
the period,

fpvanue 13 measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with the customer and excludes
amaounts callected on behall of customers. The Company presents revenue net of discounts and collecton
charges. Revenue also excludes (e collected from customers,

Revenue from related parties is recognized based on transaction price which is at arm’s length,

Contract assets are recognized when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract
AL3ets are classified as wnbilled revenue janly act of invoicing is panding] when there is uncondEtional raghs
Lo febdod cash, and only passage of ma 15 reguared, a5 poer contractual terms

Exciss bdling over revenue [“contract liabiity”™] is recognued when there is billeng in excess of revenues

In acogrdanoe with Ind A5 37, the Company recognises an aniious ConIract provisson when the unavosdablo
codts of meeting the nbligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be received.

Contracts are subject 1o modification to account for changes in contract specilichion and reguirements The
Company rewigws modification 10 contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis wiech the
transactan price could be allocated 10 a new performance obligation, or transaction poce of 30 Bovting
obligaton could undergs @ change. In tho 0WInL transaction price is rewsed for existing obligation, o
curmuliteve adjustment s accounted for

The Company deaggregates revenue from contracts with custamers by offereng

The Company exercises judgement in determsming whether the performance obligatson Is satisfied at a poant
in tirne ar over a persod of time, The Company considers indicators such &% how customer consumes benefits
a4 services are rendered or who controls the asseq as if 15 being created or existence of enforceable rght to
payment for performance to date as per contract.

Intérest income

For all financial instruments measured at amorized oost, interest income is recorded using the elfectve
interest rate [EIR]. The EM is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
vapected life of the financial instrument or a shorter penigd, where appropriate, to the gross carmang amount
of thee financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial kability. When calculating the effective interest
fide, the Cormpaty estsmates the sopected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
msirument [for cxample, prepsyment, extension, call and samilar options) but does not considen the
axpected credi losses Interest income 15 included in other mcome in the statement of profit or hoss,

1.10 Financial instruments = initial recognition and subsequent maasurernsnt

& financal instrument s @y CONTract nar gives rise to a financial agset of one antity and a femanceal Lakility
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Motes (o the Financial Statements for the period ended December 31, 2023

or eguly instrament of another entity

8] Financial assets
{if Inatial recognition and measerement.
Adl financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are recognized initially at fair value

plus, in the case of financial assets not recarded at fair value through peafit or kags. transactson costs that are
attributable o the soquisition of the financial assets

[H) Subsequent measurerment
For purpases of subsegueent measurement, financial assets are classifled in four categores
= [ebt instruments at amortized cost
= [ebt instrements at fair valuee through other comgeehensive incame [FYTOC!)
o Debt instrements at fair vaduwe through prolit or boss (FUTPL)
= Equity instruments measured at far value through other compeahensive income [FYTOC!)
*  Eguity instruments measured at far value through statement of profit and loss (FYTEL)

+  Debtinstruments at amortized cost.
M dett instrument is measured at amartized cost if both The follgwing condit:ons are mel;

the asset i held within a business model whose obyective is (0 hald 5sets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

= Contractual terms of the asset give rise an specified dates to cash flows that are salely payvments of
princigal and interest (591} on the prencipal amount outstanding

After mitial measurement, such linancial assets are subsequently measured af amortized cost wsing the
eifective imtergst race (EIR] method, Amartized cost i calculated by taking into account any giscount of
premium on acguasstion and fees ar costs that are an integrall part of the EIR. The EIR amartizateon & included
i ther income in the statemant of profit and loss. The lodses arising froem impairment are recogmged in the
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applees 10 trade and other receivables

«  Debt instruments at fair value through other comgprehensive Income (FYTOC)
i geht instrumant 15 measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the fellowing
ETICETIE AfE ma
= theobjective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash Nows and selSng
the financral assets, and
= the asset’s contractual cash fiows represant SPPI,

Uebt instruments included withan the FYTOCI category are measered initially a5 well as a1 each reporting
date at fair value. Far valug mavements are recognized in the other comprehensive income [DCT), However,
Inerest snCome, impairment 1osses B oreversals and foreign exchange gain or loss are recogrized in the
statement of profit and boss. On derecopnition of the asset, cumulathee gain or loss praviously recognized i
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001 s reclassified from the equity 1o statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOC! debt
instrumend i reported as enterest income using the EIR method,

*  [Debtinstruments at fair value through profit of loss (FVTPL)

FVTPLis a restdual category for debt mstruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria foe
categpadiration a5 at amoried cost ar as PYTOC, is classified as at FVTRL

In agddition, the Company may eledl (o designate a debt instrument, which atherwise meets amortized cost
of fair walug through other comprehensee income critena, as at fair wvalue through poofit or boss. However,
such elechon 15 allowed only if deing 50 reduces or eliminates a maasuremant or reCOgRITon inconsistancy
[referrgd 10 as “acoounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debl smstrument as at FYTRL

Deb